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Section 2 — Financial Information

Item 2.01 Completion of Acquisition or Disposition of Assets

On October 30, 2020, Chugach closed on the previously reported transaction contemplated by
the Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”) and acquired substantially all of the assets of Municipal
Light & Power (“ML&P”) from the Municipality Of Anchorage, Alaska (“MOA”™).

The audited consolidated financial statements (and accompanying notes) of ML&P as of
December 31, 2019, 2018 and 2017, are included in this Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A
(“Amendment”) as Exhibits 99.1, 99.2, and 99.3, and incorporated herein by reference.

The unaudited consolidated financial statements (and accompanying notes) of ML&P as of
September 30, 2020, are included in this Amendment as Exhibit 99.4 and incorporated herein by
reference.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended
September 30, 2020, giving pro forma effect to the Business Combination are included in this
Amendment as Exhibit 99.5 and incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description

99.1 Financial Statements, Required Supplementary Information and Other
Information of Municipal Light & Power as of December 31,2019 and 2018

99.2 Financial Statements, Required Supplementary Information and Other
Information of Municipal Light & Power as of December 31, 2018 and 2017

99.3 Financial Statements, Required Supplementary Information and Other
Information of Municipal Light & Power as of December 31, 2017 and 2016

99.4 Monthly Business Report of Municipal Light & Power as of September 30,
2020
99.5 Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Pro Forma Financial Statements of the

Registrant as of September 30, 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Assembly
Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Electric Utility Fund, an enterprise
fund of the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Electric Utility Fund’s Alaska’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Electric Utility Fund as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the
changes in financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

BDO USA. LLP. a Delaware linuted hability partmershup. is the U S member of BDO Intermanonal Limited, a UK company limiled by guaiantee, and forms part of the wiemational BDO
networh of independent member fiums
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Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Electric Utility Fund, and do not
purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the changes in its financial position, or where applicable, its
cash flows for the years ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

As discussed in Note 13 to the financial statements, the Electric Utility Fund is currently in the
process of being sold to a third party. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 16 and the schedules of the Utility’s proportionate share
of the net pension and net other postemployment benefit liability and Utility contributions to the
pension and other postemployment benefit plans on pages 100 through 106 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Electric Utility Fund’s basic financial statements. The statistical section
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 30,
2020 on our consideration of the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ao ush, LLf

Anchorage, Alaska
June 30, 2020



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

The Electric Utility Fund (Utility) is a public utility of the Municipality of Anchorage (Municipality or
Anchorage). The following is a discussion and analysis of the Utility’s financial performance, providing an
overview of the financial activities for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. This discussion and
analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues, provide an overview
of the Utility’s financial activities and identify changes in the Utility’s financial position. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Utility’s financial statements
and accompanying notes, taken as a whole.

Financial Highlights

o The Utility’s total plant increased $0.2 million or 0.03% in 2019 while decreasing $12.7 million or
1.4% in 2018. The increase in 2019 was due to depreciation and retirements keeping pace with
additions to plant. The decrease in 2018 was due to depreciation and plant retirement exceeding
additions to plant.

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $299.3 million at December 31, 2019 and by $285.2 million at December 31, 2018.
Of these amounts, $69.7 million in 2019 and $69.7 million in 2018 were unrestricted and available
to meet the Utility’s ongoing obligations to customers and creditors.

e The Utility’s total net position increased $14.1 million or 4.9% in 2019, compared to an increase
of $15.8 million or 5.86% in 2018. The increase in net position in 2019 was primarily due to lower
production costs, primarily fuel, higher investment income, and lower administrative costs. The
restriction on paying dividends to the MOA also has contributed to the increase in net position
since 2016.The increase in net position in 2018 was primarily due to lower fuel costs and a lower
gas transfer price for internally produced gas. Depreciation also decreased significantly in 2018.
Beginning net position was reduced by $2.5 million due to adoption of a new accounting standard
in 2018.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Utility is a business type activity of the Municipality that provides electrical services to a specific area
of the Municipality. The Utility’s activities are recorded in an enterprise fund of the Municipality.

Required Financial Statements

The Utility’s financial statements offer short and long-term information about the activities of the Utility
and collectively provide an indication of the Utility’s financial health. The basic financial statements are
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.

The basic financial statements, presented on a comparative basis for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, include Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position and Statements of Cash Flows.

The Statements of Net Position present information on all of the Utility’s assets, liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position, and
provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources and obligations to
creditors.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report operating and non-operating
revenues and expenses, and the change in net position of the Utility for the years presented.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

The Statements of Cash Flows, using the direct method of presentation, provide information about the
Utility’s cash receipts and cash payments during the years presented. These statements report cash and
cash-equivalent activities for each fiscal year resulting from operating activities, noncapital financing
activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities. These statements also provide
answers to such questions as, where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change
in cash balance during the reporting periods.

The Notes to Financial Statements provide the reader with additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

The Required Supplementary Information presents certain information concerning the progress in funding
the Utility’s obligation to provide pension and other postemployment benefits.

Financial Analysis of the Utility

One of the most important questions asked about the Utility’s finances is whether the Utility, as a whole,
is better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities. The Statements of Net Position and the Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the Utility’s activities in ways
that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the Utility and changes
in net position for each of the years presented. You can think of the Utility’s net position, the difference
between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as one way
to, over time, provide a measure of the Utility’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the Utility’s net position can indicate whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. However, you will need to also consider other non-financial factors such as changes in
economic conditions and customer growth, as well as legislative and regulatory mandates.

The Utility’s total net position increased $14.1 million from beginning net position, during 2019 compared
to an increase in net position of $18.3 million from beginning net position, as restated, during 2018. The
following analysis focuses on the Utility’s net position and changes in net position during the year.

A portion of the Utility’s net position (71.8% and 70.2% as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively)
reflects its net investment in capital assets, such as gas and electric production, transmission and
distribution facilities, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. Those capital assets
are used to provide services to customers; consequently those assets are not available for future spending
or to be used to liquidate any outstanding debt. The changes in net investment in capital assets reflects
changes in plant assets over the year as well as changes in the related debt. The slight increase in 2019
was due to depreciation and retirements keeping pace with additions to plant. The decrease in 2018 was
due to depreciation and plant retirement exceeding additions to plant. For an electric utility with aging
distribution assets, the construction of new assets is often done to replace older assets, so the increase in
plant from new construction is offset by the retirement of older assets. The Utility did not issue any new
debt during either 2019 or 2018 and the redemption of debt kept pace with the reduction in plant assets,
resulting in little change in the percentage of net position invested in capital assets.

An additional portion of the Utility’s net position (4.9% and 5.3% as of December 31, 2019 and 2018
respectively) represent resources that are subject to external restriction for debt repayment and future
operations. The Utility has two categories of restricted net position, restricted for debt service and
restricted for operations. These restrictions are imposed by the trust agreement as debt covenants for the
Utility’s revenue bonds.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Net position restricted for debt service includes the restricted debt service investment, accrued bond
interest and the revenue bond reserve investment offset by the portion of debt used to fund the reserve.
The primary difference between the net amounts for 2019 and 2018 is due to market value adjustments to
the reserve investments. Those adjustments were negative in 2018 and positive in 2019. Net position
restricted for operations is required by bond covenants to be equal to 1/8 of current cash operating
expenses. Cash operating expenses were lower in 2019 than 2018.

The unrestricted portion of the Utility’s net position (23.3% and 24.4% as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively) are available to be used to meet the Utility’s obligations to creditors and customers. The
changes in unrestricted net position in both 2019 and 2018 are due to an overall positive change in net
position, as well as the changes in net position invested in capital assets and restricted net position. The
Utility has maintained over $60 million in unrestricted cash, which makes up a large portion of unrestricted
net position in both years.

Net Position

December 31,

2019 2018 2017

Plant $ 877,333,410 S 877,091,133 § 889,806,691
Restricted assets 75,850,262 69,889,012 108,827,334
Current and other assets 123,451,047 118,134,761 90,519,572
Deferred outflows of resources 1,550,632 1,961,254 1,372,834
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources ) 1,078,185,351 § 1,067,076,160 S 1,090,526,431
Current and other liabilities 20,764,776 19,297,209 32,495,462
Long-term liabilities 556,283,043 557,574,293 564,728,095
Deferred inflows of resources 201,815,619 204,964,937 223,845,628
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources $ 778,863,438 § 781,836,439 $ 821,069,185
Net investment in capital assets 214,935,301 200,317,529 201,055,297
Restricted for debt service 326,473 - 71,082
Restricted for operations 14,391,000 15,206,000 14,235,000
Unrestricted 69,669,139 69,716,192 54,095,867
Total net position S 299,321,913 S 285,239,721 $ 269,457,246

Notable components of changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows and outflows of resources are
discussed below.

Plant increased $0.2 million during 2019 compared to a decrease of $12.7 million during 2018. The primary
reasons for those changes are as follows.

During 2019, the Utility pursued a vigorous construction schedule, building two new substations and
replacing old power poles and continuing to upgrade electric meters to “smart” meters. Additions to
construction work in progress (CWIP) during the year were $30.1 million, while $15.1 million in CWIP
projects were placed in service. This resulted in net additions to plant assets of $35.9 million, offset by
$29.2 million in depreciation and $6.1 million in plant retirements.

6



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

During 2018, the construction program resulted in $23.2 million in additions to CWIP, while $31.2 million
in CWIP was placed in service. Net additions to plant were $23.5 million, offset by plant retirements of
$7.4 million, and depreciation of $28.9 million.

Restricted assets increased $6.0 million during 2019 compared to a decrease $38.9 million during 2018.

During 2019, the primary reasons for the increase was activity in the restricted funds for the gas field.
Those funds earned $2.6 million in interest revenue, were increased by $0.7 million in ARO surcharge
revenue deposits, $1.9 million in gas sales and $1.8 million in interfund loan principal and interest
payments. They were decreased by $0.6 million in rate stabilization payments, and $0.3 million in royalty
and tax payments.

During 2018, the Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA) allowed the Utility to remove the restriction on
$40.6 million in cash collected due to the rate increase and the Utility repaid $9.1 million in tax credits
received in prior years from the State of Alaska. These reductions were offset by interest earnings, loan
repayments, gas sales and surcharge revenue collections.

Current and other assets increased $5.3 million during 2019 compared to an increase of $27.6 million
during 2018.

During 2019, the primary reason for the increase is the increase in the Utility’s equity in general cash pool,
or unrestricted cash. This increase continues an upward trend from 2016, due to rate increases; reduction
in operating expenses, primarily the cost of fuel for the generators; and the restriction by the RCA on the
Utility paying a dividend to the Municipality.

During 2018, the Utility’s equity in general cash pool increased by $29.3 million primarily due to lifting of
the restriction of funds collected from customers pursuant to the refundable rate increase granted by the
RCA. Other receivables decreased by $1.7 million due to timing of payment of receivables. Prepaid items
decreased $2.2 million due to accelerated payments in 2017 for purchased power.

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $0.4 million during 2019 and increased $0.6 million during 2018
as a result of changes in pension related items and accounting for other postemployment benefits.

During 2019, deferred outflows of resources related the pensions decreased significantly and deferred
outflows of resources related to other post-retirement benefits decreased slightly due to changes in
expectations and assumptions from the prior year.

During 2018, deferred outflows related to other post-retirement benefits were recorded for the first time
due to implementation of GASB Statement No. 75.

Current and other liabilities increased $1.5 million during 2019 compared to a decrease of $13.2 million
during 2018.

During 2019, accounts payable from current assets increased $1.3 million primarily due to increase in over-
recovery of cost of power expenses from customers.

During 2018, accounts payable from current assets decreased $12.5 million primarily due to repaying prior
year over-recovery of cost of power expenses from customers, and $0.5 million in pollution remediation
liabilities were written off.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Long-term liabilities decreased $1.3 million during 2019 compared to a decrease of $7.2 million in 2018.

During 2019, the ARO was increased by $7.8 million, as a result of a cost of remediation assessment and a
reserve study for the gas field. This is offset by a $1.3 million reduction in the pension liability, a reduction
of $2.0 million in other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability, and $7.7 million redemption of bonds.

During 2018, the primary driver of the change was a $0.9 million reduction in the pension liability, the
addition of $2.3 million in OPEB liability due to adoption of new accounting standards, and $7.9 million
redemption of bonds.

Deferred inflows of resources decreased $3.1 million in 2019 compared to a decrease of $18.9 million in
2018.

During 2019, contributions in aid of construction decreased by $5.3 million due to amortization in 2019
exceeding additions. Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases account increased by $2.0 million
primarily $1.8 million in gas sales and $0.5 million in investment earnings.

During 2018, contributions in aid of construction decreased by $2.8 million due to amortization in 2018
exceeding additions. Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions decreased $0.7 million while
deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits of $0.8 million were recorded due
to the adoption of a new accounting standard. The future natural gas purchases account increased by $0.7
million in investment earnings and redemption of intercompany debt. Future BRU construction or natural
gas purchases account decreased by $16.9 million primarily due to refunding tax credits offset by $2.2
million in gas sales and $0.1 million in investment earnings (see Note 9 (c)).



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2019 and 2018
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Changes in the Utility’s net position can be determined by reviewing the following condensed schedule of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the years ended December 2019, 2018, and 2017:

Years ended December 31,

2019 2018 2017
Operating revenues:
Residential sales S 26,832,744 S 24,180,864 S 26,125,850
Commercial and industrial sales 113,371,659 103,164,976 122,670,602
Military sales 18,364,179 15,021,531 17,452,871
Sales for resale 10,803,496 28,266,428 23,344,433
Other operating revenues (2,581,581) 7,084,219 (5,169,343)
Operating revenues 166,790,497 177,718,018 184,424,413
Nonoperating revenues 9,521,971 3,878,498 4,868,051
Total revenues 176,312,468 181,596,516 189,292,464
Expenses:
Production 76,650,484 80,038,875 84,409,875
Transmission 1,306,068 1,206,720 1,160,932
Distribution 14,596,098 13,508,019 11,609,032
Customer service and sales 4,260,728 4,139,729 4,285,142
Administrative and general 6,510,003 9,934,148 11,044,068
Regulatory debits (credits) (1,642,549) (8,026,635) (4,028,641)
Taxes other than income 773,358 894,382 1,367,440
Depreciation, net of amortization 29,176,277 28,862,200 32,453,517
Operating expenses 131,630,467 130,557,438 142,301,365
Nonoperating expenses 20,953,871 23,136,095 22,768,624
Total expenses 152,584,338 153,693,533 165,069,989
Income before transfers 23,728,130 27,902,983 24,222,475
Transfers:
Municipal Utility Service Assessment (MUSA) (9,645,938) (9,565,771) (9,331,662)
Transfer to other funds . (29,418) -
Change in net position 14,082,192 18,307,794 14,890,813
Beginning net position (restated in 2018) 285,239,721 266,931,927 254,566,433
Ending net position S 299,321,913 $ 285,239,721 § 269,457,246




MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Revenues by Source:

Operating Revenue 2019 Operating Revenue 2018
(in thousands) (in thousands)
$10,803 , $26,833 ,
Resale  ($2582), Residential $24,181
$18,364 , Other $7,084 Resldential

T N il

R

Operating Revenue 2017
(in thousands)

($5,169) $26,126
Other  Residential
$17,453

o B

During 2019 total operating revenues were $166.8 million, a decrease of $10.9 million from 2018, compared
to $177.7 million and a decrease of $7.7 million during 2018. Total kilowatt hours (kWh) sold decreased by
253.7 million in 2019 compared to an increase of 54.8 million in 2018. Components of the changes in

revenues were:
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Residential sales increased by $2.7 million and commercial and industrial sales increased by $10.2 million.
and military sales revenue increased by $3.3 million. Sales for resale decreased by $17.5 million during the
year. Warmer weather during the year contributed to lower kWh sold to retail customers. Overall, 8.9
million less kWh were sold to retail customers in 2019 than in 2018. Increases in dollar revenues were
primarily due to higher Cost of Power Adjustment (COPA) revenues as a result of slightly increased fuel
costs for the year. Military sales revenue increased by $3.3 million and kWh sales increased by 871,000.
Sales for resale decreased by $17.5 million during the year. Sales for resale is wholesale power sold to
other utilities and is dependent on a number of factors such as the cost of buying versus the cost to
produce, the availability of power from other sources and price competition among sellers. In 2019, our
primary customers purchased from other sources.

Other operating revenues decreased by $9.7 million due to over-recovery of COPA. Non-operating revenues
increased by $5.6 million due to an increase in market conditions resulting in higher investment income

for the year.

During 2018 total operating revenues were $177.7 million, a decrease of $6.7 million from 2017. Military
sales revenue decreased by $2.4 million. Commercial and industrial sales decreased by $19.5 million while
sales for resale increased by $4.9 million during the year. Retail sales decreases were primarily due to
lower COPA. revenues as a result of lower fuel costs for the year and more efficient generation assets.
Other operating revenues increased by $12.3 million due to under-recovery of COPA. Non-operating
revenues decreased by just under $1 million due to lower investment income as a result of fewer assets
invested.

Expenses by Category

Total expenses by category decreased $1.1 million during 2019 compared to a decrease of $11.4 million
during 2018. Components of the changes were:

During 2019 operating expenses decreased $1.0 million from 2018 due to a $3.4 million decrease in
production expenses (primarily fuel),and a $6.4 million increase in regulatory credits due to repayment of
over-collection of COPA from customers. These two numbers are related to each other. Fuel costs are
down primarily because of a decrease in fuel costs related to sales for resale. COPA is calculated based on
projections of costs in providing that fuel for production. There will always be a variance between
projected costs collected from customers and actual costs. Over and under recovery of actual costs are
factored into future COPA calculations. Distribution expenses increased by $1 million. Administrative and
general expenses decreased $3.4 million due to a loss of personnel, higher than expected recovery of
administrative costs through overheads and the negative $2.4 million in OPEB expenses recorded as an
adjustment of the OPEB liability in 2019. Non-operating expenses decreased $2.2 million because the Utility
did not have a large loss on disposal of property as there was in 2018.

MUSA, which represents payments to the municipal government in lieu of property taxes, remained
consistent with 2018, increasing just $80,000 due to an increase in mill rates.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

During 2018 operating expenses decreased $11.7 million from 2017 due to a $4.4 million decrease in
production expenses (primarily fuel),and a $4 million increase in regulatory credits due to repayment of
over-collection of COPA from customers. Distribution expenses increased by $1.9 million, administrative
and general expenses decreased $1.1 million; depreciation expenses decreased $3.6 million primarily due
to retirement of assets. Non-operating expenses increased just $0.4 million primarily due to increased
short-term borrowing costs offset by decreases in other miscellaneous and interest expense and loss on

disposal of property.

MUSA remained consistent with 2017, increasing just $0.2 million due to a decrease in plant assets and an
increase in mill rates.

Expenses By Category 2019* Expenses By Category 2018*
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Nonoperating Nonoperating

$20,954 423,136

Taus\

$394

Admin. & Admin. &

General $6510 General

e Transmisslon Mr &/ Distribution Transmission
Sales $4,261
$1,306 Sales$4,140 $13,508 $1,207

Expenses By Category 2017*
(in thousands)

Nonoperating __
$22,768

Taxes 51,367
Admin

& Customer pistribution Transmisslon
Gener ~ &Sales 411,600 $1,161

* Expenses by category excluding regulatory debits (credits)
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Expenses By Type 2019* Expenses By Type 2018*
(in thousands) (in thousands) ourch
Interfund Purch. 5 Interfund Power
Taxes $773  $4,247 Power Taxes 3894 43,555 $4,663

$4,962 . -
A ’ Iy
Misc Other Misc Other
$32,666 $38,426

Expenses By Type 2017*
(in thousands)

Purch.
Taxes  |nterfund Power
$1,738 . ¢3159 $4,556

v
Vy Misc Other-
}4'1 $26,002

*Expenses by type excluding regulatory debits (credits)

*Fuel expense includes purchased natural gas, transportation costs, diesel fuel used, and CINGSA.

*+Employee expense includes general liability and workers compensation insurance.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Capital Assets - Plant

The Utility’s investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $877.3 million and $877.1
million, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation and depletion.) This included investments in gas
and electric production, transmission and distribution related facilities, as well as general items such as
buildings and vehicles. Plant increased 0.03% in 2019 and decreased 1.4 % in 2018.

The Utility’s capital assets as of December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017 were as follows:

2019 2018 2017

Capital assets:

Steam production $ 244,907,281 S 242,833,584 S 242,833,584
Hydraulic production 8,443,889 8,408,752 6,932,007
Other production 308,691,969 309,766,612 309,370,891
Transmission plant 82,696,983 82,141,081 76,759,366
Distribution plant 302,760,359 296,099,145 280,188,291
Regional transmission and market
operation plant 53,744 - -
General plant 42,627,110 43,929,026 43,877,572
Miscellaneous intangible plant 15,034,843 14,904,003 15,116,282
Intangible plant 15,272,228 15,272,228 15,272,228
Gas production 354,019,552 346,454,777 345,231,780
Total capital assets 1,374,507,958 1,359,809,208 1,335,582,001
Total accumulated depreciation (527,142,333) (497,620,360) (468,732,750)
Total construction work in progress 29,967,785 14,902,285 22,957,440
Net capital assets S 877,333,410 $ 877,091,133 S 889,806,691

During 2019, the Utility completed some upgrades to its older generating units and replaced overhead line
systems and continued undergrounding projects. Construction projects still in progress at year end included
the rebuild of substation 8, several large cable undergrounding projects, generating Unit 7 cooling water
skid and the major overhaul of Eklutna hydroelectric generator Unit 2.

During 2018, the Utility performed a major overhaul of one of its two hydroelectric generators at Eklutna
and continued to upgrade its distribution lines, both overhead and underground. Construction projects still
in progress at year end included generating Unit 7 cooling water skid, SCADA system upgrade and

undergrounding projects.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018
Long Term Debt - Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Utility had outstanding long-term debt of $515.5 million and $524.4
million, respectively.

The Utility’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2019, 2018, and 2017, were as follows:

2019 2018 2017

Revenue bonds:
Series 2005A S 10,870,000 $ 12,150,000 $ 17,565,000

Series 2009A 12,680,000 15,240,000 15,240,000
Series 2009B 114,760,000 114,760,000 114,760,000
Series 2014A 169,465,000 173,355,000 175,805,000
Unamortized discount (415,811) (446,018) (476,692)
Unamortized premium 16,247,046 17,436,399 18,721,619

Total revenue bonds 323,606,235 332,495,381 341,614,927
Notes payable 191,900,000 191,900,000 191,900,000

Total long-term debt S 515,506,235 $ 524,395,381 § 533,514,927

The Utility has not issued new revenue bonds since 2014. It is the intention of the Municipality to redeem
or defease all long term debt pursuant to the sale of the Utility in 2020.

Bond Rating
At December 31, 2019, the Utility maintains the following underlying credit ratings:

Standard & Poor’s A+
Fitch A+

In February 2020, Standard & Poor’s reaffirmed the A+ rating of the Utility’s Senior Debt. In January 2020,
Fitch opted to do an internal review in light of the pending sale of the Utility and did not change its rating
at that time.

Currently Known Facts, Decisions and Conditions

Sale of the Utility

On April 3, 2018, Anchorage voters approved an amendment to the Anchorage Municipal Charter authorizing
the Municipality to sell the Utility to Chugach Electric Association (CEA) by Municipal ordinance. An asset
purchase and sale agreement has been approved by the Anchorage Municipal Assembly and CEA’s board of

directors.

On May 28, 2020, the RCA issued an order addressing the acquisition dockets and approving the sale if the
parties agree to modify the proposed transaction as required in the final order. (See Note 9(i)). At this
time, CEA, the Municipality, and all the other parties in the docket have yet to decide whether they accept
the conditions as ordered by the RCA. If they do accept the conditions and the acquisition goes forward,
the expected closing date will be in the fall of 2020.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2019 and 2018

A successful acquisition of most of the assets of the Utility by CEA would have a significant effect on the
financial position and results of operations of the Utility. The agreement, as approved with conditions by
the RCA, requires that the Utility retain only the generation assets of Eklutna Hydroelectric Project and
sell power to Chugach Electric Association (CEA) and Matanuska Electric Association (MEA) from those
assets. (See Note 13).

Global Pandemic

In late January 2020 the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency
regarding a new strain of virus called coronavirus (COVID-19). This virus originated from within China, and
spread globally, including Alaska. Further, in March 2020, the WHO classified the coronavirus as a
pandemic. On March 12, 2020, the mayor of Anchorage declared a state of emergency to protect and
preserve public health and safety, and subsequently closed all civic, cultural and recreational facilities in
the Municipality. The governor of Alaska declared a public health disaster as did the President of the United
States. The governor instituted a number of public health measures that affected intrastate and interstate
travel and the movement of goods and services.

Management is actively monitoring the global situation and assessing its effect on the Utility’s financial
condition, liquidity, operations, supply chain, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the COVID-19
outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the Utility is not able to estimate the effects of the
COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows for fiscal year 2020,
however, the Utility expects a longer receivables cycle and potential reduction in commercial sales during
the economic slowdown that appears to be resulting from the health emergency.

The state legislature has passed legislation that could enable the Utility or its successor to recover in future
rates some of the impact of unpaid utility bills and extraordinary expenses related to responding to the
emergency. The legislation also provides for deferred payment agreements with customers affected by the
pandemic and needing to defer payment of their electric bills to future periods. Management anticipates
a negative impact on its short-term cash flows as a result of these arrangements.

Cares Act Funding

On March 27, 2020 the President signed into law the “Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES)
Act.” The CARES Act, among other things, appropriated funds for the Coronavirus Relief Fund to be used
to make payments for specified uses to states and certain local governments. There is no assurance the
Utility is eligible for these funds or will be able to obtain them. The Utility continues to examine the impact
that the CARES Act may have. Currently, the Utility is unable to determine the impact that the CARES Act

will have on the Utility’s financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, citizens, and creditors with a general overview
of the Utility’s finances and to demonstrate the Utility’s accountability for the money it receives. If you

have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Utility’s Acting
Chief Financial Officer, Mollie C. Morrison, at (907) 263-5205.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statements of Net Position

December 31, 2019 and 2018

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Plant:
Plant in service, at cost S
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion

Net plant in service

Intangible plant, net
Construction work in progress

Total plant

Restricted assets:
Current:
Restricted equity in general cash pool - customer deposits
Noncurrent:
Debt service investment
Revenue bond reserve investment
Revenue bond operations and maintenance investment
Future natural gas purchases investment
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases investment
Asset retirement obligation sinking fund investment

Total restricted assets

Current assets:
Equity in general cash pool
Net accounts receivable:
Utility customers, less estimated uncollectibles
of $218,815 in 2019 and $214,282 in 2018
Other receivables, less estimated uncollectibles
of $270,393 in 2019 and $77,082 in 2018
Accrued interest
Unbilled reimbursable projects
Inventory of materials and supplies, at average cost
Prepaid Items

Total current assets

Other assets:
Noncurrent:
Unamortized regulatory assets
Unamortized debt expense

Total other assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources S

18

2019

2018

1,359,235,730

1,344,536,980

514,270,008 484,853,307
844,965,722 859,683,673
2,399,903 2,505,175
29,967,785 14,902,285
877,333,410 877,091,133
1,260,642 1,225,452
2,056,512 2,058,443
24,387,434 23,718,574
14,391,000 15,206,000
7,305,431 5,732,181
10,106,437 8,032,509
16,342,806 13,915,853
75,850,262 69,889,012
67,475,637 61,906,365
8,184,445 8,319,226
7,287,162 7,306,860
667,202 736,000

. 131,864
32,134,009 31,388,131
958,657 861,556
116,707,112 110,650,002
5,508,509 6,147,029
1,235,426 1,337,730
6,743,935 7,484,759

1,076,634,719

1,065,114,906

24,588 61,057
881,680 1,155,512
644,364 744,685

1,550,632 1,961,254

1,078,185,351

1,067,076,160




MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Net Position, continued

December 31, 2019 and 2018

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current liabilities:
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Accrued interest
Other liabilities
Long-term obligations maturing within one year

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets)

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets):
Customer deposits

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable
Asset retirement obligation
Unearned revenue
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefits liability
Obligation for undergrounding

Revenue bonds payable after one year, net of premium and discount

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Contributions in aid of construction (net of amortization)
Future natural gas purchases
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for operations
Unrestricted

Total net position

Totat liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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2019 2018

$ 191,900,000 .
13,316,710 12,035,116
2,387,262 2,526,423
1,816,951 1,506,814
1,722,475 1,813,590
260,736 189,814
8,075,000 7,730,000
219,479,134 25,801,757
1,260,642 1,225,452

s 191,900,000
24,332,547 16,543,712
1,546,636 948,181
10,094,592 11,361,736
252,675 2,328,332
4,550,358 1,996,951
315,531,235 324,765,381
356,308,043 549,844,293
577,047,819 576,871,502
172,546,886 177,823,955
18,230,036 17,934,651
10,106,438 8,077,741
517,705 285,157
414,554 843,433
201,815,619 204,964,937
214,935,301 200,317,529
326,473 :
14,391,000 15,206,000
69,669,139 69,716,192
299,321,913 285,239,721
$ 1,078,185,351 1,067,076,160




Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

Operating revenues:
Residential sales

Military sales
Sales for resale
Other operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Production

Transmission

Distribution

Customer service and sales

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

For the Years Ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Administrative and general
Regulatory credits
Taxes other than income

Nonoperating revenues:

Investment

PERS on behalf
OPEB on behalf

Nonoperating expenses:

Interest:

Other interest

Amortization of other assets
Loss on disposal of property

Transfers:

Transfers to other funds

2019 2018

S 26,832,744 24,180,864

Commercial and industrial sales 113,371,659 103,164,976

18,364,179 15,021,531

10,803,496 28,266,428

(2,581,581) 7,084,219

Total operating revenues 166,790,497 177,718,018
76,650,484 80,038,875

1,306,068 1,206,720

14,596,098 13,508,019

4,260,728 4,139,729

6,510,003 9,934,148

(1,642,549) (8,026,635)

773,358 894,382

Depreciation, net of amortization 29,176,277 28,862,200
Total operating expenses 131,630,467 130,557,438

Total operating income 35,160,030 47,160,580

income 7,237,517 1,197,610

Interest subsidy on Build America Bonds 2,443,046 2,437,406
544,512 154,073

(703,104) 89,409

Total nonoperating revenues 9,521,971 3,878,498

Long-term obligations 16,467,228 16,794,977
4,920,584 4,429,858

Total interest 21,387,812 21,224,835
Allowance for funds used during construction (595,493) (638,303)
36,469 157,027

75,837 2,337,536

Other nonoperating expenses 49,246 55,000
Total nonoperating expenses 20,953,871 23,136,095
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) (11,431,900) (19,257,597)

Income before transfers 23,728,130 27,902,983
Municipal Utility Service Assessment (9,645,938) (9,565,771)
- (29,418)
Total transfers (9,645,938) (9,595,189)

Change in net position 14,082,192 18,307,794

Net position - beginning of year, as restated (for 2018) 285,239,721 266,931,927
end of year S 299,321,913 285,239,721

Net position -

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019

2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users S
Other operating cash receipts
Payments to employees
Payments to vendors
Internal activity - payments made to other funds

178,238,532
(1,851,857)

(33,131,990)

(63,864,029)

182,289,020

11,919,963
(36,114,203)
(106,426,580)

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfer - Municipal Utility Service Assessment
Transfers to other funds

(3,537,847) (4,217,349)

75,852,809 47,450,851

(9,645,938) (9,565,771)
: (29,418)

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities

(9,645,938)

(9,595,189)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Interest payments on short-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest payments on long-term debt
Interest subsidy on Build America Bonds
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Contributed capital - customers
Contributed capital - intergovernmental agencies
Payments for interfund services used
Proceeds from sale of property

(4,920,584)
(7,730,000)
(17,615,185)
2,445,649
(33,137,236)
273,690
135,912
(1,486,932)
54,625

(4,429,858)
(7,865,000)
(17,781,999)
2,436,538
(20,599,776)
273,528
521,344
(1,142,414)

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

(61,980,061)

(48,587,637)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Net (deposits to) withdrawals from restricted funds (5,926,060) 11,727,294
Investment income received 7,303,712 1,108,837
Net cash provided by investing activities 1,377,652 12,836,131
Net increase in cash 5,604,462 2,104,156
Cash, beginning of year 63,131,817 61,027,661
Cash, end of year S 68,736,279 63,131,817
Cash:
Equity in general cash pool S 67,475,637 61,906,365
Interim rate escrow investment - s
Restricted equity in general cash pool 1,260,642 1,225,452
Cash, end of year $ 68,736,279 63,131,817
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation, net of amortization
PERS on behalf
OPEB on behalf
Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Other nonoperating expenses

Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,

and deferred inflows of resources which increase (decrease) cash:

Accounts receivable

Unbilled reimbursable projects

Inventories

Prepaid items

Unamortized regulatory assets

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

Deferred outflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits

Accounts payable

Compensated absences payable

Accrued payroll liabilities

Other liabilities

Customer deposits

Asset retirement obligation

Unearned revenue

Net pension liability

Net other postemployment benefits liability
Obligation for undergrounding

Other deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

Deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits

Total cash provided by operating activities

Non cash investing, capital and financing activities:
Capital purchases on account

Portion of plant from allowance for funds used during construction

Contributions in aid of construction funded from
deferred inflows of resources

Total non cash investing, capital and financing activities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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2019 2018
35,160,030 47,160,580
29,176,277 28,862,200

544,512 154,073
(703,104) 89,409
197,844 41,125
(49,246) (55,000)
(43,365) 1,966,709
264,112 (21,239)
(745,878) 689,064
(97,101) 2,181,579
638,520 (3,179,841)
273,832 (31,378)
100,321 (568,875)
470,827 (13,876,244)
(139,161) (285,717)
310,137 (269,178)
70,922 162,514
35,190 39,226
7,788,835 719,980
466,207 83,650

(1,267,144) (909,157)
(2,075,657) 489,294

2,553,407 (257,061)

3,118,823 (14,997,948)

232,548 (718,256)
(428,879) (18,658)
75,852,809 47,450,851
810,767 906,478
595,493 638,303
794,741 1,222,998
2,201,001 2,767,779
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(1) Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The first electric system serving Anchorage was installed in 1916 by the Alaska Engineering
Commission, the agency of the United States Department of the Interior which constructed the Alaska
Railroad. A small steam plant and several diesel power generators supplied Anchorage with
electricity until 1929 when the private Anchorage Power and Light Company began supplying the
community with electricity from a hydroelectric power plant on the Eklutna River located 15 miles
northeast of downtown Anchorage. The Alaska Engineering Commission distribution system was
purchased by Anchorage in 1932. Anchorage then acquired the Eklutna plant from the Anchorage
Power and Light Company in 1943. This is what is now Anchorage Municipal Light and Power or the
Electric Utility Fund, a public utility of the Municipality of Anchorage. The Utility now has six turbine
generating units fired by natural gas and one heat recovery steam turbine generating unit. The Utility
also has a thirty percent ownership in Southcentral Power Project and fifty-three and one-third
percent ownership interest in the Eklutna Hydroelectric Project and is entitled to twenty-five and
nine-tenths percent of the output of the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project. The Utility meets the
majority of its natural gas requirements from its ownership interest in the Beluga River Gas Field
(BRU), including the initial one-third interest acquired in December 1996. The Utility’s goal in
acquiring the working interest in the BRU was to lock in a critical resource for the long-term and
provide a hedge against anticipated future increases in natural gas prices. During 2016 the Utility
acquired 70% of a one-third working interest in the field from ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc.{(CPAl),
increasing its working interest to 56.67%.

The accompanying financial statements include the activities of the Utility. The Utility is a major
enterprise fund of the Municipality and not the Municipality as a whole. The Utility is subject to the
regulatory authority of the RCA.

The Utility applies all applicable provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
which has authority for setting accounting standards for governmental entities. The accounting
records of the Utility conform to the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC).

Accounting and reporting treatment applied to the Utility is accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they are earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the Utility’s principal ongoing operations. All other revenues and expenses are
reported as non-operating.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

(a) Regulated Operations

(b)

The Utility meets the criteria, and accordingly follows the accounting and reporting requirements
applicable to regulated operations. The Utility’s rates are regulated by the RCA and as a result,
revenues intended to recover certain costs are provided either before or after the costs are
incurred, resulting in regulatory assets or liabilities. The following regulatory assets and liabilities
are reflected in the accompanying financial statements:

The Utility receives contributions in aid of construction, which it records as contributed
plant in service and a deferred inflow of resources. The Utility amortizes contributed plant
and the deferred inflow of resources over the useful life of the utility plant.

The Utility accepted a monetary settlement in 2015 from its BRU partners for its 2014
underlift. The Utility used these funds to reduce its Gas Transfer Price (GTP) from July 1,
2016 through June 30, 2017. See Note 9(a).

The Utility has a regulatory asset or liability account to capture the difference in the cost
of power and revenue received through the Cost of Power Adjustment (COPA). See Note
9(b).

The Utility has a regulatory asset or liability account to capture the difference in the
amount of the Gas Fund revenue requirement and the actual amount of revenue collected
from the Electric Fund. See Note 9(b).

The Utility records proceeds from the sales of gas, net of royalties, taxes and an Asset
Retirement Obligation (ARO) surcharge, as a regulatory liability, reported as deferred
inflows of resources on the statements of net position. See Note 9(c).

The Utility funds ARO expenses associated with future abandonment of the BRU through a
surcharge to the Utility’s GTP, which is deposited into a sinking fund. See Note 9(c) and

(d).

Management believes that the recorded amounts of all regulatory assets are fully recoverable
from ratepayers in the future.

Management Estimates

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and the reporting of contingent assets and liabilities
as of the date of the statement of net position and revenues and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The more significant accounting and reporting
policies and estimates applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements are
discussed below.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

(c) Cash Pools and Investments

(d)

(e)

1)

The Municipality uses a central treasury to account for all cash and investments to maximize
interest. Interest income on cash pool investments is distributed based on the average daily
balance in the general cash pool. The Utility’s investments are reported at fair value in the
financial statements.

Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Utility has defined cash as the demand
deposits and all investments maintained in the general cash pool, regardless of maturity period,
since the Utility uses the cash pools essentially as demand deposit accounts. Restricted assets
in the general cash pool, except for customer deposits, have not been included in the definition
of cash.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Utility’s revenue bonds, as well as resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statements of net position because their
use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The revenue bond reserve investment account is
used to report resources set aside to augment potential deficiencies from Utility operations
that could adversely affect debt service payments. The debt service investment account is used
to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months.
The revenue bond operations and maintenance investment account represents funds set aside
to comply with bond covenants requiring a reserve equal to one-eighth of the preceding year’s
operating expenses (as defined in the bond covenants).

The restricted equity in general cash pool-customer deposits account represents deposits
provided by electric service customers as security for bill payment. Future natural gas
purchases or BRU construction and ARO sinking fund investments are funds for which the RCA
has specified the use.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at weighted average cost. The cost of inventories are recorded as
expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. Inventories consist of parts and
materials used to maintain or build new transmission, distribution, and generation
facilities. Scrap and nonusable materials in inventory are carried at net estimated realizable
value until sold or otherwise disposed of.

The Utility also stores natural gas in a depleted field on the Kenai Peninsula. Cook Inlet Natural
Gas Storage Alaska (CINGSA) started in 2012 and as of December 31, 2019 the Utility has stored
9.58 billion cubic feet of gas.
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Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

(s)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Electric

Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by use of the straight-line method
over the estimated economic life of the asset. Additions to electric plant in service are at
original cost of items such as contracted services, direct labor and materials, indirect overhead
charges and allowance for funds used during construction. The Utility capitalizes general plant
assets valued at more than $25,000 that have an expected life in excess of one year.
Contributed assets are recorded at the cost incurred by the Utility for the addition of such
assets. Donated assets are recorded at acquisition value. Acquisition value is the price that
would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly market
transaction at the acquisition date. For property replaced or retired, the cost of the property
unit, plus removal costs less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. Gain or loss is
not recognized unless the Utility determines that such costs could not be recovered in rates.
Costs for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, except for major maintenance on
generation assets, for which costs are collected into a regulatory asset and amortized over the
period of utility, generally three to five years.

The Utility capitalizes Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) as a means to
capture the cost of using both debt and equity funds to finance utility plant additions during
the construction period in accordance with regulatory requirements. AFUDC of $595,493 and
$638,303 were capitalized for the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Estimated lives of major plant and equipment categories follow:

Production plant 24 - 60 years
Hydraulic plant 40 - 45 years
Transmission plant 45 - 60 years
Distribution plant 17 - 55 years
General plant - buildings 40 - 60 years
Vehicles 16 - 20 years
Other general plant 5 - 20 years
Original gas field acquisition 23 years
Intangible plant 5 - 30 years

Gas

The acquisition of assets purchased with designated underlift settlement funds and Utility
equity funds are being amortized using the units of production method, based upon proven
reserves in accordance with the amortization method used for regulatory purposes. The
acquisition of assets purchased with gas sale proceeds, and assets acquired from CPAI in the
2016 purchase, are being recorded as contributed plant and are being amortized using the units
of production method, based on proven reserves in accordance with the amortization method
used for regulatory purposes. No AFUDC is capitalized for gas field assets.
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Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

(h) Unbilled Revenues and Accounts Receivable

()

)

Electric revenues are based on cycle billings rendered to customers monthly. As a result of this
cycle billing method, the Utility does not accrue revenue at the end of any fiscal period for
services sold but not billed at such date. The unbilled revenues for the Utility are immaterial.
An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for receivables where there is a question of
collectability. Utility receivables are presented in the statements of net position net of
estimated uncollectible amounts.

Other receivables are primarily related to sales of electricity outside of the usual retail billing
processes. The largest components of these receivables are related to sales of electricity to
the military bases and wholesale sales for resale to other electric utilities.

Gas sales are calculated based upon volumes delivered and recorded as a regulatory liability,
which is reported as deferred inflows of resources on the statements of net position (see Note

9(c)).
Gas Balancing

The Utility has elected to account for underlifted gas from its ownership interest in the BRU
according to the sales method. Therefore, the financial statements do not include a receivable
or revenue for underlifted volumes for which the Utility did not elect to receive cash
settlement. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the (overlift)/underlift balance was (521) and
23,106 Mcf, respectively. The Utility also has the option per the Gas Balancing Agreement to
take cash settlements for any underlifted gas.

Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO)

The Utility accounts for its ARO for its interest in the BRU in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 980-410-20, formerly Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (SFAS No 143) and 18 CFR
101 General Instruction No 25, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (Regulations of the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Department of Energy, or FERC). ASC 980-410-20 and
FERC General Instruction No 25 applies to the fair value of a liability for an ARO that is recorded
when there is a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
and the liability can be reasonably estimated. Obligations associated with the retirement of
these assets require recognition of: (1) the present value of a liability and offsetting asset for
an ARO, (2) the subsequent accretion of that liability and depreciation of the asset, and (3) the
periodic review of the ARO liability estimates and discount rates.

In 2012 the Utility made its initial recording of the ARO asset and ARO liability with a beginning
balance of $1,461,335 representing the fair value of the obligation at 1996 - the period when
the obligation was incurred. The Utility recorded in 2012 $4,185,549 to the ARO liability
representing total accretion expense that would have been incurred if the liability was accreted
from the time the obligation was incurred through December 31, 2012. During 2013, the Utility
commissioned a study of the costs associated with abandoning the BRU field and as a result of
the findings of that study, adjusted the ARO liability and accretion as of December 2013.
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(k)

)

Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO), continued

On April 22, 2016, the Utility purchased 70% of CPAI’s one-third interest in the BRU. At that
time a revised estimate was made of the life of the gas field. The Utility’s obligation for an
ARO was adjusted for the increased liability and changes in estimated life and discount rate.

During 2019, the Utility commissioned a study of the costs associated with abandoning the BRU
field and also a study of remaining gas reserves, and, as a result of the findings of both studies,
the Utility adjusted the ARO liability and accretion, for regulatory purposes as of January 1,
2019.

As of December 31, 2016, the Utility entered into an agreement with the State of Alaska
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to establish an ARO investment fund to meet its
obligations for dismantling, removing and restoring the land and property to a condition
acceptable to the commissioner of the DNR in accordance with the terms and conditions of
assigned leases and applicable statutes and regulations. The balance of the ARO investment
fund was $16,342,806 and $13,915,853 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

A schedule of changes in the ARO balance for the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018 is
as follows:

2019 2018

Asset to be retired: Gas Field

Beginning carrying value S 16,543,712 S 15,823,732
Current year changes to the liability balance - -
Current year settled - -
Current year accretion 1,018,801 719,980
Change in assumption or cash flow revisions 6,770,034 -
Ending ARO S 24,332,547 S 16,543,712

Discount or Premium on Revenue Bonds Payable

The discount or premium on revenue bonds payable is amortized over the life of the related
bond issues using the effective interest method.

Compensated Absences

The Utility records employee leave, which includes sick leave, when earned.
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Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued

(m) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

(n)

(0)

(p)

The Utility enters into transactions that result in the consumption or acquisition of resources
in one period that are applicable to future periods. These consumptions and acquisitions of
resources are reported in the statements of net position as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources, respectively. The Utility records deferred outflows of resources related to pensions,
other postemployment benefits and deferred loss on refunding of bonds, and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions and other postemployment benefits, contributions in aid of
construction and certain items related to the operation of the BRU.

Net Position

The Utility’s net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted or
unrestricted. The Utility’s restricted net position represents assets restricted for payment of
debt service, or restricted for operations, in accordance with covenants of the related revenue
bond indentures. It is the Utility’s policy to evaluate whether to use restricted or unrestricted
resources to make certain payments, on a case by case basis, when both restricted and
unrestricted assets are available for the same purposes.

Intragovernmental Charges

Certain functions of the Municipality of a general and administrative nature are centralized and
the related costs are allocated to the various funds of the Municipality, including the Utility.
Such costs allocated to the Utility totaled $4,765,388 and $4,214,954 for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, including general liability and workers
compensation of $537,311 for 2019 and $660,414 for 2018.

Utility Revenue Distribution/Municipal Service Assessment (MUSA)

Prior to 2006, the RCA restricted the Utility from making a revenue distribution or paying the
gross receipts portion of the MUSA. That restriction was removed in December 2005. The
Utility made an annual revenue distribution to the Municipality for the years 2006 - 2015, which
by Ordinance, was up to a maximum of 5% of the Utility’s gross revenues, excluding restricted
revenues. During those years the Utility also included the gross receipts portion, considered
supplemental MUSA, at 1.25% times the actual gross operating revenues in its payment of MUSA.
During 2017, the Municipality eliminated the gross receipts portion of the MUSA and revised the
methodology for calculating the Utility Revenue Distribution.

Beginning January 1, 2016, the Utility is restricted by the RCA from making revenue
distributions to the Municipality, with the exception of MUSA. The Utility’s distribution for MUSA
in 2019 and 2018 was $9,645,938 and $9,565,771, respectively.
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(@)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Environmental

The Utility has adopted an aggressive policy designed to identify and mitigate the potential
effects of past, present, and future operational activities that may result in environmental
impact. It is the Utility’s accounting policy to record a liability when the likelihood of
responsibility for an environmental impact is probable and the cost of mitigating the impact is
estimable within reasonable limits. Such costs are capitalized if they result in an extension of
the assets’ life, increase the capacity, or improve the safety or efficiency of property owned
by the Utility; or mitigate or prevent environmental contamination that has yet to occur and
that otherwise may result from future operations or activities. There were no environmental
issues that met the Utility’s accounting policy and accordingly, no provision has been made in
the accompanying financial statements for any potential liability.

Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/from PERS’ fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. Details regarding
the net pension liability are discussed in Note 7.

Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability

For purposes of measuring net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to OPEB and OPEB expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of PERS and additions
to/from PERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value. Details regarding the net OPEB liability are discussed in
Note 7.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts previously reported may have been reclassified to conform to current
presentations. The reclassifications had no effect on the previously reported change in net
position.
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Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, the Utility participates in the PERS plans. In
2018, the Utility adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which, among other accounting
and reporting criteria, requires the Utility to recognize its proportional share of the net OPEB
liability (and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources), as of the beginning of the
Utility’s fiscal year. As a result of the implementation of this statement, the Utility recorded an
opening balance adjustment in 2018 to reflect opening balance OPEB liabilities and related
accounts and to decrease opening net position as follows:

Opening net
position, as

Opening net Change in restated
position as accounting after change
originalty principle in accounting
presented adjustment principle
S 269,457,246 S (2,525,319) S 266,931,927

Cash and Investments

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Utility had cash and investments in the Municipality’s general
cash pool (Central Treasury). The Utility also carries certain balances in a separate account for Asset
Retirement Obligations. At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Utility had the following cash and
investments, with fixed income maturities as noted:

December 31, 2019:

Fixed Income Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More
investment Type Value* Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Utility Share of Petty Cash 8 1,000
Central Treasury - Unrestricted
Money Market Funds S 14,721,342
Repurchase Agreements 61,467,262 S 61,467,262 & - & - S -
Commercial Paper 2,824,608 2,824,608 - - -
U.S. Treasuries 90,725,434 5,367,758 68,506,311 16,690,855 160,510
U.5. TIPS 4,133,704 - 1,728,030 2,405,674 -
U.5. Agencies 54,795,702 29,450,138 5,532,580 6,180,849 13,632,135
Municipal Bonds 58,119 - 15,399 - 42,720
Asset-Backed Securities™ 24,545,951 136,466 14,855,882 2,183,330 7,370,273
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 119,800,517 33,255,449 44,015,469 40,511,276 2,018,323
Domestic Equities™ 38,448

S 373,111,087 S 132,501,681 S 134,663,671 5 67,971,984 S 23,223,961
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Cash and Investments, continued

December 31, 2019, continued

Fixed Income |nvestment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value® Than 1 1-8 6-10 Than 10
Central Treasury - Restricted
loney Market Funds S 22,921,889
Repurchase Agreements 10,190,948 S 10,190,948 S - S - -
Commercial Paper 468,305 458,305 - - -
U.S. Treasuries 34,608,937 889,946 30,925,123 2,767,256 26,612
U.S. TIPS 685,346 - 286,498 398,848 -
U.5. Agencies 25,072,613 4,882,677 16,905,048 1,024,752 2,260,136
Municipal Bonds 9,636 - 2,553 - 7,083
Asset-Backed Securities™ 4,069,589 22,625 2,463,027 361,995 1,221,952
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 19,862,293 5,613,578 7,297,532 6,716,556 334,627
Domestic Equities™* 6,375
S 117,895,931 S 21,968,079 S 57,879,781 S 11,269,397 3,850,410
Utility share of Municipal
Central Treasury $ 126,983,093
Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Money Market Funds S 86,590
U.5. Treasuries 5,554,268 S 131,677 S 2,876,763 S 875,241 1,670,687
Asset-Backed Securities™ 2,626,852 25,337 = 207,690 2,393,825
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 2,273,211 100,263 1,068,347 583,553 521,048
U.5. TIPS 1,608,253 1,608,253 - - -
Domestic Equity Funds 2,505,196
International Equity Funds 863,848
Real Estate Funds 824,588
S 16,342,806 S 1,865,430 S 3,945,110 S 1,666,484 4,585,560

Total Utility cash and investments ~ § 143,325,389%

*  |ncludes accrued income.

# |ncludes asset-backed securities, residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities.
##2 |n 2019, the Central Treasury obtained an equity position when a corporate fixed income security was restructured
via bankruptcy. The Municipality has chosen to hold this position until it is advantageous to sel it.
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December 31, 2018:

Fixed Income Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than1 1-5 5-10 Than 10
Uility Share of Petty Cash $ 1,000
Central Treasury - Unrestricted
Money Market Funds ¥ 21,308,292
Repurchasze Agreements 22,398,105 22,338,105 - - -
U.S. Treasuries 148.917.831 80,567,294 55,484,846 12,414,634 451,057
U.S. Agencies 20,351,315 10,114 10,552,227 5,456,530 4,332 444
Asszet-Backed Securities™ 25,781,328 394,626 17,416,412 2,667,894 5,302,136
Corporate Fired Income Securities 136,435,070 40,724,193 55,624,808 38,378,958 1,707,111
$ 375,191,941 144,094,532 139,076,293 58,918,016 11,732,808
Central Treasury - Restricted
Money Market Funds ¥ 22.072,465
Repurchase Agreements 3,164,717 3,164,717 - - -
L5, Treasuries 34,914,458 11,383,6T 21,712,952 1,754,113 63,732
.5, Agencies 21,222,562 14239 19,838,011 770,974 812,148
Asset-Backed Securities™ 3,642,746 55.787 2,460,834 376,957 749,168
Corporate Fired Income Securities 19.277.450 5,754,082 7,859,443 5.422,715 241,204
$ 104,254,408 20,359,686 51,671,246 8,324,753 1.666.252
UWtility share of Municipal
Central Treasury $ 117.879.524
Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Money Market Funds $ 85.665
U.S. Treasuries 4,096,389 506,386 1,250,725 1.420,655 918,623
U.S. TIPS 1,360,925 - 1,360,925 - -
Asset-Backed Securities™” 2,536,364 - 120,903 367,506 2,048,569
Corporate Fited Income Securities 2,478,383 33,797 373,570 554,342 550.674
Domestic Equity Funds 2,061,138
International Equity Funds B53.5859
Real Estate Funds 642,504
$ 13,915,853 506,183 3,706,132 2,642,503 3,517,866
Total Utility cash and investments $ 131.795.377

Includes acerued income.

** | Includes asset-backed securities, residential and commetcial mortgage-backed securities.
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Reported in the Statements of Net Position:

2019 2018
Restricted assets:
Customer deposits S 1,260,642 S 1,225,452
Debt service investment 2,056,512 2,058,443
Revenue bond reserve investment 24,387,434 23,718,574
Revenue bond operations and maintenance investment 14,391,000 15,206,000
Future natural gas purchases investment 7,305,431 5,732,181
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases investment 10,106,437 8,032,509
Asset retirement obligation sinking fund investment 16,342,806 13,915,853
Total restricted assets S 75,850,262 S 69,889,012
Unrestricted equity in general cash pool,
including petty cash 67,475,637 61,906,365

Total Utility cash and investments

(a) Municipal Central Treasury

S 143,325,899

S 131,795,377

The Municipality manages its Central Treasury in four portfolios; one internally managed portfolio
and three externally managed duration portfolios based on liability duration and cash needs:
working capital, contingency reserve and strategic reserve.

The Municipality maintains a comprehensive policy over cash and investments that is designed to
mitigate risks while maximizing investment return and providing for operating liquidity. Pursuant
to Anchorage Municipal Code (AMC) 6.50.030, the Municipality requires investments to meet
specific rating and issuer requirements.

Both externally and internally managed investments are subject to the primary investment
objectives outlined in AMC 6.50.030, in priority order as follows: safety of principal, liquidity,
return on investment and duration matching. Consistent with these objectives, AMC 6.50.030
authorizes investments that meet the following rating and issuer requirements:

« Obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.S. agencies or U.S. government
sponsored corporations and agencies.

o Corporate debt securities that are guaranteed by the U.S. government or the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) as to principal and interest.

« Taxable and tax-exempt municipal securities having a long-term rating of at least A- by a

nationally recognized rating agency or taxable or tax-exempt municipal securities having a
short-term rating of at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s, P-1 by Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch.
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Debt securities issued and guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development (IBRD) and rated AAA by a nationally recognized rating agency.

Commercial paper, excluding asset-backed commercial paper, rated at least A-1 by Standard
& Poor’s, P-1 by Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch.

Bank debt obligations, including unsecured certificates of deposit, notes, time deposits, and
bankers’ acceptances (with maturities of not more than 365 days), and deposits with any
bank, the short-term obligations of which are rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s, P-1 by
Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch and which is either:

a) Incorporated under the laws of the United States of America, or any state thereof,
and subject to supervision and examination by federal or state banking authorities;
or

b) Issued through a foreign bank with a branch or agency licensed under the laws of the
United States of America, or any state thereof, or under the laws of a country with
a Standard & Poor’s sovereign rating of AAA, or a Moody’s sovereign rating for bank
deposits of Aaa, or a Fitch national rating of AAA, and subject to supervision and
examination by federal or state banking authorities.

Repurchase agreements secured by obligations of the U.5. government, U.S. agencies, or U.S.
government-sponsored corporations and agencies.

Dollar denominated corporate debt instruments rated BBB- or better (investment grade) by
Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Dollar denominated corporate debt instruments rated lower than BBB- (non-investment grade)
by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency,
including emerging markets.

Dollar denominated debt instruments of foreign governments rated BBB- or better (investment
grade) by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Asset Backed Securities (ABS), excluding commercial paper, collateralized by: credit cards,
automobile loans, leases and other receivables which must have a credit rating of AA- or
above by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Mortgage Backed Securities, including generic mortgage-backed pass-through securities issued
by Ginnie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Fannie Mae, as well as non-agency mortgage-backed
securities, Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMOs), or Commercial Mortgage-Backed
Securities (CMBS), which must have a credit rating of AA- or better by Standard & Poor’s or
the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.
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Debt issued by the Tennessee Valley Authority

Money Market Mutual Funds rated Am or better by Standard & Poor’s, or the equivalent by
another nationally recognized rating agency, as long as they consist of allowable securities as
outlined above.

The Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP), except that the Working Capital
portfolio may not be invested in AMLIP.

Mutual Funds consisting of allowable securities as outlined above.

Interfund Loans from a Municipal Cash Pool to a Municipal Fund.

In addition to providing a list of authorized investments, AMC 06.50.030 specifically prohibits
investment in the following:

Structured Investment Vehicles.

Asset Backed Commercial Paper.

Short Sales.

Securities not denominated in U.S. Dollars.
Commodities.

Real Estate Investments.

Derivatives, except “to be announced” forward mortgage-backed securities (TBAs) and
derivatives for which payment is guaranteed by the U.S. government or an agency thereof.
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The Investment Management Agreement (IMA) for each external manager and the policy and
procedures (P&P) applicable to the internally managed investments provide additional guidelines for
each portfolio’s investment mandate. The IMA limits the concentration of investments for the Working
Capital portfolio at the time new investments are purchased as follows, with year-end concentrations
listed for 2019 and 2018:
Working Capital Portfolio
Holding % at December 31

Investment Type Concentration Limit 2019 2018

U.S. Government Securities* 50% to 100% of investment portfolio 27% 53%

Repurchase Agreements 0% to 50% of investment portfolio 42% 13%

Commercial Paper 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 1% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Corporate Fixed Income** 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 17% 18%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Money Market Mutual Funds 13% 16%

0% to 25% of investment portfolio

100% 100%

*Includes debt obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.S. agencies or
U.S. government-sponsered corporations.

*The maximum exposure to Corporate floating and variable rate debt securities in the Working Capital Portfolio is 10 percent.
Corporate Fixed Income Debt Securities must have a final maturity within one (1) year of purchase, and
Corporate Floating Rate or Variable Rate Debt Securitites must have a final maturity within two (2) years of purchase

The P&P limits the concentration of investments for the internally managed portfolio at the time new
investments are purchased as follows, with year-end concentrations listed for 2019 and 2018:

Internally Managed Portfolio
Holding % at December 31

Investment Type Concentration Limit 2019 2018
U.S. Government Securities* 50% to 100% of investment portfolio 10% 71%
Money Market Mutual Funds** 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 90% 29%
100% 100%

*Includes debt obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.S. agencies or U.S. government-sponsered

corporations.
“The Interally Managed Portfolio contained an excess of cash equivalents at December 31, 2019 in anticipation of planned

spending within a week. The portfolio was back in compliance the first week of 2020.
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Cash and Investments, continued

(b) Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund

Funds set aside to pay for dismantling, removing, and restoring assets of the Beluga River Unit
gas field were transferred from the MOA Central Treasury to a separate investment portfolio in
2017, per assembly ordinance.

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund is managed to maximize capital appreciation
with a long-term rate of return. The Fund is authorized to invest in the following assets:

o Domestic equities and International equities, including real estate investment trusts.
o Investment grade dollar-denominated fixed income securities.
¢ Cash and money market instruments.

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund limits the concentration of its investments as

follows:
Investment Holding % at
Lower Upper December 31,
Investment Type Limit Limit Target 2019 and 2018
Domestic Equities:
Large Cap 5% 20% 13% 13%
Mid Cap 0% 5% 1% 1%
Small Cap 0% 5% 1% 1%
International Equities:
Developed 0% 10% 4% 4%
Emerging Markets 0% 5% 1% 1%
Real Estate:
Real Estate Funds 0% 10% 5% 5%
Fixed Income:
Domestic Fixed Income 55% 75% 65% 64%
TIPS 5% 15% 10% 10%
Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash Equivalents 0% 15% 0% 1%
100%
(c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The externally managed portfolios of the Municipal Central Treasury utilize the
duration method to measure exposure to interest rate risk.

Duration is a measure of an investment’s sensitivity to interest rate changes, and represents the
sensitivity of an investment’s market price to a one percent change in interest rates. The
effective duration of an investment is determined by its expected future cash flows, factoring
in uncertainties introduced through options, prepayments, and variable rates. The effective
duration of a pool is the average fair value weighted effective duration of each security in the

pool.
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Cash and Investments, continued
Interest Rate Risk, continued

AMC 6.50.030 requires the Working Capital Portfolio have a duration of zero to 270 days. At
December 31, 2019, the Working Capital Portfolio had a duration of 0.09 years, or approximately
33 days, and was within the targeted duration. At December 31, 2018, the Working Capital
Portfolio had a duration of 1.37 years, or approximately 500 days, and was not within the
targeted duration. AMC 6.50.030 also requires that the Contingency Reserve Portfolio have an
average duration within half a year of its benchmark. At December 31, 2019, the Contingency
Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 1.83 years as compared to its benchmark, Barclays 1-3 Year
Government Index, which had a duration of 1.87 years. At December 31, 2018, the Contingency
Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 1.83 years as compared to its benchmark, Barclays 1-3 Year
Government Index, which had a duration of 1.90 years. AMC 6.50.030 requires the Strategic
Reserve Portfolio have a maximum duration no greater than one year in excess of its benchmark.

At December 31, 2019, the Strategic Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 3.21 years as compared
to its benchmark, Barclays Intermediate Government/Corporate Index, which had a duration of
3.62 years. At December 31, 2018, the Strategic Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 3.12 years
as compared to its benchmark, Barclays Intermediate Government/Corporate Index, which had
a duration of 2.91 years.

The effective duration of the externally managed portfolio of the Municipal Central Treasury
working capital portfolio at December 31, 2019, was 0.09 years, which is within the targeted
duration of +/-.25 years of the Merrill Lynch 90-day Treasury Bill Index, as required per Alaska
Permanent Capital Management Investment Manager Agreement. The effective duration of the
contingency reserve and strategic reserve portfolios at December 31, 2019, were 1.83 years, and
3.21 years, respectively, which are within the required durations per the policy.

The effective duration of the externally managed portfolio of the Municipal Central Treasury
working capital portfolio at December 31, 2018, was 1.37 years, which is not within the targeted
duration of +/-.25 years of the Merrill Lynch 90-day Treasury Bill Index, as required per Alaska
Permanent Capital Management Investment Manager Agreement. The effective duration of the
contingency reserve and strategic reserve portfolios at December 31, 2018, were 1.83 years, and
3.12 years, respectively, which are within the required durations per the policy.

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund does not have Investment Policies addressing
interest rate risk.
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Cash and Investments, continued
(d) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. For fixed income securities, this risk is generally expressed as a credit rating.

At December 31, 2019, the Municipal Central Treasury’s investment in marketable debt
securities, excluding U.S. Treasuries, totaled $248,214,420. The distribution of ratings on these
securities was as follows:

Moody's S&P

Aaa 34%  AAA 7%
Aa 3% AA 22%
A 16% A 15%
Baa 16%  BBB 19%
Ba or Lower 20% BB or Lower 19%
Not Rated 11%  Not Rated 18%

100% 100%

At December 31, 2018, the Municipal Central Treasury’s investment in marketable debt
securities, excluding U.S. Treasuries and Agencies, totaled $185,136,594. The distribution of
ratings on these securities was as follows:

Moody's S&P

Aaa 13% AAA 11%
Aa 11% AA 6%
A 22% A 25%
Baa 26% BBB 30%
Ba or Lower 24% BB or Lower 22%
Not Rated 4% Not Rated 8%

100% 100%
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Cash and Investments, continued

(e)

Credit Risk, continued

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund investment
in fixed income securities, excluding U.S. Treasuries, totaled $4,900,063 and $5,015,367,
respectively. The distribution of Moody’s ratings on these securities was as follows:

Moody's Rating 2019 2018
Aaa 0% %
Aa 5% 2%
A 26% 28%
Baa 15% 19%
Not Rated 54% 49%

VU q00% T 100%

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s
investment in a single issuer. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure when the amount
invested in a single issuer exceeds 5 percent or more of total investments. Investments issued
or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government, as well as mutual funds and other pooled
investments, are exempted from this requirement. At December 31, 2019, the Municipal Cash
Pool held investments in the Federal Farm Credit Bank that were 6.57 percent of the Municipal
Cash Pool’s investments.

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund has no policy regarding concentration of
holdings with a single issuer.

At December 31, 2019, more than 5 percent of the Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation
Fund’s investments were held with the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and Federal
National Mortgage Association. These investments are 7.06 percent and 9.01 percent,
respectively, of the Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund’s total investments. At
December 31, 2018, more than 5 percent of the Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund’s
investments were held with the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and Federal National
Mortgage Association. These investments are 8.18 percent and 9.32 percent, respectively, of
the Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund’s total investments.
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1)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk, in event of the failure of a depository institution, that an entity
will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party.
For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk, in event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, that an entity will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. All collateral consists of obligations issued, or
fully insured or guaranteed as to payment of principal and interest, by the United States of
America, an agency thereof or a United States government sponsored corporation, with market
value not less than the collateralized deposit balances.

AMC 6.50.030 requires that repurchase agreements be secured by obligations of the U.S.
government, U.S. agencies, or U.S. government-sponsored corporations and agencies. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018 cash deposits and investments were not exposed to custodial credit
risk.

(g) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely impact the fair
value of an investment. The Municipality has no specific policy addressing foreign currency risk;
however foreign currency risk is managed through the requirements of AMC 6.50.030 and the
asset allocation policies of each portfolio.

The Municipal Central Treasury is not exposed to foreign currency risk because AMC 6.50.030
explicitly prohibits the purchase of securities not denominated in U.S. Dollars. At December 31,
2019 and 2018, all debt obligations held in the Municipal Central Treasury were payable in U.S.
Dollars.

The Asset Retirement Obligation Fund invests in dollar denominated exchange traded
international equity funds which are broadly diversified across currencies, effectively limiting
foreign currency risk.
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Cash and Investments, continued

(h) Fair Value Measurements

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Municipality had investments valued as follows:

Asset-backed securities are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable
inputs for similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on
comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Short-term collective investments such as money market funds are valued at amortized cost.
Commercial paper is valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs
for similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable
securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Corporate bonds are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable
securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Domestic equity funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which
the individual funds traded.

International equity funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on
which the individual funds traded.

Municipal bonds are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable
securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Real estate funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the
individual funds traded.

Repurchase agreements are valued at amortized cost.

U.S Treasuries are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the
individual securities traded.

U.S Agencies are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities.

U.S TIPs are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual
securities traded.
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Fair Value Measurements, continued

The Municipality utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Municipality determines fair
value based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in
the principle or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions
in fair value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable
and unobservable inputs, which are categorized in one of the following levels:

« Level 1 Inputs: quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

« Level 2 Inputs: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active or inactive markets; or
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable

« Level 3 Inputs: significant unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities

The Municipality categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The Municipality as a whole has the
following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

December 31, 2019:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs
Investment Type: December 31, 2019 {Level 1) {Level 2)

Central Treasury- Unrestricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value:

Commercial Paper S 2,824,608 S - S 2,824,608
U.5. Treasuries 90,725,434 90,725,434 -
U.5. TIPS 4,133,704 4,133,704
U.5. Agencies 54,795,702 . 54,795,702
Municipal Bonds 58,119 - 58,119
Asset-Backed Securities 24,545,951 - 24,545,951
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 119,800,517 - 119,800,617
Domestic Equities 38,448 38,448 -
S 296,922,483 S 94,897,586 S 202,024,897

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:

Maney Market Funds S 14,721,342
Repurchase Agreements 61,467,262
Total Central Treasury- Unrestricted S 373,111,087
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Cash and Investments, continued
Fair Value Measurements, continued

December 31, 2019, continued:

Fair Value ieasurements Using

Quoted Pricesin

Active Markets for Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs
Investment Type: December 31, 2019 {Level 1) (Level 2}
Central Treasury- Restricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value:
Commercial Paper S 468,305 S L 468,305
U.5. Treasuries 34,608,937 34,608,937 -
U.5. TIPS 685,346 685,346
U.5. Agencies 25,072,613 25,072,613
Municipal Bonds 9,636 - 9,636
Asset-Backed Securities 4,069,589 4,069,589
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 19,862,293 19,862,293
Domestic Equities 6,375 6,375 -
S 84,783,094 § 35,300,658 S 49,482,436
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
Money Market Funds S 22,921,889
Repurchase Agreements 10,190,948
Total Central Treasury- Restricted S 117,895,931
Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Investments Measured at Fair Value:
U.S. Treasuries S 5,564,268 S 5,564,268 S
Asset-Backed Securities 2,626,852 2,626,852
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 2,273,211 2,273,211
U.S. TIPS 1,608,253 1,608,253 -
Domestic Equity Funds 2,505,196 2,505,197
International Equity Funds 863,848 863,848
Real Estate Funds 824,538 524,588
S 16,256,216 S 11,056,154 S 4,500,063

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
Money Market Funds S 86,590
Total Asset Retirement Obligation Fund ) 16,342,806
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Fair Value Measurements, continued

December 31, 2018:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other
Identical Assets Observable Inputs
Investment Type: December 31, 2018 (Level 1) (Level 2)
Central Treasury - Unrestricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value:
U.S. Treasuries S 148,917,831 S 103,429,738 S 45,488,093
U.S. Agencies 20,351,315 = 20,351,315
Asset-Backed Securities 25,781,328 25,781,328
Corporate Securities 136,435,070 - 136,435,070
S 331,485,544 § 103,429,738 S 228,055,806
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
Money Market Funds S 21,308,292
Repurchase Agreements 22,398,105
Total Central Treasury - Unrestricted S 375,191,941
Central Treasury - Restricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value:
U.S. Treasuries S 34,914,468 S 28,487,275 S 6,427,193
U.S. Agencies 21,222,562 21,222,562
Asset-Backed Securities 3,642,746 3,642,746
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 19,277,450 - 19,277,450
S 79,057,226 $ 28,487,275 S 50,569,951
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
Money Market Funds S 22,072,465
Repurchase Agreements 3,164,717
Total Central Treasury - Restricted S 104,294,408
Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Investments Measured at Fair Value:
U.S. Treasuries S 4,096,390 $ 4,096,390 S -
Asset-Backed Securities 2,536,983 - 2,536,983
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 2,478,383 - 2,478,383
U.S. TIPS 1,360,928 1,360,928 -
Domestic Equity Funds 2,061,138 2,061,138
International Equity Funds 653,859 653,859
Real Estate Funds 642,504 642,504 -
S 13,830,185 S 8,814,819 S 5,015,366

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:

Money Market Funds S 85,668
Total Asset Retirement Obligation Fund S 13,915,853
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(4) Capital Assets

A summary of capital assets at December 31, 2019 follows:

January 1, December 31,
2019 Additions Deductions 2019
Electric plant in service S 998,082,203 $ 13,258,809 $ (6,124,834) $ 1,005,216,178
Less accumulated depreciation 283,371,643 29,727,833 (7,084,035) 306,015,441
Net electric plant in service 714,710,560 (16,469,024) 959,201 699,200,737
Natural gas production and gathering plant 346,454,777 7,564,775 - 354,019,552
Less accumulated depletion 201,481,664 14,288,925 (7,516,022) 208,254,567
Net gas plant in service 144,973,113 (6,724,150) 7,516,022 145,764,985
Net electric and gas plant in service 859,683,673 (23,193,174) 8,475,223 844,965,722
Intangible plant, less accumulated
amortization of $12,872,325 in 2019
and $12,767,052 in 2018 2,505,175 - (105,272) 2,399,903
Construction work in progress 14,902,285 30,159,534 (15,094,034) 29,967,785
Total capital assets, net S 877,091,133 § 6,966,360 S (6,724,083) S 877,333,410

included in the Construction Work in Progress are retirement assets as follows:

S 1,025,887 $ 1,152,350 $ (1,040,481) $ 1,137,756

1. In accordance with the requirements of FERC, disposals of retirement assets are not placed in service, rather they

are reported as deductions from accumulated depreciation.
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A summary of capital assets at December 31, 2018 follows:

Electric plant in service
Less accumulated depreciation
Net electric plant in service
Natural gas production and gathering plant
Less accumulated depletion
Net gas plant in service

Net electric and gas plant in service

Intangible plant, less accumulated
amortization of $12,767,052 in 2018
and $12,661,781 in 2017

Construction work in progress

Total capital assets, net

Included in the Construction Work in Progress are retirement assets as follows:

In accordance with the requirements of FERC, disposals of retirement assets are not placed in service, rather they

are reported as deductions from accumulated depreciation.

Long-Term Liabilities

(a) Revenue Bonds Payable

Revenue bonds:

2005 Series A, effective interest rate at 4.993858% due 2026
2009 Series A, effective interest rate at 5.009% due 2039

2009 Series B, effective interest rate at 5.009% due 2039 taxable
2014 Series A, effective interest rate at 3.81% due 2044

Unamortized discount
Unamortized premium

January 1, December 31,
2018 Additions Deductions 2018
975,077,993 § 30,377,787 $ (7,373,577) $ 998,082,203
261,683,609 31,937,280 (10,249,246) 283,371,643
713,394,384 (1,559,493) 2,875,669 714,710,560
345,231,780 1,222,997 346,454,777
194,387,360 7,094,304 201,481,664
150,844,420 (5,871,307) 144,973,113
864,238,804 (7,430,800) 2,875,669 859,683,673
2,610,447 - (105,272) 2,505,175
22,957,440 23,162,877 (31,218,032) 14,902,285
889,806,691 $ 15,732,077 § (28,447,635) $ 877,091,133
768,992 $ 1,097,142 $ (840,247) $ 1,025,887
A summary of revenue bonds payable consist of the following at December 31:
2019 2018

10,870,000 $ 12,150,000

12,680,000 15,240,000

114,760,000 114,760,000

169,465,000 173,355,000

307,775,000 315,505,000

(415,811) (446,018)

16,247,046 17,436,399

323,606,235 $ 332,495,381
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Long-Term Liabilities, continued
Revenue Bonds Payable, continued

Debt service requirements to maturity at December 31, 2019 are as follows:

Senior Lien Electric Revenue Bonds

Principal Interest Total
2020 S 8,075,000 § 16,603,147 $ 24,678,147
2021 8,410,000 16,268,347 24,678,347
2022 8,760,000 15,917,897 24,677,897
2023 9,200,000 15,479,897 24,679,897
2024 9,635,000 15,042,772 24,677,772
2025 - 2029 55,420,000 66,936,195 122,356,195
2030 - 2034 69,545,000 49,398,028 118,943,028
2035 - 2039 87,430,000 27,022,900 114,452,900
2040 - 2044 51,300,000 6,625,600 57,925,600
Senior lien revenue bonds payable ) 307,775,000 $ 229,294,783 S 537,069,783

The Utility’s revenue bonds bear interest at effective rates of 3.75% to 6.5% and require the
establishment of reserves over a five-year period at least equal to the maximum annual debt
service on all outstanding senior lien bonds. The senior lien revenue bond covenants further
stipulate that net revenue before depreciation and amortization for each year will be equal to
at least 1.35 times the debt service requirements for that year. At December 31, 2019 and
2018, the Utility had satisfied the reserve requirements and debt service covenants. The Utility
has pledged future customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay revenue
bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for construction and other capital
improvements. The bonds are payable solely from customer net revenues and are payable
through 2044. The total principal remaining and interest to be paid on the bonds for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $537,069,783 and $561,750,529, respectively. Principal
and interest paid for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were $24,680,747 and
$25,178,098, respectively. Total customer net revenues for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018 were $62,569,791 and $62,308,872, respectively.

As a condition of the sale of the Utility, (See Note 13) the Municipality is obligated, under its
Charter, to retire all debt of the Utility. Therefore, on the closing date of the sale, the
Municipality i) will retire all outstanding 2005 Revenue Bonds, ii) will retire all outstanding 2009
Revenue Bonds, iii) will defease all outstanding 2014 Revenue Bonds to their maturity date or
the first call date of December 1, 2024, whichever occurs first.

(b) Notes from Direct Borrowings

In February 2012, the Assembly authorized the issuance of commercial paper in one or more
series in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed three hundred million dollars
($300,000,000). In April 2015, the Utility redeemed all outstanding commercial paper and
entered into a short-term borrowing agreement with Wells Fargo Municipal Capital Strategies,
LLC, herein referred to as the Direct Drawdown Purchase Program (DDPP).
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Long-Term Liabilities, continued
Notes from Direct Borrowings, continued

This borrowing program continued to fulfill the purpose of the Commercial Paper program, but
at a lower aggregate fee and interest cost to the Utility over the life of the program. The DDPP
was used by the Utility to complete construction of Generation Plant 2A. At December 31, 2019
and 2018 the outstanding balance of DDPP notes payable was $191,900,000. On November 1,
2019 the loan term was extended to September 30, 2020. No further drawdowns are
anticipated. The Utility intends to extend the loan term until December 31, 2020. Pursuant to
the sale of the Utility, the Municipality will retire the amount outstanding on the date of the
sale.

The maturity date of the loan is September 30, 2020. The Utility agrees to pay the outstanding
principal and the accrued and unpaid interest on the earlier of the Termination date or the
Maturity date. The interest rate is the LIBOR index rate as defined by the loan agreement. The
average interest rate for 2019 was 2.77%.

In the event of default by the Utility, the Lender may terminate the Loan commitment and
declare all amounts owed to be immediately due and payable. There are no unused lines of
credit or assets pledged as collateral for this debt.

The following is a summary of long-term liability activity as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31, Due within
2019 Additions Reductions 2019 one year

Revenue bonds payable:
Series 2005A S 12,150,000 $ -5 1,280,000 $ 10,870,000 $ 1,340,000
Series 2009A 15,240,000 - 2,560,000 12,680,000 2,680,000
Series 2009B 114,760,000 - 114,760,000 -
Series 2014A 173,355,000 - 3,890,000 169,465,000 4,055,000

Senior electric revenue bonds 315,505,000 - 7,730,000 307,775,000 8,075,000
Unamortized premiums/discounts 16,990,381 . 1,159,146 15,831,235 -

Total revenue bonds payable 332,495,381 - 8,889,146 323,606,235 8,075,000
Notes from direct borrowings 191,900,000 . = 191,900,000 191,900,000
Compensated absences payable 2,526,423 1,775,041 1,914,202 2,387,262 2,387,262
Net pension liability 11,361,736 . 1,267,144 10,094,592 -
Net OPEB liability 2,328,332 - 2,075,657 252,675
Asset retirement obligation 16,543,712 7,788,835 - 24,332,547

Total long term liabilities S 557,155,584 S 9,563,876 S 14,146,149 $ 552,573,311 § 202,362,262
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Long-Term Liabilities, continued

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31, Due within
2018 * Additions Reductions 2018 one year
Revenue bonds payable:
Series 2005A S 17,565,000 $ - S 5,415,000 S 12,150,000 $ 1,280,000
Series 2009A 15,240,000 15,240,000 2,560,000
Series 20098 114,760,000 114,760,000
Series 2014A 175,805,000 - 2,450,000 173,355,000 3,890,000
Senior electric revenue bonds 323,370,000 - 7,865,000 315,505,000 7,730,000
Unamortized premiums/discounts 18,244,927 - 1,254,546 16,990,381 .
Total revenue bonds payable 341,614,927 E 9,119,546 332,495,381 7,730,000
Notes from direct borrowings 191,900,000 - 191,900,000 -
Compensated absences payable 2,812,140 1,622,046 1,907,763 2,526,423 2,526,423
Net pension liability 12,270,893 - 909,157 11,361,736
Net OPEB liability 1,839,038 * 489,294 - 2,328,332
Asset retirement obtigation 15,823,732 719,980 16,543,712
Total long term liabilities S 566,260,730 $ 2,831,320 § 11,936,466 S 557,155,584 S 10,256,423

* Per implementation of GASB Statement No. 75, the Utility restated beginning balances for net OPEB Liability.

(6) Net Position

Net position is composed of the following at December 31:

2019 2018
Total plant S 877,333,410 § 877,091,133
Less: Total revenue bonds payable (323,606,235) (332,495,381)
Contributions in aid of construction (172,546,886) (177,823,955)
Notes payable (191,900,000) (191,900,000)
Bond proceeds used for bond reserve fund 24,394,998 24,046,945
Bond proceeds used for bond sale costs 1,235,426 1,337,730
Deferred loss on refunding 24,588 61,057
Net investment in capital assets 214,935,301 200,317,529
Debt service account 2,056,512 2,058,443
Revenue bond reserve investments 24,387,434 23,718,574
Less: Bond proceeds used for bond reserve fund (24,394,998) (24,046,945)
Accrued bond interest payable (1,722,475) (1,813,590)
Adjustment - 83,518
Restricted for debt service 326,473 -
Operating reserve -
Restricted for operations 14,391,000 15,206,000
Unrestricted 69,669,139 69,716,192
Total net position S 299,321,913 §$ 285,239,721
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(7) Retirement and OPEB Plans
Substantially all regular employees of the Utility are covered by one or more of the following plans:

(a) IBEW Plans

Defined Benefit Plan

The Utility’s IBEW members participate in a cost-sharing defined benefit plan, the Alaska
Electrical Pension Plan of the Alaska Electrical Pension Fund (IBEW Plan). The Alaska Electrical
Trust Funds (AETF) Board of Trustees administers the IBEW Plan and has the authority to
establish and amend benefit terms and approve changes in employer required contributions.
Each year, AETF issues annual financial reports that can be obtained by writing the plan
administrator, Alaska Electrical Pension Trust, 2600 Denali Street, Suite 200, Anchorage, Alaska,
99503. The Utility had 168 and 166 employees covered by the Plan as of December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

The IBEW Plan provides several levels of retirement benefits, including early retirement, normal
retirement, late retirement, and disability retirement and includes several options for spouse
participation and death benefits. The Utility contributes to the IBEW Plan for its covered
employees according to the terms of its Agreement Covering Terms and Conditions of
Employment (Agreement) with the IBEW Local 1547. The Agreement in effect during 2018 and
2019 was effective until December 31, 2019. On February 27, 2020, the Agreement was extended
to December 31, 2020 and amended effective the first full pay period in 2020.

Employer contributions are determined from hours of work reported by participating employers
and the contractual employer contribution rate in effect. The Utility’s required contribution to
the IBEW Plan for each hour for which compensation is paid to the employee for January 1, 2019
to December 31, 2019 was $8.00 per hour, and from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 was
$7.95 per hour. The Utility’s total employer contributions to the IBEW Plan for 2019 and 2018
were $3,249,636 and $3,382,920, respectively. The Utility had $355,339 and $119,769 in
required contributions to the IBEW Plan payable to AETF at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
respectively. These amounts are paid during the normal course of business in the month
following each year end. The Utility is not subject to withdrawal penalties, nor are there any
future minimum payments to the IBEW Plan required other than the contribution per hour
compensated as required by the Agreement.

Defined Contribution Plan - Money Purchase Plan

The Agreement requires employer contributions to be made in an amount of 1.9% of each
employee’s gross wages to the Alaska Electrical Workers Money Purchase Plan (Money Purchase
Plan). The Utility’s employer and employee contributions to the Money Purchase Plan during
2019 were $412,735 and $106,142, respectively. The Utility’s employer and employee
contributions to the Money Purchase Plan during 2018 were $437,345 and $89,841, respectively.
One hundred percent (100%) of the Utility’s required contributions to the IBEW plans have been
made through these contributions to the AETF.
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Retirement and OPEB Plans, continued
(b) State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan (PERS I-1ll)

General Information About the Plan

The Municipality participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS I-1ll or
the Plan). PERS I-Ill is a cost-sharing multiple employer plan which covers eligible State and local
government employees, other than teachers. The Plan was established and is administered by
the State of Alaska Department of Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are
established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

The Plan provides for retirement, death and disability, and post-employment health care
benefits. There are three tiers of employees, based on entry date. For all tiers within the
Defined Benefit (DB) plan, full retirement benefits are generally calculated using a formula
comprised of a multiplier times the average monthly salary (AMS) times the number of years of
service. The multiplier is increased at longevity milestone markers for most employees.

The tiers within the Plan establish differing criteria regarding normal retirement age, early
retirement age, and the criteria for calculation of AMS, COLA adjustments, and Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) benefits.

A complete benefit comparison chart is available at the website noted below.

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and other required supplemental information. That report is available via the
internet at http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/pers. Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial
statements, and other detailed plan information are also available on this website. They may
be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of
Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or by phoning (907)
465-4460.

The PERS I-1ll DB Plan was closed to new entrants effective July 1, 2006. New employees hired
after that date participate in the PERS IV Defined Contribution (DC) Plan described later in this
note.

Historical Context and Special Funding Situation

In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed legislation converting the previously existing PERS
plan from an agent-multiple employer plan to a defined benefit cost-sharing plan with an
effective date of July 1, 2008. In connection with this conversion, the State of Alaska passed
additional legislation which statutorily capped the employer contribution rate, established a
state funded “on-behalf” contribution (subject to funding availability), and required that
employer contributions be calculated against all PERS eligible wages, including wages paid to
participants of the PERS Tier IV defined contribution plan described later in this note.

Alaska Statutes require the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan an amount such that, when
combined with the employer contribution, is sufficient to pay the Plan’s past service liability
contribution rate as adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board.
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continued

Although current statutes call for the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan, the Alaska
Department of Law determined that the statute does not create a legal obligation to assume the
liabilities of the Plan; rather it establishes a contribution mechanism to provide employer relief
against the rising contribution rates. This relief payment is subject to funding availability, and
therefore not legatly mandated. As a result, the State initially determined that the Plan is not
in a special funding situation. Following much discussion with various stakeholders, participant
communities, attorneys, auditors, and the GASB itself, the State has subsequently reversed its
position on this matter, and as of June 30, 2015, the State did record the liability presuming
that the current statute does constitute a special funding situation as the legislation is currently
written. It is important to note that the Alaska Legislature has the power and authority to change
the aforementioned statute through the legislative process, and it is likely that the State will
pursue efforts to do so in a future legislative session.

For the current year financial statements, management has treated AS 39.35.255 and AS
39.35.280 as constituting a special funding situation under GASB Statement No. 68 rules and has
recorded all pension related liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and
disclosures on this basis.

Employee Contribution Rates
Regular employees are required to contribute 6.75 percent of their annual covered salary.

Employer and Other Contribution Rates
There are several contribution rates associated with the pension and healthcare contributions
and related liabilities. These amounts are calculated on an annual basis.

Employer Effective Rate

This is the contractual employer pay-in rate. Under current legislation, this rate is statutorily
capped at 22 percent of eligible wages, subject to a wage floor, and other termination events.
This 22 percent rate is calculated on all PERS participating wages, including those wages
attributable to employees in the defined contribution plan. Contributions derived from the
defined contribution employees are referred to as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability (DBUL)
contribution.

Alaska Retirement Management (ARM) Board Adopted Rate

This is the rate formally adopted by the ARM Board. This rate is actuarially determined and used
to calculate annual Plan funding requirements, without regard to the statutory rate cap or the
GASB accounting rate. Prior to July 1, 2015, there were no constraints or restrictions on the
actuarial cost method or other assumptions used in the ARM Board valuation. Effective July 1,
2015, the Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution rates for past
service liabilities using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25 year term which ends in
2039.
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State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan (PERS I-lil),
continued

On-behalf Contribution Rate

This is the rate paid in by the State as an on-behalf payment under the current statute. The
statute requires the State to contribute, based on funding availability, an on-behalf amount
equal to the difference between the ARM Board Rate and the Employer Effective Rate. In the
Utility’s financial statements, the on-behalf amounts reflect revenue and expense only during
the measurement period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019, in which the Plan recognizes the
payments, resulting in a significant timing difference between the cash transfers and revenue
and expense recognition. Total on-behalf amounts recognized as of the measurement period are
actuarially calculated.

Contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019 were determined in the
June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018 actuarial valuations, respectively. Municipality contribution
rates for the 2019 and 2018 calendar year were as follows:

Employer Effective ARM Board State
January 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019 Rate Adopted Rate Contribution Rate
Pension 16.17% 23.21% 5.68%
Postemployment Healthcare (ARHCT) (see Note 7) 5.83% 4.37% 0.00%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 27.58% 5.58%
Employer Effective ARM Board State
July 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019 Rate Adopted Rate Contribution Rate
Pension 15.72% 23.73% 6.62%
Postemployment Healthcare (ARHCT) (see Note 7) 6.28% 4.89% 0.00%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 28.62% 6.62%
Employer Effective ARM Board State
January 1, 2018 to June 30, 2018 Rate Adopted Rate Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 17.12% 21.90% 3.01% 29.07%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) (see Note 7) 4.88% 3.11% 0.00% 66.85%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 25.01% 3.01% 95.92%
Employer Effective ARM Board State

July 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 Rate Adopted Rate Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 16.17% 23.21% 5.58% 32.11%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) (see Note 7) 5.83% 4.37% 0.00% 87.90%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 27.58% 5.58% 120.01%
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State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan (PERS I-lli),

continued

In 2019 and 2018, the Utility’s proportionate share of the Municipality’s share was 2.85 and 3.14
percent, respectively and was credited with the following contributions into the pension plan.

Measurement Measurement

Period Utility's Fiscal Year Period Utility's Fiscal Year
July 1, 2018 to January 1, 2019to  July 1, 2017 to January 1, 2018 to
June 30, 2019 December 31, 2019  June 30, 2018 December 31, 2018

Employer contributions (including DBUL)  $ 822,902 S 804,904 S 968,982 S 936,339
Nonemployer contributions (on-behalf) 375,628 398,678 225,603 323,645
Total Contributions $ 1,198,530 ) 1,203,582 S 1,194,585 S 1,259,984

In addition, employee contributions to the Plan totaled $264,652 and $226,127 during the
Utility’s calendar years 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

The Utility’s portion of the Municipality’s liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions are based on its share of the Municipality’s contributions
to the plan in the current year. Those proportions are 2.85% and 3.14% at December 31, 2019

and 2018, respectively.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Municipality reported a liability for its proportionate share
of the net pension liability (NPL) that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided
to the Municipality. The amount recognized by the Municipality and the Utility for their
proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total were as follows:

December 31, 2019 2018
Municipality Utility Municipality Utility
Proportionate Share of NPL S 353,891,460 S 10,094,592 S 361,285,220 S 11,361,736
State's proportionate share of NPL
associated with the Municipality ~ $ 140,522,422 $ 4,008,338 S 104,636,568 S 3,290,622
Total Pension Liability S 494,413,882 S 14,102,930 S 465,921,788 S 14,652,358

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 to calculate the net
pension liability as of that date. The total pension liability for the June 30, 2018 measurement
date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30,

2018 to calculate the net pension liability as of that date.
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continued

The Municipality’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
Municipality’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating entities, including the State, actuarially determined. At the
June 30, 2019 measurement date, the Utility’s proportion was 0.1844 percent, which was a
decrease of 0.0442 percent from the prior year. At the June 30, 2018 measurement date, the
Utility’s proportion was 0.2286 percent, which was an increase of 0.0087 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.

The Utility recognized pension expense of $1,582,003 and $626,449 for the year ended December
31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively, of which $544,512 and $154,073 were recorded
as on-behalf revenue and expense for additional contributions paid by the State.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Utility reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Measurement Period June 30, 2019 Measurement Period June 30, 2018
Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Deferred Inflows Outflows of Deferred Inflows

Resources of Resources Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ -5 (149,439) S - S (285,157)
Changes in assumptions 309,051 . . .
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments 144,735 . 250,929
Changes in proportion and differences between Utillity
contributions and proportionate share of contributions & (368,266) 412,990
Utillity contributions subsequent to the measurement date 427,894 - 491,593 -
Total Deferred OQutflows and Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions $ 881,680 S (517,705) $ 1,155,512 § (285,157)

At December 31, 2019, the $427,894 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized
as a reduction in the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2020. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Amortization of Deferred Outflows

Year Ending December 31, and Deferred Inflows of Resources
2020 $ (48,063)
2021 (1086,860)
2022 41,065
2023 49,939
Total Amortization $ (63.919)
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State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan (PERS I-ll),
continued

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2019 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2019. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 (latest available) actuarial
valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1,
2013 to June 30, 2017, resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions adopted by the ARM Board

to better reflect expected future experience.

Inflation
Actuarial Cost Method
Allocation Methodology

Salary Increases

Investment Return / Discount Rate

Mortality

2.50%
Entry Age Normal- Level Percentage of Payroll

Amounts for the June 30, 2019 measurement date were allocated to employers
based on the present vaiue of contributions for FY2021-FY2039, as determined by
projections based on the June 30, 2018 valuation.

For peace officers/firefighters, increases range from 7.75 percent to 2.75 percent,
based on service. For all others, increases range from 6.75 percent to 2.75 percent,
based on service.

7.38 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses. This is based on an average
inflation rate of 2.50 percent and real rate of return of 4.88 percent.

Pre-termination and post-termination mortality rates were based upon the 2013-2017
actual mortality experience. Pre-termination mortality rates were based on 100% of
the RP-2014 table with MP-2017 generational improvement. Post-terminiation
mortality rates were based on 91% of male and 96% of female rates of the RP-2014
table with MP-2017 generational improvement. Deaths are assumed to be
occupational 75% of the time for peace officerffirefighters, 40% of the time for all

others.

The total pension liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2018 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2018. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation were based
on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2013,
resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management
Board to better reflect expected future experience.
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Inflation 3.12%
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal- Level Percentage of Payroll
Allocation Methodology Amounts for the June 30, 2018 measurement date were allocated to
employers based on the present value of contributions for FY2020-FY2039, as
determined by projections based on the June 30, 2017 valuation.
SalaryIncreases For peace officersffirefighters, increases range from 9.66 percent to 4.92

percent, based on service. For all others, increases range from 8.55 percent to
4.34 percent, based on age and service.

Investment Return / Discount Rate  8.00 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses. This is based on an
average inflation rate of 3.12 percent and real rate of retum of 4.88 percent.

Mortality (Pre-termination) Based upon 2010-2013 actual mortality experience, 60% of male and 65% of
female posttermination mortality rates. Deaths are assumed to be
occupational 70% of the time for Peace Officers/Firefighters, 50% of the time
for Others.

Mortality (Post-termination) Based upon the 2010-2013 actual mortality experience. 96% of all rates of the
RP-2000 table, 2000 Base Year projected to 2018 with Projection Scale BB.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each

major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of the measurement period June
30, 2019 and 2018 are summarized in the following table (note that the rates shown below

exclude the inflation component):

June 30, 2019

Long-term
Expected Real
Asset Class Rate of Return Target Range
Broad domestic equity 8.16% 24% +- 6%
Global equity (non-U.S.) 7.51% 22% +-4%
Intermediate treasuries 1.58% 10% +/- 5%
Opportunistic 3.96% 10% +-5%
Real assets 4.76% 17% +/- 8%
Absolute return 4.76% 7% +-4%
Private equity 11.39% 9% +/- 5%
Cash equivalents 0.83% 1% +3/-1%
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State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan (PERS I-1l),
continued

June 30, 2018

Long-term
Expected Real
Asset Class Rate of Return Target Range
Broad domestic equity 8.90% 24% +/- 6%
Global equity (non-U.S.) 7.85% 22% +- 4%
Fixed income 1.25% 10% +- 5%
Opportunistic 4.76% 10% +/- 5%
Real assets 6.20% 17% +/- 8%
Absolute return 4.76% 7% +- 4%
Private equity 12.08% 9% +/-5%
Cash equivalents 0.66% 1% +3/-1%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.38 percent and 8 percent in
2019 and 2018, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that Employer and State contributions will continue to follow the current funding
policy which meets State statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension

liability.

Discount Rate Sensitivity
The following presents the Utility’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the current discount rate of 7.38 percent and 8 percent for 2019 and 2018 respectively, as
well as what the Utility’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher
than the current rate:

June 30, 2019

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
Proportional Share (6.38%) Rate (7.38%) (8.38%)
Utility's proportionate share of the
net pension liability 0.018440% S 13,323,090 S 10,094,592 $ 7,390,830
June 30, 2018
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
Proportional Share (7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)
Utility's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 0.022865% $ 15,045,805 $11,361,736 $8,245,459
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued PERS financial report.

(c) State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Contribution Plan (PERS IV)

Plan Information

The Utility participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS IV or (Plan).
PERS IV is a Defined Contribution (DC) plan which covers eligible State and local government
employees, other than teachers. The Plan was established and is administered by the State of
Alaska Department of Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by
State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and other required supplemental information. That report is available via the
internet at http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/pers. Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial
statements, and other detailed plan information are also available on this website. They may be
obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement
and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or by phoning (907) 465-4460.

Plan Participation and Benefit Terms

The Plan is governed by Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. A portion of employee
wages and a matching employer contributions are made to the Plan before tax. These
contributions plus any change in value (interest, gains and losses), and minus any Plan
administrative fees or other charges, are payable to the employee or the employee’s beneficiary
at a future date. The Plan is a participant-directed plan with investment options offered by
providers that are selected by the ARM Board.

Participating employees are immediately and fully vested in that employee’s contributions and
related earnings (losses). An employee shall be full vested in the employer contributions made
on that employee’s behalf, and related earnings (losses), after five years of service. An
employee is partially vested in the employer contributions, made on that employee’s behalf,
and the related earnings, in the ratio of (a) 25 percent with two years of service; (b) 50 percent
with three years of service; (c) 75 percent with four years of service; and (d) 100 percent with
five years of service. Employer contributions, and related earnings, that are contributed for
employees that are not fully vested before leaving employment are considered forfeit and
returned to the employer.

Employees first enrolling into PERS after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS IV. PERS IV is a defined
contribution retirement plan that includes a component of defined benefit post-employment

health care.
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Plan Contribution Requirement
The Plan requires both employer and employee contributions. Employees may make additional
contributions into the Plan, subject to limitations. Contribution rates for 2019 and 2018 are as

follows:
1/1-6/30  7/1-12/31
Employee Contribution 8.00% 8.00%
Employer Contribution
Retirement 5.00% 5.00%

The Utility contributed $159,421 and $159,988 to PERS IV on behalf of its employees for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Employee contributions to the Plan
totaled $254,649 and 256,006 for 2019 and 2018, respectively. Defined Contribution forfeitures
for the Utility in 2019 were $49,654.

(d) State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System OPEB Plans

General Information About the Plans

As part of its participation in the PERS Defined Benefit Plan (Tiers |, I, Ill), which is a cost-
sharing multiple employer plan, the Utility participates in the Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust
(ARHCT), Retiree Medical Plan (RMP) and Occupational Death and Disability Plan (ODD). The
ARHCT is self-funded and provides major medical coverage to retirees of the Defined Benefit
‘Plan. Benefits vary by Tier level. The ARHCT was closed to all new members effective July 1,
2006. The RMP provides major medical coverage to retirees of the PERS Defined Contribution
Plan (Tier IV). The RMP is self-insured. Members are not eligible to use this plan until they have
at least 10 years of service and are Medicare eligible. The ODD provides death benefits for
beneficiaries of plan participants and long-term disability benefits to all active members within
PERS. The Plans are administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Administration. They
may be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of
Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or by phoning (907) 465-
4460.

The Utility is required to contribute the following percentages of covered payroll into the OPEB
plans; for January 1 through June 30, 2019, ARHCT 5.83 percent, ODD .26 percent, and RMP .94
percent, for July 1 through December 31, 2019, ARHCT 6.28 percent, ODD .26 percent, and RMP
1.32 percent. Employees do not contribute.
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In 2019, the Utility was credited with the following contributions to the OPEB plan

Measurement Period Utility's Fiscal Year

July 1,2018 to January 1, 2019 to
June 30, 2019 December 31, 2019
Employer contributions- ARHCT $ 296,622 $ 305,616
Employer contributions- RMP 28,464 36,182
Employer contributions- ODD 13,300 13,785
Total Contributions $ 338,386 $ 355,584

The Utility is required to contribute the following percentages of covered payroll into the OPEB
plans, January 1 through June 30, 2018 ARHCT, 4.88%, ODD, 0.43%, and RMP, 1.03%, for July 1
through December 31, 2018, ARHCT 5.83 percent, ODD .26 percent, and RMP .94 percent
Employees do not contribute.

In 2018, the Utility was credited with the following contributions to the OPEB plans:

Measurement Period Utility's Fiscal Year
July 1, 2017 to January 1, 2018 to
June 30, 2018 December 31, 2018
Employer contributions- ARHCT $ 276,203 $ 303,957
Employer contributions- RMP 31,005 31,365
Employer contributions- ODD 7,635 11,425
Nonemployer contributions {(on-behalf) - -
Total Contributions $ 314,843 $ 346,747

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to OPEB Plans

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Utility reported a liability for its proportionate share of
the net OPEB liabilities (NOL) that reflected a reduction for State OPEB support provided to the
Utility. The Utility reported a net OPEB asset (NOA) for ODD. The amount recognized by the
Utility for its proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total were as follows:

2019 2018
Utility's proportionate share of NOL- ARHCT $ 273,600 $ 2,346,143
Utility's proportionate share of NOL- RMP 58,071 33,844
Utility's proportionate share of NOA - ODD (78,996) (51,655)
Utility's Net OPEB liability $ 252,675 $ 2,328,332
State's proportionate share of ARHCT NOL associated with the Utility 108,789 681,062
Total Net OPEB Liabilities $ 361,464 $ 3,009,394
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The total OPEB liabilities for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 rolled forward to June 30, 2019 to calculate the net
OPEB liabilities as of that date. The Utility’s proportion of the net OPEB liabilities were based
on a projection of the Utility’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plans relative to
the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. The Utility’s
proportionate share at the June 30, 2019 measurement date changed from the proportionate
share as of the June 30, 2018, as shown below.

Measurement Measurement
Date June 30, Date June 30,

Utillity’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilities: 2018 2019 Change

ARHCT 0.22860% 0.18439% -0.04421%
RMP 0.26596% 0.24273% -0.02323%
OobD 0.26596% 0.32582% 0.05986%

The total OPEB liabilities for the June 30, 2018 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 to calculate the net
OPEB liabilities as of that date. The Utility’s proportion of the net OPEB liabilities were based
on a projection of the Utility’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plans relative to
the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. The Utility’s
proportionate share at the June 30, 2018 measurement date increased over the proportionate
share as of the June 30, 2017, as shown below.

Measurement Measurement
Date June 30, Date June 30,

Utility's proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilities: 2017 2018 Change

ARHCT 0.22046% 0.22860% 0.00814%
RMP 0.25969% 0.26596% 0.00627%
ODD 0.25969% 0.26596% 0.00627%

As a result of its requirement to contribute to the Plans and changes in the actuarially calculated

net OPEB asset and liability, the Utility recognized net OPEB expense of ($2,543,341) and
$371,147 for 2019 and 2018, respectively, which includes ($703,104) and $89,409 of on-behalf
expense. On-behalf revenue was recognized for ($703,104) and $89,409 for 2019 and 2018,
respectively, for actuarially calculated support provided by the State for the ARHCT plan.
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At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Utility reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to all OPEB plans from the following sources:

Measurement Period June 30, 2018 Measurement Period June 30, 2018
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows Outflows Inflows
All Plans of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ (212,785) $ - $ (267,153)
Changes in assumptions 391,170 (1,511) 371,612 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments (120,970) (503,921)
Changes in proporiion and differences between Utility contributions
and proportionate share of contributions 53,108 (79,288) 171,440 (72,359)
Utility contributions subsequent to the measurement date 200.086 - 201,633 -
Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB 3 644,364 $ (414,554) $ 744,685 3 (843,433)

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources from each Plan for 2019 are
reported from the following sources:

Measurement Period June 30, 2019

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

ARHCT of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ (183,853)
Changes in assumptions 363,063 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments - (119,807)
Changes in proportion and differences between Utility contributions
and proportionate share of contributions 51,115 (68,820)
Utility contributions subsequent to the measurement date 169,707 -
Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to ARHCT $ 583,885 $ (372,480)

Measurement Period June 30, 2019

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

RMP of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ (4,302)
Changes in assumptions 28,108 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan - 641)
Changes in proportion and differences between Utility contributions
and proportionate share of contributions 1,993 -
Utifity contributions subsequent to the measurement date 22,821 -
Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to RMP $ 52,922 $ (4,943)
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State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System OPEB Plans, continued

Measurement Period June 30,2019

Deferred Deferred
Outflows inflows
oDD of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ (24,630)
Changes in assumptions - (1,511)
Net difference between projected and actual eamings on OPEB plan - (522)
Changes in proportion and differences between Utility contributions
and proportionate share of contributions - (10,469)
Utility contributions subsequent to the measurement date 7,558 -
Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to ODD $ 7,558 $ (37,131)

The $200,086 reported in 2019 as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in
the net OPEB liability in the following year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense

as follows:
All Plans Net Amortization of Deferred
Ouitfiows and Deferred Inflows of

Year Ending December 31, Resources
2020 $ 65,446
2021 (96,058)
2022 28,150
2023 36,930
2024 (1,516)
Thereafter (3.228)

Total Amortization

29,724

Excluding contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to each OPEB plan
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

ARHCT Net Amortization of Deferred
Ouiflows and Deferred Inflows of
Year Ending December 31, Resources
2020 $ 68,382
2021 (93,124)
2022 28,824
2023 37,616
Total Amortization $ 41,698
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RMP Net Amortization of Deferred
Outflows and Deferred Inflows of
Year Ending December 31, Resources
2020 $ 2,706
2021 2,706
2022 4,245
2023 4217
2024 3,629
Thereafter 7,655
Total Amortization $ 25,158
obD Net Amortization of Deferred
Outflows and Deferred inflows of
Year Ending December 31, Resources
2020 $ (5,642)
2021 (5,642)
2022 (4,918)
2023 (4,903)
2024 (5,145)
Thereafter (10,882)
Total Amortization $ (37,132)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2019 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the measurement date of
June 30, 2019. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2013 to June
30, 2017, resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions adopted by the ARM Board to better
reflect expected future experience.

In addition to the changes in assumptions resulting from the experience study, the following
changes have been made since the prior valuation:

e An Employee Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) was implemented effective January 1, 2019. This
arrangement replaced the Retiree Drug Subsidy (RDS) under Medicare Part D and resulted
in larger projected subsidies to offset the cost of prescription drug coverage.

e Based on recent experience, the healthcare cost trend assumptions were updated.

Per capita claims costs were updated to reflect recent experience.

e Healthcare cost trends were updated to reflect a Cadillac Tax load.
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State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System OPEB Plans, continued

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Inflation

Salary Increases

Allocation methodology

Investment Return / Discount Rate

Healthcare cost trend rates

Mortality

Participation (ARHCT)

Entry age normal; level percentage of payroll
Level dollar, closed
2.50%

Graded by service from 7.75 percent to 2.75 percent, for peace officers/firefighters.
Graded by service from 6.75 percent to 2.75 percent, for all others.

Amounts for the June 30, 2018 measurement date were allocated to employers
based on the projected present value of contributions for FY2020-FY2039. The liability
is expected to go to zero at 2039.

7.38 percent, net of postemployment healthcare plan investment expenses. This is
based on an average inflation rate of 2.50 percent and real rate of return of 4.88
percent.

Pre-65 medical; 7.5 percent grading down to 4.5 percent
Post-65 medical; 5.5 percent grading down to 4.5 percent
Prescripion drug; 8.5 percent grading down to 4.5 percent
EGWP: 8.5 percent grading down to 4.5 percent

Pre-termination and post-termination mortality rates were based upon the 2013-2017
actual mortality experience. Post-termination mortality rates were based on 91% of
the male rates and 96% of the female rates of the RP-2014 healthy annuitant table
projected with MP-2017 generational improvement. The rates for pre-termination
mortality were 100% of the RP-2014 employee table with MP-2017 generational
improvement.

100 percent system paid of members and their spouses are assumed to elect the
healthcare benefits as soon as they are eligible.
10 percent of non-system paid members and their spouses are assumed to elect the
healthcare benefits as soon as they are eligible.
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State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System OPEB Plans, continued

The total OPEB liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2018 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the measurement date of
June 30, 2018. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation were
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2009 to June
30, 2013, resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions adopted by the ARM Board to better
reflect expected future experience.

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal; level percentage of payroll

Amortization method Level dollar, closed

Inflation 3.12%

SalaryIncreases Graded by senice from 8.55 percent to 4,34 percent, for all others.

Allocation methodology Amounts for the June 30, 2018 measurement date were allocated to

employers based on the projected present value of contributions for FY2020-
FY2039. The liability is expected to go to zero at 2039,

Investment Return / Discount Rate  8.00 percent, net of postemployment healthcare plan investment expenses.
This is based on an average inflation rate of 3.12 percent and real rate of return
of 4,88 percent.

Healthcare costtrend rates Pre-65 medical; 8.0 percent grading down to 4.0 percent
Post-65 medical; 5.5 percent grading down to 4.0 percent
Prescripion drug; 9.0 percent grading down to 4.0 percent

Mortality (Pre-termination) Based upon 2010-2013 actual mortality experience, 60% of male and 65% of
female posttermination mortality rates. Deaths are assumed to be
occupational 50% of the time for Others.

Mortality (Post-termination) 96% of all rates of the RP-2000 table, 2000 Base Year projected to 2018 with
Projection Scale BB.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of postretirement healthcare plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following tables (note
that the rates shown below exclude the inflation component):

June 30, 2019

Long-term
Expected Real
Asset Class Ralte of Retum Target Range
Broad domestic equity 8.16% 24% +/-6%
Global equity (non-U.S.) 7.51% 22% +- 4%
Intermediate treasuries 1.58% 10% +- 5%
Opportunistic 3.96% 10% +-5%
Real assets 4.76% 17% +-8%
Absolute retum 4.76% 7% +- 4%
Private equity 11.39% 9% +/- 5%
Cash equivalents 0.83% 1% +3/-1%
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June 30, 2018

Long-term
Expected Real
Asset Class Rate of Retum Target Range
Broad domestic equity 8.90% 24% +-6%
Global equity (non-U.S.) 7.85% 22% +-4%
Fixed income 1.25% 10% +/-5%
Opportunistic 4.76% 10% +-5%
Real assets 6.20% 17% +/- 8%
Absolute retum 4.76% 7% +-5%
Private equity 12.08% 9% +- 5%
Cash equivalents 0.66% 1% +3/-1%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability in 2019 and 2018 was 7.38 percent
and 8.00 percent, respectively for each plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine
the discount rate assumed that employer and State contributions will continue to follow the
current funding policy which meets State statutes. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total OPEB liability for each plan.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the Utility’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilities calculated
using the current discount rate for both years presented, as well as what the Utility’s
proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilities would be if they were calculated using a discount
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

2019 Proportional 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
Share (6.38%) Rate (7.38%) (8.38%)
Utillity's proportionate share of the NOL- ARHCT 0.18439% $ 2,200,767 $ 273,600 $ (1,311,706)
Utillity's proportionate share of the NOL- RMP 0.24273% 145,855 58,071 (8,017)
Utillity's proportionate share of the NOA- ODD 0.32582% (74,933) (78,996) (82,280)
2018 Proportional 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
Share (7.00%) Rate (8.00%) {9.00%)
Utillity's proportionate share of the NOL- ARHCT 0.22860% $ 4,749,764 § 2,346,143 $ 331,417
Utillity's proportionate share of the NOL- RMP 0.26596% 101,066 33,844 (18,588)
Utillity's proportionate share of the NOA- ODD 0.26596% (48,506) (51,655) (54,246)
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(e)

State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System OPEB Plans, continued

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the Utility’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilities as of June
30, 2019 and 2018, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rates as summarized in the 2019
and 2018 actuarial valuation report, respectively, as well as what the respective Plan’s net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using trend rates that are one-percentage-point
lower or one-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates (in

thousands):

June 30, 2019 Proportional Healthcare Cost

Share 1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
Utility's proportionate share of the NOL- ARHCT 0.18439% $  (1,497,119) § 273,600 $ 2,434,544
Utility’s proportionate share of the NOL- RMP 0.24273% (17,860) 58,071 162,014
Utility's proportionate share of the NOA- ODD 0.32582% N/A 78,996 N/A
June 30, 2018
Utility's proportionate share of the NOL- ARHCT 0.22860% $ 45543 $ 2,346,143 $ 5,117 441
Utility's proportionate share of the NOL- RMP 0.26596% (28,774) 33,844 117,646
Utility's proportionate share of the NOA- ODD 0.26596% N/A (51,655) N/A

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately

issued PERS financial report.

State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Contribution OPEB Plans

General Information About the Plans

Defined Contribution Pension Plan participants (PERS Tier IV) participate in the ODD Plan, and
the RMP. Information on these plans is included in the comprehensive annual financial report
for the PERS Plans noted above. These plans provide for death, disability, and postemployment
healthcare benefits.

Employer Contribution Rates
Employees do not contribute to the Defined Contribution OPEB plans. Employer contribution
rates for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

2019
Tier V
11-6/30 71 -12/31
Employer Contribution
Health Reimbursement Arrangement 3.00% 3.00%
Retiree Medical Plan 0.94% 1.32%
Death & Disability Benefit 0.26% 0.26%
Total Employer Contribution 4.20% 4.58%

73



)

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018
Retirement and OPEB Plans, continued

State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Contribution OPEB Plans,
continued

2018
Tier IV
1/1-6/30 7/1-12/31

Employer Contribution

Health Reimbursement Arrangement 3.00% 3.00%
Retiree Medical Plan 1.03% 0.94%
Death & Disability Benefit 0.16% 0.26%

Total Employer Contribution 4.19% 4.20%

Healthcare Reimbursement Arrangement

In addition, PERS defined contribution members also participate in the Health Reimbursement
Arrangement. AS 39.30.370 establishes the employer contribution amount as “three percent
of the employer’s average annual employee compensation of all employees of all employers in
the plan”.

Prior to July 1, 2018 a flat rate of approximately $2,084 per year for full time employees and
$1.34 per part time hour worked was paid. For pay periods ending after July 1, 2018, a flat rate
of approximately $2,103 per year for full time employees and $1.35 per part time hour worked
were paid. For pay periods ending after July 1, 2019, a flat rate of approximately $2,122 per
year for full time employees and $1.36 per part time hour worked were paid.

Annual Postemployment Healthcare Cost
The Utility contributed $128,167 and $122,740 in Defined Contribution OPEB costs for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Utility, in the normal course of its activities, is involved in various claims and pending litigation.
In the opinion of management and the Municipality’s legal department, the disposition of these
matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Utility’s financial statements.

(a) Environmental

Fuel/Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) Contaminated Sites at Hank Nikkels Power Plant 1 and
Operations/Dispatch Center

During the 1964 earthquake, approximately 250,000-400,000 gallons of diesel fuel spilled on
the ground. Based on numerous environmental investigations, the spill impacted soil and
groundwater at the Hank Nikkels Power Plant 1 and properties west/northwest of the plant.
During the 2006-2007 subsurface investigation, in addition to diesel contamination known from
the 1964 spill, PCBs were detected in the soil. All soil disturbing activities at the site are
governed by the Risk-Based Disposal Plan (RBDP) administered by the Alaska Department of
Environmental Conservation (ADEC) and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).
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(b)

Environmental, continued

In May 2017, the Utility conducted PCB cleanup activities at the plant and paved the surface of
the cleanup area in accordance with the 2008 RBDP approved by EPA and ADEC. All cleanup
activities were considered to be performed during 2018.

In 2009, PCB contaminated soil was discovered near the Operations/Dispatch building during
excavation to install water lines for a fire suppression system. In 2010 and 2015 additional site
investigations were conducted to determine a horizontal and vertical extent of PCB
contamination.  Following the soil investigations the Utility performed monitoring of
groundwater at the site and in the vicinity during 2015 and 2016. Analytical results indicated
no off-site migration of PCBs. The Utility is waiting on EPA’s review of the site data and further
decisions. The cost associated with any further actions cannot be determined at this time.

Petroleum Contaminated Sites and Spill Cleanup

In 2018, based on an ADEC request, the Utility conducted a vapor intrusion assessment
associated with the old petroleum contamination in the subsurface near and under the
Transformer Shop. The assessment concluded that there were no petroleum vapors entering
the Transformer Shop from the subsurface. In response to the assessment, ADEC requested to
continue biennial groundwater monitoring at this site and include additional volatile organic
compounds into the monitoring program. The Utility’s environmental consultant will prepare a
work plan and conduct groundwater sampling during the summer of 2020. The Utility does not
anticipate any material environmental liability associated with this contaminated site.

Compliance with Air Quality Permits

The Utility owns three turbines that are subject to hourly and annual emissions limits emission
controls for criteria pollutants, NOx and CO. In addition to maintaining continuous emission
monitoring systems (CEMS) on each turbine, the two newly installed turbines requires operation
with post-combustion emission controls. EPA regulations require annual third party emissions
testing to assure accuracy of the CEMS. Newly installed turbines have significant emissions
reductions compared to the existing turbines, however maintaining emissions control
equipment and performing all testing required by the EPA will remain a significant part of the
overall environmental compliance cost. The Utility will oversee environmental compliance and
contract qualified third-party experts to perform necessary services. Environmental permitting
and compliance will continue to require a consultant’s expertise. The cost of compliance cannot
be determined at this time.

Petroleum Production Tax (PPT)

For tax year 2019, the Utility estimated that its PPT liability under AS 43.55.011(e) for non-
royalty gas is zero and its liability under AS 43.44.011(i) for private royalty gas is $3,429.
Monthly installment payments from February 2019 through January 2020 totaled $86,268.

For tax year 2018, the Utility estimated that its PPT liability under AS 43.55.011(e) for non-
royalty gas is zero and its liability under AS 43.44.011(i) for private royalty gas is $4,370.
Monthly installment payments from February 2018 through January 2019 totaled $104,554.
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(c) Petroleum Production Credits

Pursuant to AS 43.55.023, the Utility applies for Alaska oil and gas tax credits from the State
of Alaska Department of Revenue (DOR). The Utility records the receipt of cash from tax credits
as a restricted investment and as a deferred inflow of resources for the benefit of customers.
During 2019 and 2018, the Utility did not apply for tax credits. The amounts received by the
Utility are subject to final resolution of DOR audits, and are not recorded until cash is received.

(d) Contractual Commitments

The Utility has purchase commitments to contractors and suppliers at December 31, 2019 of
approximately $10 million. Those commitments are for contracts, materials and services
related to construction and maintenance of the Utility’s generation and distribution system
assets, regulatory filings contracted billing services, and janitorial and security services.
Construction of plant assets is financed with contributions in aid of construction and Utility
equity, and operating commitments are financed with Utility revenues.

(9) Regulatory Matters

(a) Beluga River Unit Underlift Settlements

Until April 2016, the Utility owned a one-third interest in annual production of the BRU. Its
field partners at that time - CPAI and Hilcorp Alaska, LLC - each also owned a one-third interest
in BRU production. Every BRU owner has a right to take a portion of annually produced gas
proportionate to its interest.

In 2005, the Utility underlifted (i.e. took less than its interest in BRU’s annual output) and
accepted a monetary settlement from its field partners. These funds were deposited in a
Future Natural Gas Purchases Account (FGP), and the Utility recorded deferred inflows of
resources for future natural gas purchases. The balances of the Future Natural Gas Purchases
Account, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 were $18,230,036 and $17,934,651, respectively.

In 2015, the Utility petitioned the RCA for authorization to apply 2014 underlift settlement
proceeds to reduce its GTP in effect from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. The RCA
approved the Utility’s unopposed proposal in Order U-15-116(2), dated March 10, 2016.

In April 2016, the Utility purchased 70% of CPAl's one-third interest in the BRU. The RCA
approved the Utility’s request in Order U-16-012(14), dated April 21, 2016, to utilize a closing
underlift settlement from CPAI of $13,177,726 towards financing this acquisition. See Note
9(f).
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(b) Regulatory Debits/Credits

(d)

The Utility files a COPA rate quarterly with the RCA to recover cost of power expenses not
recovered in base rates. The COPA calculation is based on the projected cost of fuel and
purchased power for the applicable quarter, the projected kilowatt hour sales for the
applicable quarter, and the over- or under- recovered balance in the cost of power clearing
account. The Utility records in the cost of power clearing account an asset with an offsetting
credit to a contra revenue account for under recovered costs or a liability and an offsetting
debit to a contra revenue account for over recovered costs. The Utility over-recovered as of
December 31, 2019 in the amount of $1,562,679 and under-recovered as of December 31, 2018
in the amount of $1,904,402.

Prior to October 24, 2017, the Utility annually set the GTP with its third quarter COPA filings.
(See Note 9 (g) for the new schedule in filing the GTP.) Through the GTP, the Utility recovers
the Gas Fund’s annual revenue requirement associated with the Utility’s ownership interest in
the BRU and any over or under recovery from the prior year. The Utility records in the cost of
Gas Transfer Price Clearing Account an asset and a credit to an expense account for under-
recovered costs or a liability and debit to an expense account for over-recovered costs. The
Utility under-recovered as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 in the amount of $4,793 and
$1,647,342, respectively.

Deferred Regulatory Liability for Gas Sales

Revenue from third party sales of natural gas produced at the BRU is excluded from the GTP
calculation. These funds, net of royalties and the ARO surcharge, are recorded in the Utility’s
Future BRU Construction or Natural Gas Purchases account, reported on the statement of net
position as deferred inflows of resources, and referred to for regulatory purposes as the
Deferred Regulatory Liability from Gas Sales (DRLGS) Account. These funds are to be used for
future BRU construction or natural gas purchases. The balances of the DRLGS account, as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, were $10,106,438 and $8,077,741, respectively.

Asset Retirement Obligation Sinking Fund

ARO expenses associated with future abandonment of the BRU are funded through a surcharge
to the Utility’s GTP. This surcharge is deposited into a sinking fund investment account. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the sinking fund account balances were $16,342,806 and
$13,915,853, respectively.

On page 24 of its revised petition in Docket U-14-009, dated January 29, 2014, the Utility stated
that it would “each year, as part of [its] third quarter COPA filing, update the projected interest
earnings rate for the ARO surcharge calculation.” In accordance with that requirement, in
TA375-121, the Utility updated its future interest earnings estimate to 4.7%. This estimate is
based on the targeted earnings rates established by the ARO Board Investment Guidelines of
CPI-U plus 200 basis points. CPI-U for Anchorage was at 2.7% in 2019. The actual average
earnings over the most recent 12-month period was 5.87% and the actual average earnings over
the most recent 6-month period was 7.66%. The Utility will continue to review the projected
interest earnings as part of its semiannual ARO surcharge filing.
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(e)

In accordance with U-14-009(2) the Utility is required to update its field abandonment cost
estimate for the ARO surcharge every 5 years. With the filing of TA375-121, the Utility
submitted its updated cost estimate. The updated cost estimate for the field was $56.9 million,
comprised of $28.5 million for above ground assets and $28.4 million for below ground assets.
The updated estimate is higher than the prior field estimate of $33.5 million produced in the
2013 study.

Significant factors contributing to the increase include new facilities and increased regulatory
requirements for remediation. The above ground cost increased approximately $5.6 million for
the removal of a site compressor and water gathering system. Also included in the updated
study are the cost estimates to remediate contaminated sites in the field. The below ground
estimate for plugging and abandonment of the 25 existing wells increased approximately $18
million due to new regulatory requirements that require additional cement barriers to complete
well abandonment downhole. Labor, material and equipment costs to construct the cement
barriers are the primary factors leading to the increase in the below ground well abandonment
cost.

Also in accordance with U-14-009(2) the Utility is required to update its BRU production
projections for the ARO surcharge every 3 years. With the filing of TA375-121, the Utility
submitted its updated production projections. Based on the updated 2019 report completed by
Ryder Scott, the Utility’s share of the remaining gas reserves, net of fuel gas, is 82 billion cubic
feet. The end of the life of the field is estimated to occur in 2038.

Revenue Requirement Studies

On December 30, 2016 the Utility filed a petition with the RCA, based on a 2015 test year
revenue requirement study, for interim and permanent across-the-board rate increases in
energy and demand charges in order to recover costs associated with its construction of Plant
2A. The Utility requested a 29.49% interim and refundable rate increase, based on RCA approval
of the Utility’s proposed rate stabilization plan (RSP). On February 13, 2017 the RCA granted
the Utility an interim and refundable rate increase of 37.30%, denied approval of the Utility’s
proposed RSP, and suspended the Utility’s request into Docket U-17-008 for further
investigation. A public hearing was held on this matter that began on November 16, 2017, and
continued through December 21, 2017. The RCA issued a final order on March 23, 2018 [U-17-
008(13)] approving a 37.32% increase in the revenue requirement.

In two separate submittals at the Superior Court, Providence Health and Services (PHS)
appealed the decision by the RCA on (1) Order 10 - refund order and (2) Order 13 - final order.
The Superior Court rendered an Order on Order 13 (final order) on May 20, 2019 - reversing and
remanding the RCA Order 13 for further proceedings consistent with the Superior Court’s Order
and the reasons that supported the Order. The RCA was ordered to “make findings and
conclusions on whether the Utility met its burden to demonstrate that the decision to construct
Plant 2A was prudent, reopening the evidentiary record if necessary.” The RCA also has to
provide the process by which it arrived at the final ROE of 10.7%.
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f)

(9)

On May 28, 2020, as part of the acquisition dockets (U-19-020/U-19-021/U-18-102), the RCA
accepted the Amended Remand Stipulation, reaffirmed the Utility’s current rates as
permanent, and closed the Utility’s rate case docket (U-17-008). This stipulation was signed by
the Utility, Providence Health and Services, the Federal Executive Agency, and Attorney
General for the State of Alaska. It resolved the remanded issues by agreeing to the permanent
rates as set in the rate case. ( See Note 9 (i))

Acquisition of CPAI’s Interest in the BRU

In Order U-16-012(14), dated April 21, 2016, the RCA granted a joint petition filed by the Utility
and CEA requesting approval of a purchase and sale agreement for the acquisition of CPAI’s
one-third interest in the BRU. The total purchase price was $152 million, with the Utility
acquiring 70% of that interest for $106.4 million and CEA the remaining 30% for $45.6 million.
The Utility funded its share of the acquisition with DRLGS and Future Natural Gas Purchases
Account funds, cumulative and underlift proceeds owed to it by CPAI. With this purchase the
Utility has a 56.67% interest in the BRU.

BRU Ratemaking and Accounting Treatment - Aggregate BRU Interest

On June 20, 2016, the Utility filed for approval from the RCA for some changes in the
ratemaking and accounting treatment applicable to the Aggregate BRU Interest. Ruling under
Docket U-16-060(12), the RCA granted in part the request on October 24, 2017. The use of rate
base/rate of return (RB/ROR) methodology to calculate the gas fund revenue requirement
beginning in 2019 was approved. The use of a system-wide weighted average cost of capital
(WACC) for calculating the gas fund revenue requirement was approved. The RCA also approved
the inclusion of depletion expense using the units of production methodology for calculating
the gas fund revenue requirement.

Because the GTP is one component of the COPA and Small Facility Power Purchase Rate (SFPPR),
several 2017 tariff advice filings were suspended and were filed under Docket U-16-073. On
October 24, 2017, these were approved and made permanent.

In its own motion the RCA opened Docket U-18-102 to specifically investigate the Utility’s BRU
gas management procedures, including use of its share of BRU gas for economy energy sales
and the appropriate pricing of BRU gas that is used for economy energy sales. The RCA also
opened Docket U-18-102 to investigate the adequacy of the ARO surcharge. An order in Docket
U-18-102 revising the ARO surcharge used in the Utility’s GTP calculation will directly affect
both the COPA and the SFPPR proposed in COPA filings by the Utility. An order in Docket U-18-
102 affecting the pricing of economy energy sales by the Utility would also affect the COPA
proposed in COPA filings.

79



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Regulatory Matters, continued

(h)

One COPA filing in 2019, TA373-121, was directly affected by the matters under investigation
in Docket U-18-102. Accordingly, the RCA suspended TA373-121 for further investigation. The
rates shown on the tariff sheets are approved on an interim and refundable basis effective
October 1, 2019. In addition, the gas transfer price of $2.15705 per thousand cubic feet was
approved on an interim and refundable basis, effective October 1, 2019.

On May 28, 2020, as part of the acquisition Dockets (U-19-020/U-19-021), the RCA ruled the use
of market value proxy mechanism in pricing economy energy sales using the Utility’s BRU
interest gas. The methodology is set out in Section 2.05 of the Restated BRU Agreement, which
is one of the agreement documents of the acquisition dockets. This requirement was effective
May 28, 2020.

The Utility’s tax credit appeal at the Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH), 17-0379-TAX, is
still ongoing. The Department of Revenue and the Utility are currently working on analyzing
discovery requests and responses from both sides.

Bradley Lake Transmission

Homer Electric Association, Inc. (HEA) filed a rate case on November 15, 2013 requesting RCA’s
approval of postage stamp rates for Bradley Lake energy wheeled over HEA’s system. The
Utility intervened, arguing in part that the Bradley Lake Agreements govern the obligations of
Bradley Lake participants and that the RCA was statutorily precluded, under AS 42.05.431(c),
from reviewing these wheeling rates. On June 30, 2014, the RCA issued an order establishing
interim rates for wheeling Bradley Lake energy from the Soldotna to Quartz Creek
Substations. The parties appealed to the state superior court, which ruled May 27, 2015 that
the RCA lacks jurisdiction over Bradley Lake wheeling rates. All parties appealed this decision
to the Alaska Supreme Court. The parties engaged in lengthy mediation, and filed reply briefs
with the Alaska Supreme Court. Oral arguments before the Alaska Supreme Court were heard
May 31, 2018. On February 22, 2019, the Supreme Court issued an opinion affirming the
Superior Court’s decision reversing the RCA’s order.
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Acquisition of the Utility by CEA

On April 1, 2019, CEA filed a petition at the RCA requesting necessary approvals for acquiring
the Utility from the Municipality and requesting an amendment of Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity (CPCN) No. 8 to reflect the acquired service territory. This filing
was assigned Docket U-19-020. CEA has agreed to acquire most of the assets of the Utility from
the Municipality. CEA and the Municipality have agreed to a transaction in which CEA will
purchase most of the Utility’s assets and the generation output of the Utility’s share of the
Eklutna Hydroelectric Project for a term of 35 years.

On April 5, 2019, the Municipality applied for approval from the RCA to amend its CPCN No. 121
to consist solely of wholesale bulk power sales at the Eklutna generation plant. The Municipality
also applied to terminate the restriction on payment of dividends to the Municipality initially
imposed by Order No. U-13-184(22). This filing was assigned Docket U-19-021.

On May 8, 2019, the RCA ordered the consolidation of U-19-020 and U-19-021. Hearings occurred
from August 27, 2019 to November 8, 2019. Two stipulations agreed upon by most parties in
the dockets were presented to the RCA - Acquisition stipulation and Remand stipulation. The
remand stipulation revolves around the appeal by PHS on the prudency of the Utility’s Plant 2A
(see Note 9(e)). On February 21, 2020, the RCA closed Docket U-17-008, which addressed the
remand stipulation. The RCA was then left with reviewing the acquisition stipulation.

On May 28, 2020, the RCA issued a ruling addressing the acquisition Dockets, U-19-020(39) and
U-19-021(39), and part of the BRU Management Practices, U-18-102(44). The RCA did not
approve the sale as proposed, but did approve the sale if parties agree to modify the transaction
as required in the final order. The approval of the transaction is subject to the following
conditions: (1)Unified COPA surcharges and rejection of the BRU Fuel Agreement cost and
benefit allocations as unreasonably discriminatory; (2)Unified base rates to be filed in
Chugach’s first rate case. The PILT Agreement’s proposed recovery of payments only from
former ratepayers of the Utility through 2033 must be rejected; (3) CEA and MEA forming a
tight power dispatch pool.

If the transaction closes under these dockets, the RCA will terminate the dividend restriction
imposed on the Utility by Order U-13-184(22). This will allow disbursement of the Utility’s assets
as contemplated by the transaction.

At this time, CEA, the Municipality, and all the other parties in the docket have yet to provide
their response whether they accept the conditions as ruled by the RCA.
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Petition to Adjust Depreciation Rates

On December 31, 2018, the Utility filed a petition at the RCA for approval of revised
depreciation rates (Docket U-18-121). The study was based on the Utility’s electric plant
balances and continuing property records as of December 31, 2017. The Utility requested that
the depreciation rates be approved for implementation as of the next accounting month
following final approval by the RCA. On June 18, 2019, Order 2 was issued. The RCA denied
the petition citing the results of the recently concluded rate case in Docket U-17-008 and
that they did not find the $2.5 million revenue requirement reduction recommended in the
2018 Depreciation Study to be so materially substantial that the RCA should require the
Utility to incur the cost of filing a new rate case. The RCA further explains that the lack
of synchronization between the requested depreciation rates and the current rates charged
for electric public utility service. The denial will allow the depreciation rates previously
found to be adequate but not excessive to remain in effect, and will result in depreciation
expense collected from customers matching depreciation being recorded. The Utility was
ordered to file another depreciation study in 2024, or when it files its next rate case.

Senate Bill 241

A bill introduced in the Senate of the Alaska Legislature was signed by Governor Dunleavy
on April 10, 2020. This Act extended the Governor’s declaration of public health disaster
emergency mandate in response to the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) that was issued on
March 10, 2020. It provides for a financial plan and made temporary changes to state law
in response to the COVID-19 outbreak in response to several areas. One of these areas is
on regulatory assets for unpaid utility bills and extraordinary expenses. A utility certified
under AS 42.05 may record regulatory assets, to be recovered through future rates, for
uncollectible residential utility bills and extraordinary expenses that result from the novel
coronavirus disease public health disaster declared by the Governor. The determination as
to whether an extraordinary expense resulted from the COVID-19 public health disaster
emergency, and the amortization periods for the regulatory assets are subject to approval
by the RCA before recovery occurs through future rates. In this section, an "uncollectable
residential utility bill" does not include a debt paid under a deferred payment agreement.

The Utility has suspended utility shut offs as of March 17, 2020. Customers are encouraged
to pay on time, as they are able. Each unpaid utility bill will continue to accrue. Customers
who are not able to pay are encouraged to contact Customer Service to work out a payment
plan. Under SB241, the Utility is prohibited from disconnecting service or imposing late
fees for the duration of the emergency. In order to avoid disconnection for non-payment
and late fees, a residential customer must provide a statement of financial hardship, and
negotiate a deferred payment agreement with the Utility. This was offered by the Utility
to its customers.
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On May 1, 2020, the RCA issued Order U-20-015, Order Permitting Deviation from Tariff Under
AS 42.05.711(d). This order addresses deviations by utilities from their approved tariffs as they
avoid disconnections to their customers. Instead of formally requesting approval to deviate,
the RCA requires a certificated public utility to promptly make informational filing in U-20-015
describing how it is deviating from its tariff. The Utility’s tariff language pertaining to
disconnections is not violated, therefore no information filing is needed for the Utility.

Risk Management and Self Insurance

The Municipality is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; illness of and injuries to employees; unemployment;
and natural disasters. The Municipality utilizes three risk management funds to account for and
finance its uninsured risks of loss.

The Municipality provides coverage up to the maximum of $3,000,000 per occurrence for
automobile and general liability claims and for each workers’ compensation claim. No settled claim
exceeded this commercial coverage in 2019, 2018 or 2017.

Unemployment compensation expense is based on actual claims paid by the State of Alaska and
reimbursed by the Municipality.

The Utility participates in the Municipality’s risk management program and makes payments to the
Municipality through inter-governmental charges based on actuarial estimates of the amounts
needed to pay prior and current year claims (See Note 1(0).) The Utility does not include any
portion of the Municipality’s claims payable among its liabilities on the Statements of Net Position.

Other GAAP Disclosures

The Municipality has entered into an agreement to sell certain assets and discharge certain
liabilities of the Utility to CEA as outlined in Note 13. CEA is a non-governmental entity and, as
such, follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) accounting framework to prepare its
financial statements. The Utility’s financial statements are prepared according to the GASB
framework, and therefore the accounting for certain items could differ from the accounting
treatment by CEA. The table beginning on the following page presents relevant authoritative
accounting pronouncements under the respective GASB and FASB frameworks to provide
clarification to the users of these statements.
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Reported in the Utility's
Financial Statements

GASB Authoritative Guidance

FASB Authoritative Guidance

Net Pension Liabilities

GASBS 68 Paragraph 59 - A liability
should be recognized for the
employer’s proportionate share of
the collective net pension liability,
measured as of a date
(measurement date) no earlier than
the end of the employer’s prior
fiscal year, consistently applied
from period to period. The
employer’s proportionate share of
the collective net pension liability
should be measured by:
a. Determining the employer’s
proportion—a measure of the
proportionate relationship  of
(1) the employer (and, to the extent
associated with the employer,
nonemployer contributing entities,
if any, that provide support for the
employer but that are not in a
special funding situation) to (2) all
employers and all nonemployer
contributing entities.
b. Multiplying the collective net
pension liability by the employer’s
proportion calculated in (a).

FASB ASC Topic 715-30-25 Paragraph 1
- If the projected benefit obligation
exceeds the fair value of plan assets,
the employer shall recognize in its
statement of financial position a
liability that equals the unfunded
projected benefit obligation. If the fair
value of plan assets exceeds the
projected benefit obligation, the
employer shall recognize in its
statement of financial position an asset
that equals the overfunded projected
benefit obligation.
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Financial Statements

GASB Authoritative Guidance

FASB Authoritative Guidance

Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Deferred
Outflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

GASBS 68 Paragraph 71 - Changes in
the collective net pension liability
should be included in collective
pension expense in the current
measurement period except as
indicated below: a. Each of the
following should be included in

collective pension expense,
beginning in the current
measurement  period, using a
systematic and rational method

over a closed period equal to the
average of the expected remaining
service lives of all employees that
are provided with pensions through
the pension plan (active employees

and inactive employees)
determined as of the beginning of
the measurement period:

(1) Differences between expected
and actual experience with regard
to economic and demographic
factors (differences between
expected and actual experience) in
the measurement of the total
pension liability (2) Changes of
assumptions about future economic
or demographic factors or of other
inputs (changes of assumptions or
other inputs). The partion of (1) and
(2) not included in collective
pension expense should be included
in collective deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions. b.
The difference between projected
and actual earnings on pension plan
investments should be included in
collective pension expense using a
systematic and rational method
over a closed five-year period,

ASC Topic 715-30-35 Paragraph 18 - As
established in the definition of the
term, a gain or loss results from a
change in the value of either the
projected benefit obligation or the
plan assets resulting from experience
different from that assumed or from a
change in an actuarial assumption.
Paragraph 19 - Because gains and
losses may reflect refinements in
estimates as well as real changes in
economic values and because some
gains in one period may be offset by
losses in another or vice versa, this
Subtopic does not require recognition
of gains and losses as components of
net pension cost of the period in which
they arise. Paragraph 22 - Asset gains
and losses are differences between the
actual return on plan assets during a
period and the expected return on plan
assets for that period. Asset gains and
losses include both changes reflected
in the market-related value of plan
assets and changes not yet reflected in
the market-related value (that is, the
difference between the fair value of
assets and the market-related value).
Gains or losses on transferable
securities issued by the employer and
included in plan assets are also
included in asset gains and losses.
Paragraph 23 - In other words, the
expected return on plan assets
generally will be different from the
actual return on plan assets for the
year. This Subtopic provides for
recognition of that difference (a net
gain or loss) in other comprehensive
income in the period it arises. The
amount recognized in other
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Reported in the Utility’s
Financial Statements

GASB Authoritative Guidance

FASB Authoritative Guidance

Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Deferred
Outflows of Resources
Related to Pensions,
continued

beginning in the current
measurement period. The amount
not included in collective pension
expense should be included in
collective deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions.
Collective deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of
resources arising from differences
between projected and actual
pension plan investment earnings in
different measurement periods
should be aggregated and included
as a net collective deferred outflow
of resources related to pensions or
a net collective deferred inflow of
resources related to pensions.

comprehensive income is also a
component of net periodic pension
cost for the current period. Thus, the
amount recognized in other
comprehensive income and the actual
return on plan assets, when
aggregated, equal the expected return
on plan assets. The amount recognized
in accumulated other comprehensive
income affects future net periodic
pension cost through subsequent
amortization, if any, of the net gain or
loss.

Net Other Post
Employment Benefits
Liabilities

GASBS 75 Paragraph 109 - A liability
should be recognized for the
employer’s proportionate share of
the collective net OPEB liability
determined in conformity with
paragraphs 59-61. (Paragraph 59 -
The employer’s proportionate share
of the collective net OPEB liability
should be measured by: (a)
Determining the employer’s
proportion - a measure of the
proportionate relationship of (1) the
employer.. to (2) all employers and
all nonemployer  contributing
entities... (b) Multiplying the
collective net OPEB liability
(determined in conformity with
paragraphs 70-85) by employer’s
proportion calculated in (a).
Paragraph 70 - The collective net
OPEB liability should be measured
as the total OPEB liability net of the

FASB ASC Topic 715-60-25 Paragraph 1
- An employer that sponsors one or
more single-employer defined benefit
postretirement plans other than
pensions shall recognize in its
statement of financial position the
funded statuses of those plans. The
employer shall aggregate the statuses
of all overfunded plans and recognize
that amount as an asset in its
statement of financial position. It also
shall aggregate the statuses of all
underfunded plans and recognize that
amount as a liability in its statement of
financial position. Paragraph 2 - As
indicated in paragraphs 715-60-35-125
through 35-126 remeasurement of both
plan assets and the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation may
be necessary. Upon remeasurement, a
business entity shall adjust its
statement of financial position in a
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GASB Authoritative Guidance

FASB Authoritative Guidance

Net Other Post
Employment Benefits
Liabilities, continued

OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position.
Paragraph 71 - The total OPEB
liability should be determined by (a)
an actuarial valuation as of the
measurement date or (b) the use of
update procedures to roll forward
to the measurement date amounts
from an actuarial valuation as of a
date no more than 30 months and 1
day earlier than the employer’s
most recent fiscal year end.. If
update procedures are used and
significant changes occur between
the actuarial valuation date and the
measurement date, professional
judgment should be used to
determine the extent of procedures
needed to rotl forward the
measurement from the actuarial
valuation to the measurement date,
and consideration should be given to
whether a new actuarial valuation is
needed. For purposes of this
determination, the effects of
changes in the discount rate
resulting from changes in the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position or from
changes in the municipal bond rate,
if applicable, should be among the
factors evaluated. For accounting
and financial reporting purposes, an
actuarial valuation of the total
OPEB liability should be performed
at least biennially. More frequent
actuarial valuations are
encouraged.

subsequent interim period to reflect
the overfunded or underfunded status
of the plan consistent with that
measurement date.
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Reported in the Utility's
Financial Statements

GASB Authoritative Guidance

FASB Authoritative Guidance

Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Deferred
Outflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

GASBS 75 Paragraph 86 - Changes in
the collective net OPEB liability
should be included in collective
OPEB expense in the current
measurement period except as
indicated below: (@) If the
alternative measurement method is
not used to measure the total OPEB
liability, each of the following
should be recognized in collective
OPEB expense, beginning in the
current measurement period, using
a systematic and rational method
over a closed period equal to the
average of the expected remaining
service lives of all employees that
are provided with OPEB through the
OPEB plan determined as of the
beginning of the measurement
period: (1) Differences between
expected and actual experience
with regard to economic or
demographic factors (differences
between expected and actual
experience) in the measurement of
the total OPEB liability.
(2) Changes of assumptions about
future economic or demographic
factors or of other inputs (changes
of assumptions or other inputs). The
portion of (1) and (2) not
recognized in collective OPEB
expense should be reported as
collective deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB. (b) The
difference between projected and
actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments should be included in
collective OPEB expense using a

ASC Topic 715-60-35 Paragraph 7 - As
with other forms of deferred
compensation, the cost of providing
postretirement benefits shall be
attributed to the periods of employee
service rendered in exchange for those
future benefits pursuant to the terms
of the plan. That cost notionally
represents the change in the unfunded
accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation for the period, ignoring
employer contributions to the plan,
plan settlements, and payments made
by the employer directly to retirees.
However, changes in that unfunded
obligation that arise from experience
gains and losses and the effects of
changes in assumptions may be
recognized as a component of net
periodic postretirement benefit cost
on a delayed basis. Paragraph 8 - Thus
any change in the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation or
the plan assets (other than
contributions and benefit payments)
either is initially recognized in other
comprehensive income or is included in
net periodic postretirement benefit
cost. Paragraph 24 - Because gains and
losses may reflect refinements in
estimates as well as real changes in
economic values and because some
gains in one period may be offset by
losses in another or vice versa, this
Subtopic does not require recognition
of gains and losses as components of
net postretirement benefit cost of the
period in which they arise.

88




MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Other GAAP Disclosures, continued

Reported in the Utility's
Financial Statements

GASB Authoritative Guidance

FASB Authoritative Guidance

Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Deferred
Outflows of Resources
Related to  OPEB,
continued

method
period,

systematic and rational
over a closed five-year
beginning in the current
measurement period. The amount
not included in collective OPEB
expense should be included in
collective deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of
resources related to  OPEB.
Collective deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of
resources arising from differences
between projected and actual OPEB
plan investment earnings in
different measurement periods
should be aggregated and included
as a net collective deferred outflow
of resources related to OPEB or a
net collective deferred inflow of
resources related to OPEB. (c)
Contributions to the OPEB plan from
employers or nonemployer
contributing entities should not be
included in collective OPEB
expenses.

Paragraph 25 - Gains and losses that
are not recognized immediately as a
component of net periodic
postretirement benefit cost shall be
recognized as increases or decreases in
other comprehensive income as they
arise. Paragraph 27 - Plan asset gains
and losses are differences between the
actual return on plan assets during a
period and the expected return on plan
assets for that period. Asset gains and
losses include both of the following: a.
Changes reflected in the market-
related value of plan assets b. Changes
not yet reflected in the market-related
value of plan assets (that is, the
difference between the fair value and
the market-related value of plan
assets).
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Reported in the Utility's
Financial Statements

GASB Authoritative Guidance

FASB Authoritative Guidance

Contributions in Aid of
Construction

GASBCS4 Paragraph 34. A deferred
inflow of resources is an acquisition
of net position by the government
that is applicable to a future
reporting period.

FASB ASC 210-10-S99 Paragraph 13(b)
Tangible and intangible utility plant of
a public utility company shall be
segregated so as to show separately
the original cost, plant acquisition
adjustments, and plant adjustments,
as required by the system of accounts
prescribed by the applicable
regulatory authorities.

Restricted Assets

GASBS 34 Paragraph 99 - Restricted
assets should be reported when
restrictions on asset use change the
nature or normal understanding of
the availability of the asset. For
example, cash and investments
normally are classified as current
assets, and a normal understanding
of these assets presumes that
restrictions do not limit the
government's ability to use the
resources to pay current liabilities.
But cash and investments held in a
separate account that can be used
to pay debt principal and interest
only (as required by the debt
covenant) and that cannot be used
to pay other current liabilities
should be reported as restricted
assets. Because restricted assets
may include temporarily invested
debt proceeds or other resources
that are not generated through
operations (such as customer
deposits), the amount reported as
restricted assets will not necessarily
equal restricted net position.

FASB ASC 210-10-S99-1 Paragraph 1 -
Cash and cash items. Separate
disclosure shall be made of the cash
and cash items which are restricted as
to withdrawal or usage. The provisions
of any restrictions shall be described in
a note to the financial statements.
Restrictions may include legally
restricted deposits held as
compensating balances against short-
term borrowing arrangements,
contracts entered into with others, or
company statements of intention with
regard to particular deposits.
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Reported in the Utility's | GASB Authoritative Guidance FASB Authoritative Guidance
Financial Statements

Transfers to Other | GASBS 34 Paragraph 112b - | Not addressed in FASB reporting

Funds Nonreciprocal interfund activity is | framework
the internal counterpart to
nonexchange transactions. It
includes:

Interfund transfers—flows of assets
(such as cash or goods) without
equivalent flows of assets in return
and without a requirement for
repayment. This category includes
payments in lieu of taxes that are
not payments for, and are not
reasonably equivalent in value to,
services provided.

Non-Operating GASBS 34 Paragraph 102 - | FASB ASC Topic 360-10-45-5 - A gain or
Revenues and Expenses | Governments should establish a | loss recognized on the sale of a long-
policy that defines operating | lived asset that is not a discontinued
revenues and expenses that is | operation shall be included in income
appropriate to the nature of the | from continuing operations before
activity being reported, disclose it | income taxes.

in the summary of significant
accounting policies, and use it
consistently from period to period.
A consideration for defining a
proprietary fund's operating
revenues and expenses is how
individual transactions would be
categorized for purposes of
preparing a statement of cash
flows. Transactions for which cash
flows are reported as capital and
related financing activities,
noncapital financing activities, or
investing activities normally would
not be reported as components of
operating income.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Other GAAP Disclosures, continued

Reported in the Utility's
Financial Statements

GASB Authoritative Guidance

FASB Authoritative Guidance

Asset Retirement
Obligations

The Utility uses the Guidance from
FASB ASC Topic 980 (Formerly FASBS
143) to record asset retirement
obligations. The implementation
date for GASBS 83 Certain Asset
Retirement Obligations has been
postponed until fiscal year 2020.

FASB ASC Topic 980-410-25-2 - Many
rate-regulated  entities  currently
provide for costs related to the
retirement of certain long-lived assets
in their financial statements and
recover those amounts in rates charged
to their customers. Some of those costs
result from asset retirement
obligations within the scope of
subtopic 410-20; others result from
costs that are not within the scope of
the subtopic. The amounts charged to
customers for the costs related to the
retirement of long-lived assets may
differ from the period costs for
financial reporting and rate-making
purposes. An additional recognition
timing difference may exist when the
costs related to the retirement of long-
lived assets are included in amounts
charged to customers but liabilities are
not recognized in the financial
statements. If the requirements of this
topic are met, a regulated entity shall
also recognize a regulatory asset or
liability for differences in the timing of
recognition of the period costs
associated with asset retirement
obligations for financial reporting
pursuant to that Subtopic and rate-
making purposes.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(12) Other Matters

(a)

(b)

Eklutna Hydroelectric Project

On October 2, 1997, the ownership of the Eklutna Hydroelectric Project was formally
transferred from the Alaska Power Administration, a unit of the United States Department of
Energy, to the three participating utilities: the Utility, CEA and Matanuska Electric Association
(MEA). The project is jointly owned and operated by the participating utilities and each
contributes their proportionate share for operation, maintenance, and capital improvement
costs, as well as maintenance of the transmission line between Anchorage and the hydroelectric
plant. The Utility has a 53.33% ownership interest in the project and recorded operating and
maintenance costs of $542,438 and $409,562 in 2019 and 2018, respectively. Capital costs for
2019 and 2018 were $965,640 and $373,142, respectively. In addition, the Utility paid
transmission costs for hydroelectric power of $42,688 and $26,132 in 2019 and 2018,
respectively. The operations and maintenance costs are part of production expenses in the
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the capital costs are part of
plant assets reported in the Statements of Net Position.

Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project

The Utility agreed to acquire a portion of the output of the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project
(Project) pursuant to a Power Sales Agreement (Agreement). The Agreement specifies the
Utility acquire 25.9% of the output of the Project.

The Project went on line September 1, 1991. The Utility made payments to the Alaska Energy
Authority (AEA) of $4,997,622 in 2019 for its portion of costs, and received 66,345 megawatt
hours of power from the Project. In 2018 the Utility paid $5,028,03%9 and received 102,307
megawatt hours. The Utility received a budget surplus refund in the amount of $226,448 for
2019. During the late summer and fall of 2019, the Swan Lake fire resulted in the transmission
line from Bradley Lake to be de-energized for several months. The Utility as well as its other
partners in the Project were unable to receive delivery of power from the Project until the fire
was extinguished and the line was assessed and repaired. The line was fully operational by the
end of November 2019. The Utility’s estimated cost of power from the Project for 2020 is
$2,536,188.

AEA issued the Power Revenue Bonds, First and Second Series in September 1989 and August
1990, respectively, for the long term financing of the construction costs of the Project. On
July 1, 2010, AEA issued $28,800,000 principal amount of Power Revenue Bonds, Sixth
Series. The Sixth Series Bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding the Power Revenue
Bonds, Fifth Series Bonds to take advantage of lower interest rates. The total amount of debt
outstanding as of December 31, 2019 is $22,445,000. The pro rata share of the debt service
costs of the Project for which the Utility is responsible, given its 25.9% share of the Project, is
$6,276,098. In the event of payment defaults by other power purchasers, the Utility’s share
could be increased by up to 25%, which would then cause the Utility’s pro rata share of Project
debt service to be a total of $7,845,122. The Utility does not now know of or anticipate any
such defaults.
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Other Matters, continued

(c)

Southcentral Power Project (SPP)

The Utility entered into a participation agreement with CEA on August 28, 2008, to proceed
with the joint development, construction and operation of SPP. SPP went into service on
January 31, 2013. It has a capacity of 200.3 MW, of which the Utility’s proportionate share is
60.1 MW, or 30%. The Utility has recorded costs of $15,097,247 and $14,895,085 in 2019 and
2018, respectively for its share of the operation of the plant. These costs include plant
operation and maintenance costs and fuel expenses reported as production expenses in the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and purchases of inventory and
prepaid insurance, reported in the Statements of Net Position.

(13) Subsequent Events

(a) Sale of the Utility

(b)

On April 3, 2018, Anchorage voters approved an amendment to the Anchorage Municipal
Charter authorizing the Municipality to sell the Utility to CEA by Municipal ordinance, to be
approved no later than December 31, 2018. The Anchorage Assembly approved the sale on
December 4, 2018. In April 2019, both the Municipality and CEA filed applications to the RCA
to amend their CPCNs and to approve the sale.

On May 28, 2020, the RCA issued an order addressing the acquisition dockets and approving
the sale if the parties agree to modify the transaction as required in the final order. (See Note
9(i)). At this time, CEA, the Municipality, and all the other parties in the docket have yet to
decide whether they accept the conditions as ruled by the RCA. If they do accept the
conditions and the acquisition goes forward, the expected closing date will be in the fall of
2020

The Utility, the Municipality and CEA are currently engaged in integration activities and
transition planning. The Utility continues to operate as usual and the proposed sale has had
no material effect on ongoing operations of the Utility. It is expected that the Municipality
will continue to operate the Utility until the acquisition date, at which time CEA will take over
operation of the Utility. Of course, the successful acquisition of most of the assets of the
Utility by CEA would have a significant effect on the financial position and results of operations
of the Utility. The agreement, as approved with conditions by the RCA, requires that the Utility
retain only the generation assets of Eklutna Hydroelectric Project and sell power to CEA and
MEA from those assets.

COVID-19 Pandemic

In late January 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHQ”) announced a global health
emergency regarding a new strain of virus called coronavirus (COVID-19). This virus originated
from within China, and spread globally, including Alaska. The WHO declared this new strain
creates extreme health risks as it spreads globally. Further, in March 2020, the WHO classified
the coronavirus as a pandemic. March 12, 2020, the mayor of Anchorage declared a state of
emergency to protect and preserve public health and safety, and subsequently closed all civic,
cultural and recreational facilities in the Municipality.
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Subsequent Events, continued

(c)

The governor of Alaska declared a public health disaster as did the President of the United
States. The governor instituted a number of public health measures that affected intrastate
and interstate travel and the movement of goods and services. The Municipality and the Utility
instituted strong social distancing measures for all employees and for several weeks, many of
the Utility’s employees worked remotely, part-time, or were on administrative leave until
safety and health procedures could be implemented to ensure that they could continue to do
their jobs safely.

Management is actively monitoring the global situation and assessing its effect on the Utility’s
financial condition, liquidity, operations, supply chain, and workforce. Given the daily
evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and the global responses to curb its spread, the Utility is
not able to estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial
condition, or cash flows for fiscal year 2020.

The Utility expects a longer receivables cycle and potential reduction in commercial sales
during the economic slowdown that appears to be resulting from the health emergency. The
state legislature has passed legislation that could enable the Utility or its successor to recover
in future rates some of the impact of unpaid utility bills and extraordinary expenses related
to responding to the emergency. The legislation also provides for deferred payment
agreements with customers affected by the pandemic and needing to defer payment of their
electric bills to future periods. Management anticipates a negative impact on its short-term
cash flows as a result of these arrangements It is possible that the pandemic will adversely
impact the value of the Utility’s investments held in marketable securities.

CARES Act Funding

On March 27, 2020 the President signed into law the “Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic
Security (CARES) Act.” The CARES Act, among other things, appropriated funds for the
Coronavirus Relief Fund to be used to make payments for specified uses to States and certain
local governments. There is no assurance the Utility is eligible for these funds or will be able
to obtain them. The Utility continues to examine the impact that the CARES Act may have.
Currently, the Utility is unable to determine the impact that the CARES Act will have on the
Utility’s financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
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(14) New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB has passed several new accounting standards with upcoming implementation dates. The
following new accounting standards were implemented by the Utility for 2019 reporting:

L]

GASB 84 - Fiduciary Activities. No changes were required under this Statement.

GASB 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements.
This Statement requires additional disclosures for debt that fall under the definition of a direct
placement and/or a direct borrowing. A direct borrowing is defined as “a government entering
into a loan agreement with a lender”. A direct placement is defined as “a government issuing a
debt security directly to an investor”. The Utility does not have any debt that is defined as a
direct placement debt but has several notes and contracts that meet the definition of a direct
borrowing. Additional disclosures related to debt that is defined as a direct borrowing are to be
found in Note 5.

GASB 90 - Majority Equity Interests - an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The

provisions of this statement were considered not applicable at this time.

GASB 95 -Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. Due to the
COVID-19 Pandemic -the GASB Board issued GASB Statement No. 95, which postponed the
effective dates of several statements which were due to be implemented during the 2020 and
2021 reporting periods. The Municipality made the decision to early implement the
aforementioned GASB Statements Nos. 84, 88, and 90, as the implementation of these
Statements were already completed or were not applicable at the time of the issuance of GASB
95. The remainder of the Statements affected by GASB 95 will be implemented in accordance
with their new effective dates as listed below

The following standards are required to be implemented in future financial reporting periods:

GASB 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The provisions of this Statement are required
to be implemented for the 2020 financial reporting period.

GASB 87 - Leases. The provisions of this Statements are required to be implemented for the
2022 financial reporting period.

GASB 89 - Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. The
provisions of this statement are required to be implemented in the 2021 reporting period.

GASB 91 - Conduit Debt Obligations - The provisions of this statement are required to be
implemented in the 2022 reporting period.

GASB 92 - Omnibus 2020. The provisions of this statement are required to be implemented in
the 2022 reporting period.
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New Accounting Pronouncements, continued

o GASB 93 - Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. The provisions of this statement are
required to be implemented in the 2022 reporting period.

o GASB 94 - Public-private and Public-public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements.
The provisions of this statement are required to be implemented in the 2023 reporting period.

e GASB 96 - Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements. The provisions of this
statement are required to be implemented in the 2023 reporting period.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Required Supplementary Information
Public Employees' Retirement System - Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of the Utility's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Utility's
Proportionate  Plan Fiduciary
Utility's Utility's State of Alaska's Share of the  Net Position as
Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Net Pension a Percentage
Measurement of the Net Share of the Share of the Total Utility Utility's Liability as a of the Total
Year Ended Period Ended Pension Net Pension Net Pension Net Pension Covered Percentage of Pension
December 31, June 30, Liability(1) Liability Liability Liability Payroll Covered Payroll Liability
2019 2019 0.18440% S 10,094,592 § 4,008,338 § 14,102,930 S 6,351,941 158.92% 63.42%
2018 2018 0.22865% 11,361,736 3,290,622 14,652,358 6,907,073 164.49% 65.19%
2017 2017 0.23737% 12,270,893 4,571,641 16,842,534 6,874,310 178.50% 63.37%
2016 2016 0.27003% 15,093,423 1,901,832 16,995,255 7,069,090 213.51% 59.55%
2015 2015 0.21637% 10,494,008 2,810,753 13,304,761 6,832,003 153.60% 63.96%

(1) The Utility's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability represents Utility's allocated portion of the Municipality's proportionate share for the
given year.

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Required Supplementary Information
Public Employees' Retirement System - Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of Utility Contributions

Contributions
Utility's Proportion Relative to the

Contributions

Measurement  of the Contractually Contractually Contribution asa
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Utility's Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2019 2019 $ 804,904 $ 804,904 $ - S 6,403,393 12.570%
2018 2018 936,339 936,339 - 6,969,518 13.435%
2017 2017 940,338 940,338 - 7,051,257 13.336%
2016 2016 854,217 854,217 7,204,870 11.856%
2015 2015 767,929 767,929 6,991,594 10.984%

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
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Required Supplementary information
Public Employees' Retirement System - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB)
Schedule of the Utility's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability {Asset)

ARHCT
Utility's
Proportionate  Plan Fiduciary
Utility's Utility's State of Alaska's Share of the Net Position as
Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Net OPEB a Percentage
Measurement of the Net Share of the Share of the Total Utility Utility's Liability as a of the Total
Year Ended Period Ended OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Covered Percentage of OPEB

December 31, June 30, Liability(1) Liability Liability Liability Payroll Covered Payroll Liability
2019 2019 0.18439% S 273,600 S 108,789 $ 382,389 § 6,351,941 4.31% 98.13%
2018 2018 0.22860% 2,346,143 681,062 3,027,205 6,907,073 33.97% 88.12%

(1) The Utility's proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability represents the Utility's allocated portion of the Municipality's proportionate share for the

given year.

RMP
Utility's
Proportionate  Plan Fiduciary
Utility's Utitity's State of Alaska's Share of the  Net Position as
Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Net OPEB a Percentage
Measurement of the Net Share of the Share of the Total Utility Utility's Liability as a of the Total
Year Ended Period Ended OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Covered Percentage of OPEB

December 31, June 30, Liability(1) Liability Liability Liability Payroll Covered Payroll Liability
2019 2019 0.24273% § 58,071 $ S 58,071 6,351,941 0.91% 83.17%
2018 2018 0.26596% 33,844 = 33,844 6,907,073 0.49% 88.71%

(1) The Utility's proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability represents the Utility's allocated portion of the Municipality's proportionate share for the

given year.

oDD
Utility's Plan Fiduciary
Utility's Utility's State of Alaska's Proportionate  Net Pasition as
Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Share of the a Percentage
of the Net Share of the Share of the Total Utility Net OPEB of the Total
Measurement OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Utility's Liability as a OPEB
Year Ended Period Ended Liability Liability Liability Liability Covered Percentage of Liability
December 31, June 30, (Asset)(1) (Asset) (Asset) (Asset) Payroll Covered Payroll (Asset)
2019 2019 0.32582% § (78,996) $ S (78,996) $ 6,351,941 -1.24% 297.43%
2018 2018 0.26596% (51,655) - (51,655) 6,907,073 -0.75% 270.62%

given year.

(1) The Utility's proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) represents the Utility's allocated portion of the Municipality's proportionate share for the

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Required Supplementary Information

Public Employees' Retirement System - Other Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB)

Schedule of Utility Contributions -

ARHCT
Contributions
Utitity's Proportion Relative to the Contributions
Measurement of the Contractually Contractually Contribution Utility's asa
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2019 2019 $ 305,616 $ 305,616 S - 6,403,393 4.77%
2018 2018 303,957 303,957 - 6,969,518 4.36%
RMP
Contributions
Utility's Proportion Relative to the Contributions
Measurement of the Contractually Contractually Contribution Utility's as a
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2019 2019 $ 36,182 § 36,182 S 6,403,393 0.57%
2018 2018 31,365 31,365 6,969,518 0.45%
oDD
Contributions
Utility's Proportion Relative to the Contributions
Measurement of the Contractually Contractually Contribution Utility's asa
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2019 2019 $ 13,785 $ 13,785 § 6,403,393 0.22%
2018 2018 11,425 11,425 6,969,518 0.16%

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

December 31, 2019

(1) Public Employees’ Retirement System - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 82, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which
contributions to the pension plan are based. Because a portion of the Utility’s contributions to the
Plan (the DBUL) are based on Defined Contribution Wages, covered payroll reported here includes all
PERS participating wages (both Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution).

Both pension tables are intended to present 10 years of information. Additional years’ information will
be added to the schedules as it becomes available.

Schedule of Utility’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date. For December 31, 2019, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2019.

There were no changes in benefit terms from the prior measurement period.

There were no changes in assumptions from the prior measurement period, except for a decrease
in the Discount Rate from 8 percent in 2018 to 7.38 percent in 2019.

There were no changes in valuation method from the prior measurement period.

There were no changes in the allocation methodology from the prior measurement period. The
measurement period ended June 30, 2019 allocated the net pension liability based on the present
value of contributions for fiscal year 2020 through 2039, as determined by projections based on the
June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation. This is the same allocation method used for the measurement
periods ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation (latest available) were based
on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2017. As
a result of this experience study, the ARM Board adopted updated actuarial assumptions for the June
30, 2019 actuarial valuation to better reflect expected future experience.

Schedule of Utility Contributions

This table is based on the Utility’s contributions for each year presented. A portion of these
contributions are included in the plan measurement results, while a portion of the contributions
are reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the December 31, 2019 statement of net
position.

(2) Public Employees’ Retirement System - Defined Benefit OPEB Plans

L ]

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 85, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which
contributions to the OPEB plan are based. Because a portion of the Utility’s contributions to the
Plan (the DBUL) are based on Defined Contribution Wages, covered payroll reported here includes
all PERS participating wages (both Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution).

Both OPEB tables are presented for each of the three PERS OPEB plans; Alaska Retiree Healthcare
Trust Plan (ARHCT), Retiree Medical Plan (RMP), and Occupational Death and Disability Plan (ODD).
The OPEB tables are intended to present 10 years of information. Additional year’s information will
be added to the schedules as it becomes available.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Required Supplementary Information, continued
December 31, 2019
Schedule of Utility’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability

« This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date. For December 31, 2019, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2019.

There were no changes in benefit terms from the prior measurement period.

e As part of the experience study, the actuarial cost method for the retiree healthcare plan was
changed from the Entry Age Level Dollar method to the Entry Age Level Percent of Pay method.
The Discount Rate was reduced from 8 percent in 2018 to 7.38 in 2019.

e In addition to the changes in assumptions resulting from the experience study, the following
changes have been made since the prior valuation:

o An Employee Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) was implemented effective January 1, 2019. This
arrangement replaced the Retiree Drug Subsidy (RDS) under Medicare Part D and resulted
in larger projected subsidies to offset the cost of prescription drug coverage.

o Based on recent experience, the healthcare cost trend assumptions were updated.

o Per capita claims costs were updated to reflect recent experience.

o Healthcare cost trends were updated to reflect a Cadillac Tax load.

There were no changes in valuation method from the prior measurement period.

« There were no changes in the allocation methodology from the prior measurement period. The
measurement period ended June 30, 2019 allocated the net OPEB liability based on the present
value of contributions for fiscal year 2020 through 2039, as determined by projections based on the
June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation (latest available) were based
on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2017. As a
result of this experience study, the ARM Board adopted updated actuarial assumptions for the June 30,
2019 actuarial valuation to better reflect expected future experience

Schedule of Utility’s Contributions

e This table is based on the Utility’s contributions for each year presented. A portion of these
contributions are included in the plan measurement results, while a portion of the contributions
are reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the December 31, 2019 statement of net
position.

e All tables are intended to present 10 years’ information. Additional years’ information will be
added to the schedule as it becomes available.

(3) International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Schedule of Utility Contributions

e This table presents the Utility contributions for each of the last ten years based on fiscal year
contributions.

e In accordance with GASB Statement No. 78, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which
contributions to the pension plan are based.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage

Fort Richardson

Anchorage School District
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

University of Alaska, Anchorage
Providence Health System
University of Alaska

Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage

Fort Richardson

Anchorage School District

State of Alaska

Providence Alaska Medical
University of Alaska, Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
University of Alaska

Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
Anchorage School District

State of Alaska

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

112

Revenue (S)

13,333,536
6,040,278
5,030,643
4,047,387
3,814,162
3,671,560
2,591,484
2,422,668
2,358,204
2,204,002

2018
Revenue (5)

Sales (kWh)
114,316,980

20,305,250
28,211,743
20,963,209
30,588,030
23,697,709
17,553,200
16,415,009
15,864,717
17,061,774

Sales (kWh)

11,171,443
5,447,206
3,850,089
3,701,285
3,318,240
3,095,649
2,395,975
2,190,172
2,152,954
1,821,827

2017
Revenue (5)

117,988,033
20,361,603
23,669,795
21,069,210
23,499,108
27,035,464
17,497,854
16,455,389
16,221,798
15,138,118

Sales (kWh)

13,810,920
6,244,068
4,527,732
4,144,490
4,055,188
3,641,951
3,075,322
2,762,581
2,742,328
2,625,088

121,123,845
21,997,754
29,313,454
21,900,552
24,489,039
23,844,604
18,469,251
16,788,893
16,584,283
16,570,118



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

Anchorage School District

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

Anchorage School District

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

Anchorage School District

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
Providence Health System
University of Alaska

Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

113

$

$

$

2016

Revenue (S)

Sales (kWh)

12,249,880
5,010,301
4,047,395
3,601,515
3,567,374
3,187,464
2,583,129
2,409,761
2,384,436
2,212,302

2015

Revenue (S)

121,923,613
25,943,896
30,672,310
25,281,432
22,742,140
25,516,920
18,519,071
17,348,160
17,182,319
16,300,831

Sales (kWh)

11,714,725
4,906,357
3,765,947
3,559,141
3,520,203
2,810,763
2,461,696
2,304,264
2,197,364
2,172,315

2014

Revenue (S)

123,925,931
26,544,546
29,916,508
26,353,330
23,392,075
22,892,004
18,359,501
17,427,455
16,644,299
16,242,233

Sales (kWh)

11,017,465
4,415,594
3,530,551
3,255,191
3,106,621
2,404,701
2,177,227
1,945,608
1,913,342
1,832,379

125,613,900
24,172,965
29,596,430
25,479,576
21,463,838
19,441,172
17,079,887
15,541,320
15,008,522
15,140,657



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013
Customer Revenue ($) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base 9,226,223 131,043,824
Anchorage School District 2,897,648 24,777,425
Municipality of Anchorage 3,824,941 26,282,712
State of Alaska 2,803,076 27,544,890
Providence Alaska Medical 2,629,984 28,699,997
Fort Richardson - 2,588,055 29,910,389
University of Alaska 2,072,531 20,064,980
Providence Health System 1,783,576 17,591,484
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,589,389 16,216,071
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,571,321 16,211,245

Customer Revenue (5) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base 8,097,877 135,878,731
Fort Richardson 3,729,428 58,671,211
Municipality of Anchorage 3,422,563 26,655,434
Anchorage School District 2,655,271 26,608,898
State of Alaska 2,492,450 28,556,399
Providence Alaska Medical 2,234,908 29,596,617
University of Alaska 1,793,961 20,506,774
Providence Health System 1,514,000 17,642,498
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,386,848 16,893,051
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,313,019 15,929,544
2011

Customer Revenue (5) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base 9,921,072 135,333,281
Fort Richardson 5,460,835 74,181,992
Municipality of Anchorage 3,809,602 27,353,371
Providence Alaska Medical 3,116,712 29,971,840
Anchorage School District 3,015,951 26,844,664
State of Alaska 2,752,681 26,966,050
University of Alaska 2,066,234 20,226,113
Providence Health System 1,727,491 17,114,796
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,629,192 16,791,861
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,518,934 15,702,915
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2010
Customer Revenue ($) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base S 9,991,880 134,772,525
Fort Richardson 5,695,316 76,074,926
Municipality of Anchorage 3,744,757 26,775,275
Anchorage School District 3,066,378 27,288,755
Providence Alaska Medical 2,871,643 29,775,325
State of Alaska 2,764,053 26,965,173
University of Alaska 2,042,255 19,973,125
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,655,862 16,844,949
Providence Health System 1,529,925 15,062,395
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,428,740 14,679,960
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Rate Summary

Permanent Interim Permanent Interim Interim
Effective date 04/20/18 02/15/17 07/16/15 10/24/13 03/01/13
Residential:
Schedule 11
Customer charge ($/month) 13.62 6.56 6.56 6.56 6.56
Demand charge ($/kW) - - - . -
Energy charge (5/kWh) 0.15274 0.14738 0.10734 0.10734 0.08634
Commercial:
Schedule 21 - small commercial
Customer charge ($/month) 30.46 12.88 12.88 12.88 12.88
Demand charge ($/kW) - - - - -
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.11878 0.14161 0.10314 0.10314 0.08296
Schedule 22 - large commercial at secondary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 92.61 44.15 44.15 44.15 44.15
Demand charge (S/kW) 44.53 23.29 16.96 16.96 13.64
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.00498 0.06630 0.04829 0.04829 0.03884
Schedule 23 - large commercial at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge {$/kW) 43.10 26.18 19.07 19.07 15.34
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.00488 0.06244 0.04548 0.04548 0.03658
Schedule 25 - replacement energy, AWWU
Customer charge ($/month) -
Demand charge ($/kW) . . . . .
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.02561 0.03497 0.02547 0.02547 0.02049
Schedule 27 - interruptible power at secondary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 92.61 44,15 44.15 44.15 44.15
Demand charge ($/kW) & - - - -
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.37673 0.06630 0.04829 0.04829 0.03834
schedules 31, 32, 33 - general service seasonal at secondary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) - winter 92.61 44.15 44,15 44,15 44,15
Demand charge ($/kW) - winter - . . - -
Energy charge (5/kWh) - winter 0.11878 0.14161 0.10314 0.10314 0.08296
Customer charge ($/month) - summer 92.61 4415 44,15 44.15 44,15
Demand charge ($/kW) - summer 44,53 23.29 16.96 16.96 13.64
Energy charge ($/kWh) - summer 0.00498 0.06630 0.04829 0.04829 0.03884
Schedules 34, 35, 36 - general service seasonal at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) - winter 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge ($/kW) - winter - 3 - . -
Energy charge ($/kWh) - winter 0.09355 0.13502 0.09834 0.09834 0.07910
Customer charge ($/month) - summer 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge ($/kW) - summer 43.10 26.18 19.07 19.07 15.34
Energy charge ($/kWh) - summer 0.00488 0.06244 0.04548 0.04548 0.03658
Area lighting/street lighting:
Schedules 41/60 ($/month) (150 watt luminaire) 37.78 35.15 25.60 25.60 20.59
Schedules 42/61 ($/month) (175 watt luminaire) 39.74 36.97 26.93 26.93 21.66
Schedules 43/62 ($/month) (250 Watt luminaire) 44.81 41.70 30.37 30.37 24.43
Schedules 44/63 ($/month) {400 watt luminaire) 55.69 51.82 37.74 37.74 30.36
Schedules 45/64 ($/month) (1,000 watt luminaire) 101.61 94.55 68.86 68.86 55.39

116



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Rate Summary

Permanent Interim Permanent Interim Interim
Effective date 04/20/18 02/15/17 07/16/15 10/24/13 03/01/13
Military:
Schedule 700 - interruptible service - Ft. Richardson - at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) -
Demand charge ($/kW) - . s - -
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.07245 0.05368 0.03910 0.03910 0.03145
Schedule 750 - interruptible service - Elmendorf AFB - at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) - - -
Demand charge ($/kW) - - . - -
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.08428 0.06244 0.04548 0.04548 0.03658
Schedule 760 - limited all requirements service at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159,55 159.55
Demand charge ($/kW) 45.43 17.36 12.64 12.64 10.17
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.00488 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829
Schedule 770 - partial requirements service at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Baseload demand charge ($/kW) 39.66 9.44 6.87 6.87 5.53
Peaking demand charge ($/kW) 39.66 21.42 15.60 15.60 12.55
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.00488 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829
Schedule 780 - seasonal replacement service at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Replacement capacity charge(5/kW) 39.66 9.44 6.87 6.87 5.53
Excess demand charge ($/kW) 39.66 21.42 15.60 15.60 12.55
Energy charge (5/kWh) 0.00488 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Base Ratings by Generation Units

As of December 31, 2019

Type Unit no.
Combustion turbine 3
Combustion turbine 4
Combustion turbine 7
Combustion turbine 8
Combustion turbine 9
Combustion turbine 10
Steam turbine 11

Sub-total
Hydro-turbine (Eklutna) 1
Hydro-turbine (Eklutna) 2
Sub-total
Steam Turbine (SPP) 10
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 11
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 12
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 13
Sub-total
Total
ML&P units
Eklutna (53.3%)
SPP (30%)
Plant 1
Plant 2
Eklutna
SPP

International Standards Organization (ISO)

123

Base rating Nameplate

30F (MW) ISO (MW) capacity (KVA)
32.9 29.3 48,941
33.6 31.1 31,765
81.8 74.4 110,556
85.0 77.3 102,941
48.9 48.5 71,000
48.9 48.5 71,000
28.9 28.9 36,000
360.0 338.0 472,203
22.2 22.2 22,222
22.2 22.2 22,222
44.4 44.4 44,444
57.5 38.1 67,647
47.6 40.2 57,352
47.6 40.2 57,352
47.6 40.2 57,352
200.3 158.7 239,703
604.7 541.1 756,350
360.0 338.0 472,203.0
23.7 23.7 23,688.7
60.1 47.6 71,910.9
443.8 409.3 567,802.6
66.5 60.4 80,706
293.5 277.6 391,497
23.7 23.7 23,689
60.1 47.6 71,911
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Tel: 907-278-8878 3601 C Street, Suite 600
A Fax: 907-278-5779 Anchorage. AK 99503

www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Assembly
Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Electric Utility Fund, an enterprise fund of the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska, as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Electric Utility Fund’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated June 30, 2020.

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Electric Utility
Fund’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Electric
Utility Fund’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Electric Utility Fund’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Electric Utility Fund’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ADo ush, LLf

Anchorage, Alaska
June 30, 2020
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I B DO Tel: 907-278-8878 3601 C Street, Suite 600

Fax: 907-278-5779 Anchorage, AK 99503
www,bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Assembly
Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Electric Utility Fund, an enterprise
fund of the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Electric Utility Fund’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Electric Utility Fund as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the
changes in financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms,
1



Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Electric Utility Fund, and do not
purport to, and do not present fairly the financial position of the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the changes in its financial position, or where applicable, its
cash flows for the years ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 2 to the accompanying financial statements, in 2018 the Electric Utility Fund
adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion
was not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 15 and other required supplementary information on
pages 77 through 87 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Electric Utility Fund’s basic financial statements. The statistical section
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 30,
2019 on our consideration of the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

A0 USA, LLf

Anchorage, Alaska
June 30, 2019



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

The Electric Utility Fund (Utility) is a public utility of the Municipality of Anchorage (Municipality or
Anchorage). The following is a discussion and analysis of the Utility’s financial performance, providing an
overview of the financial activities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. This discussion and
analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues, provide an overview
of the Utility’s financial activities and identify changes in the Utility’s financial position. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Utility’s financial statements
and accompanying notes, taken as a whole.

Financial Highlights

e The Utility’s total plant decreased $12.7 million or 1.4% in 2018 while decreasing $6.4 million or
0.7% in 2017. The decrease in 2018 and 2017 was due to depreciation exceeding additions.

o Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $285.2 million at December 31, 2018 and by $269.5 million at December 31, 2017.
Of these amounts, $69.7 million in 2018 and $54.1 million in 2017 were unrestricted and available
to meet the Utility’s ongoing obligations to customers and creditors.

» The Utility’s total net position increased $15.8 million or 5.86% in 2018, compared to an increase
of $14.9 million or 5.85% in 2017. The increase in net position in 2018 was primarily due to lower
fuel costs and a lower gas transfer price for internally produced gas. Depreciation also decreased
significantly in 2018. Beginning net position was reduced by $2.5 million due to adoption of a
new accounting standard in 2018. The increase in net position in 2017 was primarily due to a full
year of a new rate structure as well as a full year of operating Generation Plant 2A.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Utility is a business type activity of the Municipality that provides electrical services to a specific area
of the Municipality. The Utility’s activities are recorded in an enterprise fund of the Municipality.

Required Financial Statements

The Utility’s financial statements offer short and long-term information about the activities of the Utility
and collectively provide an indication of the Utility’s financial health. The basic financial statements are
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.

The basic financial statements, presented on a comparative basis for the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, include Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position and Statements of Cash Flows.

The Statements of Net Position present information on all of the Utility’s assets, liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position, and
provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources and obligations to
creditors.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report operating and non-operating
revenues and expenses, and the change in net position of the Utility for the years presented.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

The Statements of Cash Flows, using the direct method of presentation, provide information about the
Utility’s cash receipts and cash payments during the years presented. These statements report cash and
cash-equivalent activities for each fiscal year resulting from operating activities, noncapital financing
activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities. These statements also provide
answers to such questions as, where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change
in cash balance during the reporting period.

The Notes to Financial Statements provide the reader with additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

The Required Supplementary Information presents certain information concerning the progress in funding
the Utility’s obligation to provide pension and other postemployment benefits.

Financial Analysis of the Utility

One of the most important questions asked about the Utility’s finances is whether the Utility, as a whole,
is better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities. The Statements of Net Position and the Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the Utility’s activities in ways
that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the Utility and changes
in net position for each of the years presented. You can think of the Utility’s net position, the difference
between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as one way
to, over time, provide a measure of the Utility’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the Utility’s net position can indicate whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. However, you will need to also consider other non-financial factors such as changes in
economic conditions and customer growth, as well as legislative and regulatory mandates.

The Utility’s total net position increased $18.3 million from beginning net position, as restated, during
2018 compared to an increase in net position of $14.9 million during 2017. The following analysis focuses
on the Utility’s net position and changes in net position during the year.

A portion of the Utility’s net position (70.3% and 74.7% as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively)
reflects its net investment in capital assets, such as gas and electric production, transmission and
distribution facilities, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. Those capital assets
are used to provide services to customers; consequently those assets are not available for future spending
or to be used to liquidate any outstanding debt.

An additional portion of the Utility’s net position (5.3% and 5.3% as of December 31, 2018 and 2017
respectively) represent resources that are subject to external restriction for debt repayment and future
operations.

The unrestricted portion of the Utility’s net position (24.4% and 20.0% as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively) are available to be used to meet the Utility’s obligations to creditors and customers.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017
Net Position

December 31,

2018 2017 2016

Plant S 877,091,133 889,806,691 896,237,015
Restricted assets 69,889,012 108,827,334 74,769,608
Current and other assets 118,134,761 90,519,572 96,052,728
Deferred outflows of resources 1,961,254 1,372,834 3,865,199
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,067,076,160 1,090,526,431 1,070,924,550
Current and other liabilities 27,027,209 40,360,462 228,959,153
Non-current liabilities 549,844,293 556,863,095 373,195,399
Deferred inflows of resources 204,964,937 223,845,628 214,203,565
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 781,836,439 821,069,185 816,358,117
Net investment in capital assets 200,317,529 201,055,297 215,402,069
Restricted for debt service - 71,082 269,541
Restricted for operations 15,206,000 14,235,000 13,200,000
Unrestricted 69,716,192 54,095,867 25,694,823
Total net position ) 285,239,721 269,457,246 254,566,433

Notable components of changes in assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows and outflows of resources are
discussed below.

Plant decreased $12.7 million during 2018 compared to a decrease of $6.4 million during 2017.

During 2018 construction work in progress decreased by $8.1 million, compared to an increase of $7.2
million in 2017 as a result of capital projects started in prior years, completed in 2018.

During 2017 construction work in progress increased by $7.2 million, compared to a decrease of $242.5
million in 2016. Due to the completion of major capital projects in 2016, change in construction work in
progress in 2017 is representative of a more typical year.

Restricted assets decreased $38.9 million during 2018 compared to an increase of $34.0 million during
2017.

During 2018 the Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA) allowed the Utility to remove the restriction on
$40.6 million in cash collected due to the rate increase and the Utility repaid $9.1 million in tax credits
received in prior years from the State of Alaska.

In February 2017, the RCA granted the Utility an interim and refundable rate increase of 37.30%. Aninterim
rate escrow was established for the purpose of restricting the refundable rate increase collected from

customers.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Current and other assets increased $27.6 million during 2018 compared to a decrease of $5.5 million
during 2017.

During 2018 the Utility’s equity in general cash pool increased by $29.3 million due to lifting of the
restriction of funds collected from customers pursuant to the refundable rate increase granted by the RCA.
Other receivables decreased by $1.7 million due to timing of payment of receivables. Prepaid items
decreased $2.2 million due to accelerated payments in 2017 for purchased power.

During 2017 the Utility’s equity in general cash pool decreased by $14.7 million primarily due to the
restriction of funds collected from customers pursuant to the refundable rate increase granted by the RCA.
Other receivables increased by $5.8 million primarily due to end of the year economy energy sales of
electricity. Inventories of materials and supplies increased by $1.8 million primarily due to an increase in
gas stored at Cook Inlet Natural Gas Storage and additional materials purchased for Generation Plant 2A.

Deferred outflows of resources increased $0.6 million during 2018 and decreased $2.5 million in 2017 as
a result of changes in pension related items and accounting for other postemployment benefits.

Current and other liabilities decreased $13.3 million during 2018 compared to a decrease of $188.6 million
during 2017.

During 2018 accounts payable from current assets decreased $12.5 million primarily due to repaying prior
year over-recovery of cost of power expenses from customers.

During 2017 short-term debt decreased $181.0 million due to reclassification of notes payable to long-term
debt. Accounts payable from restricted assets decreased $6.1 million because the Utility expended all of
its proceeds from short-term debt completing Generation Plant 2A.

Non-current liabilities decreased $7.0 million during 2018 compared to a decrease of $183.7 million in
2017.

During 2018 the primary driver of the change was a $0.9 million reduction in pension liability, the addition
of $2.3 million in other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability due to adoption of new accounting
standards, and $7.9 million redemption of bonds.

During 2017 the primary driver of the change was the reclassification of $191.9 million in notes payable
from short-term to long-term, offset by a decrease of $2.8 million in the net pension liability and $7.5
million redemption of bonds.

Deferred inflows of resources decreased $18.9 million in 2018 compared to an increase of $9.6 million in
2017.

During 2018 contributions in aid of construction decreased by $2.8 million due to amortization in 2018
exceeding additions. Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions decreased $0.7 million while
deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits of $0.8 million were recorded due
to the adoption of a new accounting standard. The future natural gas purchases account increased by 50.7
million in investment earnings and redemption of intercompany debt. Future BRU construction or natural
gas purchases account decreased by $16.9 million primarily due to refunding tax credits offset by $2.2
million in gas sales and $0.1 million in investment earnings (see Note 9 (c)).



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

During 2017 contributions in aid of construction increased by $3.3 million due to the transfer of $9.0 million
from non-contributed to contributed plant as a result of an RCA order, offset by amortization. Deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions changed $0.8 million. The future natural gas purchases account
increased by $0.8 million in investment earnings and redemption of intercompany debt. Future BRU
construction or natural gas purchases account increased by $4.8 million. There were $16.3 million in gas
sales and $0.2 million in investment earnings (see Note 9 (c)).

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Changes in the Utility’s net position can be determined by reviewing the following condensed schedule of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the years ended December 2018, 2017, and 2016:

Years ended December 31,

2018 2017 2016
Operating revenues:
Residential sales S 24,180,864 26,125,850 22,260,329
Commercial and industrial sales 103,164,976 122,670,602 106,258,842
Military sales 15,021,531 17,452,871 15,437,345
Sales for resale 28,266,428 23,344,433 15,343,153
Other operating revenues 7,084,219 (5,169,343) 7,852,729
Operating revenues 177,718,018 184,424,413 167,152,398
Nonoperating revenues 3,878,498 4,868,051 3,533,982
Total revenues 181,596,516 189,292,464 170,686,380
Expenses:
Production 80,038,875 84,409,875 75,100,243
Transmission 1,206,720 1,160,932 937,495
Distribution 13,508,019 11,609,032 11,787,913
Customer service and sales 4,139,729 4,285,142 4,528,685
Administrative and general 9,934,148 11,044,068 11,373,116
Regulatory debits (credits) (8,026,635) (4,028,641) 6,359,769
Taxes other than income 894,382 1,367,440 1,737,906
Depreciation, net of amortization 28,862,200 32,453,517 31,634,639
Operating expenses 130,557,438 142,301,365 143,459,766
Nonoperating expenses 23,136,095 22,768,624 15,457,904
Total expenses 153,693,533 165,069,989 158,917,670
Income before transfers 27,902,983 24,222,475 11,768,710
Transfers:
Municipal Utility Service Assessment (MUSA) (9,565,771) (9,331,662) (5,983,574)
Transfers (to)/from other funds (29,418) - 8,456
Change in net position 18,307,794 14,890,813 5,793,592
Beginning net position (restated) 266,931,927 254,566,433 248,772,841
Ending net position $ 285,239,721 269,457,246 254,566,433
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December 31, 2018 and 2017

Revenues by Source:

Operating Revenue 2018
(in thousands)

Resale, Other, - Residential,
$28,266, . 97.084,4% $24,181,

Military, 16%. 3 14%
515,022
8%

_ Commercial
$103,165
58%

Operating Revenue 2017
(in thousands)

Resale Other __ Residential
$23,344,13%  (55,169)-3% 526,126

-

Military
$17,453
9%

—__Commercial
$122,671
67%

Operating Revenue 2016
(in thousands)

Resale

9%._

Military
$15,437
9%

COther
$15,343  $7,853 5%

Y

Residential
522,260
13%

__ Commercial
$106,258
64%

Total revenues decreased $7.7 million during 2018 compared to an increase of $18.6 million during 2017.
Total kilowatt hours (kWh) sold increased by 54.8 million in 2018 compared to an increase of 147.3 million

in 2017. Components of the changes in revenues were:

During 2018 total operating revenues were $177.7 million, a decrease of $6.7 million from 2017. Military
sales revenue decreased by $2.4 million. Commercial and industrial sales decreased by $19.5 million while
sales for resale increased by $4.9 million during the year. Retail sales decreases were primarily due to
lower Cost of Power Adjustment (COPA.) revenues as a result of lower fuel costs for the year and more
efficient generation assets. Other operating revenues increased by $12.3 million due to under-recovery of
COPA. Non-operating revenues decreased by just under $1 million due to lower investment income as a

result of fewer assets invested.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

During 2017 total operating revenues were $184.4 million, an increase of $17.3 million from 2016 primarily
due to rate increases implemented in February 2017. The largest growth was in commercial and industriat
sales, which increased $16.4 million. Increases of $3.9 million in residential sales, $2 million in military
sales, and $8 million in sales for resale were offset by a decrease of $13 million in other operating revenues.
Other operating revenues decreased $13 million due to over-recovery of COPA. Non-operating revenues
increased by $1.3 million primarily due to investment gains.

Expenses by Category

Total expenses by category decreased $11.4 million during 2018 compared to an increase of $6.2 million
during 2017. Components of the changes were:

During 2018 operating expenses decreased $11.7 million from 2017 due to a $4.4 million decrease in
production expenses (primarily fuel),and a $4 million increase in regulatory credits due to repayment of
over-collection of COPA from customers. Distribution expenses increased by $1.9 million, administrative
and general expenses decreased $1.1 million; depreciation expenses decreased $3.6 million primarily due
to retirement of assets. Non-operating expenses increased just $0.4 million primarily due to increased
short-term borrowing costs offset by decreases in other miscellaneous, interest expenses and loss on
disposal of property.

MUSA, which represents payments to the municipal government in lieu of property taxes, remained
consistent with 2017, increasing just $0.2 million due to a decrease in plant assets and an increase in mill
rates.

During 2017 operating expenses decreased $1.1 million from 2016, mainly due to a $9.3 million increase in
production expenses offset by a $10.4 million increase in regulatory credits. Production increased mainly
because more fuel was used by the Utility for increased sales of electricity for resale, and regulatory
credits reflect an over-collection of COPA from customers during the year. Non-operating expenses
increased $7.3 million primarily due to a $12 million decrease in allowance for funds used during
construction (AFUDC), a $0.2 million increase in interest expense on long-term obligations, and a $0.6
million increase in other interest due to an increase in interest rates, offset by a $6 million decrease in
loss on disposal of property.

MUSA increased $3.3 million over 2016, due to the increase in plant value when Generation Plant 2A was
placed in service in late 2016.
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December 31, 2018 and 2017

Expenses By Category 2018*
{in thousands)

Nonoperating __

$23,136 14% Production

$80,039 49%

Depreciation
$28,862 18%

,,

Taxes $8%4 | 1§
1% B
Admin. &
General 59,934 |
6%
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Customer & Sales $1,207 1%

$4,140 3%

Distribution
$13,508 8%

Nonoperating o
$15,458 10%

Expenses By Category 2017*
(in thousands)

Nonoperating
$22,768 13% Production

T — $84,410 50%

Depreciation
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l

Taxes -
$1,367 :
1% \'// .
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Expenses By Category 2016*
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Production
$75,100 49%
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Admin. &
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7%
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$11,788 8%
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* Expenses by category excluding regulatory debits (credits)
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December 31, 2018 and 2017

Expenses By Type 2018* Expenses By Type 2017*
Taxes (in thousands) i (in thousands) o
urcn. urcn.
$894 0% Interfund Power EXES Interfund Power
Fuel** T $35552% 54,663 3% S1367 1% $3,076 2% ¢4 ag5 3%

== = Fuel** = = ‘
53?'0302 o Misc Other $40,085___ ’ Misc Other
- $38,426 24% $37,213
24% 22%
-

T Deer. E I| * _ S Depr.
$28,862 mployee : $32,454

Employee*
*+ ¢30,735 -
519% . Bondlinterest  q1gy **$32,787 “~_ Bond Interest 19%
$17,283 11% 19% $17,631 10%

Expenses By Type 2016*

. Purch.
(in thousands) Power
Taxes |nterfund _5‘4,555 3%
$1,7381%_ $2,159 1% Misc Other

Fueltt = 5 $26,092
$37,312 ' tolis
25%
I :Depr‘
Employee* _ $31,635

##$31,109 | Bond Interest 21%
20% $17,957 12%

*Expenses by type excluding regulatory debits (credits)

**Fuel expense includes purchased natural gas, transportation costs, diesel fuel used, and CINGSA.

**Employee expense includes general liability and workers compensation insurance.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Capital Assets - Plant

The Utility’s investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $877.1 million and $889.8
million, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation and depletion.) This included investments in gas
and electric production, transmission and distribution related facilities, as well as general items such as
buildings and vehicles. Plant decreased 1.43% and 0.72% over the prior year for 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Utility’s capital assets as of December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 were as follows:

2018 2017 2016
Capital assets:
Steam production S 242,833,584 242,833,584 242,706,892
Hydraulic production 8,408,752 6,932,007 5,808,598
Other production 309,766,612 309,370,891 302,412,281
Transmission plant 82,141,081 76,759,366 73,953,864
Distribution plant 296,099,145 280,188,291 269,997,456
General plant 43,929,026 43,877,572 42,912,800
Miscellaneous intangible plant 14,904,003 15,116,282 10,283,951
Intangible plant 15,272,228 15,272,228 15,272,228
Gas production 346,454,777 345,231,780 345,231,780
Total capital assets 1,359,809,208 1,335,582,001 1,308,579,850
Total accumulated depreciation (497,620,360) (468,732,750) (428,126,039)
Total construction work in progress 14,902,285 22,957,440 15,783,204
Net capital assets S 877,091,133 889,806,691 896,237,015

For further information regarding the Utility’s capital assets, see Note 4.
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ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Long Term Debt - Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Utility had outstanding long-term debt of $524 and $534 million,
respectively.

The Utility’s long term-debt as of December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016, were as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Revenue bonds:
Series 2005A 12,150,000 17,565,000 22,705,000
Series 2009A 15,240,000 15,240,000 15,240,000
Series 2009B 114,760,000 114,760,000 114,760,000
Series 2014A 173,355,000 175,805,000 178,185,000
Unamortized discount (446,018) (476,692) (507,779)
Unamortized premium 17,436,399 18,721,619 20,104,669

Total revenue bonds 332,495,381 341,614,927 350,486,890
Notes payable 191,900,000 191,900,000 -

Total long-term debt S 524,395,381 533,514,927 350,486,890

Notes payable were reclassified from short-term to long-term in 2017. Notes payable increased $10.9
million during 2017 as Generation Plant 2A construction was concluded.

Bond Rating
At December 31, 2018, the Utility maintains the following underlying credit ratings:

Standard & Poor’s A+
Fitch A+

In May 2018, Standard & Poor’s reaffirmed the A+ rating of the Utility’s Senior Debt. In September 2018,
Fitch reaffirmed the A+ rating of the Utility’s Senior Debt.

Budgetary Highlights

On November 21, 2017, an ordinance adopting and appropriating funds for the 2018 Municipal Utilities’
Operating and Capital Budgets for the Municipality was approved. The Utility’s operating budget was
$169,464,144 and the capital budget was $57,105,000, which includes $11 million for the BRU. The Utility’s
2018 actual appropriated expenses of $134,490,309 were $35.0 miltion or 20.6% under the budget. Capital
expenditures for plant improvements totaled $23 million.

On October 9, 2018, an ordinance adopting and appropriating funds for the 2019 Municipal Utilities’
Operating and Capital Budgets for the Municipality was approved. The Utility’s operating budget was
$159,217,263 and the capital budget was $42,020,000, which includes $9.6 million for the BRU.

On April 9, 2019 a resolution amending the Utility’s 2019 operating budget by $0.8 million was approved
by the Municipal Assembly; the Utility’s total revised operating budget for 2019 increased to $160 million.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Economic Factors and Rates

Sale of the Utility

On April 3, 2018, Anchorage voters approved an amendment to the Anchorage Municipal Charter authorizing
the Municipality to sell the Utility to Chugach Electric Association (CEA) by Municipal ordinance. An asset
purchase and sale agreement has been approved by the Anchorage Municipal Assembly and CEA’s board of
directors. The Utility and CEA have both filed petitions with the RCA to approve the acquisition. A
successful acquisition of most of the assets of the Utility by CEA would have a significant effect on the
financial position and results of operations of the Utility. The petitions, as filed, request that the Utility
retain only the generation assets of Eklutna and sell power to CEA from those assets. (See Note 9(i) and

Note 11).
Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, citizens, and creditors with a general overview
of the Utility’s finances and to demonstrate the Utility’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Utility’s Chief
Financial Officer, Mollie C. Morrison, at (907) 263-5205.

15



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Net Position

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 2018 2017
Plant:
Plant in service, at cost S 1,344,536,980 1,320,309,773
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion 484,853,307 456,070,969
Net plant in service 859,683,673 864,238,804
Intangible plant, net 2,505,175 2,610,447
Construction work in progress 14,902,285 22,957,440
Total plant 877,091,133 889,806,691
Restricted assets:
Current:
Restricted equity in general cash pool - customer deposits 1,225,452 1,186,226
Interim rate escrow investment 5 27,250,254
Noncurrent:
Debt service investment 2,058,443 2,098,515
Revenue bond reserve investment 23,718,574 23,335,229
Revenue bond operations and maintenance investment 15,206,000 14,235,000
Future natural gas purchases investment 5,732,181 3,811,326
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases investment 8,032,509 23,711,907
Asset retirement obligation sinking fund investment 13,915,853 13,198,877
Total restricted assets 69,889,012 108,827,334
Current assets:
Equity in general cash pool 61,906,365 32,591,181
Net accounts receivable:
Utility customers, less estimated uncollectibles
of $214,282 in 2018 and $182,731 in 2017 8,319,226 8,601,943
Other receivables, less estimated uncollectibles
of $77,082 in 2018 and $67,508 in 2017 7,306,860 9,031,977
Accrued interest 736,000 646,359
Unbilled reimbursable projects 131,864 110,625
Inventory of materials and supplies, at average cost 31,388,131 32,077,195
Prepaid Items 861,556 3,043,135
Total current assets 110,650,002 86,102,415
Other assets:
Non-current:
Unamortized regulatory assets 6,147,029 2,967,188
Unamortized debt expense 1,337,730 1,449,969
Total other assets 7,484,759 4,417,157

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits

1,065,114,906

1,089,153,597

Total deferred outflows of resources

61,057 248,700
1,155,512 1,124,134
744,685 -
1,961,254 1,372,834

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources S

1,067,076,160

1,090,526,431
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Net Position, continued

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Accounts payable $
Compensated absences payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Accrued interest
Other liabilities
Pollution remediation liability
Long-term obligations maturing within one year

Total current liabilities (payable from current assets)

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets):
Customer deposits

Non-current liabilities:
Notes payable
Asset retirement obligation
Unearned revenue
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefits liabitity
Obligation for undergrounding
Revenue bonds payable after one year, net of premium and discount

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Contributions in aid of construction (net of amortization)
Future natural gas purchases
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for operations
Unrestricted

Total net position

2018 2017
12,035,116 24,493,095
2,526,423 2,812,140
1,506,814 1,775,992
1,813,590 1,688,922
189,814 27,300

- 511,787

7,730,000 7,865,000
25,801,757 39,174,236
1,225,452 1,186,226
191,900,000 191,900,000
16,543,712 15,823,732
948,181 864,531
11,361,736 12,270,893
2,328,332 :
1,996,951 2,254,012
324,765,381 333,749,927
549,844,293 556,863,095
576,871,502 597,223,557
177,823,955 180,608,877
17,934,651 17,230,809
8,077,741 25,002,529
285,157 1,003,413
843,433 =
204,964,937 223,845,628
200,317,529 201,055,297
: 71,082
15,206,000 14,235,000
69,716,192 54,095,867
285,239,721 269,457,246

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position S

1,067,076,160

1,090,526,431

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Operating revenues:
Residential sales ) 24,180,864 26,125,850
Commercial and industrial sales 103,164,976 122,670,602
Military sales 15,021,531 17,452,871
Sales for resale 28,266,428 23,344,433
Other operating revenues 7,084,219 (5,169,343)
Total operating revenues 177,718,018 184,424,413
Operating expenses:
Production 80,038,875 84,409,875
Transmission 1,206,720 1,160,932
Distribution 13,508,019 11,609,032
Customer service and sales 4,139,729 4,285,142
Administrative and general 9,934,148 11,044,068
Regulatory credits (8,026,635) (4,028,641)
Taxes other than income 894,382 1,367,440
Depreciation, net of amortization 28,862,200 32,453,517
Total operating expenses 130,557,438 142,301,365
Total operating income 47,160,580 42,123,048
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income 1,197,610 2,098,199
Interest subsidy on Build America Bonds 2,437,406 2,432,899
PERS on behalf 154,073 336,953
OPEB on behalf 89,409 -
Total nonoperating revenues 3,878,498 4,868,051
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest:
Long-term obligations 16,794,977 17,104,164
Other interest 4,429,858 2,561,257
Total interest 21,224,835 19,665,421
Allowance for funds used during construction (638,303) (525,306)
Amortization of other assets 157,027 286,133
Loss on disposal of property 2,337,536 2,808,232
Other nonoperating expenses 55,000 534,144
Total nonoperating expenses 23,136,095 22,768,624
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) (19,257,597) (17,900,573)
Income before transfers 27,902,983 24,222,475
Transfers:
Municipal Utility Service Assessment (9,565,771) (9,331,662)
Transfers to other funds (29,418) -
Total transfers (9,595,189) (9,331,662)
Change in net position 18,307,794 14,890,813
Net position - beginning of year, as restated 266,931,927 254,566,433
Net position - end of year S 285,239,721 269,457,246

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Other operating cash receipts
Payments to employees
Payments to vendors
Internal activity - payments made to other funds

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfer - Municipal Utility Service Assessment
Transfers to other funds

Net cash used by noncapital and related financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of short-term debt
Interest payments on short-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest and debt issuance cost payments on long-term debt
Interest subsidy on Build America Bonds
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Contributed capital - customers
Contributed capital - intergovernmental agencies
Payments for interfund services used
Proceeds from sale of property

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net (deposits to) withdrawals from restricted funds
Investment income received

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents:
Equity in general cash pool
Interim rate escrow investment
Restricted equity in general cash pool

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

20

2018

2017

182,289,020
11,919,963

(36,114,203)

(106,426,580)

198,440,556
2,867,451

(30,847,671)

(92,866,543)

(4,217,349) (2,394,475)
47,450,851 75,199,318
(9,565,771) (9,331,662)
(29,418) .
(9,595,189) (9,331,662)
: 10,900,000
(4,429,858) (2,561,257)
(7,865,000) (7,520,000)
(17,781,999) (18,277,114)
2,436,538 2,432,899
(20,599,776) (32,336,702)
273,528 647,401
521,344 337,787
(1,142,414) (2,200,583)

. 7,934

(48,587,637)

(48,569,635)

11,727,294 (9,317,829)
1,108,837 2,014,395
12,836,131 (7,303,434)
2,104,156 9,994,587
61,027,661 51,033,074
63,131,817 61,027,661
61,906,365 32,591,181
: 27,250,254
1,225,452 1,186,226
63,131,817 61,027,661




MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Cash Flows, continued
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income S 47,160,580 42,123,048
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation, net of amortization 28,862,200 32,453,517
PERS on behalf 154,073 336,953
OPEB on behalf 89,409 -
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 41,125 66,838
Other nonoperating expenses (55,000) (534,144)
Changes in assets and liabilities which increase (decrease)
cash:
Accounts receivable 1,966,709 (5,471,201)
Unbilled reimbursable projects (21,239) 776,795
Inventories 689,064 (1,815,450)
Prepaid items 2,181,579 (1,485,296)
Unamortized regulatory assets (3,179,841) (1,322,364)
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions (31,378) 2,224,158
Deferred outflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits (568,875) -
Accounts payable (13,876,244) (5,788,651)
Compensated absences payable (285,717) (162,189)
Accrued payroll liabilities (269,178) 270,422
Other liabilities 162,514 (243,015)
Customer deposits 39,226 15,497
Asset retirement obligation 719,980 688,646
Unearned revenue 83,650 339,447
Net pension liability (909,157) (2,822,530)
Net other postemployment benefits liability 489,294 -
Obligation for undergrounding (257,061) 97,338
Deferred inflows of resources (14,997,948) 14,616,328
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (718,256) 835,171
Deferred inflows of resources retated to other postemployment benefits (18,658) -
Total cash provided by operating activities S 47,450,851 75,199,318
Non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:
Capital purchases on account S 906,478 571,394
Portion of plant from allowance for funds used during construction 638,303 525,306
Contributions in aid of construction funded from
deferred inflows of resources 1,222,998 9,097,137
Total non-cash investing, capital and financing activities S 2,767,779 10,193,837

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(1) Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The first electric system serving Anchorage was installed in 1916 by the Alaska Engineering
Commission, the agency of the United States Department of the Interior which constructed the Alaska
Railroad. A small steam plant and several diesel power generators supplied Anchorage with
electricity until 1929 when the private Anchorage Power and Light Company began supplying the
community with electricity from a hydroelectric power plant on the Eklutna River located 15 miles
northeast of downtown Anchorage. The Alaska Engineering Commission distribution system was
purchased by Anchorage in 1932. Anchorage then acquired the Eklutna plant from the Anchorage
Power and Light Company in 1943. This is what is now Anchorage Municipal Light and Power or the
Electric Utility Fund, a public utility of the Municipality of Anchorage. The Utility now has six turbine
generating units fired by natural gas and one heat recovery steam turbine generating unit. The Utility
also has a thirty percent ownership in Southcentral Power Project and fifty-three and one-third
percent ownership interest in the Eklutna Hydroelectric Project and is entitled to twenty-five and
nine-tenths percent of the output of the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project. The Utility meets the
majority of its natural gas requirements from its ownership interest in the Beluga River Gas Field,
including the initial one-third interest acquired in December 1996. The Utility’s goal in acquiring the
working interest in the BRU was to lock in a critical resource for the long-term and provide a hedge
against anticipated future increases in natural gas prices. During 2016 the Utility acquired 70% of a
one-third working interest in the field from ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc.(CPAl), increasing its working
interest to 56.67%.

The accompanying financial statements include the activities of the Utility. The Utility is a major
enterprise fund of the Municipality and not the Municipality as a whole. The Utility is subject to the
regulatory authority of the RCA.

The Utility applies all applicable provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
which has authority for setting accounting standards for governmental entities. The accounting
records of the Utility conform to the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC).

Accounting and reporting treatment applied to the Utility is accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they are earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the Utility’s principal ongoing operations. All other revenues and expenses are
reported as non-operating.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Regulated Operations

The Utility meets the criteria, and accordingly follows the accounting and reporting requirements
applicable to regulated operations. The Utility’s rates are regulated by the RCA and as a result,
revenues intended to recover certain costs are provided either before or after the costs are
incurred, resulting in regulatory assets or liabilities. The following regulatory assets and liabilities
are reflected in the accompanying financial statements:

e The Utility receives contributions in aid of construction, which it records as contributed
plant in service and a deferred inflow of resources. The Utility amortizes contributed plant
and the deferred inflow of resources over the useful life of the utility plant.

o The Utility accepted a monetary settlement in 2015 from its BRU partners for its 2014
underlift. The Utility used these funds to reduce its Gas Transfer Price (GTP) from July 1,
2016 through June 30, 2017. See Note 9(a).

e The Utility has a regulatory asset or liability account to capture the difference in the cost
of power and revenue received through the Cost of Power Adjustment (COPA). See Note
9(b).

e The Utility has a regulatory asset or liability account to capture the difference in the
amount of the Gas Fund revenue requirement and the actual amount of revenue collected
from the Electric Fund. See Note 9(b).

e The Utility records proceeds from the sales of gas, net of royalties, taxes and an Asset
Retirement Obligation (ARO) surcharge, as a deferred regulatory liability, reported as
deferred inflows of resources on the statements of net position. See Note 9(c).

¢ The Utility funds ARO expenses associated with future abandonment of the BRU through a
surcharge to the Utility’s GTP, which is deposited into a sinking fund. See Note 9(c) and

(d).
Management believes that the recorded amounts of all regulatory assets are fully recoverable
from ratepayers in the future.

Management Estimates

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and the reporting of contingent assets and liabilities
as of the date of the statement of net position and revenues and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The more significant accounting and reporting
policies and estimates applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements are
discussed below.

Cash Pools and Investments

The Municipality uses a central treasury to account for all cash and investments to maximize
interest. Interest income on cash pool investments is distributed based on the average daily
balance in the general cash pool. The Utility’s investments are reported at fair value in the
financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Statements of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Utility has defined cash as the demand
deposits and all investments maintained in the general cash pool, regardless of maturity period,
since the Utility uses the cash pools essentially as demand deposit accounts. Restricted assets
in the general cash pool, except for customer deposits, have not been included in the definition
of cash.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Utility’s revenue bonds, as well as resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statements of net position because their
use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The revenue bond reserve investment account is
used to report resources set aside to augment potential deficiencies from Utility operations
that could adversely affect debt service payments. The debt service account is used to
segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months. The
revenue bond operations and maintenance account represents funds set aside to comply with
bond covenants requiring a reserve equal to one-eighth of the preceding year’s operating
expenses (as defined in the bond covenants).

The restricted equity in general cash pool-customer deposits account represents deposits
provided by electric service customers as security for bill payment. Future natural gas
purchases or BRU construction and ARO sinking funds are funds for which the RCA has specified
the use.

Interim revenue escrow investments are funds collected from customer sales arising from
interim and refundable rates granted by the RCA. The restriction on those funds was lifted on
June 1, 2018 by the RCA following the submittal of tariff sheets in compliance with RCA Order
No. 13 in U-17-008. (See Note 9(e).)

Inventories

Inventories are valued at weighted average cost. The cost of inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Inventories consist of parts and
materials used to maintain or build new transmission, distribution, and generation
facilities. Scrap and nonusable materials in inventory are carried at net estimated realizable
value until sold or otherwise disposed of.

The Utility also stores natural gas in a depleted field on the Kenai Peninsula. Cook Inlet Natural
Gas Storage Alaska (CINGSA) started in 2012 and as of December 31, 2018 the Utility has stored
6.74 billion cubic feet of gas.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(¢) Property, Plant and Equipment
Electric

Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by use of the straight-line method
over the estimated economic life of the asset. Additions to electric plant in service are at
original cost of items such as contracted services, direct labor and materials, indirect overhead
charges and AFUDC. The Utility capitalizes general plant assets valued at more than $25,000
that have an expected life in excess of one year. Contributed assets are recorded at the cost
incurred by the Utility for the addition of such assets. Donated assets are recorded at
acquisition value. Acquisition value is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with
equivalent service potential in an orderly market transaction at the acquisition date. For
property replaced or retired, the cost of the property unit, plus removal costs less salvage, is
charged to accumulated depreciation. Gain or loss is not recognized unless the Utility
determines that such costs could not be recovered in rates. Costs for maintenance and repairs
are expensed as incurred, except for major maintenance on generation assets, for which costs
are collected into a regulatory asset and amortized over the period of utility, generally three
to five years.

Estimated lives of major plant and equipment categories follow:

Production plant 24 - 60 years
Hydraulic plant 40 - 45 years
Transmission plant 45 - 60 years
Distribution plant 17 - 55 years
General plant - buildings 40 - 60 years
Vehicles 16 - 20 years
Other general plant 5 - 20 years
Original gas field acquisition 23 years
Intangible plant 5 - 30 years

Gas

Acquisition costs, the costs of wells, related equipment and facilities initially acquired as part
of the 1996 acquisition of a one-third working interest in the BRU were, as a result of a
regulatory proceeding and subsequent order by the RCA, being depleted at 125% of the principal
payments on the debt used to finance the acquisition of this asset. Those assets were fully
depleted at December 31, 2018, as related debt was fully redeemed at December 1, 2018.

The acquisition of assets purchased with designated underlift settlement funds are being
amortized using the units of production method, based upon proven reserves in accordance
with the amortization method used for regulatory purposes. The acquisition of assets purchased
with gas sale proceeds, and assets acquired from CPAI in the 2016 purchase, are being recorded
as contributed plant and are being amortized using the units of production method, based on
proven reserves in accordance with the amortization method used for regulatory purposes.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(h) Unbilled Revenues and Accounts Receivable

(i)

0)

Electric revenues are based on cycle billings rendered to customers monthly. As a result of this
cycle billing method, the Utility does not accrue revenue at the end of any fiscal period for
services sold but not billed at such date. The unbilled revenues for the Utility are immaterial.
An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for receivables where there is a question of
collectability. Utility receivables are presented in the statements of net position net of
estimated uncollectible amounts. Gas sales are calculated based upon volumes delivered and
recorded as a regulatory liability, which is reported as deferred inflows of resources on the
statements of net position (see Note 9(c)).

Gas Balancing

The Utility has elected to account for underlifted gas from its ownership interest in the BRU
according to the sales method. Therefore, the financial statements do not include a receivable
or revenue for underlifted volumes for which the Utility did not elect to receive cash
settlement. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the underlift balance was 23,106 and 172 Mcf,
respectively. The Utility also has the option per the Gas Balancing Agreement to take cash
settlements for any underlifted gas.

Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO)

The Utility accounts for its ARO for its interest in the BRU in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic #410-20, formerly Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (SFAS No 143) and 18 CFR
101 General Instruction No 25, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (Regulations of the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Department of Energy, or FERC). ASC 410-20 and FERC
General Instruction No 25 applies to the fair value of a liability for an ARO that is recorded
when there is a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
and the liability can be reasonably estimated. Obligations associated with the retirement of
these assets require recognition of: (1) the present value of a liability and offsetting asset for
an ARO, (2) the subsequent accretion of that liability and depreciation of the asset, and (3) the
periodic review of the ARO liability estimates and discount rates.

In 2012 the Utility made its initial recording of the ARO asset and ARO liability with a beginning
balance of $1,461,335 representing the fair value of the obligation at 1996 - the period when
the obligation was incurred. The Utility recorded in 2012 $4,185,549 to the ARO liability
representing total accretion expense that would have been incurred if the liability was accreted
from the time the obligation was incurred through December 31, 2012. During 2013, the Utility
commissioned a study of the costs associated with abandoning the BRU field and as a result of
the findings of that study, adjusted the ARO liability and accretion as of December 2013. On
April 22, 2016, the Utility purchased 70% of CPAI’s one-third interest in the BRU. At that time
a revised estimate was made of the life of the gas field. The Utility’s obligation for an ARO was
adjusted for the increased liability and changes in estimated life and discount rate. As of
December 31, 2016, the Utility entered into an agreement with the State of Alaska Department
of Natural Resources (DNR) to establish an ARO investment fund to meet its obligations for
dismantling, removing and restoring the land and property to a condition acceptable to the
commissioner of the DNR in accordance with the terms and conditions of assigned leases and
applicable statutes and regulations.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

A schedule of changes in the ARO balance for the years ending December 31, 2018 and 2017 is
as follows:

2018 2017

Asset to be retired: Gas Field
Beginning carrying value S 15,823,732 15,135,086
Current year changes to the liability balance - -
Current year settled - -
Current year accretion 719,980 688,646
Change in assumption or cash flow revisions - -
Ending ARO S 16,543,712 15,823,732

Discount or Premium on Revenue Bonds Payable

The discount or premium on revenue bonds payable is amortized over the life of the related
bond issues using the effective interest method.

Compensated Absences
The Utility records employee leave, which includes sick leave, when earned.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

The Utility enters into transactions that result in the consumption or acquisition of resources
in one period that are applicable to future periods. These consumptions and acquisitions of
resources are reported in the statements of net position as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources, respectively. The Utility records deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
and other postemployment benefits, and deferred loss on refunding of bonds, and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and other postemployment benefits, contributions in
aid of construction and certain items related to the operation of the BRU.

Net Position

The Utility’s net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted or
unrestricted. The Utility’s restricted net position represents assets restricted for payment of
debt service, or restricted for operations, in accordance with covenants of the related revenue
bond indentures. It is the Utility’s policy to evaluate whether to use restricted or unrestricted
resources to make certain payments, on a case by case basis, when both restricted and
unrestricted assets are available for the same purposes.

Intragovernmental Charges

Certain functions of the Municipality of a general and administrative nature are centralized and
the related costs are allocated to the various funds of the Municipality, including the Utility.
Such costs allocated to the Utility totaled $4,214,954 and $3,580,714 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, including general liability and workers
compensation of $660,414 for 2018 and $504,452 for 2017.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Utility Revenue Distribution/Municipal Service Assessment (MUSA)

Prior to 2006, the RCA restricted the Utility from making a revenue distribution or paying the
gross receipts portion of the MUSA. That restriction was removed in December 2005. The
Utility made an annual revenue distribution to the Municipality for the years 2006 - 2015, which
by Ordinance, was up to a maximum of 5% of the Utility’s gross revenues, excluding restricted
revenues. During those years the Utility also included the gross receipts portion, considered
supplemental MUSA, at 1.25% times the actual gross operating revenues in its payment of MUSA.
During 2017, the Municipality eliminated the gross receipts portion of the MUSA and revised the
methodology for calculating the Utility Revenue Distribution.

Beginning January 1, 2016, the Utility is restricted by the RCA from making revenue
distributions to the Municipality, with the exception of MUSA. The Utility’s distribution for MUSA
in 2018 and 2017 was $9,565,771 and $9,331,662, respectively.

Environmental

The Utility has adopted an aggressive policy designed to identify and mitigate the potential
effects of past, present, and future operational activities that may result in environmental
impact. It is the Utility’s accounting policy to record a liability when the likelihood of
responsibility for an environmental impact is probable and the cost of mitigating the impact is
estimable within reasonable limits. Such costs are capitalized if they result in an extension of
the assets’ life, increase the capacity, or improve the safety or efficiency of property owned
by the Utility; or mitigate or prevent environmental contamination that has yet to occur and
that otherwise may result from future operations or activities. At December 31, 2016, the
Utility recorded a liability of $760,000 for environmental cleanup responsibilities related to a
capital project at Hank Nikkels Power Plant 1. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the liability
balance was $0.00 and $511,787, respectively. See Note 8(a). There were no other
environmental issues that met the Utility’s accounting policy and accordingly, no provision has
been made in the accompanying financial statements for any potential liability.

Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/from PERS’ fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. Details regarding
the net pension liability are discussed in Note 7.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(s) Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability

(t)

For purposes of measuring net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to OPEB and OPEB expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of PERS and additions
to/from PERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value. Details regarding the net OPEB liability are discussed in
Note 7.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts previously reported may have been reclassified to conform to current
presentations. The reclassifications had no effect on the previously reported change in net
position.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, the Utility participates in the PERS plans. In
2018, the Utility adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which, among other accounting
and reporting criteria, requires the Utility to recognize its proportional share of the net OPEB
liability (and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources), as of the beginning of the
Utility’s fiscal year. The prior period presented in the financial statements was not restated as
it was not practical to do. As a result of the implementation of this statement, the Utility has
recorded an opening balance adjustment to reflect opening balance OPEB liabilities and related
accounts and to decrease opening net position as follows:

Opening net

position, as
Opening net Change in restated
position as accounting after change
originally principle in accounting
presented adjustment principle
S 269,457,246 S (2,525,319) S 266,931,927
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cash and Investments

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Municipality had cash and investments in a general cash pool
(Central Treasury). The Utility also carries certain balances for the Utility, beginning in 2017, in
separate accounts for Interim Rate Increase Escrow and Asset Retirement Obligations. Fixed income
maturities for these accounts are as follows:

December 31, 2018

Fixed Income Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value* Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Utility share of petty cash S 1,000
Municipal Central Treasury - Unrestricted
Cash & Money Market Funds $ 21,308,292 5 - 5 - S - S -
Repurchase Agreements 22,398,105 22,398,105 - - -
U.S. Treasuries 148,917,831 80,567,294 55,484,846 12,414,634 451,057
U.S. Agencies 20,351,315 10,114 10,552,227 5,456,530 4,332,444
Asset-Backed Securities* 25,781,328 394,826 17,416,412 2,667,894 5,302,196
Corporate Securities 136,435,070 40,724,193 55,624,808 38,378,958 1,707,111

Payables

$ 375,191,941 5 144,094,532 $ 139,078,293 § 58,918,016 511,792,808

Municipal Central Treasury - Restricted

Cash & Money Market Funds S 22,072,465 S - S S S
Repurchase Agreements 3,164,717 3,164,717 - - -
U.S. Treasuries 34,914,468 11,383,671 21,712,952 1,754,113 63,732
U.S. Agencies 21,222,562 1,429 19,838,011 770,974 612,148
Asset-Backed Securities** 3,642,746 55,787 2,460,834 376,957 749,168
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 19,277,450 5,754,082 7,859,449 5,422,715 241,204
Payables

$ 104,294,408 S 20,359,686 $ 51,871,246 S B,324,759 $ 1,666,252

Utility share of Municipal central treasury $117,878,524

* Market value plus accrued income.
» |ncludes asset-backed securities, residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities, and collateralized debt obtigations.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

December 31, 2018, continued:

Fixed Income Investment Maturities (in years), continued

Fair Less More

Investment Type Value* Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Asset Retirement Obligation Fund

Cash & Money Market Funds S 85,668 S - S - $ . S -

U.S. Fixed Income 9,111,756 606,183 2,345,204 2,642,503 3,517,866

U.s. TIPS 1,360,928 - 1,360,928 . .

U.S. Large-Cap Equity 1,837,725 - -

U.S. Mid-Cap Equity 114,581

U.S. Small-Cap Equity 108,832

International Developed Equity 524,196

Emerging Markets Equity 129,663

Real Estate : 642,504

S 13,915,853 $ 606,183 $ 3,706,132 S 2,642,503 $ 3,517,866

Total Utility $ 131,795,377

December 31, 2017

Fixed Income Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value* Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Utility share of petty cash $ 1,000
Interim Rate Increase Escrow Money Market 27,250,254
Municipal Central Treasury - Restricted
Cash & Money Market Funds 5 32,165,339 5 5 S S $
Commercial Paper 99,654 99,654 - -
U.S. Treasuries 22,840,772 15,819,079 5,646,873 1,374,820 -
U.S. Agencies 21,909,848 4,118,857 16,986,967 453,090 350,934
Asset-Backed Securities** 2,253,879 - 1,445,012 289,464 519,313
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 7,920,460 932,735 3,878,616 2,831,105 278,004
S 87,189,952 $ 20,970,325 S 27,957,468 S 4,948,479 S 1,148,251
Municipal Central Treasury - Unrestricted
Cash & Money Market Funds § 37,673,284 S - S - S - S -
Commercial Paper 1,535,603 1,535,603 - . -
U.S. Treasuries 121,706,339 13,506,923 87,014,400 21,185,016 .
U.S. Agencies 13,180,799 550,253 241,092 6,981,798 5,407,656
Asset-Backed Securities** 34,730,718 - 22,268,024 4,460,439 8,002,255
Corporate Securities 122,048,793 14,372,805 59,766,782 43,625,370 4,283,836

$ 330,875,536 29,965,584 $ 169,290,298 S 76,252,623 $17,693,747

[

$ 418,065,488 50,935,909 $197,247,766 $ 81,201,102 $18,841,998

Utility share of municipal central treasury $100,968,384

* Market value plus accrued income.
** |ncludes asset-backed securities, residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities, and collateralized debt obligations.
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Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

December 31, 2017, continued

Fixed Income Investment Maturities (in years), continued

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value* Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Cash & Money Market Funds S 456,333 $ S - S . $ -
U.S. Fixed Income 8,220,807 2,352,657 3,622,444 2,245,706
U.s. TIPS 942,226 942,226 - -
U.S. Large-Cap Equity 1,751,027 -
U.S. Mid-Cap Equity 265,692
U.S. Small-Cap Equity 261,154
Intemational Developed Equity 657,596
Emerging Markets Equity 133,715
Real Estate 510,327 - - -
S 13,198,877  § S 3,294,883 $ 3,622,444  § 2,245,706
Total Utility $ 141,418,515
Reported in the Statement of Net Position:
2018 2017
Restricted assets:
Customer deposits ) 1,225,452 1,186,226
Interim rate escrow investment - 27,250,254
Debt service investment 2,058,443 2,098,515
Revenue bond reserve investments 23,718,574 23,335,229
Revenue bond operations and maintenance investment 15,206,000 14,235,000
Future natural gas purchases investment 5,732,181 3,811,326
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases investment 8,032,509 23,711,907
Asset retirement obligation sinking fund investment 13,915,853 13,198,877
Total restricted assets S 69,889,012 108,827,334
Unrestricted equity in general cash pool,
including petty cash 61,906,365 32,591,181

Total Utility cash and investments

(a) Municipal Central Treasury

The Municipality manages its Central Treasury in four portfolios; one internally managed portfolio
and three externally managed duration portfolios based on liability duration and cash needs:

working capital, contingency reserve

The Municipality maintains a comprehensive policy over cash and investments that is designed to
mitigate risks while maximizing investment return and providing for operating liquidity. Pursuant
6.50.030, the Municipality requires investments to meet

to Anchorage Municipal Code (AMC)

S 131,795,377 141,418,515

and strategic reserve.

specific rating and issuer requirements.

Both externally and internally managed investments are subject to the primary investment
in priority order as follows: safety of principal, liquidity,
return on investment and duration matching. Consistent with these objectives, AMC 6.50.030

objectives outlined in AMC 6.50.030,

authorizes investments that meet the following rating and issuer requirements:
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Obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.5. agencies or U.S. government
sponsored corporations and agencies.

Corporate debt securities that are guaranteed by the U.S. government or the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) as to principal and interest.

Taxable and tax-exempt municipal securities having a long-term rating of at least A- by a
nationally recognized rating agency or taxable or tax-exempt municipal securities having a
short-term rating of at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s, P-1 by Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch.

Debt securities issued and guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development (IBRD) and rated AAA by a nationally recognized rating agency.

Commercial paper, excluding asset-backed commercial paper, rated at least A-1 by Standard
& Poor’s, P-1 by Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch.

Bank debt obligations, including unsecured certificates of deposit, notes, time deposits, and
bankers’ acceptances (with maturities of not more than 365 days), and deposits with any
bank, the short-term obligations of which are rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s, P-1 by
Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch and which is either:

a) Incorporated under the laws of the United States of America, or any state thereof,
and subject to supervision and examination by federal or state banking authorities;
or

b) lIssued through a foreign bank with a branch or agency licensed under the laws of the
United States of America, or any state thereof, or under the laws of a country with
a Standard & Poor’s sovereign rating of AAA, or a Moody’s sovereign rating for bank
deposits of Aaa, or a Fitch national rating of AAA, and subject to supervision and
examination by federal or state banking authorities.

Repurchase agreements secured by obligations of the U.S. government, U.S. agencies, or U.S.
government-sponsored corporations and agencies.

Dollar denominated corporate debt instruments rated BBB- or better (investment grade) by
Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Dollar denominated corporate debt instruments rated lower than BBB- (non-investment grade)
by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency,
including emerging markets.

Dollar denominated debt instruments of foreign governments rated BBB- or better (investment
grade) by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Asset Backed Securities (ABS), excluding commercial paper, collateralized by: credit cards,

automobile loans, leases and other receivables which must have a credit rating of AA- or
above by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.
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Mortgage Backed Securities, including generic mortgage-backed pass-through securities issued
by Ginnie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Fannie Mae, as well as non-agency mortgage-backed
securities, Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMOs), or Commercial Mortgage-Backed

Securities (CMBS), which must have a credit rating of AA- or better by Standard & Poor’s or
the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Debt issued by the Tennessee Valley Authority

Money Market Mutual Funds rated Am or better by Standard & Poor’s, or the equivalent by
another nationally recognized rating agency, as long as they consist of allowable securities as
outlined above.

The Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP).

Mutual Funds consisting of allowable securities as outlined above.

Interfund Loans from a Municipal Cash Pool to a Municipal Fund.

In addition to providing a list of authorized investments, AMC 06.50.030 specifically prohibits
investment in the following:

Structured Investment Vehicles.

Asset Backed Commercial Paper.

Short Sales.

Securities not denominated in U.S. Dollars.
Commodities.

Real Estate Investments.

Derivatives, except “to be announced” forward mortgage-backed securities (TBAs) and
derivatives for which payment is guaranteed by the U.S. government or an agency thereof.
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The Investment Management Agreement (IMA) for each external manager and the policy and
procedures (P&P) applicable to the internally managed investments provide additional guidelines for
each portfolio’s investment mandate. The IMA and P&P limit the concentration of investments for the
working capital portfolio at the time new investments are purchased as follows for 2018:
Working Capital
Portfolio

Holding % at
December 31,

Investment Type Concentration Limit 2018

U.S. Government Securities* 50% to 100% of investment portfolio 53%

Repurchase Agreements 0% to 50% of investment portfolio 13%

Certificates of Deposit 0% to 25% ofinvestment portfolio 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Commercial Paper 0% to 25% ofinvestment portfolio 0%
Maximum 5% perissuer

Bankers Acceptances 0% to 25% ofinvestment portfolio 0%
Maximum 5% perissuer

Corporate Fixed Income** 0% to 25% ofinvestment portfolio 18%
Maximum 5% perissuer

Taxable & tax-exempt municipal debt securities 0% to 15% of investment portfolio 0%
Maximum 5% perissuer

Dollar denominated debt of foreign governments and the 0% to 10% ofinvestment portfolio 0%

International Bank for Reconstruction and Dewelopment Maximum 5% perissuer

(IBRD)

Money Market Mutual Funds*** 16%

0% to 25% of investment portfolio
100%

*Includes debt obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.S. agencies or U.S. government-sponsered corporations.
"*The maximum exposure to Corporate floating and variable rate debt securities in the Working Capital Portfolio is 10 percent.
Corporate Fixed Income Debt Securities must have a final maturity within one (1) year of purchase, and Corporate Floating Rate or
Variable Rate Debt Securitites must have a final maturity witin two (2) years of purchase

***The Working Capital portfolio may not be invested in AMLIP,
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The IMA and P&P limit the concentration of investments for the internally managed portfolio at the
time new investments are purchased as follows for 2018:

Internally
Managed
Holding % at
December 31,
Investment Type Concentration Limit 2018
U.S. Government Securities* 50% to 100% of investment portfolio 71%
Repurchase Agreements 0% to 50% of investment portfolio 0%
Certificates of Deposit 0% to 50% of investment porifolio 0%
Bankers Acceptances 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0%
Maximum 5% perissuer
Commercial Paper 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0%
Maximum 5% perissuer
Corporate Fixed Income 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0%
Maximum 5% perissuer
Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP) 0% to 25% of investment portfolio
Money Market Mutual Funds** 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 29%
Dollar Denominated Fixed Income Securities, other than 0% to 15% of investment portfolio 0%
those listed herein, rated by at least one nationally Maximum 5% perissuer
recognized rating agency
100%

*Includes debt obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.S. agencies or U.S. government-sponsered corporations.
**The Internally Managed Portfolio contained an excess of cash equivalents at December 31, 2018 in anticipation of planned spending
w ithin a w eek, The portfolio w as back in compliance the first w eek of 2019

The IMA and P&P limit the concentration of investments for the working capital portfolio and the internally
managed portfolio at the time new investments are purchased as follows for 2017:

Working Capital
Portfolio Managed

Holding % at Holding % at

December 31, December 31,

Internally

Investment Type Concentration Limit 2017 2017
U.S. Government Securities* 50% to 100% of investment portfolio 28% 55%
Repurchase Agreements 0% to 50% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Certificates of Deposit 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer
Bankers Acceptances 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Maximum 5% perissuer
Commercial Paper 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 2% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer
Corporate Fixed Income** 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 1% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer
Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP)*** 0% t0 25% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Money Market Mutual Funds**** 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 59% 45%
Dollar Denominated Fixed Income Securities, other than 0% to 15% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
those listed herein, rated by at least one nationally Maximum 5% perissuer
recognized rating agency
100% 100%

“Includes debt obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.S. agencies or US, government-sponsered corporations.
**The meximum exposure to Corporate fioating and variable rate debt securities in the Working Capital Portfolio is 10 percent.

The Working Capital portfolio may not be invested in AMLIP.

***The Working Capital and nternally Managed Portfolio contained an excess of cash equivalents at December 31, 2017 in anticipation of planned
spending w ithin a w eek. The portfolios were back in compliance the first w eek of 2018.
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(b) Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund

Funds set aside to pay for dismantling, removing, and restoring assets of the Beluga River Unit
gas field were transferred from the MOA Central Treasury to a separate investment portfolio in
2017, per assembly ordinance.

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund is managed to maximize capital appreciation
with a long-term rate of return. The Fund is authorized to invest in the following assets:

e Domestic equities and International equities, including real estate investment trusts.
e Investment grade dollar-denominated fixed income securities.
e Cash and money market instruments.

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund limits the concentration of its investments as
follows:

December 31, 2018

Lower Upper Investment Holding %
Investment Type Limit Limit Target _at December 31, 2018
Domestic Equities:
Large Cap 5% 20% 13% 13%
Mid Cap 0% 5% 1% 1%
Small Cap 0% 5% 1% 1%
International Equities:
Deweloped 0% 10% 4% 4%
Emerging Markets 0% 5% 1% 1%
Real Estate:
Real Estate Funds 1% 10% 5% 4%
Fixed Income:
Domestic Fixed Income 55% 75% 65% 65%
TIPS 5% 15% 10% 10%
Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash Equivalents 0% 15% 0% 1%
100%
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December 31, 2017

Lower Upper Investment Holding
Investment Type Limit Limit Target % at December 31,
Domestic Equities:
Large Cap 5% 20% 13% 13%
Mid Cap 0% 5% 1% 2%
Small Cap 0% 5% 1% 2%
International Equities:
Deweloped 0% 10% 4% 5%
Emerging Markets 0% 5% 1% 1%
Real Estate:
Real Estate Funds 0% 10% 5% 4%
Fixed Income:
Domestic Fixed Income 55% 75% 65% 62%
TIPS 5% 15% 10% 7%
Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash Equivalents 0% 15% 0% 4%

100%
(c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The externally managed portfolios of the Municipal Central Treasury utilize the
duration method to measure exposure to interest rate risk.

Duration is a measure of an investment’s sensitivity to interest rate changes, and represents the
sensitivity of an investment’s market price to a one percent change in interest rates. The
effective duration of an investment is determined by its expected future cash flows, factoring
in uncertainties introduced through options, prepayments, and variable rates. The effective
duration of a pool is the average fair value weighted effective duration of each security in the
pool.

AMC 6.50.030 requires the Working Capital Portfolio have a duration of zero to 270 days. At
December 31, 2018, the Working Capital Portfolio had a duration of 1.37 years, or approximately
500 days, and was not within the targeted duration. At December 31, 2017, the Working Capital
Portfolio had a duration of 0.14 years, or approximately 51 days. AMC 6.50.030 also requires that
the Contingency Reserve Portfolio have an average duration within half a year of its benchmark.
At December 31, 2018, the Contingency Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 1.83 years as
compared to its benchmark, Barclays 1-3 Year Government Index, which had a duration of 1.90
years. At December 31, 2017, the Contingency Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 1.94 years as
compared to its benchmark, Barclays 1-3 Year Government Index, which had a duration of 1.91
years. AMC 6.50.030 requires the Strategic Reserve Portfolio have a maximum duration no
greater than one year in excess of its benchmark. At December 31, 2018, the Strategic Reserve
Portfolio had a duration of 3.12 years as compared to its benchmark, Barclays Intermediate
Government/Corporate Index, which had a duration of 2.91 years. At December 31, 2017, the
Strategic Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 3.70 years as compared to its benchmark, Barclays
Intermediate Government/Corporate Index, which had a duration of 3.73 years.
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The effective duration of the externally managed portfolio of the Municipal Central Treasury
working capital portfolio at December 31, 2018, was 1.37 years, which is not within the targeted
duration of +/-.25 years of the Merrill Lynch 90-day Treasury Bill Index, as required per Alaska
Permanent Capital Management Investment Manager Agreement. The effective duration of the
contingency reserve and strategic reserve portfolios at December 31, 2018, were 1.83 years, and
3.12 years, respectively, which are within the required durations per the policy.

The effective durations of the externally managed portfolios of the Municipal Central Treasury
(working capital, contingency reserve and strategic reserve) at December 31, 2017, were 0.14
years, 1.94 years, and 3.70 years, respectively, which are within the required durations per the
policy

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund does not have Investment Policies addressing
interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. For fixed income securities, this risk is generally expressed as a credit rating.

At December 31, 2018, the Municipal Central Treasury’s investment in marketable debt
securities, excluding U.S. Treasury and Agency securities, totaled $185,136,594. The distribution
of ratings on these securities was as follows:

Moody's S&P

Aaa 13% AAA 11%
Aa 11% AA 6%
A 22% A 25%
Baa 26% BBB 30%
Ba or Lower 24% BB or Lower 22%
Not Rated 4% Not Rated 6%

100% 100%

At December 31, 2017, the Municipal Central Treasury’s investment in marketable debt
securities, excluding U.S. Treasury and Agency securities, totaled $167,959,335. The distribution
of ratings on these securities was as follows:

Moody's S&P

Aaa 17%  AAA 16%
Aa 4% AA 2%
A 21% A 20%
Baa 23% BBB 27%
Ba or Lower 32% BB or Lower 30%
Not Rated 3% Not Rated 5%

100% 100%
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At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund investment
in fixed income securities, including U.S. TIPS, totaled $10,472,684 and $9,163,033,
respectively. The distribution of ratings on these securities was as follows:

2018 2017
Moody's Moody's
Aaa 53% Aaa 75%
(+]
0,
Baa 9% A 14%
Not Rated 23% Bbb 8%

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s
investment in a single issuer. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure when the amount
invested in a single issuer exceeds 5 percent or more of total investments. Investments issued
or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government, as well as mutual funds and other pooled
investments, are exempted from this requirement.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Municipal Central Treasury and the Beluga River Asset
Retirement Obligation Fund, had no investments in any single issuer exceeding 5 percent of total
investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk, in event of the failure of a depository institution, that an entity
will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party.
For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk, in event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, that an entity will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. All collateral consists of obligations issued, or
fully insured or guaranteed as to payment of principal and interest, by the United States of
America, an agency thereof or a United States government sponsored corporation, with market
value not less than the collateralized deposit balances.

AMC 6.50.030 requires that repurchase agreements be secured by obligations of the U.S.
government, U.S. agencies, or U.S. government-sponsored corporations and agencies. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 cash deposits and investments were not exposed to custodial credit
risk.

(¢) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely impact the fair
value of an investment. The Municipality has no specific policy addressing foreign currency risk;
however foreign currency risk is managed through the requirements of AMC 6.50.030 and the
asset allocation policies of each portfolio.
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The Municipal Central Treasury is not exposed to foreign currency risk because AMC 6.50.030
explicitly prohibits the purchase of securities not denominated in U.S. Dollars. At December 31,
2018 and 2017, all debt obligations held in the Municipal Central Treasury were payable in U.S.
Dollars.

Fair Value Measurements

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Municipality had the following cash and investments, valued
as follows:

Asset-backed securities are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable
inputs for similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on
comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Short-term collective investments such as money market funds are valued at amortized cost.
Commercial paper is valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs
for similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable
securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Corporate securities are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs
for similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable
securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Domestic equity funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which
the individual funds traded.

Real estate funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the
individual funds are traded.

International equity funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on
which the individual funds traded.

Repurchase agreements are valued at the daily closing price as reported using the daily price
quoted by the financial institution holding the investment for the Municipality.

U.S Treasuries are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the
individual securities traded.

U.S Agencies are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities.

U.S TIPs are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual
securities traded. ‘
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The Municipality utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Municipality determines fair
value based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in
the principle or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions
in fair value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable
and unobservable inputs, which are categorized in one of the following levels:

« Level 1 Inputs: quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

« Level 2 Inputs: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active or inactive markets; or
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable

« Level 3 Inputs: significant unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities

The Municipality categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The Municipality as a whole has the
following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:

December 31, 2018:
Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices  Significant

in Active Other
Markets for Observable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs
Investment Type: 2018 (Level 1) (Level 2)
Central Treasury - Restricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value
U.S. Treasuries S 34,914,468 S 28,487,275 S 6,427,192
U.S. Agencies 21,222,562 - 21,222,562
Asset-Backed Securities 3,642,746 - 3,642,746
Corporate Securities 19,277,450 - 19,277,450

79,057,226 28,487,275 50,569,950

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost

Money Market Funds 22,072,465
Repurchase Agreements 3,164,717
Total Central Treasury - Restricted S 104,294,408
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December 31, 2018, continued
Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices  Significant

in Active Other
Markets for Observable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs
Investment Type: 2018 (Level 1) (Level 2)
Central Treasury- Unrestricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value
U.S. Treasuries $ 148,917,831 § 103,429,738 § 45,488,093
U.S. Agencies 20,351,315 - 20,351,315
Asset-backed Securities 25,781,328 - 25,781,328
Corporate Securities 136,435,070 - 136,435,070

331,485,544 103,429,738 228,055,806

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost

Money Market Funds 21,308,292
Repurchase Agreements 22,398,105
Total Central Treasury- Unrestricted $ 375,191,941

Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Investments Measured at Fair Value

U.S. Fixed Income S 9,111,756 S - § 9,111,756
U.S. TIPS 1,360,928 1,360,928 :
U.S. Large-Cap Equity 1,837,725 1,837,725
U.S. Mid-Cap Equity 114,581 114,581
U.S. Small-Cap Equity 108,832 108,832
International Developed Equity 524,196 524,196
Emerging Markets Equity 129,663 129,663
Real Estate 642,504 642,504 -
13,830,185 4,718,429 9,111,756

Money Market Funds 85,668

Total Asset Retirement Obligation Fund S 13,915,853
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December 31, 2017
Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices  Significant

in Active Other
Markets for Observable
December 31, Identical Inputs
Investment Type: 2017 Assets (Level 1) (Level 2)
Central Treasury - Restricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value
Commercial Paper S 99,654 S - S 99,654
U.S. Treasuries 22,840,772 22,840,772 -
U.S. Agencies 21,909,848 - 21,909,848
Asset-Backed Securities 2,253,879 - 2,253,879
Corporate Securities 7,920,460 - 7,920,459

) 55,024,613 § 22,840,772 S 32,183,840

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost
Cash & Money Market Funds 32,165,339
Total Central Treasury - Restricted S 87,189,952

Central Treasury - Unrestricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value

Commercial Paper S 1,535,603 S - $ 1,535,603
U.S. Treasuries 121,706,339 121,706,339 -
U.S. Agencies 13,180,799 - 13,180,799
Asset-Backed Securities 34,730,718 - 34,730,718
Corporate Securities 122,048,793 - 122,048,793

S 293,202,252 S 121,706,339 S 171,495,913

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost

Money Market Funds 37,673,284
37,673,284
Total Central Treasury- Unrestricted $ 330,875,536
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December 31, 2017, continued

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices  Significant

in Active Other
Markets for Observable
December 31, Identical Inputs
Investment Type: 2017 Assets (Level 1) (Level 2)
Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Investments Measured at Fair Value
U.S. Fixed Income S 8,220,807 S 3,818,364 S 4,402,44
u.s. TIPS 942,226 942,226 -
U.S. Large-Cap Equity 1,751,027 1,751,027 -
U.S. Mid-Cap Equity 265,692 265,692 -
U.S. Small-Cap Equity 261,154 261,154
International Developed Equity 657,596 657,596
Emerging Markets Equity 133,715 133,715
Real Estate 510,327 510,327

) 12,742,544 S 8,340,101 § 4,402,443

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost
Money Market Funds 456,333
Total Asset Retirement Obligation Fund S 13,198,877

Interim Rate Increase Escrow Money Market
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost
Money Market Funds S 27,250,254
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Capital Assets
A summary of capital assets at December 31, 2018 follows:
January 1, December 31,
2018 Additions Deductions 2018
Electric plant in service S 975,077,993 S 30,377,787 S (7,373,577) $ 998,082,203
Less accumulated depreciation 261,683,609 31,937,280 (10,249,246) 283,371,643
Net electric plant in service 713,394,384 (1,559,493) 2,875,669 714,710,560
Naturalgas production and gathering plant 345,231,780 1,222,997 346,454,777
Less accumulated depletion 194,387,360 7,094,304 201,481,664
Net gas plant in service 150,844,420 (5,871,307) 144,973,113
Net electric and gas plant in service 864,238,804 (7,430,800) 2,875,669 859,683,673
Intangible plant, less accumulated
amortization of $12,767,052 in 2018
and $12,661,781 in 2017 2,610,447 (105,272) 2,505,175
Construction work in progress 22,957,440 23,162,877 (31,218,032) 14,902,285
Total capital assets $ 889,806,691 S 15,732,077 S (28,447,635) $§ 877,091,133

Included in the Construction Work in progress are retirement assets as follows:

S 768,992 §

1,097,142 S

(840,247) S

1,025,887

In accordance with the requirements of FERC, disposals of retirement assets are not placed in service, rather they

are reported as deductions fromaccumulated depreciation.

A summary of capital assets at December 31, 2017 follows:

January 1, December 31,
2017 Additions Deductions 2017
Electric plant in service S 948,075,842 S 28,786,514 S (1,784,363) $ 975,077,993
Less accumulated depreciation 232,593,710 30,819,404 (1,729,505) 261,683,609
Net electric plant in service 715,482,132 (2,032,890) (54,858) 713,394,384
Naturalgas production and gathering plant 345,231,780 345,231,780
Less accumulated depletion 182,975,820 11,418,229 (6,689) 194,387,360
Net gas plant in service 162,255,960 (11,418,229) 6,689 150,844,420
Net electric and gas plant in service 877,738,092 (13,451,119) (48,169) 864,238,804
Intangible plant, less accumulated
amortization of $12,661,781 in 2017
and $12,556,509 in 2016 2,715,719 (105,272) 2,610,447
Construction work in progress 15,783,204 30,071,559 (22,897,323) 22,957,440
Total capital assets S 896,237,015 §$ 16,620,440 S (23,050,764) S 889,806,691
Included in the Construction Work in progress are retirement assets as foliows:
S 185,544 S 648,612 S (65,164) S 768,992

In accordance with the requirements of FERC, disposals of retirement assets are not placed in service, rather they

are reported as deductions fromaccumulated depreciation.
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(5) Long-Term Liabilities
(a) Revenue Bonds Payable

A summary of revenue bonds payable consist of the following at December 31:

2018 2017
Revenue bonds:
2005 Series A, effective interest rate at 4.993858% due 2026 S 12,150,000 17,565,000
2009 Series A, effective interest rate at 5.009% due 2039 15,240,000 15,240,000
2009 Series B, effective interest rate at 5.009% due 2039 taxable 114,760,000 114,760,000
2014 Series A, effective interest rate at 3.81% due 2044 173,355,000 175,805,000

315,505,000 323,370,000
Unamortized discount (446,018) (476,692)
Unamortized premium 17,436,399 18,721,619

S 332,495,381 341,614,927

Debt service requirements to maturity at December 31, 2018 are as follows:
Senior Lien Electric Revenue Bonds

Principal Interest Total
2019 S 7,730,000 § 16,950,747 S 24,680,747
2020 8,075,000 16,603,147 24,678,147
2021 8,410,000 16,268,347 24,678,347
2022 8,760,000 15,917,897 24,677,897
2023 9,200,000 15,479,897 24,679,897
2024 - 2028 52,945,000 69,842,811 122,787,811
2029 - 2033 66,445,000 53,284,957 119,729,957
2034 - 2038 83,515,000 31,911,123 115,426,123
2039 - 2043 59,285,000 9,541,003 68,826,003
2044 11,140,000 445,600 11,585,600
Senior lien revenue bonds payable $ 315,505,000 S 246,245,529 $ 561,750,529

The Utility’s revenue bonds bear interest at effective rates of 3.75% to 6.5% and require the
establishment of reserves over a five-year period at least equal to the maximum annual debt
service on all outstanding senior lien bonds. The senior lien revenue bond covenants further
stipulate that net revenue before depreciation and amortization for each year will be equal to at
least 1.35 times the debt service requirements for that year. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Utility had satisfied the reserve requirements and debt service covenants. The Utility has pledged
future customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay revenue bonds. Proceeds
from the bonds provided financing for construction and other capital improvements. The bonds
are payable solely from customer net revenues and are payable through 2044. The total principal
remaining to be paid on the bonds for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was
$315,505,000 and $323,370,000, respectively. Principal and interest paid for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 were $25,178,097 and $25,179,497, respectively. Total customer
net revenues for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were $59,871,466 and 567,680,056,
respectively.
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Notes Payable

In February 2012, the Assembly authorized the issuance of commercial paper in one or more
series in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed three hundred million dollars
(5300,000,000).

In April 2015, the Utility redeemed all outstanding commercial paper and entered into a short-
term borrowing agreement with Wells Fargo Municipal Capital Strategies, LLC, herein referred
to as the Direct Drawdown Purchase Program (DDPP). This borrowing program continued to
fulfill the purpose of the Commercial Paper program, but at a lower aggregate fee and interest
cost to the Utility over the life of the program. The DDPP was used by the Utility to complete
construction of Generation Plant 2A. At December 31, 2016 the outstanding balance of DDPP
notes payable was $181,000,000. During 2017, $10,900,000 was drawn down for completion of
Generation Plant 2A. On November 30, 2017 the loan term was extended to November 29, 2019.
No further drawdowns are anticipated. The Utility intends to extend the loan under the same
terms until December 31, 2020.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017 the balance was $191,900,000. The notes are reflected as
long-term notes payable on the Utility’s Statement of Net Position, as the principal is not
expected to be paid within one year.

The following is a summary of long-term liability activity as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31, Due within
2018 * Additions Reductions 2018 one year
Revenue bonds payable:
Series 2005A $ 17,565,000 $ - S 5,415,000 $ 12,150,000 $ 1,280,000
Series 2009A 15,240,000 # - 15,240,000 2,560,000
Series 20098 114,760,000 - - 114,760,000 -
Series 2014A 175,805,000 - 2,450,000 173,355,000 3,890,000
Senior electric revenue bonds 323,370,000 - 7,865,000 315,505,000 7,730,000
Unamortized premiums/discounts 18,244,927 - 1,254,546 16,990,381 -
Totalrevenue bonds payable 341,614,927 - 9,119,546 332,495,381 7,730,000
Notes payable 191,900,000 - - 191,900,000 -
Compensated absences payable 2,812,140 1,622,046 1,907,763 2,526,423 2,526,423
Net pension liability 12,270,893 - 909,157 11,361,736 -
Net OPEB Liability 1,839,038 * 489,294 - 2,328,332
Asset retirement obligation 15,823,732 719,980 - 16,543,712

Totallong term liabilities $ 566,260,730 $ 2,831,320 $ 11,936,466 § 557,155,584 $ 10,256,423

* Per implementation of GASB Statement No. 75, the Utility restated beginning balances for net OPEB Liability.
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Balance Balance
January 1, December 31, Due within
2017 Additions Reductions 2017 one year

Revenue bonds payable:
Series 2005A S 22,705,000 $ - S 5,140,000 $ 17,565,000 $ 5,415,000
Series 2009A 15,240,000 15,240,000 -
Series 2009B 114,760,000 114,760,000
Series 2014A 178,185,000 2,380,000 175,805,000 2,450,000

Senior electric revenue bonds 330,890,000 7,520,000 323,370,000 7,865,000
Unamortized premiums/discounts 19,596,890 1,351,963 18,244,927

Total revenue bonds payable 350,486,890 8,871,963 341,614,927 7,865,000
Notes payable 191,900,000 191,900,000
Compensated absences payable 2,974,329 2,178,541 2,340,730 2,812,140 2,812,140
Net pension liability 15,093,423 2,822,530 12,270,893
Asset retirement obligation 15,135,086 688,646 . 15,823,732

Totallong term liabilities $ 383,689,728 $ 194,767,187 § 14,035,223 § 564,421,692 § 10,677,140

" Notes payable reclassified to long termin 2017
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(6) Net Position

Net position is composed of the following at December 31:

2018 2017
Total Plant S 877,091,133 889,806,691
Less: Total revenue bonds payable (332,495,381) (341,614,927)

Contributions in aid of construction (177,823,955)

(180,608,877)

Notes payable (191,900,000) (191,900,000)
Unspent revenue bond proceeds/note proceeds - -
Bond proceeds used for bond reserve fund 24,046,945 23,673,741
Bond proceeds used for bond sale costs 1,337,730 1,449,969
Deferred loss on refunding 61,057 248,700

Net investment in capital assets 200,317,529 201,055,297
Debt service account 2,098,515
Revenue bond reserve investments 23,335,230
Less: Bond proceeds used for bond reserve fund - (23,673,741)
Accrued bond interest payable - (1,688,922)
Restricted for debt service 71,082
Operating reserve -
Restricted for operations 15,206,000 14,235,000
Unrestricted 69,716,192 54,095,867
Total net position S 285,239,721 269,457,246

(7) Retirement Plans

Substantially all regular employees of the Utility are covered by one of the following plans:
(a) IBEW Plans

Defined Benefit Plan

The Utility’s IBEW members participate in a cost-sharing defined benefit plan, the Alaska
Electrical Pension Plan of the Alaska Electrical Pension Fund (IBEW Plan). The Alaska Electrical
Trust Funds (AETF) Board of Trustees administers the IBEW Plan and has the authority to
establish and amend benefit terms and approve changes in employer required contributions.
Each year, AETF issues annual financial reports that can be obtained by writing the plan
administrator, Alaska Electrical Pension Trust, 2600 Denali Street, Suite 200, Anchorage, Alaska,
99503. The Utility had 166 and 176 employees covered by the Plan as of December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively.
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The IBEW Plan provides several levels of retirement benefits, including early retirement, normal
retirement, late retirement, and disability retirement and includes several options for spouse
participation and death benefits. The Utility contributes to the IBEW Plan for its covered
employees according to the terms of its Agreement Covering Terms and Conditions of
Employment (Agreement) with the IBEW Local 1547. The Agreement in effect during January
and February 2017 expired on December 31, 2016. A new agreement was approved subsequent
to year end and is effective from February 28, 2017 to December 31, 2019. The Agreement
automatically renews for a period of one year from its expiration date and for successive periods
of one year each thereafter for so long as there is no proper notification of an intent to negotiate
a successor Agreement.

Employer contributions are determined from hours of work reported by participating employers
and the contractual employer contribution rate in effect. The Utility’s required contribution to
the IBEW Plan for each hour for which compensation is paid to the employee for January 1, 2018
to December 31, 2018 was $7.95, February 28, 2017 to December 31, 2017 was $7.85, and from
January 1, 2016 to February 27, 2017 was $7.75. The Utility’s total employer contributions to
the IBEW Plan for 2018 and 2017 were $3,382,920 and $3,272,545, respectively. The Utility had
$119,769 and $251,784 in required contributions to the IBEW Plan payable to AETF at December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. These amounts are paid during the normal course of business
in the month following each year end. The Utility is not subject to withdrawal penalties, nor are
there any future minimum payments to the IBEW Plan required other than the contribution per
hour compensated as required by the Agreement.

Defined Contribution Plan - Money Purchase Plan

The Agreement requires employer contributions to be made in an amount of 1.9% of each
employee’s gross wages to the Alaska Electrical Workers Money Purchase Plan (Money Purchase
Plan). The Utility’s employer and employee contributions to the Money Purchase Plan during
2018 were $437,345 and 589,841, respectively. The Utility’s employer and employee
contributions to the Money Purchase Plan during 2017 were $499,127 and $98,610, respectively.
One hundred percent (100%) of the Utility’s required contributions to the IBEW plans have been
made through these contributions to the AETF.

(b) State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan (PERS I-1ll)

General Information About the Plan

The Municipality participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS I-l or
the Plan). PERS |-l is a cost-sharing multiple employer plan which covers eligible State and local
government employees, other than teachers. The Plan was established and is administered by
the State of Alaska Department of Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are
established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

The Plan provides for retirement, death and disability, and post-employment health care
benefits. There are three tiers of employees, based on entry date. For all tiers within the
Defined Benefit (DB) plan, full retirement benefits are generally calculated using a formula
comprised of a multiplier times the average monthly salary (AMS) times the number of years of
service. The multiplier is increased at longevity milestone markers for most employees.
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The tiers within the Plan establish differing criteria regarding normal retirement age, early
retirement age, and the criteria for calculation of AMS, COLA adjustments, and Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) benefits.

A complete benefit comparison chart is available at the website noted below.

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and other required supplemental information. That report is available via the
internet at http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/pers. Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial
statements, and other detailed plan information are also available on this website. They may
be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of
Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or by phoning (907)
465-4460.

The PERS I-1il DB Plan was closed to new entrants effective June 30, 2006. New employees hired
after that date participate in the PERS IV Defined Contribution (DC) Plan described later in this
note.

Historical Context and Special Funding Situation

In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed legislation converting the previously existing PERS
plan from an agent-multiple employer plan to a cost-sharing plan with an effective date of July
1, 2008. In connection with this conversion, the State of Alaska passed additional legislation
which statutorily capped the employer contribution rate, established a state funded “on-behalf”
contribution (subject to funding availability), and required that employer contributions be
calculated against all PERS eligible wages, including wages paid to participants of the PERS Tier
IV defined contribution plan described later in this note.

Alaska Statute requires the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan an amount such that, when
combined with the employer contribution, is sufficient to pay the Plan’s past service liability
contribution rate as adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board.

Although current statutes call for the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan, the Alaska
Department of Law determined that the statute does not create a legal obligation to assume the
liabilities of the Plan; rather it establishes a contribution mechanism to provide employer relief
against the rising contribution rates. This relief payment is subject to funding availability, and
therefore not legally mandated. As a result, the State initially determined that the Plan is not
in a special funding situation. Following much discussion with various stakeholders, participant
communities, attorneys, auditors, and the GASB itself, the State has subsequently reversed its
position on this matter, and as of June 30, 2015, the State did record the liability presuming
that the current statute does constitute a special funding situation as the legislation is currently
written. It is important to note that the Alaska Legislature has the power and authority to change
the aforementioned statute through the legislative process, and it is likely that the State will
pursue efforts to do so in a future legislative session. For the current year financial statements,
management has treated AS 39.35.255 as constituting a special funding situation under GASB
Statement No. 68 rules and has recorded all pension related liabilities, deferred inflows and
outflows of resources, and disclosures on this basis.
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Employee Contribution Rates
Regular employees are required to contribute 6.75 percent of their annual covered salary.

Employer and Other Contribution Rates
There are several contribution rates associated with the pension and healthcare contributions
and related liabilities. These amounts are calculated on an annual basis.

Employer Effective Rate

This is the contractual employer pay-in rate. Under current legislation, this rate is statutorily
capped at 22 percent of eligible wages, subject to a wage floor, and other termination events.
This 22 percent rate is calculated on all PERS participating wages, including those wages
attributable to employees in the defined contribution plan. Contributions derived from the
defined contribution employees are referred to as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability (DBUL)
contribution.

Alaska Retirement Management Board (ARM) Adopted Rate

This is the rate formally adopted by the ARM Board. This rate is actuarially determined and used
to calculate annual Plan funding requirements, without regard to the statutory rate cap or the
GASB accounting rate. Prior to July 1, 2015, there were no constraints or restrictions on the
actuarial cost method or other assumptions used in the ARM Board valuation. Effective July 1,
2015, the Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution rates for past
service liabilities using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25 year term which ends in
2039. This will result in lower ARM Board Rates in future years (as demonstrated in the
contribution rate tables below).

On-behalf Contribution Rate

This is the rate paid in by the State as an on-behalf payment under the current statute. The
statute requires the State to contribute, based on funding availability, an on-behalf amount
equal to the difference between the ARM Board Rate and the Employer Effective Rate. In the
financial statements, the on-behalf amounts reflect revenue and expense only during the
measurement period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018, in which the Plan recognizes the payments,
resulting in a significant timing difference between the cash transfers and revenue and expense
recognition. Total on-behalf amounts recognized as of the measurement period are actuarially
calculated.

GASB Rate

This is the rate used to determine the long-term pension and healthcare liability for plan
accounting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as established
by GASB. Certain actuarial methods and assumptions for this rate calculation are mandated by
GASB. Additionally, the GASB Rate disregards all future Medicare Part D payments. For Fiscal
Years 2018 and 2017, the GASB rate uses an 8 percent pension and healthcare discount rate.

The GASB Rate and the ARM Board Adopted Rate differ significantly as a direct result of variances
in the actuarial methods and assumptions used.
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Contribution rates for the years ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2018 were determined in the
June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations, respectively. Municipality contribution
rates for the 2018 and 2017 calendar year were as follows:

Employer ARM Board State
January 1, 2018 to June 30, 2018 Effective Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 17.12% 21.90% 3.01% 29.07%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) 4.88% 3.11% 0.00% 66.85%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 25.01% 3.01% 95.92%
Employer ARM Board State
July 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 Effective Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 16.17% 23.21% 5.58% 32.11%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) 5.83% 4.37% 0.00% 87.90%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 27.58% 5.58% 120.01%
Employer ARM Board State
January 1, 2017 to June 30, 2017 Effective Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 14.96% 20.34% 4.14% 24.49%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) 7.04% 5.80% 0.00% 56.64%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 26.14% 4.14% 81.13%
Employer ARM Board State
July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 Effective Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 17.12% 21.90% 3.01% 29.07%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) 4.88% 3.11% 0.00% 66.85%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 25.01% 3.01% 95.92%

In 2018 and 2017, the Utility’s proportionate share of the Municipality’s share was 3.14 and 3.53
percent, respectively and was credited with the following contributions into the pension plan.

Employer contributions (including DBUL)
Nonemployer contributions (on-behalf)

Total Contributions

Measurement

Period

Utility's Fiscal Year

Measurement
Period

Utility's Fiscal Year

July 1, 2017 to
June 30, 2018

January 1, 2018 to
December 31, 2018

July 1, 2016 to
June 30, 2017

January 1, 2017 to
December 31, 2017

968,982 S 936,339 S 856,632 940,338
225,603 323,645 309,913 273,320
1,194,585 S 1,259,984 S 1,166,545 1,213,658

In addition, employee contributions to the Plan totaled $264,652 and $289,916 during the
Utility’s calendar years 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

The Utility’s portion of the Municipality’s liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions are based on its share of the Municipality’s
contributions to the plan in the current year. Those proportions are 3.14% and 3.53% at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Municipality reported a liability for its proportionate share
of the net pension liability (NPL) that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided
to the Municipality. The amount recognized by the Municipality and the Utility for their
proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total were as follows:

December 31, 2018 2017
Municipality Utility Municipality Utility
Proportionate Share of NPL $ 361,285,220 $§ 11,361,736 S 347,836,470 § 12,270,893
State's proportionate share of NPL
associated with the Municipality S 104,636,568 S 3,290,622 $ 129,589,885 S 4,571,641
Total Pension Liability $ 465,921,788 14,652,358 S 477,426,355 16,842,534

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2018 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 to calculate the net
pension liability as of that date. The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement
date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30,
2017 to calculate the net pension liability as of that date. The Municipality’s proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the Municipality’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
entities, including the State, actuarially determined. At the June 30, 2018 measurement date,
the Utility’s proportion was .2286 percent, which was an increase of .0087 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. At the June 30, 2017 measurement date, the Utility’s
proportion was .2373 percent, which was a decrease of .0327 percent from the prior year.

The Utility recognized pension expense of ($1,504,718) and $573,752 for the year ended
December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, of which $154,073 and $336,953 were
recorded as on-behalf revenue and expense for additional contributions paid by the State.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Utility reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Measurement Period June 30, 2018 Measurement Period June 30, 2017

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - § (285157) § - $  (206,881)
Changes in assumptions . - - .
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments 250,929 - 356,477
Changes in proportion and differences between Ulility contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 412,990 - 130,754 (796,532)

Utility contributions subsequent to the measurement date 491,593 - 636.903 -
Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions $ 1155512 § (285157) § 1124134 § (1.003413)
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At December 31, 2018, the $491,593 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized
as a reduction in the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2019. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Amortization of Deferred
Outflows and Deferred Inflows of

Year Ending December 31, Resources
2019 $ 446,980
2020 137,207
2021 (194,423)
2022 (11,002)
Total Amortization $ 378,762

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2018 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2018. The total pension liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2017. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017
actuarial valuation (latest available) were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2013, resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions
adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board to better reflect expected future
experience. There were no changes to the actuarial assumptions for 2018 and 2017.

Inflation 3.12%
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal- Level Percentage of Payroll
Allocation Methodology Amounts for the June 30, 2018 measurement date were allocated to

employers based on the present value of contributions for FY2020-FY2039, as
determined by projections based on the June 30, 2017 valuation.

Salary Increases For peace officers/firefighters, increases range from 9.66 percent to 4.92
percent, based on senvice. For all others, increases range from 8.55 percent to
4.34 percent, based on age and senvice.

Investment Return / Discount Rate  8.00 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses. This is based on an
average inflation rate of 3.12 percent and reali rate of return of 4.88 percent

Mortality (Pre-termination) Based upon 2010-2013 actual mortality experience, 60% of male and 65% of
female post-termination mortality rates. Deaths are assumed to be
occupational 70% of the time for Peace Officers/Firefighters, 50% of the time
for Others.

Mortality (Post-termination) Based upon the 2010-2013 actual mortality experience. 96% of all rates of the
RP-2000 table, 2000 Base Year projected to 2018 with Projection Scale BB.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class.
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These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of the measurement period June
30, 2018 and 2017 are summarized in the following table (note that the rates shown below
exclude the inflation component):

June 30, 2018

Long-term

Expected Real Target
Asset Class Rate of Return _ Allocation Range
Domestic equity 8.90% 24% +/- 6%
Global ex-U.S. equity 7.85% 22% +/- 4%
Fixed income 1.25% 10% +/- 5%
Opportunistic 4.76% 10% +/- 5%
Real assets 6.20% 17% +/- 8%
Absolute return 4.76% 7% +/- 4%
Private equity 12.08% 9% +/- 5%
Cash equivalents 0.66% 1% +3/-1
June 30, 2017

Long-term

Expected Real Target
Asset Class Rate of Return Allocation Range
Domestic equity 8.83% 26% +/- 6%
Global ex-U.S. equity 7.79% 22% +/- 4%
Intermediate treasuries 1.29% 9% +/- 5%
Opportunistic 4.76% 17% +/- 8%
Real assets 4.94% 7% +/- 4%
Absolute return 4.76% 13% +/- 5%
Private equity 12.02% 5% +/- 2%
Cash equivalents 0.63% 1% +/- 3/-1

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8 percent in 2018 and 2017.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Employer and
State contributions will continue to follow the current funding policy which meets State
statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the Utility’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the Utility’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (7 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9 percent) than the current rate:
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June 30, 2018

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

Proportional Share (7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)
Utility's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 0.022865% $ 15,045,805 '$11,361,736 $8,245,459
June 30, 2017
Current

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
Proportional Share (7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)

Utitity's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 0.23737% $16,118,950 $12,270,893 $9,021,357

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued PERS financial report.

(c) State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Contribution Plan (PERS IV)

Plan Information

The Municipality participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS IV or
(Plan). PERS IV is a Defined Contribution (DC) plan which covers eligible State and local
government employees, other than teachers. The Plan was established and is administered by
the State of Alaska Department of Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are
established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and other required supplemental information. That report is available via the
internet at http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/pers. Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial
statements, and other detailed plan information are also available on this website. They may
be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of
Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811 0203 or by phoning (907) 465
4460.

Plan Participation and Benefit Terms

The Plan is governed by Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. A portion of employee
wages and a matching employer contributions are made to the Plan before tax. These
contributions plus any change in value (interest, gains and losses), and minus any Plan
administrative fees or other charges, are payable to the employee or the employee’s beneficiary
at a future date. The Plan is a participant-directed plan with investment options offered by
providers that are selected by the ARM Board.

Employees first enrolling into PERS after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS IV. PERS IV is a defined
contribution retirement plan that includes a component of defined benefit post-employment
health care.
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Plan Contribution Requirements

The Plan requires both employer and employee contributions. Employees may make additional
contributions into the Plan, subject to limitations. Contribution rates are as follows:

Tier IV

1/1-6/30 7/1-12/31

Employee Contribution 8.00% 8.00%
Employer Contribution

Retirement 5.00% 5.00%

Health Reimbursement Arrangement 3.00% 3.00%

Retiree Medical Plan 1.03% 0.94%

Death & Disability Benefit 0.16% 0.26%

Total Employer Contribution 9.19% 9.20%

(d) State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System OPEB Plans

General Information About the Plans

As part of its participation in the PERS Defined Benefit Plan (Tiers I, Il, Ill), which is a cost-
sharing multiple employer plan, the Utility participates in the Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust
(ARHCT), Retiree Medical Plan (RMP) and Occupational Death and Disability Plan (ODD). The
ARHCT is self-funded and provides major medical coverage to retirees of the Defined Benefit
Plan. Benefits vary by Tier level. The RMP provides major medical coverage to retirees of the
PERS Defined Contribution Plan (Tier V). The ODD provides death benefits for beneficiaries of
plan participants and long-term disability benefits to all active members within PERS. The Plans
are administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Administration. They may be obtained
by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of Retirement and
Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or by phoning (907) 465-4460.

Employer Contribution Rate

The Utility is required to contribute the following percentages of covered payroll into the OPEB
plans: ARHCT, 4.88%, ODD, 0.43%, and RMP, 1.03%. Employees do not contribute. In 2018, the
Utility was credited with the following contributions to the OPEB plans:

Measurement Period Utility's Fiscal Year

July 1, 2017 to January 1, 2018 to

June 30, 2018 December 31, 2018

Employer contributions- ARHCT $ 276,203 $ 303,957
Employer contributions- ODD 7,635 11,425
Employer contributions- RMP 31,005 31,365
Total Contributions $ 314,843 $ 346,747
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OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to OPEB Plans

At December 31, 2018, the Utility reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net OPEB
liabilities (NOL) that reflected a reduction for State OPEB support provided to the Utility. The
Utility reported a net OPEB asset (NOA) for ODD. The amount recognized by the Utility for its
proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total were as follows:

2018
Utility's proportionate share of NOL- ARHCT $ 2,346,143
Utility's proportionate share of NOL- RMP 33,844
Utility's proportionate share of NOA - ODD (51,655)
Utility's Net OPEB liability $ 2,328,332
State’s proportionate share of ARHCT NOL associated with the Ulility 681,062
Total Net OPEB Liabilities $ 3,009,394

The total OPEB liabilities for the June 30, 2018 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 to calculate the net
OPEB liabilities as of that date. The Utility’s proportion of the net OPEB liabilities were based
on a projection of the Utility’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plans relative to
the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. The Utility’s
proportionate share at the June 30, 2018 measurement date increased over the proportionate
share as of the June 30, 2017, as shown below.

Measurement Measurement
Date June 30, Date June 30,
Utility's proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilities: 2017 2018 Change
ARHCT 0.22046% 0.22860% 0.00814%
RMP 0.25969% 0.26596% 0.00627%
OoDD 0.25969% 0.26596% 0.00627%

As a result of its requirement to contribute to the Plans, the Utility recognized net OPEB expense
of ($8,830), which includes $89,409 of on-behalf expense, and on-behalf revenue of $89,409
for actuarially calculated support provided by the State for the AHRCT plan. At December 31,
2018, the Utility reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB plans from the following sources:
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Measurement Period June 30, 2018

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ - $ (267,153)
Changes in assumptions 371,612 -
Net difference between projected and actual eamings on pension plan investments - (503,921)
Changes in proportion and differences between Utility contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 171,440 (72,359)

Utility contributions subsequent to the measurement date 201,633 -
Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB Plans $ 744685 § (843,433)

The $201,633 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in
the net OPEB liability in the year ended December 31, 2019. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Net amortization of Deferred
Outflows and Deferred Inflows

Year Ending December 31, of Resources
2019 S (68,663)
2020 (57,450)
2021 (164,193)
2022 (10,730)
2023 153
Thereafter 501

Total amortization S (300,382)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2018 (Utility calendar year
2018) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward
to the measurement date of June 30, 2018. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,
2017 actuarial valuation (latest available) were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2013, resulting in changes in actuarial
assumptions adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board to better reflect expected

future experience.
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Actuarial cost method Entry age normal; level percentage of payroll

Amortization method Lewel dollar, closed

Inflation 3.12%

Salary Increases Graded by senvice from 8.55 percentto 4.34 percent, for all others.

Allocation methodology Amounts for the June 30, 2018 measurement date were allocated to

employers based on the projected present value of contributions for FY2020-
FY2039. The liability is expected to go to zero at 2039.

Investment Return / Discount Rate  8.00 percent, net of postemployment healthcare plan investment expenses.
This is based on an average inflation rate of 3.12 percent and real rate of return
of 4.88 percent.

Healthcare cost trend rates Pre-65 medical; 8.0 percent grading down to 4.0 percent
Post-65 medical; 5.5 percent grading down to 4.0 percent
Prescripion drug; 9.0 percent grading down to 4.0 percent

Mortality (Pre-termination) Based upon 2010-2013 actual mortality experience, 60% of male and 65% of
female posttermination mortality rates. Deaths are assumed to be
occupational 50% ofthe time for Others.

Mortality (Post-termination) 96% of all rates of the RP-2000 table, 2000 Base Year projected to 2018 with
Projection Scale BB.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of postretirement healthcare plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The best estimates of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table (note that
the rates shown below exclude the inflation component):

Long-term
Expected Real Target

Asset Class Rate of Return Allocation

Domestic equity 8.90% 24%
Global ex-U.S. equity 7.85% 22%
Fixed income 1.24% 10%
Opportunistic 4.76% 10%
Real assets 6.20% 17%
Absolute return 4.76% 7%
Private equity 12.08% 9%
Cash equivalents 0.66% 1%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 8.00% for each plan. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer and State
contributions will continue to follow the current funding policy which meets State statutes.
Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability for each plan.
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Discount Rate Sensitivity
The following presents the Utility’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilities calculated
using the discount rate of 8.00%, as well as what the Utility’s proportionate share of the net

OPEB liabilities would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (7.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (9.00%) than the current rate:

Proportional 1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase

Share (7.00%) Rate (8.00%) (9.00%)

Utility's proportionate share of the NOL- ARHCT ~ 0.22860% $ 4749764 $ 2,346,143 $ 331,417
Utility's proportionate share of the NOL- RMP 0.26596% 101,066 33,844 (18,588)
Utility’s proportionate share of the NOL- ODD 0.26596% (48,506) (51,655) (54,246)

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the Utility’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liabilities as of June
30, 2018, calculated using the healthcare cost trend rates as summarized in the 2018 actuarial
valuation report, as well as what the respective Plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using trend rates that are one-percentage-point lower or one-percentage-point
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates (in thousands):

Proportional Healthcare Cost
Share 1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% Increase
Utility’s proportionate share of the NOL- ARHCT 0.22860% $ 45543 $ 2,346,143 % 5,117,441
Utility's proportionate share of the NOL- RMP 0.26596% (28,774) 33,844 117,646
Utility's proportionate share of the NOL- ODD 0.26596% - (51,655) -

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERS financial report.

State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Contribution OPEB Plan

General Information About the Plans

Defined Contribution Pension Plan participants (PERS Tier IV) participate in the Occupational
Death and Disability Plan (ODD), and the Retiree Medical Plan (RMP). Information on these plans
is included in the comprehensive annual financial report for the PERS Plans noted above. These
plans provide for death, disability, and postemployment healthcare benefits.

Employer Contribution Rates
Employees do not contribute to the Defined Contribution OPEB plans. Employer contribution
rates for the year ended December 31, 2018 were as follows:

Tier IV
1/1-6/30 7/1-12/31

Employer Contribution

Health Reimbursement Arrangement 3.00% 3.00%
Retiree Medical Plan 1.03% 0.94%
Death & Disability Benefit 0.16% 0.26%

Total Employer Contribution 4.19% 4.20%
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Healthcare Reimbursement Arrangement

In addition, PERS defined contribution members also participate in the Health Reimbursement
Arrangement. AS 39.30.370 requires that the employer contribute “an amount equal to three
percent of the employer’s average annual employee compensation of all employees of all
employers in the plan”. Prior to July 1, 2018 a flat rate of approximately $2,084 per year for
full time employees and $1.34 per part time hour worked was paid. For pay periods ending
after July 1, 2018, a flat rate of approximately $2,103 per year for full time employees and
$1.35 per part time hour worked were paid.

The Utility contributed $159,988 and $127,200 to PERS IV for retirement and retiree medical
on behalf of its employees for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The
Utility also contributed $79,922 and $66,221 for Health Reimbursement Arrangement for 2018
and 2017, respectively. Employee contributions to the Plan totaled $256,006 and 203,507 for
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Annual Postemployment Healthcare Cost
In 2018, the Utility contributed $122,740 in Defined Contribution OPEB costs. These amounts
have been recognized as expenses.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Utility, in the normal course of its activities, is involved in various claims and pending litigation.
In the opinion of management and the Municipality’s legal department, the disposition of these
matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Utility’s financial statements.

(a) Environmental

Fuel/Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) Contaminated Sites at Hank Nikkels Power Plant 1 and
Operations/Dispatch Center

During the 1964 earthquake, approximately 250,000-400,000 gallons of diesel fuel spilled on
the ground. Based on numerous environmental investigations, the spill impacted soil and
groundwater at the Hank Nikkels Power Plant 1 and properties west/northwest of the plant.
During the 2006-2007 subsurface investigation, in addition to diesel contamination known from
the 1964 spill, PCBs were detected in the soil. All soil disturbing activities at the site are
governed by the Risk-Based Disposal Plan (RBDP) administered by the Alaska Department of
Environmental Conservation (ADEC) and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

In May 2017 the Utility conducted PCB cleanup activities at the plant and paved the surface of
the cleanup area in accordance with the 2008 RBDP approved by EPA and ADEC. The Utility
recorded a liability for estimated cleanup costs of $760,000 at December 31, 2016. At December
31, 2017 the liability remained at $511,787. All cleanup activities were considered to be
performed and the liability was discharged during 2018.
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In 2009 PCB contaminated soil was discovered near the Operations/Dispatch building during
excavation to install water lines for a fire suppression system. In 2010 and 2015 additional site
investigations were conducted to determine a horizontal and vertical extent of PCB
contamination.  Following the soil investigations the Utility performed monitoring of
groundwater at the site and in the vicinity during 2015 and 2016. Analytical results indicated
no off-site migration of PCBs. The Utility is waiting on EPA’s review of the site data and further
decisions. The cost associated with any further actions cannot be determined at this time.

Petroleum Contaminated Sites and Spill Cleanup

In 2017, ADEC conducted a review of three contaminated sites that have a long history of
monitoring and identified two sites that qualified for cleanup complete status and one site
(Transformer Shop) that could possibly qualify for the Cleanup Complete with Institutional
Controls status if the Utility conducts additional sampling.

In 2018 based on an ADEC request, the Utility conducted a vapor intrusion assessment
associated with the old petroleum contamination in the subsurface near and under the
Transformer Shop. The assessment concluded that there were no petroleum vapors entering
the Transformer Shop from the subsurface. In response to the assessment, ADEC requested to
continue biennial groundwater monitoring at this site and include additional volatile organic
compounds into the monitoring program. The Utility intends to prepare a work plan with
additional testing for the 2020 biennial groundwater monitoring. As a result of the November
30, 2018 earthquake, a few transformers failed and oil was spilled to the ground. The utility
performed an initial cleanup upon discovery of the spills and an additional assessment in the
spring. The Utility does not anticipate material environmental liability associated with these
spills.

Compliance with Air Quality Permits

The Utility owns three turbines that are subject to hourly and annual emissions limits emission
controls for criteria pollutants, NOx and CO. In addition to maintaining continuous emission
monitoring systems (CEMS) on each turbine, the two newly installed turbines requires operation
with post-combustion emission controls. EPA regulations require annual third party emissions
testing to assure accuracy of the CEMS. Newly installed turbines have significant emissions
reductions compared to the existing turbines, however maintaining emissions control
equipment and performing all testing required by EPA will add to the overall environmental
compliance cost. The Utility will oversee environmental compliance and contract qualified
third-party experts to perform necessary services. Environmental permitting and compliance
will continue to require a consultant’s expertise. The cost of compliance cannot be determined
at this time.

Petroleum Production Tax (PPT)

For tax year 2018, the Utility estimated that its PPT liability under AS 43.55.011(e) for non-
royalty gas is zero and its liability under AS 43.44.011(i) for private royalty gas is $4,370.
Monthly installment payments from February 2018 through January 2019 totaled $104,554.
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For tax year 2017, the Utility estimated that its PPT liability under AS 43.55.011(e) for non-
royalty gas is $604,171 and its liability under AS 43.44.011(i) for private royalty gas was $5,209.
Monthly installment payments from February 2017 through January 2018 totaled $609,380.

(c) Petroleum Production Credits

Pursuant to AS 43.55.023, the Utility applies for Alaska oil and gas tax credits from the State
of Alaska Department of Revenue (DOR). The Utility records the receipt of cash from tax credits
as a restricted investment and as a deferred inflow of resources for the benefit of customers.
During 2018 and 2017, the Utility did not apply for tax credits. During 2017, the Utility received
cash payments of $20,294 for calendar year 2015 credits. The amounts received by the Utility
are subject to final resolution of DOR audits, and are not recorded until cash is received.

(d) Contractual Commitments

The Utility has purchase commitments to contractors and suppliers at December 31, 2018 of
approximately $7.8 million. Those commitments are for contracts, materials and services
related to construction of the Utility’s generation and distribution system assets, regulatory
filings and contracted billing services. Construction of plant assets is financed with
contributions in aid of construction and Utility equity, and operating commitments are financed
with Utility revenues.

(9) Regulatory Matters

(a) Beluga River Unit Underlift Settlements

Until April 2016 the Utility owned a one-third interest in annual production of the BRU. Its
field partners at that time - CPAl and Hilcorp Alaska, LLC - each also owned a one-third interest
in BRU production. Every BRU owner has a right to take a portion of annually produced gas
proportionate to its interest.

In 2005 the Utility underlifted (i.e. took less than its interest in BRU’s annual output) and
accepted a monetary settlement from its field partners. These funds were deposited in a
Future Natural Gas Purchases Account (FGP), and the Utility recorded deferred inflows of
resources for future natural gas purchases. The balances of the Future Natural Gas Purchases
Account, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 were $17,934,651 and $17,230,809, respectively.

In 2015 the Utility petitioned the RCA for authorization to apply 2014 underlift settlement
proceeds to reduce its GTP in effect from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. The RCA
approved the Utility’s unopposed proposal in Order U-15-116(2), dated March 10, 2016.

In Aprit 2016 the Utility purchased 70% of CPAI's one-third interest in the BRU. The RCA
approved the Utility’s request in Order U-16-012(14), dated April 21, 2016, to utilize a closing
underlift settlement from CPAI of $13,177,726 towards financing this acquisition. See Note
9(f).
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Regulatory Debits/Credits

The Utility files a COPA rate quarterly with the RCA to recover cost of power expenses not
recovered in base rates. The COPA calculation is based on the projected cost of fuel and
purchased power for the applicable quarter, the projected kilowatt hour sales for the
applicable quarter, and the over- or under- recovered balance in the cost of power clearing
account. The Utility records in the cost of power clearing account an asset with an offsetting
credit to a contra revenue account for under recovered costs or a liability and an offsetting
debit to a contra revenue account for over recovered costs. The Utility under-recovered as of
December 31, 2018 in the amount of $1,904,402 and over-recovered as of December 31, 2017
in the amount of $4,589,934.

Prior to October 24, 2017, the Utility annually set the GTP with its third quarter COPA filings.
(See Note 9 (g) for the new schedule in filing the GTP.) Through the GTP, the Utility recovers
the Gas Fund’s annual revenue requirement associated with the Utility’s ownership interest in
the BRU and any over or under recovery from the prior year. The Utility records in the cost of
Gas Transfer Price Clearing Account an asset and a credit to an expense account for under-
recovered costs or a liability and debit to an expense account for over-recovered costs. The
Utility under-recovered as of December 31, 2018 in the amount of $4,793 and over-recovered
as of December 31, 2017 in the amount of $7,394,724.

Deferred Regulatory Liability for Gas Sales

Revenue from third party sales of natural gas produced at the BRU is excluded from the GTP
calculation. These funds, net of royalties and the ARO surcharge, are recorded in the Utility’s
Future BRU Construction or Natural Gas Purchases account, reported on the statement of net
position as deferred inflows of resources, and referred to for regulatory purposes as the
Deferred Regulatory Liability from Gas Sales (DRLGS) Account. These funds are to be used for
future BRU construction or natural gas purchases. The balances of the DRLGS account, as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, were $8,077,741 and $25,002,529, respectively.

Asset Retirement Obligation Sinking Fund

ARO expenses associated with future abandonment of the BRU are funded through a surcharge
to the Utility’s GTP. This surcharge is deposited into a sinking fund. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, the sinking fund account balances were $13,915,853 and $13,198,877, respectively.

Revenue Requirement Studies

On December 30, 2016 the Utility filed a petition with the RCA, based on a 2015 test year
revenue requirement study, for interim and permanent across-the-board rate increases in
energy and demand charges in order to recover costs associated with its construction of Plant
2A. The Utility requested a 29.49% interim and refundable rate increase, based on RCA
approval of the Utility’s proposed rate stabilization plan (RSP). On February 13, 2017 the RCA
granted the Utility an interim and refundable rate increase of 37.30%, denied approval of the
Utility’s proposed RSP, and suspended the Utility’s request into Docket U-17-008 for further
investigation. A public hearing was hetd on this matter that began on November 16, 2017, and
continued through December 21, 2017. The RCA issued a final order on March 23, 2018 [U-17-
008(13)] approving a 37.32% increase in the revenue requirement.
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In two separate submittals at the Superior Court, Providence Health and Services (PHS)
appealed the decision by the RCA on (1) Order 10 - refund order and (2) Order 13 - final order.
The Superior Court rendered an Order on Order 13 (final order) on May 20, 2019 - reversing and
remanding the RCA Order 13 for further proceedings consistent with the Superior Court’s Order
and the reasons that supported the Order.

Acquisition of CPAI’s Interest in the BRU

In Order U-16-012(14), dated April 21, 2016, the RCA granted a joint petition filed by the Utility
and CEA requesting approval of a purchase and sale agreement for the acquisition of CPAI’s
one-third interest in the BRU. The total purchase price was $152 million, with the Utility
acquiring 70% of that interest for $106.4 million and CEA the remaining 30% for $45.6 million.
The Utility funded its share of the acquisition with DRLGS and Future Natural Gas Purchases
Account funds, cumulative and underlift proceeds owed to it by CPAI. With this purchase the
Utility has a 56.67% interest in the BRU.

BRU Ratemaking and Accounting Treatment - Aggregate BRU Interest

On June 20, 2016, the Utility filed for approval from the RCA for some changes in the
ratemaking and accounting treatment applicable to the Aggregate BRU Interest. Ruling under
Docket U-16-060(12), the RCA granted in part the request on October 24, 2017. The use of rate
base/rate of return (RB/ROR) methodology to calculate the gas fund revenue requirement
beginning in 2019 was approved. The use of a system-wide weighted average cost of capital
(WACC) for calculating the gas fund revenue requirement was approved. The RCA also approved
the inclusion of depletion expense using the units of production methodology for calculating
the gas fund revenue requirement.

Because the GTP is one component of the COPA and Small Facility Power Purchase Rate (SFPPR),
several 2017 tariff advice filings were suspended and were filed under Docket U-16-073. On
October 24, 2017, these were approved and made permanent.

Bradley Lake Transmission

Homer Electric Association, Inc. (HEA) filed a rate case on November 15, 2013 requesting RCA’s
approval of postage stamp rates for Bradley Lake energy wheeled over HEA’s system. The
Utility intervened, arguing in part that the Bradley Lake Agreements govern the obligations of
Bradley Lake participants and that the RCA was statutorily precluded, under AS 42.05.431(c),
from reviewing these wheeling rates. On June 30, 2014, the RCA issued an order establishing
interim rates for wheeling Bradley Lake energy from the Soldotna to Quartz Creek
Substations. The parties appealed to the state superior court, which ruled May 27, 2015 that
the RCA lacks jurisdiction over Bradley Lake wheeling rates. All parties appealed this decision
to the Alaska Supreme Court. The parties engaged in lengthy mediation, and filed reply briefs
with the Alaska Supreme Court. Oral arguments before the Alaska Supreme Court were heard
May 31, 2018. On February 22, 2019, the Supreme Court issued an opinion affirming the
Superior Court’s decision reversing the RCA’s order.
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(i) Potential acquisition of the Utility by CEA

On April 1, 2019, CEA filed a petition at the RCA requesting necessary approvals for acquiring
the Utility from the Municipality and requesting an amendment of Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity (CPCN) No. 8 to reflect the acquired service territory. This filing is
assigned docket U-19-020. CEA has agreed to acquire most of the assets of the Utility from the
Municipality. CEA and the Municipality have agreed to a transaction in which CEA will purchase
most of the Utility’s assets and the generation output of the Utility’s share of the Eklutna
Hydroelectric Project for a term of 35 years.

On April 5, 2019, the Municipality applied for approval from the RCA to amend its CPCN No. 121
to consist solely of wholesale bulk power sales at the Eklutna generation plant. The Municipality
also applied to terminate the restriction on payment of dividends to the Municipality initially
imposed by Order No. U-13-184(22). This filing was assigned docket U-19-021.

On May 8, 2019, the RCA ordered the consolidation of U-19-020 and U-19-021. A scheduled
hearing starts on August 27, 2019 and continuing as necessary through September 17, 2019.
The statutory timeline for issuance of a final order by the RCA in these consolidated dockets is
November 19, 2019.

(j) Petition to Adjust Depreciation Rates

On December 31, 2018, the Utility filed a petition at the RCA for approval of revised
depreciation rates (docket U-18-121). The study was based on the Utility’s electric ptant
balances and continuing property records as of December 31, 2017. The Utility requested that
the depreciation rates be approved for implementation as of the next accounting month
following final approval by the RCA. It is expected that the RCA will issue a final order on the
proposed depreciation rates on or before June 30, 2019. If approved, rates will be effective
July 1, 2019.

(10) Risk Management and Self Insurance

The Municipality is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; illness of and injuries to employees; unemployment;
and natural disasters. The Municipality utilizes three risk management funds to account for and
finance its uninsured risks of loss.

The Municipality provides coverage up to the maximum of $3,000,000 per occurrence for
automobile and general liability claims and for each workers’ compensation claim. No settled claim
exceeded this commercial coverage in 2018, 2017 or 2016.

Unemployment compensation expense is based on actual claims paid by the State of Alaska and
reimbursed by the Municipality.

The Utility participates in the Municipality’s risk management program and makes payments to the
Municipality through inter-governmental charges based on actuarial estimates of the amounts
needed to pay prior and current year claims (See Note 1(0).) The Utility does not include any
portion of the Municipality’s claims payable among its liabilities on the Statements of Net Position.

70



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(11) Other Matters

(a)

(b)

(c)

Eklutna Hydroelectric Project

On October 2, 1997, the ownership of the Eklutna Hydroelectric Project was formally
transferred from the Alaska Power Administration, a unit of the United States Department of
Energy, to the three participating utilities: the Utility, CEA and Matanuska Electric Association
(MEA). The project is jointly owned and operated by the participating utilities and each
contributes their proportionate share for operation, maintenance, and capital improvement
costs, as well as maintenance of the transmission line between Anchorage and the hydroelectric
plant. The Utility has a 53.33% ownership interest in the project and recorded costs of $808,836
and $2,300,574 in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project

The Utility agreed to acquire a portion of the output of the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project
(Project) pursuant to a Power Sales Agreement (Agreement). The Agreement specifies the
Utility acquire 25.9% of the output of the Project.

The Project went on line September 1, 1991. The Utility made payments to the Alaska Energy
Authority (AEA) of $5,028,039 in 2018 for its portion of costs, and received 102,307 megawatt
hours of power from the Project. In 2017 the Utility paid $4,669,706 and received 95,933
megawatt hours. The Utility received a budget surplus refund in the amount of $374,372 for
2018. The Utility’s estimated cost of power from the Project for 2019 is $4,997,622.

AEA issued the Power Revenue Bonds, First and Second Series in September 1989 and August
1990, respectively, for the long term financing of the construction costs of the Project. On
July 1, 2010, AEA issued $28,800,000 principal amount of Power Revenue Bonds, Sixth
Series. The Sixth Series Bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding the Power Revenue
Bonds, Fifth Series Bonds to take advantage of lower interest rates. The total amount of debt
outstanding as of December 31, 2018 is $33,470,000. The pro rata share of the debt service
costs of the Project for which the Utility is responsible, given its 25.9% share of the Project, is
$10,219,881. In the event of payment defaults by other power purchasers, the Utility’s share
could be increased by up to 25%, which would then cause the Utility’s pro rata share of Project
debt service to be a total of $11,982,190. The Utility does not now know of or anticipate any
such defaults.

Southcentral Power Project (SPP)

The Utility entered into a participation agreement with CEA on August 28, 2008, to proceed
with the joint development, construction and operation of SPP. SPP went into service on
January 31, 2013. It has a capacity of 200.3 MW, of which the Utility’s proportionate share is
60.1 MW, or 30%. The Utility has recorded costs of $14,895,085 and $14,639,389 in 2018 and
2017, respectively.
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(12) Subsequent Events

(13)

Sale of the Utility

On April 3, 2018, Anchorage voters approved an amendment to the Anchorage Municipal Charter
authorizing the Municipality to sell the Utility to CEA by Municipal ordinance, to be approved no later
than December 31, 2018. The Anchorage Assembly approved the sale on December 4, 2018. In April
2019, both the Municipality and CEA filed applications to the RCA to amend their CPCNs and to
approve the sale. (See Note 9(i)).

The Municipality and CEA are currently engaged in limited integration planning and due diligence
activities. The Utility continues to operate as usual and the proposed sale has no material effect on
ongoing operations of the Utility.

New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB has passed several new accounting standards with upcoming implementation dates. The
following new accounting standards were implemented by the Utility for 2018 reporting:

e GASB 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than
Pensions. The provisions of this statement address accounting and financial reporting issues for
postemployment benefits other than pensions provided to the employees of state and local
governmental employers. This statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring
liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and
expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB, this statement identifies the methods and
assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit
payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of
employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about
defined benefit OPEB also are addressed. The Utility applied this statement to the State of Alaska
PERS OPEB plans for December 31, 2018 (See Note 2).

o GASB 85 - Omnibus 2017. The objective of this statement is to address practice issues that have
been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB statements. This
statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units,
goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and
OPEB). As of December 31, 2018, the Utility implemented guidance from this statement as it
related to OPEB reporting. We considered the other objectives and were determined to be not
applicable.
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GASB 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.

The primary objective of this statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial
reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which
cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources, resources other than the
proceeds of refunding debt, are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of
extinguishing debt. This statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid
insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased
in substance. This Statement was considered and determined to be not applicable at this time.
The Utility will consider this guidance in future years.

The following standards are required to be implemented in future financial reporting periods:

GASB 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. The provisions of this Statement are required to
be implemented for the 2019 financial reporting period. Due to the Utility’s application of
accounting and reporting requirements for regulated operations, the Utility determined this
standard to be not applicable.

GASB 84 - Fiduciary Activities. The provisions of this Statement are required to be implemented
for the 2019 financial reporting period.

GASB 87 - Leases. The provisions of this Statements are required to be implemented for the 2020
financial reporting period.

GASB 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements. The provisions of this statement are required to be implemented in the 2019
reporting period.

GASB 89 - Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. The
provisions of this statement are required to be implemented in the 2020 reporting period.

GASB 90 - Majority Equity Interests - an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The
provisions of this statement are required to be implemented in the 2019 reporting period.

GASB 91 - Conduit Debt Obligations - The provisions of this statement are required to be
implemented in the 2021 reporting period.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Required Supplementary information
Public Employees Retirement System - Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of the Utility's Information on the Net Pension Liability

Utility's
Proportionate  Plan Fiduciary
Utility's Utility's State of Alaska's Share of the Net Position as
Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Net Pension a Percentage
Measurement of the Net Share of the Share of the Total Utility Utitity's Proportion  Liability as a of the Total
Year Ended Period Ended Pension Net Pension Net Pension Net Pension of the Covered percentage of Pension
December 31, June 30, Liability(1) Liability Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability
2018 2018 0.22865% S 11,361,736 S 3,290,622 ¢ 14,652,358 ° 6,907,073 164.49% 65.19%
2017 2017 0.23737% 12,270,893 4,571,641 16,842,534 6,874,310 178.50% 63.37%
2016 2016 0.27003% 15,093,423 1,901,832 16,995,255 7,069,090 213.51% 59.55%
2015 2015 0.21637% 10,494,008 2,810,753 13,304,761 6,832,003 153.60% 63.96%

(1) The Utility's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability represents Utility's allocated portion of the Municipality’s proportionate share for the

given year.

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

77



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Required Supplementary Information
Public Employees Retirement System - Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of Utility Contributions

Contributions

Utility's Proportion Relative to the

Contributions

Measurement of the Contractually Contractually Contribution asa
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Utility's Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2018 2018 S 936,339 S 936,339 S = S 6,969,518 13.435%
2017 2017 940,338 940,338 - 7,051,257 13.336%
2016 2016 854,217 854,217 - 7,204,870 11.856%
2015 2015 767,929 767,929 6,991,594 10.984%

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary information.
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ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Required Supplementary information
Public Employees Retirement System - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB)
Schedule of the Utility's Information on the Net OPEB Liability-ARHCT

Utility's

Proportionate  Plan Fiduciary

Utility's Utility's State of Alaska's Share of the Net Position as

Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Net OPEB a Percentage

Measurement of the Net Share of the Share of the Total Utility Utility's Liability as a of the Total
Year Ended Period Ended OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Covered Percentage of OPEB
December 31, June 30, Liability(1) Liability Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability
2018 2018 0.22860% S 2,346,143 S 681,062 ¢ 3,027,205 S 6,907,073 33.97% 88.12%

(1) The Utility's proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability represents the Utility's allocated portion of the Municipality's proportionate share for the

given year.

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Required Supplementary Information
Public Employees Retirement System - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB)
Schedule of Utility Contributions - ARHCT

Contributions
Utility's Proportion Relative to the Contributions
Measurement of the Contractually Contractually Contribution Utility's as a
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2018 2018 S 303,957 S 303,957 S = 9 6,969,518 4.361%

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Required Supplementary Information
Public Employees Retirement System - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB)
Schedule of the Utility's Information on the Net OPEB Liability - RMP

Utility's

Proportionate  Plan Fiduciary

Utility's Utility's State of Alaska’s Share of the  Net Position as

Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Net OPEB a Percentage

Measurement of the Net Share of the Share of the Total Utility Utility's Liability as a of the Total
Year Ended Period Ended OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Covered Percentage of OPEB
December 31, June 30, Liability(1) Liability Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability
2018 2018 0.26596% S 33,844 § CI 3 33,844 9 6,907,073 0.49% 88.71%

(1) The Utility's proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability represents the Utility's allocated portion of the Municipality's proportionate share for the

given year.

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Required Supplementary Information
Public Employees Retirement System - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB)
Schedule of Utility Contributions - RMP

Contributions
Utility's Proportion Relative to the Contributions
Measurement of the Contractually Contractually Contribution Utility's asa
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payrotl Covered Payroll
2018 2018 S 31,365 $ 31,365 S = S 6,969,518 0.450%

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Required Supplementary information
Public Employees Retirement System - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB)
Schedule of the Utility's Information on the Net OPEB Liability - ODD

Utility's

Proportionate  Plan Fiduciary

Utility's Utility's State of Alaska's Share of the Net Position as

Proportion Proportionate Proportionate Net OPEB a Percentage

Measurement of the Net Share of the Share of the Total Utility Utility's Liability as a of the Total
Year Ended Period Ended OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Net OPEB Covered Percentage of OPEB

December 31, June 30, Liability (Asset)(1) Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll Payroll Liability (Asset)
2018 2018 0.26596% S (51,655) 3 S (51,655) * 6,907,073 -0.75% 270.62%

(1) The Utility's proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) represents the Utility's allocated portion of the Municipality's proportionate share for the

given year.

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.

83



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Required Supplementary information
Public Employees Retirement System - Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (OPEB)
Schedule of Utility Contributions - ODD

Contributions
Utility's Proportion Relative to the Contributions
Measurement of the Contractually Contractually Contribution Utility's asa
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2018 2018 S 11,425 S 11,425 S = S 6,969,518 0.164%

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

December 31, 2018

(1) Public Employees Retirement System - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 82, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which
contributions to the pension plan are based. Because a portion of the Municipality’s contributions to
the Plan (the DBUL) are based on Defined Contribution Wages, covered payroll reported here includes
all PERS participating wages (both Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution).

Both pension tables are intended to present 10 years of information. Additional years’ information will
be added to the schedules as it becomes available.

Schedule of Utility’s Information on the Net Pension Liability

e This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date. For December 31, 2018, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2018.

There were no changes in benefit terms from the prior measurement period.

There were no changes in assumptions from the prior measurement period.

There were no changes in valuation method from the prior measurement period.

There were no changes in the allocation methodology from the prior measurement period. The
measurement period ended June 30, 2018 allocated the net pension liability based on the present
value of contributions for fiscal year 2019 through 2039, as determined by projections based on the
June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation.

Schedule of Utility Contributions

e This table is based on the Utility’s contributions for each year presented. A portion of these
contributions are included in the plan measurement results, while a portion of the contributions
are reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the December 31, 2018 statement of net
position.

(2) Public Employees Retirement System - Defined Benefit OPEB Plans
in -accordance with GASB Statement No. 85, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which
contributions to the OPEB plan are based. Because a portion of the Utility’s contributions to the Plan
(the DBUL) are based on Defined Contribution Wages, covered payroll reported here includes all PERS
participating wages (both Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution).

The OPEB tables are presented for each of the three PERS OPEB plans; Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust
Plan (ARHCT), Retiree Medical Plan (RMP), and Occupational Death and Disability Plan (ODD).

The OPEB tables are intended to present 10 years of information. Additional year’s information will be
added to the schedules as it becomes available.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information

December 31, 2018

Schedule of Utility’s Information on the Net OPEB Liability

These tables are presented based on the Plan measurement date. For December 31, 2018, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2018.

The measurement period ended June 30, 2018 allocated the net OPEB liability based on the present
value of contributions for fiscal year 2019 through 2039, as determined by projections based on the
June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation.

Schedule of Utility’s Contributions

These tables are based on the Utility’s contributions for each year presented. A portion of these
contributions are included in the plan measurement results, while a portion of the contributions
are reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the December 31, 2018 statement of net
position.

All tables are intended to present 10 years’ information. Additional years’ information will be
added to the schedule as it becomes available.

(3) International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Schedule of Utility Contributions

This table presents the Utility contributions for each of the last ten years based on calendar year
contributions.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 78, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which
contributions to the pension plan are based.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage

Fort Richardson

Anchorage School District

State of Alaska

Providence Alaska Medical
University of Alaska, Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
University of Alaska

Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
Anchorage School District

State of Alaska

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

Anchorage School District

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

94

Revenue (5) Sales (kWh)
11,171,443 117,988,033
5,447,206 20,361,603
3,850,089 23,669,795
3,701,285 21,069,210
3,318,240 23,499,108
3,095,649 27,035,464
2,395,975 17,497,854
2,190,172 16,455,389
2,152,954 16,221,798
1,821,827 15,138,118
2017

Revenue (5)

Sales (kWh)

13,810,920 121,123,845
6,244,068 21,997,754
4,527,732 29,313,454
4,144,490 21,900,552
4,055,188 24,489,039
3,641,951 23,844,604
3,075,322 18,469,251
2,762,581 16,788,893
2,742,328 16,584,283
2,625,088 16,570,118

2016

Revenue (5) Sales (kWh)

12,249,880 121,923,613
5,010,301 25,943,896
4,047,395 30,672,310
3,601,515 25,281,432
3,567,374 22,742,140
3,187,464 25,516,920
2,583,129 18,519,071
2,409,761 17,348,160
2,384,436 17,182,319
2,212,302 16,300,831



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

Anchorage School District

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

Anchorage School District

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
Providence Health System
University of Alaska

Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Anchorage School District
Municipality of Anchorage
State of Alaska
Providence Alaska Medical
Fort Richardson
University of Alaska
Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc

95

Revenue (S)

Sales (kWh)

11,714,725 123,925,931
4,906,357 26,544,546
3,765,947 29,916,508
3,559,141 26,353,330
3,520,203 23,392,075
2,810,763 22,892,004
2,461,696 18,359,501
2,304,264 17,427,455
2,197,364 16,644,299
2,172,315 16,242,233

2014

Revenue (5) Sales (kWh)

11,017,465 125,613,900
4,415,594 24,172,965
3,530,551 29,596,430
3,255,191 25,479,576
3,106,621 21,463,838
2,404,701 19,441,172
2,177,227 17,079,887
1,945,608 15,541,320
1,913,342 15,008,522
1,832,379 15,140,657

2013

Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)
9,226,223 131,043,824
2,897,648 24,777,425
3,824,941 26,282,712
2,803,076 27,544,890
2,629,984 28,699,997
2,588,055 29,910,389
2,072,531 20,064,980
1,783,576 17,591,484
1,589,389 16,216,071
1,571,321 16,211,245



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Fort Richardson
Municipality of Anchorage
Anchorage School District
State of Alaska
Providence Alaska Medical
University of Alaska
Providence Health System
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Fort Richardson
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
Anchorage School District
State of Alaska

University of Alaska
Providence Health System
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Fort Richardson
Municipality of Anchorage
Anchorage School District
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

University of Alaska

Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc
Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

96

Revenue ($)

Sales (kWh)

8,097,877 135,878,731
3,729,428 58,671,211
3,422,563 26,655,434
2,655,271 26,608,898
2,492,450 28,556,399
2,234,908 29,596,617
1,793,961 20,506,774
1,514,000 17,642,498
1,386,848 16,893,051
1,313,019 15,929,544
2011
Revenue (5) Sales (kWh)
9,921,072 135,333,281
5,460,835 74,181,992
3,809,602 27,353,371
3,116,712 29,971,840
3,015,951 26,844,664
2,752,681 26,966,050
2,066,234 20,226,113
1,727,491 17,114,796
1,629,192 16,791,861
1,518,934 15,702,915
2010
Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)
9,991,880 134,772,525
5,695,316 76,074,926
3,744,757 26,775,275
3,066,378 27,288,755
2,871,643 29,775,325
2,764,053 26,965,173
2,042,255 19,973,125
1,655,862 16,844,949
1,529,925 15,062,395
1,428,740 14,679,960



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Fort Richardson
Municipality of Anchorage
Anchorage School District
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

University of Alaska

Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc
Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium
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2009
Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)
9,053,368 132,512,540
4,873,781 70,504,975
3,565,407 27,479,484
3,003,112 28,837,796
2,661,493 29,740,551
2,638,850 27,613,800
1,942,120 20,475,951
1,573,382 17,169,527
1,346,611 14,259,674
1,296,731 14,458,413



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Rate Summary

Permanent Interim Permanent Interim Interim
Effective date 04/20/18 02/15/17 07/16/15 10/24/13 03/01/13
Residential:
Schedule 11
Customer charge ($/month) 13.62 6.56 6.56 6.56 6.56
Demand charge (5/kW) = - F - -
Energy charge (5/kwh) 0.15274 0.14738 0.10734 0.10734 0.08634
Commercial:
Schedule 21 - small commercial
Customer charge ($/month) 30.46 12.88 12.88 12.88 12.88
Demand charge ($/kW) - - - - E
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.11878 0.14161 0.10314 0.10314 0.08296
Schedule 22 - large commercial at secondary voltage
Customer charge {$/month) 92.61 44,15 44,15 44,15 44,15
Demand charge (5/kW) 44,53 23.29 16.96 16.96 13.64
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.00498 0.06630 0.04829 0.04829 0.03884
Schedule 23 - large commercial at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge (5/kW) 43.10 26.18 19.07 19.07 15.34
Energy charge (S/kWh) 0.00488 0.06244 0.04548 0.04548 0.03658
Schedule 25 - replacement energy, AWWU
Customer charge ($/month) - - L E
Demand charge ($/kW) . - . - -
Energy charge (S/kwh) 0.02561 0.03497 0.02547 0.02547 0.02049
Schedule 27 - interruptible power at secondary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 92.61 44.15 44.15 44,15 44.15
Demand charge (5/kW) = = - - 2
Energy charge (S/kWh) 0.37673 0.06630 0.04829 0.04829 0.03884
Schedules 31, 32, 33 - general service seasonal at secondary voltage
Customer charge (S$/month) - winter 92.61 44,15 44.15 44,15 44.15
Demand charge (S/kW) - winter - = - - -
Energy charge (S/kwh) - winter 0.11878 0.14161 0.10314 0.10314 0.08296
Customer charge (S/month) - summer 92.61 44,15 4415 44.15 44.15
Demand charge ($/kW) - summer 44.53 23.29 16.96 16.96 13.64
Energy charge ($/kWh) - summer 0.00498 0.06630 0.04829 0.04829 0.03884
Schedules 34, 35, 36 - general service seasonal at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) - winter 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge (5/kW) - winter B - - - -
Energy charge (3/kWh) - winter 0.09355 0.13502 0.09834 0.09834 0.07910
Customer charge (S/month) - summer 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge (S/kW) - summer 43.10 26.18 19.07 19.07 15.34
Energy charge (5/KWh) - summer 0.00433 0.06244 0.04543 0.04548 0.03658
Area lighting/street lighting:
Schedules 41/60 {S/month) (150 watt luminaire) 37.78 35.15 25.60 25.60 20.59
Schedules 42/61 (5/month) (175 watt luminaire) 39.74 36.97 26.93 26.93 21.66
Schedules 43/62 (S/month) (250 Watt luminaire) 44.81 41.70 30.37 30.37 24.43
Schedules 44/63 (S/month) (400 watt luminaire) 55.69 51.82 37.74 37.74 30.36
Schedules 45/64 (S/month) (1,000 watt tuminaire) 101.61 94.55 68.86 68.86 55.39
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Rate Summary

Permanent Interim Permanent Interim Interim
Effective date 04/20/18 02/15/17 07/16/15 10/24/13 03/01/13

Military:

Schedule 700 - interruptible service - Ft. Richardson - at primary voltage

Customer charge ($/month) - & e : .
Demand charge ($/kW) - E E E :
Energy charge (S/kwWh) 0.07245 0.05368 0.03910 0.03910 0.03145
Schedule 750 - interruptible service - Elmendorf AFB - at primary voltage

Customer charge (5/month) - - - & -
Demand charge (5/kW) - F F § <

Energy charge ($/KWh) 0.08428 0.06244 0.04548 0.04548 0.03658
Schedule 760 - limited all requirements service at primary voltage

Customer charge ($/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge (5/kW) 45.43 17.36 12.64 12.64 10.17
Energy charge (5/kWh) 0.00488 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829
Schedule 770 - partial requirements service at primary voltage

Customer charge (S/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Baseload demand charge (S/KW) 39.66 9.44 6.87 6.87 5.53
Peaking demand charge (5/kW) 39.66 21.42 15.60 15.60 12.55
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.00433 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829
Schedule 780 - seasonal replacement service at primary voltage

Customer charge ($/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Replacement capacity charge(S/kW) 39.66 9.44 6.87 6.87 5.53
Excess demand charge ($/KW) 39.66 21.42 15.60 15.60 12.55
Energy charge (5/KWh) 0.00483 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Base Ratings by Generation Units

As of December 31, 2018

Type Unit no.
Combustion turbine 3
Combustion turbine 4
Combustion turbine 7
Combustion turbine 8
Combustion turbine 9
Combustion turbine 10
Steam turbine 1"

Sub-total
Hydro-turbine (Eklutna) 1
Hydro-turbine (Eklutna) 2

Sub-total
Steam Turbine (SPP) 10
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 11
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 12
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 13

Sub-total

Total

ML&P units

Eklutna (53.3%)

SPP (30%)

Plant 1
Plant 2
Eklutna
SPP

international Standards Organization (ISO)

105

Base rating Nameplate
30F (MW) ISO (MW) capacity (KVA)
32.9 29.3 48,941
33.6 31.1 31,765
81.8 74.4 110,556
85.0 77.3 102,941
48.9 48.5 71,000
48.9 48.5 71,000
28.9 28.9 36,000
360.0 338.0 472,203
22.2 22.2 22,222
22.2 22.2 22,222
44.4 44.4 44,444
57.5 38.1 67,647
47.6 40.2 57,352
47.6 40.2 57,352
47.6 40.2 57,352
200.3 158.7 239,703
604.7 541.1 756,350
360.0 338.0 472,203.0
23.7 23.7 23,688.7
60.1 47.6 71,910.9
443.8 409.3 567,802.6
66.5 60.4 80,706
293.5 277.6 391,497
23.7 23.7 23,689
60.1 47.6 71,911
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B DO Tel: 907-278-8878 3601 C Street, Suite 600
Fax: 907-278-5779 Anchorage, AK 99503

www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Assembly
Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Electric Utility Fund, an enterprise fund of the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska, as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Electric Utility Fund’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated June 30, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Electric Utility
Fund’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Electric
Utility Fund’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Electric Utility Fund’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited tiability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ADo USh LLP

Anchorage, Alaska
June 30, 2019
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended December 31, 2018

[ Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X (none reported)
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

There were no findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in
accordance with the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards.
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MUNICIPAL
LIGHT & POWER

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Financial Statement Finding 2017-001
SAP Software Conversion - Internal Control over Financial Reporting - Material Weakness

Finding

Status

The Electric Utility Fund did not have in place a properly functioning ERP
accounting system. The Electric Utility Fund placed the SAP system into
service on September 11, 2017 (payroll only) and October 1, 2017 (remainder
of the system). Immediately, Management became aware of significant errors
in transaction processing and financial reporting due to defects in the system.
A significant number of the defects were not corrected as of year-end.

Finding resolved in 2018.

1200 East First Avenue ¢ Anchorage, Alaska « 99501-1685
Phone 907.279.7671 ¢ Fax 907263.5862
mlandp.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Assembly
Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Electric Utility Fund, an enterprise
fund of the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Electric Utility’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the Electric Utility Fund, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Electric Utility Fund and do not
purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the Municipality of Anchorage,
Alaska, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the changes in its financial position, or where
applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 15 and the Public Employees Retirement
System and International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Pension schedules on pages 61 through
66 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Electric Utility Fund’s basic financial statements. The statistical section
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 18, 2018, on our consideration of the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Electric
Utility Fund’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Electric Utility Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ADo WA LLf

Anchorage, Alaska
December 18, 2018



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

The Electric Utility Fund (Utility) is a public utility of the Municipality of Anchorage (Municipality or
Anchorage). The following is a discussion and analysis of the Utility’s financial performance, providing an
overview of the financial activities for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. This discussion and
analysis is designed to assist the reader in focusing on the significant financial issues, provide an overview
of the Utility’s financial activities and identify changes in the Utility’s financial position. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the Utility’s financial statements
and accompanying notes, taken as a whole.

Financial Highlights

e The Utility’s total plant decreased $6.4 million or 0.7 % in 2017 while increasing $137.1 million
or 18% in 2016. The decrease in 2017 was due to depreciation exceeding additions.

o Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $269.5 million at December 31, 2017 and by $254.6 million at December 31, 2016.
Of these amounts, $54 million in 2017 and $25.7 million in 2016 were unrestricted and available
to meet the Utility’s ongoing obligations to customers and creditors.

e The Utility’s total net position increased $14.9 million or 5.85% in 2017, compared to an increase
of $5.8 million or 2.33% in 2016. The increase in net position in 2017 was primarily due to a full
year of a new rate structure as well as a full year of operating Generation Plant 2A. The primary
driver of increase in net position in 2016 was the restriction by the Regulatory Commission of
Alaska (RCA), effective January 1, 2016, from making a revenue distribution or paying the gross
receipts portion of the Municipal Service Assessment. Additionally, an increase of $11.8 million
in allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) offset by a $9 million loss on retirement
of obsolete generation assets contributed to the increase.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Utility is a business type activity of the Municipality that provides electrical services to a specific area
of the Municipality. The Utility’s activities are recorded in an enterprise fund of the Municipality.

Required Financial Statements

The Utility’s financial statements offer short and long-term information about the activities of the Utility
and collectively provide an indication of the Utility’s financial health. The basic financial statements are
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.

The basic financial statements, presented on a comparative basis for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, include Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position and Statements of Cash Flows.

The Statements of Net Position present information on all of the Utility’s assets, liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, and provides information about the nature and
amounts of investments in resources and obligations to creditors.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report operating and non-operating
revenues and expenses, and the change in net position of the Utility for the years presented.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

The Statements of Cash Flows, using the direct method of presentation, provide information about the
Utility’s cash receipts and cash payments during the years presented. These statements report cash and
cash-equivalent activities for each fiscal year resulting from operating activities, noncapital financing
activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities. These statements also provide
answers to such questions as, where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change
in cash balance during the reporting period.

The Notes to Financial Statements provide the reader with additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

The Required Supplementary Information presents certain information concerning the progress in funding
the Utility’s obligation to provide pension benefits.

Financial Analysis of the Utility

One of the most important questions asked about the Utility’s finances is whether the Utility, as a whole,
is better or worse off as a result of the year’s activities. The Statements of Net Position and the Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information about the Utility’s activities in ways
that will help answer this question. These two statements report the net position of the Utility and changes
in net position for each of the years presented. You can think of the Utility’s net position, the difference
between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as one way
to, over time, provide a measure of the Utility’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases
or decreases in the Utility’s net position can indicate whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. However, you will need to also consider other non-financial factors such as changes in
economic conditions and customer growth, as well as legislative and regulatory mandates.

The Utility’s total net position increased $14.9 million during 2017 compared to an increase in net position
of $5.8 million during 2016. The following analysis focuses on the Utility’s net position and changes in net
position during the year.

A portion of the Utility’s net position (74.6% and 84.6% as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively)
reflects its investment in capital assets, such as gas and electric production, transmission and distribution
facilities, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. Those capital assets are used to
provide services to customers; consequently those assets are not available for future spending or to be
used to liquidate any outstanding debt.

An additional portion of the Utility’s net position (5.3% and 5.3% as of December 31, 2017 and 2016
respectively) represent resources that are subject to external restriction for debt repayment and future
operations.

The unrestricted portion of the Utility’s net position (20% and 10.1% as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively) are available to be used to meet the Utility’s obligations to creditors and customers.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016
Net Position

December 31,

2017 2016 2015

Plant S 889,806,691 896,237,015 759,179,355
Restricted assets 108,827,334 74,769,608 138,053,331
Current and other assets 90,519,572 96,052,728 71,810,075
Deferred outflows of resources 1,372,834 3,865,199 2,270,000
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 1,090,526,431 1,070,924,550 971,312,761
Current and other liabilities 43,479,005 228,959,153 154,293,090
Non-current liabilities 553,744,552 373,195,399 370,954,247
Deferred inflows of resources 223,845,628 214,203,565 197,292,583
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 821,069,185 816,358,117 722,539,920
Net investment in capital assets 201,055,297 215,402,069 219,019,326
Restricted for debt service 71,082 269,541 802,827
Restricted for operations 14,235,000 13,200,000 12,450,000
Unrestricted 54,095,867 25,694,823 16,500,688
Total net position $ 269,457,246 254,566,433 248,772,841

Notable components of changes in net position are discussed below.
Plant decreased $6.4 million during 2017 compared to an increase of $137.1 million during 2016.

During 2017 construction work in progress increased by $7.2 million, compared to a decrease of. $242.5
million in 2016. Due to the completion of major capital projects in 2016, change in construction work in
progress in 2017 is representative of a more typical year.

During 2016 construction work in progress decreased by $242.5 million, compared to an increase of $73.4
million in 2015. In both years, these changes were primarily due to ongoing construction of Generation
Plant 2A and offset by increases in accumulated depreciation. In 2016, with construction substantially
completed, construction costs were capitalized to plant, resulting in the decrease in construction work in

progress.
Restricted assets increased $34 million during 2017 compared to a decrease of $63.3 million during 2016.

In February 2017, the RCA granted the Utility an interim and refundable rate increase of 37.30%. Aninterim
rate escrow was established for the purpose of restricting the refundable rate increase collected from
customers.

During 2016 the Utility purchased 70% of Conoco Phillips Alaska, Inc. (CPAI)’s one-third interest in the
Beluga River Unit Gas field (BRU) utilizing a closing underlift settlement from CPAI and other restricted
assets towards financing this acquisition. As a result of the transition to new field operators, there was
very little construction in the gas field in 2016. Gas sales of $8.8 million and $1.1 million in investment
earnings contributed to the activity.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Current and other assets decreased $5.5 million during 2017 compared to an increase of $24.2 million
during 2016.

During 2017 the Utility’s equity in general cash pool decreased by $14.7 million primarily due to the
restriction of funds collected from customers pursuant to the refundable rate increase granted by the RCA.
Other receivables increased by $5.8 million. Inventories of materials and supplies increased by $1.8 million
primarily due to an increase in gas stored at Cook Inlet Natural Gas Storage and additional materials
purchased for Plant 2A.

During 2016 the Utility’s equity in general cash pool increased by $24.0 million as a result of operations.
An increase of $3.0 million in utility customers receivables was offset by a decrease of $4.2 million in other
receivables. Inventories of materials and supplies increased by $0.9 million.

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $2.5 million during 2017 and increased $1.6 million in 2016 as
a result of changes in pension related items.

Current and other liabilities decreased $185.4 million during 2017 compared to an increase of $74.7
million during 2016.

During 2017 short-term debt decreased $181 million due to reclassification of notes payable to long-term
debt. Accounts payable from restricted assets decreased $6.1 million because the Utility expended all of
its proceeds from short-term debt completing Generation Plant 2A.

During 2016 short-term debt increased $66.7 million due to an increase in short-term borrowing for
construction of Generation Plant 2A. Accounts payable from current assets increased $8.2 million due to
additional year-end accruals, recognition of a pollution remediation liability, and over-recovery of gas
costs. Accounts payable from restricted assets decreased $2.3 million due to timing differences in
payments to contractors.

Non-current liabilities increased $180.5 million during 2017 compared to an increase of $2.2 million in
2016.

During 2017 the primary driver of the change was the reclassification of $191.9 million in notes payable
from short-term to long-term, offset by a decrease of $2.8 million in the net pension liability and $7.5
million redemption of bonds.

During 2016 the primary driver of the change was a $6.6 million increase in the asset retirement obligation
primarily due to the acquisition of CPAI’s interest in the BRU, an increase in the net pension liability of
$4.6 million, offset by $7.5 million redemption of bonds.

Deferred inflows of resources increased $9.6 million compared to a $16.9 million increase during 2016.

During 2017 contributions in aid of construction increased by $3.3 million due to normal fluctuations in
construction on behalf of customers. Deferred inflow of resources related to pensions changed $0.8 million.
The future gas sales account increased by $0.75 million in investment earnings and redemption of
intercompany debt. Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases account increased by $4.8 million.
There were $16.3 million in gas sales and $0.2 million in investment earnings (see Note 9 (c)).



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

During 2016 most of the changes to deferred inflows of resources were due to the purchase of CPAI’s
interest in the BRU with $92.6 million in contributed capital. Contributions in aid of construction increased
$85.3 million, future gas sales account decreased $17.2 million, and future BRU construction or natural gas
purchases account decreased $48.7 million. There were $8.8 million in gas sales and $1.1 million in
investment earnings (see Note 9 (c)).

Changes in Net Position
Changes in the Utility’s net position can be determined by reviewing the following condensed schedule of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position for the years ended December 2017, 2016, and 2015:

Years ended December 31,

2017 2016 2015
Operating revenues:
Residential sales S 26,125,850 22,260,329 21,972,135
Commercial and industrial sales 122,670,602 106,258,842 102,566,471
Military sales 17,452,871 15,437,345 14,525,488
Sales for resale 23,344,433 15,343,153 21,890,648
Other operating revenues (5,169,343) 7,852,729 3,181,925
Operating revenues 184,424,413 167,152,398 164,136,667
Nonoperating revenues 4,868,051 3,533,982 2,936,315
Total revenues 189,292,464 170,686,380 167,072,982
Expenses:
Production 84,409,875 75,100,243 70,435,716
Transmission 1,160,932 937,495 1,010,600
Distribution 11,609,032 11,787,913 10,868,143
Customer service and sales 4,285,142 4,528,685 4,022,991
Administrative and general 11,044,068 11,373,116 10,689,722
Taxes other than income 1,367,440 1,737,906 986,159
Regulatory debits (credits) (4,028,641) 6,359,769 5,923,949
Depreciation, net of amortization 32,453,517 31,634,639 29,643,901
Operating expenses 142,301,365 143,459,766 133,581,181
Nonoperating expenses 22,768,624 15,457,904 17,904,982
Total expenses 165,069,989 158,917,670 151,486,163
Income before transfers 24,222,475 11,768,710 15,586,819
Transfer to funds:
Municipal Utility Service Assessment (MUSA) 9,331,662) (5,983,574) (7,538,022)
Transfer (to)/from general government - 8,456 (8,579)
Dividend - (7,028,943)
Change in net position 14,890,813 5,793,592 1,011,275
Beginning net position 254,566,433 248,772,841 247,761,566
Ending net position S 269,457,246 254,566,433 248,772,841




MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Revenues by Source:

Operating Revenue 2017 Operating Revenue 2016
(in thousands) Resdls (in thousands)
Other N - $15,343 Other Residential
Residential '
Resale 523,344  ($5,169)-3% /. $26,126 9% $7,853 5% ~$22,260

i T 13%

x;“t:% ' 13% Military 3
g $15,437
6 9% -

~_ Commercial “—__ Commercial
$122,671 $106,258
63% 64%

Operating Revenue 2015

(in thousands)
Resale Other

$21.891 $3,182 2% P Residential

$21,972

Military 13%._
514,525 13%
9% "

= _ Commercial

$102,566
63%

Total revenues increased $18.6 million during 2017 compared to an increase of $3.6 million during 2016.
Kilowatt hours (kWh) sold increased by 147.4 million compared to a decrease of 56.6 million in 2016.
Components of the changes in revenues were:

During 2017 total operating revenues were $184.4 million, an increase of $17.3 million from 2016. The
largest growth was in commercial and industrial sales, which increased $16.4 million. Increases of $3.9
million in residential sales, $2 million in military sales, and $8 million in sales for resale were offset by a
decrease of $13 million in other operating revenues. Other operating revenues decreased $13 million due
to over-recovery of Cost of Power Adjustment (COPA). Non-operating revenues increased by $1.3 million.



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

During 2016 total operating revenues were $167.1 million, an increase of $3.0 million from 2015. Military
sales revenue increased by $0.9 million. Commercial and industrial sales increased by $3.7 million while
sales for resale decreased by $6.5 million during the year. Other operating revenues increased by $4.6
million due to under-recovery of COPA. Non-operating revenues increased by $0.6 million.

Expenses by Category

Total expenses by category increased $6.2 million during 2017 compared to an increase of $7.4 million
during 2016. Components of the changes were:

During 2017 operating expenses decreased $1.1 million from 2016, mainly due to a $9.3 million increase in
production expenses offset by a $10.4 million increase in regulatory credits. Production increased mainly
because more fuel was used by the Utility for increased sales of electricity for resale, and regulatory
credits reflect an over-collection of COPA from customers during the year. Non-operating expenses
increased $7.3 million primarily due to a $12 million decrease in AFUDC, a $0.2 million increase in interest
expense on long-term obligations, and a $0.6 million increase in other interest due to an increase in interest
rates, offset by a $6 million decrease in loss on disposal of property.

MUSA, which represents payments to the municipal government in lieu of property taxes, increased $3.3
million over 2016, due to the increase in plant value when Generation Plant 2A was placed in service in

late 2016.

During 2016 total operating expenses increased $9.9 million from 2015 due to higher production and fuel
costs, and increased depreciation expense with Generation Plant 2A being placed in service in November
2016. Gas operating expenses decreased due to the BRU joint interest ownership transition and new
partners operating more efficiently. Non-operating expenses decreased $2.4 million primarily due to an
$11.8 million increase in AFUDC offset by an $8.9 million loss on disposal of property. Other interest
expense increased $0.78 million due to acquiring more short-term debt.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Expenses By Category 2017* Expenses By Category 2016*
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Nonoperating Nonoperating
$22,768 13%___ $15,458 10%...

Production Depreciation
$84,410 50% $31,635 21%,

Depreciation

$32,454 19% Production

$75,100 49%

Taxes
$1,738
1%
Taxes ‘
$1,367 1%\ Admin. &
D General
Admin. & General $11,373 7%
$11,044 6% / Customer &
Customer &' Distribution @~~~ - Transmission Sales $4,529 Distribution T Transmission
Sales $4,285 3%  $11,609 7% $1,161 1% 3% $11,788 8% $937 1%

Expenses By Category 2015*
{(in thousands)

Nonoperating
$17,905 12%.

Production

Depreciation
570,436 48%

$29,644 20%.

Taxes
$986 1%

General $10,690
7%

Customer& " Distribution _/ “——__ Transmission
Sales $4,023 3% $10,868 8% $1,011 1%

* Expenses by category excluding regulatory debits (credits)
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Expenses By Type 2016*

Expenses By Type 2017*
(in thousands)

(in thousands)

Taxes Interfund _ Purch. Power Taxes Interfund Purch. Power
$1,367 1% ___ $3,076 2% $4,485 3% $1738 1% $2,159 1% $4,556 3%
e Misc Oth . _ Misc Other
F , sI§c7 2tlse T e /$26,092
540,085 : zz"y $37,312 17%
24% ° 25%
h g .

+ | \Depr.
ETDIovee ' Depr. $32,454 Employee*** . Baidias
$32,787 L Bond Interest 19% $31,109 20% . Bond Interest 2i°/
19% $17,631 10% $17,957 12% ?

Expenses By Type 2015*
(in thousands)

Taxes $986 __ Interfund Purch. Power
1% $2,030 1% - $4,678 3%

% By
Sl;ule:nz._ o ’ ! ____Misc Other
22'.y $23,914
(] 16%
Employee*** -

|_Depr.
$29,644
20%

34,150 24% \
>34, : ' Bond Interest
$18,289 13%

*Expenses by type excluding regulatory debits (credits)

**Fuel expense includes purchased natural gas, transportation costs, diesel fuel used, and CINGSA.

**Employee expense includes general liability and workers compensation insurance
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Capital Assets - Plant

The Utility’s investment in capital assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $889.8 million and $896.2
million, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation and depletion.) This included investments in gas
and electric production, transmission and distribution related facilities, as well as general items such as
buildings and vehicles. Plant decreased 0.72% and increased 18.1% over the prior year for 2017 and 2016,
respectively. During 2013 major construction was initiated on Generation Plant 2A which continued during
2015 and 2016. Electric production assets increased while CWIP decreased due to the commissioning of
Plant 2A in November 2016.

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

The Utility’s capital assets as of December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 were as follows:

2017 2016 2015
Capital assets:
Steam production S 242,833,584 242,706,892 100,399,485
Hydraulic production 6,932,007 5,808,598 5,808,598
Other production 309,370,891 302,412,281 193,263,836
Transmission plant 76,759,366 73,953,864 53,003,063
Distribution plant 280,188,291 269,997,456 261,351,063
General plant 43,877,572 42,912,800 42,116,790
Miscellaneous intangible plant 15,116,282 10,283,951 9,439,191
Intangible plant 15,272,228 15,272,228 15,272,228
Gas production 345,231,780 345,231,780 234,240,102
Total capital assets 1,335,582,001 1,308,579,850 914,894,356

Total accumulated depreciation 468,732,750 428,126,039 414,021,153
Total construction work in progress 22,957,440 15,783,204 258,306,152
Net capital assets S 889,806,691 896,237,015 759,179,355

For further information regarding the Utility’s plant assets, see Note 3.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Long Term Debt - Revenue Bonds

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Utility had outstanding long-term debt of $533.5 million and $350.5
million, respectively.

The Utility’s long term-debt as of December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, were as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Revenue bonds:
Series 2005A S 17,565,000 22,705,000 27,780,000
Series 2009A 15,240,000 15,240,000 15,240,000
Series 2009B 114,760,000 114,760,000 114,760,000
Series 2014A 175,805,000 178,185,000 180,575,000
Unamortized discount (476,692) (507,779) (539,252)
Unamortized premium 18,721,619 20,104,669 21,573,563

Total revenue bonds 341,614,927 350,486,890 359,389,311
Notes payable 191,900,000 - -

Total long-term debt S 533,514,927 350,486,890 359,389,311

Notes payable were reclassified from short-term to long-term in 2017. Notes payable increased $10.1
million during the year as Generation Plant 2A construction was concluded.

Bond Rating
At December 31, 2017, the Utility maintains the following underlying credit ratings:

Standard & Poor’s A+
Fitch A+

In October 2016, Fitch reaffirmed the A+ rating of the Utility’s Senior Debt.

In May 2018, Standard & Poor’s reaffirmed the A+ rating of the Utility’s Senior Debt.
In September 2018, Fitch reaffirmed the A+ rating of the Utility’s Senior Debt.
Budgetary Highlights

On November 15, 2016, an ordinance adopting and appropriating funds for the 2017 Municipal Utilities’
Operating and Capital Budgets for the Municipality was approved. The Utility’s operating budget was
$162,286,458 and the capital budget was $42,764,000, which includes $8.5 million for the BRU. The
Utility’s 2017 actual appropriated expenses of $164,629,126 were $2.3 million or 1.4% over the budget.
Capital expenditures for plant improvements totaled $30 million.

On November 21, 2017, an ordinance adopting and appropriating funds for the 2018 Municipal Utilities’
Operating and Capital Budgets for the Municipality was approved. The Utility’s operating budget was
$169,464,144 and the capital budget was $57,105,000, which includes $11 million for the BRU.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Economic Factors and Rates

Anchorage Economic Development Council’s (AEDC) latest 3-year Outlook indicates Anchorage losing jobs
in the first half of 2018; the expected trend is that job losses will continue to moderate, reaching a point
by early 2019 where Anchorage’s economy is no longer in recession. Several private entities, including Cook
Inlet Housing Authority, Alaska Railroad, and Cook Inlet Region, Inc., broke ground on projects throughout
our service territory. These include senior housing, affordable housing and mixed use (housing and retail).
Commercial properties within our service territory include retail properties undergoing redevelopment that
will expand utilization (Midtown Mall buildout of Guitar World, Carrs, and REI). Anchorage continues to see
expanded tourism, which is driving the renovation of several hotel properties (La Quinta Inn & Suites,
Sheraton, and Westmark Anchorage) and the construction of several new hotels (Hyatt Place Hotel and
Courtyard by Marriott) within our service territory. These projects should help to offset average residential
and commercial usage declines. Although some large commercial customers have expressed a desire to
build co-generation or combined heat and power projects, none of these projects have moved beyond a
design phase. It is expected any such project would take eighteen to twenty-four months to construct. The
Utility believes plans to expand the Landfill Gas Project have been shelved based on commercial rate
changes resulting from our recent rate case. JBER has suggested those changes will reverse recent trends
and Fort Richardson will begin to increase electric purchases.

The Anchorage economy remains resilient with a rebound in oil prices, AEDC reported oil prices rose to $76
per barrel, the highest level since 2014. Although oil production was down a bit in 2018, the higher price
per barrel generated more revenue than expected during the 2018 fiscal year. Oil companies continue to
announce North Slope project investment that is expected to generate new production. Hilcorp anticipates
production from their Moose Pad site in late 2018. ConocoPhillips is scheduled to bring its Greater Moose’s
Tooth-1 oil project online in 2018, which the company expects should provide up to 30,000 barrels of new
oil per day. Additionally, leaders of the small independent Brooks Range Petroleum Corp. have said they
expect to produce several thousand barrels per day of oil starting in early 2019 from their greenfield
Mustang oil development. The prospect of additional oil revenue should help to reduce Alaska’s budget
shortfall.

Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, citizens, and creditors with a general overview
of the Utility’s finances and to demonstrate the Utility’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Utility’s Chief
Financial Officer, Mollie C. Morrison, at (907) 263-5205.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statements of Net Position

December 31, 2017 and 2016

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Plant:
Plant in service, at cost
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion

Net plant in service

Intangible plant, net
Construction work in progress

Total plant

Restricted assets:
Current:
Restricted equity in general cash pool - customer deposits
Interim rate escrow investment
Bond cash investment and equity in construction cash pool
Noncurrent:
Debt service account
Revenue bond reserve investments
Revenue bond operations and maintenance
Future natural gas purchases investment
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases investment
Asset retirement obligation sinking fund

Total restricted assets

Current assets:
Equity in general cash pool
Net accounts receivable:
Utility customers, less estimated uncollectibles
of $182,731 in 2017 and $132,868 in 2016
Other receivables, less estimated uncollectibles
of $67,508 in 2017 and $50,533 in 2016
Accrued interest
Unbilled reimbursable projects
Inventory of materials and supplies, at average cost

Total current assets

Other assets:
Current
Non-current:
Unamortized regulatory assets
Unamortized debt expense

Total other assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows related to pensions

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources

16

2017

2016

1,320,309,773

1,293,307,622

456,070,969 415,569,530
864,238,804 877,738,092
2,610,447 2,715,719
22,957,440 15,783,204
889,806,691 896,237,015
1,186,226 1,170,729
27,250,254 y
: 2,525,855

2,098,515 2,098,291
23,335,229 23,143,622
14,235,000 13,200,000
3,811,326 1,898,732
23,711,907 18,934,934
13,198,877 11,797,445
108,827,334 74,769,608
32,591,181 47,336,490
8,601,943 8,969,368
9,031,977 3,260,189
646,359 562,555
110,625 887,420
32,077,195 30,261,745
83,059,280 91,277,767
3,112,503 1,627,207
2,897,820 1,575,456
1,449,969 1,572,298
7,460,292 4,774,961

1,089,153,597

1,067,059,351

248,700 516,907
1,124,134 3,348,292
1,372,834 3,865,199

1,090,526,431

1,070,924,550




MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Net Position

December 31, 2017 and 2016

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 2017 2016

Current liabilities (payable from current assets):

Notes payable S - 181,000,000
Accounts payable 24,493,095 23,339,311
Compensated absences payable 2,812,140 2,974,329
Accrued payroll liabilities 1,775,992 1,505,570
Accrued interest 1,688,922 1,614,313
Pollution remediation liability 511,787 760,000
Long-term obligations maturing within one year 7,865,000 7,520,000
Total current liabilities (payable from current assets) 39,146,936 218,713,523
Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets):
Accounts payable - 6,122,828
Customer deposits 1,186,226 1,170,729
Total current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 1,186,226 7,293,557
Other liabilities:
Other liabilities 3,145,843 2,952,073
Non-current liabilities:
Notes payable 191,900,000 -
Asset retirement obligation 15,823,732 15,135,086
Net pension liability 12,270,893 15,093,423
Revenue bonds payable after one year, net of premium and discount 333,749,927 342,966,890
Total non-current liabilities 553,744,552 373,195,399
Total liabilities 597,223,557 602,154,552
Deferred inflows of resources:
Contributions in aid of construction (net of amortization) 180,608,877 177,321,176
Future natural gas purchases 17,230,809 16,477,276
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases 25,002,529 20,236,871
Deferred inflows related to pensions 1,003,413 168,242
Total deferred inflows of resources 223,845,628 214,203,565
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 201,055,297 215,402,069
Restricted for debt service 71,082 269,541
Restricted for operations 14,235,000 13,200,000
Unrestricted 54,095,867 25,694,823
Total net position 269,457,246 254,566,433
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position S 1,090,526,431 1,070,924,550

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Operating revenues:
Residential sales $ 26,125,850 22,260,329
Commercial and industrial sales 122,670,602 106,258,842
Military sales 17,452,871 15,437,345
Sales for resale 23,344,433 15,343,153
Other operating revenues (5,169,343) 7,852,729
Total operating revenues 184,424,413 167,152,398
Operating expenses:
Production 84,409,875 75,100,243
Transmission 1,160,932 937,495
Distribution 11,609,032 11,787,913
Customer service and sales 4,285,142 4,528,685
Administrative and general 11,044,068 11,373,116
Regulatory debits (credits) (4,028,641) 6,359,769
Taxes other than income 1,367,440 1,737,906
Depreciation, net of amortization 32,453,517 31,634,639
Total operating expenses 142,301,365 143,459,766
Total operating income 42,123,048 23,692,632
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income 2,098,199 821,521
Interest subsidy on Build America Bonds 2,432,899 2,395,417
PERS on Behalf 336,953 317,044
Total nonoperating revenues 4,868,051 3,533,982
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest:
Long-term obligations 17,104,164 16,888,535
Other interest 2,561,257 1,985,398
Total interest 19,665,421 18,873,933
Allowance for funds used during construction (525,306) (12,599,561)
Amortization of other assets 286,133 131,819
Loss on disposal of property 2,808,232 8,928,674
Other nonoperating expenses 534,144 123,039
Total nonoperating expenses 22,768,624 15,457,904
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (17,900,573) (11,923,922)
Income before transfers to other funds 24,222,475 11,768,710
Transfers to other funds:
Municipal Utility Service Assessment (9,331,662) (5,983,574)
Transfers from general government - 8,456
Total transfers to other funds 9,331,662) (5,975,118)
Change in net position 14,890,813 5,793,592
Net position - beginning of year 254,566,433 248,772,841
Net position - end of year S 269,457,246 254,566,433

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Other operating cash receipts
Payments to employees
Payments to vendors
Internal activity - payments made to other funds

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds

Net cash used by noncapital and related financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds fromissuance of short-term debt
Interest payments on short-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest and debt issuance cost payments on long-term debt
Interest subsidy on Build America Bonds
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Contributed capital - customers
Contributed capital - intergovernmental agencies
Payments for interfund services used
Proceeds from sale of property

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net (deposits to) withdrawals from restricted funds
Investment income received

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase in cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Cash and cash equivalents:
Equity in general cash pool
Interim rate escrow investment
Restricted equity in general cash pool
Bond cash investment and equity in construction cash pool

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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2017 2016
198,440,556 171,095,193
2,867,451 20,605,761
(30,847,671) (30,161,783)
(92,866,543) (71,260,358)
(2,394,475) (1,692,777)
75,199,318 88,586,036
(9,331,662) (5,975,118)
(9,331,662) (5,975,118)
10,900,000 66,700,000
(2,561,257) (1,213,933)
(7,520,000) (7,465,000)
(18,277,114) (18,673,761)
2,432,899 2,395,417
(32,336,702) (164,349,570)
647,401 343,884
337,787 250,188
(2,200,583) (784,745)
7,934 49,456
(48,569,635) (122,748,064)
(9,317,829) 65,683,973
2,014,395 852,971
(7,303,434) 66,536,944
9,994,587 26,399,798
51,033,074 24,633,276
61,027,661 51,033,074
32,591,181 47,336,490
27,250,254 -
1,186,226 1,170,729

- 2,525,855
61,027,661 51,033,074




MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating income S 42,123,048 23,692,632
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 32,453,517 31,634,639
PERS on behalf 336,953 317,044
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 66,838 29,884
Miscellaneous nonoperating expenses (534,144) (123,039)
Changes in assets and liabilities which increase (decrease)
cash:
Accounts receivable (5,471,201) 1,125,093
Unbilled reimbursable projects 776,795 21,185
Inventories (1,815,450) (959,810)
Other assets current (1,485,296) (549,391)
Other assets non-current (1,322,364) (73,335)
Deferred outflows of resources-related to pensions 2,224,158 (1,963,742)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (5,788,651) (1,225,493)
Other liabilities 193,770 582,542
Asset retirement obligation 688,646 6,599,158
Customer deposits 15,497 (125,604)
Compensated absences payable (162,189) 326,819
Accrued payroll liabilities 270,422 425,678
Deferred inflows of resources 14,616,328 24,286,150
Deferred inflows of resources-related to pensions 835,171 (33,789)
Net pension liability (2,822,530) 4,599,415
Total cash provided by operating activities S 75,199,318 88,586,036
Non-cash investing, capital and financing activities:
Capital purchases on account ) 571,394 7,872,006
Portion of plant from AFUDC 525,306 12,599,561
Contributions in aid of construction funded from
deferred inflows of resources 9,097,137 92,637,014
Total non-cash investing, capital and financing activities S 10,193,837 113,108,581

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

(1) Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The first electric system serving Anchorage was installed in 1916 by the Alaska Engineering
Commission, the agency of the United States Department of the Interior which constructed the Alaska
Railroad. A small steam plant and several diesel power generators supplied Anchorage with
electricity until 1929 when the private Anchorage Power and Light Company began supplying the
community with electricity from a hydroelectric power plant on the Eklutna River located 15 miles
northeast of downtown Anchorage. The Alaska Engineering Commission distribution system was
purchased by Anchorage in 1932. Anchorage then acquired the Eklutna plant from the Anchorage
Power and Light Company in 1943. This is what is now Anchorage Municipal Light and Power or the
Electric Utility Fund, a public utility of the Municipality of Anchorage. The Utility now has six turbine
generating Units fired by natural gas and one heat recovery steam turbine generating Unit. The
Utility also has a thirty percent ownership in Southcentral Power Project and fifty-three and one-
third percent ownership interest in the Eklutna Hydroelectric Project and is entitled to twenty-five
and nine-tenths percent of the output of the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project. The Utility meets
the majority of its natural gas requirements from its ownership interest in the Beluga River Gas Field,
including the initial one-third interest acquired in December 1996. The Utility’s goal in acquiring the
working interest in the BRU was to lock in a critical resource for the long-term and provide a hedge
against anticipated future increases in natural gas prices. During 2016 the Utility acquired 70% of a
one-third working interest in the field from ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc.(CPAl), increasing its working
interest to 56.67%.

The accompanying financial statements include the activities of the Utility. The Utility is an
enterprise fund of the Municipality and not the Municipality as a whole. The Utility is subject to the
regulatory authority of the RCA.

The Utility applies all applicable provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
which has authority for setting accounting standards for governmental entities. The accounting
records of the Utility conform to the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (FERC).

Accounting and reporting treatment applied to the Utility is accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they are earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with the Utility's principal ongoing operations. All other revenues and expenses are
reported as non-operating.

(a) Regulated Operations

The Utility meets the criteria, and accordingly follows the accounting and reporting requirements
applicable to regulated operations. The Utility’s rates are regulated by the RCA and as a result,
revenues intended to recover certain costs are provided either before or after the costs are
incurred, resulting in regulatory assets or liabilities. The following regulatory assets and liabilities
are reflected in the accompanying financial statements:
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e The Utility receives contributions in aid of construction, which it records as contributed
plant in service and a deferred inflow of resources. The Utility amortizes contributed plant
and the deferred inflow of resources over the useful life of the utility plant.

e Funds from a settlement for 2005 BRU underlift were deposited in the Future Gas Purchases
Fund. On April 21, 2016 the Utility received permission from the RCA to use a portion of
these funds toward its purchase of 70% of the one-third BRU interest then-owned by CPAI.
See Notes 9(a) and (f).

e The Utility accepted a monetary settlement in 2015 from its BRU partners for its 2014
underlift. The Utility is utilizing these funds to reduce its Gas Transfer Price (GTP) from
July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. See Note 9(a).

e The Utility accepted a monetary settlement in 2016 from CPAI for cumulative underlift.
These funds financed, in part, the Utility’s 70% purchase of CPAI’s BRU interest. See Notes
9(a) and (f).

e The Utility has a regulatory asset or liability account to capture the difference in the cost
of power and revenue received through the Cost of Power Adjustment (COPA). See Note
9(b).

e The Utility has a regulatory asset or liability account to capture the difference in the
amount of the Gas Fund revenue requirement and the actual amount of revenue collected
from the Electric Fund. See Note 9(b).

e The Utility records proceeds from the sales of gas, net of royalties, taxes and an Asset
Retirement Obligation (ARO) surcharge, as a deferred regulatory liability. See Note 9(c).

e The Utility funds ARO expenses associated with future abandonment of the BRU through a
surcharge to the Utility’s GTP, which is deposited into a sinking fund. See Note 9(c) and
(d).

Management believes that the recorded amounts of all regulatory assets are fully recoverable
from ratepayers in the future.

Management Estimates

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and the reporting of contingent assets and liabilities
as of the date of the statement of net position and revenues and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The more significant accounting and reporting
policies and estimates applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements are
discussed below.

Cash Pools and Investments

The Municipality uses a central treasury to account for all cash and investments to maximize
interest. Interest income on cash pool investments is distributed based on the average daily
balance in the general cash pool. The Utility’s investments are reported at fair value in the
financial statements.
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(d) Statements of Cash Flows

(e)

N

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Utility has defined cash as the demand
deposits and all investments maintained in the general and construction cash pool, regardless
of maturity period, since the Utility uses the cash pools essentially as demand deposit accounts.
Restricted assets in the general cash pool, except for revenue bond proceeds and customer
deposits, have not been included in the definition of cash.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Utility’s revenue bonds, as well as resources set aside for their
repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statements of net position because their
use is limited by applicable bond covenants. The revenue bond reserve investments account is
used to report resources set aside to augment potential deficiencies from Utility operations
that could adversely affect debt service payments. The debt service account is used to
segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months. The
revenue bond operations and maintenance account represents funds set aside to comply with
bond covenants requiring a reserve equal to one-eighth of the preceding year’s operating
expenses (as defined in the bond covenants).

The restricted equity in general cash pool-customer deposits account represents deposits
provided by electric service customers as security for bill payment. Equity in the bond cash
investment and equity in the construction cash pool is the cash restricted for construction by
bond covenants. Future natural gas purchases or BRU construction and ARO sinking funds are
funds for which the RCA has specified the use.

Interim revenue escrow investments are funds collected from customer sales arising from
interim and refundable rates granted by the RCA. The restriction on those funds was lifted on
June 1, 2018 by the RCA following the submittal of tariff sheets in compliance with RCA Order
No. 13 in U-17-008. (See Note 9(e).)

Inventories

Inventories are valued at weighted average cost. The cost of inventories are recorded as
expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Inventories consist of parts and
materials used to maintain or build new transmission, distribution, and generation
facilities. Scrap and nonusable materials in inventory are carried at net estimated realizable
value until sold or otherwise disposed of.

The Utility also stores natural gas in a depleted field on the Kenai Peninsula. Cook Inlet Natural
Gas Storage Alaska (CINGSA) started in 2012 and as of December 31, 2017 the Utility has stored
3.86 billion cubic feet of gas.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
Electric

Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by use of the straight-line method
over the estimated economic life of the asset. Additions to electric plant in service are at
original cost of items such as contracted services, direct labor and materials, indirect overhead
charges and AFUDC. The Utility capitalizes general plant assets valued at more than $25,000
that have an expected life in excess of one year. Contributed assets are recorded at the cost
incurred by the Utility for the addition of such assets. Donated assets are recorded at
acquisition value. Acquisition value is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with
equivalent service potential in an orderly market transaction at the acquisition date. For
property replaced or retired, the cost of the property unit, plus removal costs less salvage, is
charged to accumulated depreciation. Gain or loss is not recognized unless the Utility
determines that such costs could not be recovered in rates. Costs for maintenance and repairs
are expensed as incurred, except for major maintenance on generation assets, for which costs
are collected into a regulatory asset and amortized over the period of utility, generally three
to five years.

Estimated lives of major plant and equipment categories follow:

Production plant 24 - 60 years
Hydraulic plant 40 - 45 years
Transmission plant 45 - 60 years
Distribution plant 17 - 55 years
General plant - buildings 40 - 60 years
Vehicles 16 - 20 years
Other general plant 5 - 20 years
Plant acquisition 23 years
Intangible plant 5- 30 years

Gas

Acquisition costs, the costs of wells, related equipment and facilities initially acquired as part
of the 1996 acquisition of a one-third working interest in the BRU are, as a result of a regulatory
proceeding and subsequent order by the RCA, being depleted at 125% of the principal payments
on the debt used to finance the acquisition of this asset.

The acquisition of assets purchased with designated underlift settlement funds are being
amortized using the units of production method, based upon proven reserves in accordance
with the amortization method used for regulatory purposes. The acquisition of assets purchased
with gas sale proceeds, and assets acquired from CPAl in the 2016 purchase, are being recorded
as contributed plant and are being amortized using the units of production method, based on
proven reserves in accordance with the amortization method used for regulatory purposes.

Unbilled Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Electric revenues are based on cycle billings rendered to customers monthly. As a result of this
cycle billing method, the Utility does not accrue revenue at the end of any fiscal period for
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services sold but not billed at such date. The unbilled revenues for the Utility are immaterial.
An altowance for doubtful accounts is provided for receivables where there is a question of

collectability. Utility receivables are presented in the statements of net position net of
estimated uncollectible amounts.

Gas sales are calculated based upon volumes delivered and recorded as a regulatory
liability/deferred inflows of resources (see Note 9(c))

(i) Gas Balancing

0)

The Utility has elected to account for underlifted gas from its ownership interest in the BRU
according to the sales method. Therefore, the financial statements do not include a receivable
or revenue for underlifted volumes for which the Utility did not elect to receive cash
settlement. The Utility had an accumulated underlift balance at the end of 2007 for which the
Utility did not accept monetary settlement of 15,127,694 thousand cubic feet (Mcf). Between
year-end 2007 and 2015, the underlift balance was reduced to 2,751,091 Mcf. During 2016, the
Utility further reduced the underlift balance pursuant to the purchase and sale agreement for
the acquisition of CPAI’s one-third interest in the BRU (See Notes 9(a) and (f)). As of December
31, 2017, the underlift balance was 172 Mcf. The Utility also has the option per the Gas
Balancing Agreement to take cash settlements for any underlifted gas.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Utility accounts for its ARO for its interest in the BRU in accordance with Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) Topic #410-20, formerly Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (SFAS No 143) and 18 CFR
101 General Instruction No 25, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (Regulations of the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Department of Energy, or FERC). ASC 410-20 and FERC
General Instruction No 25 applies to the fair value of a liability for an ARO that is recorded
when there is a legal obligation associated with the retirement of a tangible long-lived asset
and the liability can be reasonably estimated.

Obligations associated with the retirement of these assets require recognition of: (1) the
present value of a liability and offsetting asset for an ARQ, (2) the subsequent accretion of that
liability and depreciation of the asset, and (3) the periodic review of the ARO liability estimates
and discount rates.

In 2012 the Utility made its initial recording of the ARO asset and ARO liability with a beginning
balance of $1,461,335 representing the fair value of the obligation at 1996 - the period when
the obligation was incurred. The Utility recorded in 2012 $4,185,549 to the ARO liability
representing total accretion expense that would have been incurred if the liability was accreted
from the time the obligation was incurred through December 31, 2012. During 2013, the Utility
commissioned a study of the costs associated with abandoning the BRU field and as a result of
the findings of that study, adjusted the ARO liability and accretion as of December 2013. On
April 22, 2016, the Utility purchased 70% of CPAI’s one-third interest in the BRU. At that time
a revised estimate was made of the life of the gas field. The Utility’s obligation for an ARO was
adjusted for the increased liability and changes in estimated life and discount rate.
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As of December 31, 2016, the Utility entered into an agreement with the State of Alaska
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to establish an ARO investment fund to meet its
obligations for dismantling, removing and restoring the land and property to a condition
acceptable to the commissioner of the DNR in accordance with the terms and conditions of
assigned leases and applicable statutes and regulations.

A schedule of changes in the ARO balance for the years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016 is
as follows:

2017 2016

Asset to be retired: Gas Field
Beginning carrying value S 15,135,086 8,535,928
Current year changes to the liability balance - 5,996,423
Current year settled - -
Current year accretion 688,646 123,778
Change in assumption or cash flow revisions - 478,957
Ending ARO S 15,823,732 15,135,086

Discount or Premium on Revenue Bonds Payable

The discount or premium on revenue bonds payable is amortized over the life of the related
bond issues using the effective interest method.

Compensated Absences
The Utility records employee leave, which includes sick leave, when earned.
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

The Utility enters into transactions that result in the consumption or acquisition of net assets
in one period that are applicable to future periods. These consumptions and acquisitions of net
assets are reported in the statement of net position as deferred outflows and inflows of
resources, respectively. The Utility records deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
and deferred loss on refunding of bonds, and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions,
contributions in aid of construction and certain items related to the operation of the BRU.

Net Position

The Utility’s net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted or
unrestricted. The Utility’s restricted net position represents assets restricted for payment of
debt service, or restricted for operations, in accordance with covenants of the related revenue
bond indentures.

Intragovernmental Charges

Certain functions of the Municipality of a general and administrative nature are centralized and
the related costs are allocated to the various funds of the Municipality, including the Utility.
Such costs allocated to the Utility totaled $3,580,714 and $2,610,507 for the years ended
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December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, including general liability and workers
compensation of $504,452 for 2017 and $450,845 for 2016.

Utility Revenue Distribution/Municipal Service Assessment (MUSA)

Prior to 2006, the RCA restricted the Utility from making a revenue distribution or paying the
gross receipts portion of the MUSA. That restriction was removed in December 2005. The
Utility made an annual revenue distribution to the Municipality for the years 2006 - 2015, which
by Ordinance, was up to a maximum of 5% of the Utility’s gross revenues, excluding restricted
revenues. During those years the Utility also included the gross receipts portion, considered
supplemental MUSA, at 1.25% times the actual gross operating revenues in its payment of MUSA.

As of January 1, 2016, the Utility is restricted by the RCA from making a revenue distribution
or paying the gross receipts portion of the MUSA. The Utility’s distribution for MUSA in 2017 and
2016 was $9,331,662 and $5,983,574, respectively.

Risk Management and Self-Insurance

The Municipality is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; illness of and injuries to employees; unemployment;
and natural disasters. The Municipality utilizes three risk management funds to account for and
finance its uninsured risks of loss.

The Municipality provides coverage up to the maximum of $3,000,000 per occurrence for
automobile and general liability claims and for each workers’ compensation claim. No settled
claim exceeded this commercial coverage in 2017, 2016 or 2015.

Unemployment compensation expense is based on actual claims paid by the State of Alaska and
reimbursed by the Municipality.

All Municipal departments participate in the risk management program and make payments to
the risk management funds based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior
and current year claims.

Claims payable represent estimates of claims to be paid based upon past experience modified
for current trends and information. The ultimate amount of losses incurred through
December 31, 2017, is dependent upon future developments. At December 31, 2017, claims
incurred but not reported for the Municipality as a whole included in the liability accounts are
$12,008,623 in the General Liability/Workers’ Compensation Fund and Medical/Dental Self
Insurance Fund.
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Environmental

The Utility has adopted an aggressive policy designed to identify and mitigate the potential
effects of past, present, and future operational activities that may result in environmental
impact. It is the Utility’s accounting policy to record a liability when the likelihood of
responsibility for an environmental impact is probable and the cost of mitigating the impact is
estimable within reasonable limits. Such costs are capitalized if they result in an extension of
the assets’ life, increase the capacity, or improve the safety or efficiency of property owned
by the Utility; or mitigate or prevent environmental contamination that has yet to occur and
that otherwise may result from future operations or activities. At December 31, 2016, the
Utility recorded a liability of $760,000 for environmental cleanup responsibilities related to a
capital project at Hank Nikkels Power Plant 1. At December 31, 2017, the liability remained at
$511,787. See note 7(a). There were no other environmental issues that met the Utility’s
accounting policy and accordingly, no provision has been made in the accompanying financial
statements for any potential liability.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts previously reported may have been reclassified to conform with the current
presentations. The reclassifications had no effect on previously reported change in net
position.
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At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Municipality had cash and investments in a general cash pool
(Central Treasury). The Utility also carries certain balances, beginning in 2017, in separate accounts
for Interim Rate Increase Escrow and Asset Retirement Obligations. Fixed income maturities for these

accounts are as follows:

December 31, 2017

Fixed Income Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value* Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Petty Cash 1,000
Interim Rate Increase Escrow
- Money Market 27,250,254
Central Treasury - Restricted
Cash & Money Market Funds 37,673,284 - - - -
Commercial Paper 1,535,603 1,635,603 - - -
U.S. Treasuries 121,706,339 13,506,923 87,014,400 21,185,016 -
U.S. Agencies 13,180,799 550,253 241,092 6,981,798 5,407,656
Asset-Backed Securities*™ 34,730,718 (1,065,202) 23,333,226 4,460,439 8,002,255
Corporate Securities 122,048,793 14,372,805 59,766,782 43,625,370 4,283,836
330,875,536 28,900,382 § 170,355,500 S§ 76,252,623 § 17,693,747
Central Treasury - Unrestricted
Cash & Money Market Funds 32,165,339 - $ - $ - $ -
Commercial Paper 99,654 99,654 - - -
U.S. Treasuries 22,840,772 15,819,079 5,646,873 1,374,820 -
U.S. Agencies 21,909,848 4,118,857 16,986,967 453,090 350,934
Asset-Backed Securities™ 2,253,879 (69,127) 1,514,229 289,464 519,313
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 7,820,460 932,735 3,878,616 2,831,105 278,004
87,189,952 20,901,188 § 28,026,685 $ 4,948479 § 1,148,251
Total Central Treasury 418,065,488 49,801,580 $ 198,382,185 $ 81,201,102 $ 18,841,998
Utility share of Central Treasury 77,632,813
Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Cash & Money Market Funds 456,333 - $ - s - $ -
U.S. Fixed Income 8,220,807 2,352,657 3,622,444 2,245,706
U.S. TIPS 942,226 942,226 - -
U.S. Large-Cap Equity 1,751,027 - - - -
U.S. Mid-Cap Equity 265,692 - - - -
U.S. Small-Cap Equity 261,154 - - - -
International Developed Equity 657,596 - - -
Emerging Markets Equity 133,715 - -
Real Estate 510,327 - - - -
13,198,877 - 3 3,294.883 § 3.622,444 § 2,245,708
Total Utility 141,418,515

* Market value plus accrued income.

** Includes asset-backed securities, residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities, and collateralized debt obligations.
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December 31, 2016

Fixed Income Investment Maturities (in years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value* Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Petty Cash $ 1,000
Central Treasury - Restricted
Cash & Money Market Funds 47,692,839 - - - -
Repurchase Agreements 2,902,556 2,902,556 - - -
Commercial Paper 299,827 299,827 - - -
Certificates of Deposit 240,900 240,900 - - -
U.S. Treasuries 13,307,427 4,282,430 7,879,780 1,145,217 -
U.S. Agencies 39,384,533 20,020,719 18,380,009 500,338 483,467
Municipal Bonds 19,726 - - 19,726 -
Asset-Backed Securities 3,944,233 83,298 2,604,572 591,869 664,493
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 16,708,812 6,771,159 5,691,704 3,973,028 272,921

$ 124,500,853

$ 34,600,889 §$§ 34,556,065 $ 6,230,178 $ 1,420,881

Central Treasury - Unrestricted

34,032,002 - - .
3,515,419 - - -
2,824,520 : - 2

17,495,823 92,389,185 13,427,493 -

54,756,761 413,700 5,866,387 5,668,582

- - 231,288 -
976,652 30,538,202 6,939,573 7,791,080

20,676,137 66,734,333 46,583,129 3,199,957

$ 134277314 $ 190,075,420 $ 73,047,870 $ 16,659,619

Cash & Money Market Funds 6,556,270
Repurchase Agreements 34,032,002
Commercial Paper 3,515,419
Certificates of Deposit 2,824,520
U.S. Treasuries 123,312,501
U.S. Agencies 66,705,430
Municipal Bonds 231,288
Asset-Backed Securities 46,245,507
Corporate Fixed Income Securities 137,193,556
$ 420,616,493

Utility share of Central Treasury $ 122,105,098
Total Utility $ 122,106,098

Reported in the Statement of Net Position:

Restricted assets:
Customer deposits
Revenue bond operations and maintenance

2017 2016
S 1,186,226 S 1,170,729
14,235,000 13,200,000

Debt service account 2,098,515 2,098,291
Bond cash investment and equity in construction cash pool - 2,525,855
Future natural gas purchases investment 3,811,326 1,898,732
Future BRU construction or natural gas purchases investment 23,711,907 18,934,934
Interim rate escrow investment 27,250,254 -

Asset retirement obligation sinking fund
Revenue bond reserve investments
Total restricted assets:
Unrestricted equity in general cash pool
Petty cash
Total Utility cash and investments

13,198,877 11,797,445
23,335,229 23,143,622
108,827,334 74,769,608
32,590,181 47,335,490
1,000 1,000

$ 141,418,515 $ 122,106,098
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(a) Municipal Central Treasury
The Municipality manages its Central Treasury in four portfolios; one internally managed portfolio
and three externally managed duration portfolios based on liability duration and cash needs:
working capital, contingency reserve and strategic reserve.

The Municipality maintains a comprehensive policy over cash and investments that is designed to
mitigate risks while maximizing investment return and providing for operating liquidity. Pursuant
to Anchorage Municipal Code (AMC) 6.50.030, the Municipality requires investments to meet
specific rating and issuer requirements.

Both externally and internally managed investments are subject to the primary investment
objectives outlined in AMC 6.50.030, in priority order as follows: safety of principal, liquidity,
return on investment and duration matching. Consistent with these objectives, AMC 6.50.030
authorizes investments that meet the following rating and issuer requirements:

 Obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.S. agencies or U.S. government
sponsored corporations and agencies.

e Corporate Debt Securities that are guaranteed by the U.S. government or the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) as to principal and interest.

¢ Taxable and tax-exempt municipal securities having a long-term rating of at least A- by a
nationally recognized rating agency or taxable or tax-exempt municipal securities having a
short-term rating of at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s, P-1 by Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch.

» Debt securities issued and guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development (IBRD) and rated AAA by a nationally recognized rating agency.

» Commercial paper, excluding asset-backed commercial paper, rated at least A-1 by Standard
& Poor’s, P-1 by Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch.

» Bank debt obligations, including unsecured certificates of deposit, notes, time deposits, and
bankers’ acceptances (with maturities of not more than 365 days), and deposits with any
bank, the short-term obligations of which are rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor’s, P-1 by
Moody’s, or F-1 by Fitch and which is either:

a) Incorporated under the laws of the United States of America, or any state thereof,
and subject to supervision and examination by federal or state banking authorities;
or

b) Issued through a foreign bank with a branch or agency licensed under the laws of the
United States of America, or any state thereof, or under the laws of a country with
a Standard & Poor’s sovereign rating of AAA, or a Moody’s sovereign rating for bank
deposits of Aaa, or a Fitch national rating of AAA, and subject to supervision and
examination by federal or state banking authorities.

» Repurchase agreements secured by obligations of the U.S. government, U.S. agencies, or U.S.
government-sponsored corporations and agencies.
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Dollar denominated corporate debt instruments rated BBB- or better (investment grade) by
Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Dollar denominated corporate debt instruments rated lower than BBB- (non-investment grade)
by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Dollar denominated debt instruments of foreign governments rated BBB- or better (investment
grade) by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Asset Backed Securities (ABS), excluding commercial paper, collateralized by: credit cards,
automobile loans, leases and other receivables which must have a credit rating of AA- or
above by Standard & Poor’s or the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Mortgage Backed Securities, including generic mortgage-backed pass-through securities issued
by Ginnie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Fannie Mae, as well as non-agency mortgage-backed
securities, Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMOs), or Commercial Mortgage-Backed
Securities (CMBS), which must have a credit rating of AA- or better by Standard & Poor’s or
the equivalent by another nationally recognized rating agency.

Debt issued by the Tennessee Valley Authority

Money Market Mutual Funds rated Am or better by Standard & Poor’s, or the equivalent by
another nationally recognized rating agency, as long as they consist of allowable securities as
outlined above.

The Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP).

Mutual Funds consisting of allowable securities as outlined above.

Interfund Loans from a Municipal Cash Pool to a Municipal Fund.

In addition to providing a list of authorized investments, AMC 06.50.030 specifically prohibits
investment in the following:

Structured Investment Vehicles.

Asset Backed Commercial Paper.

Short Sales.

Securities not denominated in U.S. Dollars.
Commodities.

Real Estate Investments.

Derivatives, except “to be announced” forward mortgage-backed securities (TBAs) and
derivatives for which payment is guaranteed by the U.S. government or an agency thereof.
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The Investment Management Agreement (IMA) for each external manager and the policy and
procedures (P&P) applicable to the internally managed investments provide additional guidelines for
each portfolio’s investment mandate. The IMA and P&P limit the concentration of investments for the
working capital portfolio and the internally managed portfolio at the time new investments are
purchased as follows:
Working Capital Interally
Portfolio Managed

Holding % at Holding % at
December 31, December 31,

Investment Type Concentration Limit 2017 2017

U.S. Government Securities* 50% to 100% of investment portfolio 28% 55%

Repurchase Agreements 0% to 50% of investment portfolio 0% 0%

Certificates of Deposit 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Bankers Acceptances 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Commercial Paper 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 2% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Corporate Fixed Income** 0% to 256% of investment portfolio 11% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP)*** 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0% 0%

Money Market Mutual Funds**** 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 59% 45%

Dollar Denominated Fixed Income Securities, other than 0% to 15% of investment portfolio 0% 0%

those listed herein, rated by at least one nationally Maximum 5% per issuer

recognized rating agency

100% 100%

*Includes debt obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S, government, U.S. agencies or U.S. government-sponsered corporations.
"The maximum exposure to Corporate floating and variable rate debt securities in the Working Capital Portfolio is 10 percent.
*"The Working Capital porifolio may not be invested in AMLIP
**The Working Capital and Internally Managed Portfolio contained an excess of cash equivalents at Decemmber 31, 2017 in anticipation of planned
spending w ithin a w eek. The portfolios w ere back in compliance the first w eek of 2018
Working Capital Internally
Portfolio Managed
Holding % at Holding % at
December 31, December 31,

Investment Type Concentration Limit 2016 2016

U.S. Government Securities* 50% to 100% of investment portfolio 52% 51%

Repurchase Agreements 0% to 50% of investment portfolio 25% 0%

Certificates of Deposit™ 0% to 50% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Bankers Acceptances 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Commercial Paper 0% to 15% of investment portfolio 0% 0%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Corporate Bonds 0% to 15% of investment portfolio 8% 8%
Maximum 5% per issuer

Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP)** 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 0% 0%

Money Market Mutual Funds 0% to 25% of investment portfolio 15% 41%

Dollar Denominated Fixed Income Securities, other 0% to 15% of investment portfolio 0% 0%

than those listed herein, rated by at least one nationally Maximum 5% per issuer
recognized rating agency

100% 100%

*Includes debt obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. government, U.S. agencies or U.S. government-sponsered corporations.
**The policy limits CDs that are not secured by U.S. government securities to 20% of the internally managed portfolio.
*The Working Capital portfolio may not be invested in AMLIP.

35



(b)

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund

Funds set aside to pay for dismantling, removing, and restoring assets of the Beluga River Unit
gas field were transferred from the MOA Central Treasury to a separate investment portfolio in
2017, per assembly ordinance.

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund is managed to maximize capital appreciation
with a long-term rate of return. The Fund is authorized to invest in the following assets:

* Domestic equities and International equities, including real estate investment trusts.
* Investment grade dollar-denominated fixed income securities.
e Cash and money market instruments.

The Beluga River Asset Retirement Obligation Fund limits the concentration of its investments as

follows:
Lower Upper  Investment Holding %
Investment Type Limnit Limit at December 31, 2017
Domestic Equities:
Large Cap 5% 20% 13%
Mid Cap 0% 5% 2%
Small Cap 0% 5% 2%
International Equities:
Deweloped 0% 10% 5%
Emerging Markets 0% 5% 1%
Real Estate:
Real Estate Funds 1% 4% 4%
Fixed Income:
Domestic Fixed Income 55% 75% 62%
TIPS 5% 15% 7%
Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash Equivalents 0% 15% 4%
100%
(c) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The externally managed portfolios of the Municipal Central Treasury utilize the
duration method to measure exposure to interest rate risk. All other funds disclose interest rate
risk through the segmented time distribution tables within this note, which categorize fixed
income investments according to their maturities.

Duration is a measure of an investment’s sensitivity to interest rate changes, and represents the
sensitivity of an investment’s market price to a one percent change in interest rates. The
effective duration of an investment is determined by its expected future cash flows, factoring
in uncertainties introduced through options, prepayments, and variable rates. The effective
duration of a pool is the average fair value weighted effective duration of each security in the
pool.
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AMC 6.50.030 requires the Working Capital Portfolio have a duration of zero to 270 days. At
December 31, 2017, the Working Capital Portfolio had a duration of 0.14 years, or approximately
51 days. At December 31, 2016, the Working Capital Portfolio had a duration of 0.16 years, or
approximately 58 days. AMC 6.50.030 also requires that the Contingency Reserve Portfolio have
an average duration within half a year of its benchmark. At December 31, 2017, the Contingency
Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 1.94 years as compared to its benchmark, Barclays 1-3 Year
Government Index, which had a duration of 1.91 years. At December 31, 2016, the Contingency
Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 1.88 years as compared to its benchmark, Barclays 1-3 Year
Government Index, which had a duration of 1.92 years. AMC 6.50.030 requires the Strategic
Reserve Portfolio have a maximum duration no greater than one year in excess of its benchmark.
At December 31, 2017, the Strategic Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 3.70 years as compared
to its benchmark, Barclays Intermediate Government/Corporate Index, which had a duration of
3.73 years. At December 31, 2016, the Strategic Reserve Portfolio had a duration of 3.88 years
as compared to its benchmark, Barclays Intermediate Government/Corporate Index, which had
a duration of 3.86 years.

The effective durations of the externally managed portfolios of the Municipal Central Treasury
(working capital, contingency reserve and strategic reserve) at December 31, 2017, were 0.14
years, 1.94 years, and 3.70 years, respectively, which are within the required durations per the
policy. The effective durations of the externally managed portfolios of the Municipal Central
Treasury (working capital, contingency reserve and strategic reserve) at December 31, 2016,
were 0.16 years, 1.88 years, and 3.88 years, respectively, which are within the required
durations per the policy

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. For fixed income securities, this risk is generally expressed as a credit rating.

At December 31, 2017, the Municipal Central Treasury’s investment in marketable debt
securities, excluding U.S. Treasury and Agency securities, totaled $175,487,521. The distribution
of ratings on these securities was as follows:

Moody's S&P

Aaa 17% AAA 15%
Aa 4% AA 2%
A 20% A 19%
Baa 22% BBB 26%
Ba or Lower 30% BB or Lower 28%
Not Rated 7% Not Rated 10%

100% 100%

37



(e)

"

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016
At December 31, 2016, the Municipal Central Treasury’s investment in marketable debt securities,

excluding U.S. Treasury and Agency securities, totaled $208,464,246. The distribution of ratings
on these securities was as follows:

Moody's S&P

Aaa 16% AAA 17%
Aa 6% AA 5%
A 21% A 21%
Baa 23% BBB 25%
Ba or Lower 20% BB or Lower 20%
Not Rated 14% Not Rated 12%

100% 100%

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an entity’s
investment in a single issuer. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure when the amount
invested in a single issuer exceeds 5 percent or more of total investments. Investments issued
or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government, as well as mutual funds and other pooled
investments, are exempted from this requirement.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Municipal Central Treasury had no investments in any single
issuer exceeding 5 percent of total investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk, in event of the failure of a depository institution, that an entity
will not be able to recover deposits or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party.
For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk, in event of the failure of the counterparty to a
transaction, that an entity will not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Municipal
Central Treasury had bank deposit carrying amounts totaling $56,372,735 and $50,179,132,
respectively of which $500,000 was covered by federal depository insurance. Bank deposits of
$1,760,720 at December 31, 2017 and $13,478,739 at December 31, 2016 were secured by
collateral held by a third party. Deposits of $54,112,015 and $36,200,393 at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively, were secured by collateral held at the depository bank. All collateral
consists of obligations issued, or fully insured or guaranteed as to payment of principal and
interest, by the United States of America, an agency thereof or a United States government
sponsored corporation, with market value not less than the collateralized deposit balances.

AMC 6.50.030 requires that repurchase agreements be secured by obligations of the U.S.
government, U.S. agencies, or U.S. government-sponsored corporations and agencies. As of
December 31, 2017 and 2016 cash deposits and investments were not exposed to custodial risk.
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(g) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely impact the fair
value of an investment. The Municipality has no specific policy addressing foreign currency risk;
however foreign currency risk is managed through the requirements of AMC 6.50.030 and the
asset allocation policies of each portfolio. The Municipal Central Treasury is not exposed to
foreign currency risk because AMC 6.50.030 explicitly prohibits the purchase of securities not
denominated in U.S. Dollars. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, all debt obligations held in the
Municipal Central Treasury were payable in U.S. Dollars.

(h) Fair Value Measurements

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Municipality had the following cash and investments, valued
as follows:

Asset-backed securities are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable
inputs for similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on
comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Bank loan investments are valued at Net Asset Value (NAV) of units held. The NAV is used as
a practical expedient to estimate fair value. The NAV is based on the fair value of the
underlying investments held by the fund less its liability.

Short-term collective investments such as money market funds are valued at amortized cost.
Certificates of deposit are valued at the daily price quoted by the financial institution holding
the investment for the Municipality.

Commercial paper is valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable
securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Common stocks are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the
individual securities traded.

Corporate bonds are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable
securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.

Commingled funds are valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. These funds
publish their daily NAV and transact at that price. The commingled funds held are deemed
to be actively traded.

Domestic equity funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which
the individual funds traded.

Fixed income funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which
the individual funds traded.

Fixed Income funds (MOA Trust) are valued at NAV of units held. The NAV is used as a
practical expedient to estimate fair value. The NAV is based on the fair value of the
underlying investments held by the fund less its liability.

International equity funds are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on
which the individual funds traded.

Municipal bonds are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities. This includes basing value on yields currently available on comparable
securities of issuers with similar credit ratings.
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Real estate funds are valued at NAV of units held. The NAV is used a practical expedient to
estimate fair value. The NAV is based on the fair value of the underlying investments held
by the fund less its liability. This practical expedient is not used when it is determined to be
probable that the fund will sell the investment for an amount different than the reported
NAV.

Repurchase agreements are valued at the daily closing price as reported using the daily price
quoted by the financial institution holding the investment for the Municipality.

U.S. treasuries are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the
individual securities traded.

U.S. agencies are valued using pricing models maximizing the use of observable inputs for
similar securities.

U.S. Tips are valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the
individual securities traded.

The Municipality utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Municipality determines fair
value based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in
the principle or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions
in fair value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable
and unobservable inputs, which are categorized in one of the following levels:

Level 1 Inputs: quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level 2 Inputs: quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active or inactive markets; or
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable

Level 3 Inputs: significant unobservable inputs for assets or liabilities

The Municipality categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The Municipality as a whole has the
following recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:
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December 31, 2017

Investment Type:
Interim Rate Increase Escrow Money Market

Central Treasury- Restricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value
Commercial Paper
U.S. Treasuries
U.S. Agencies
Asset-backed Securities
Corporate Securities

Cash & Money Market Funds

Total Central Treasury- Restricted

Central Treasury- Unrestricted
Investments Measured at Fair Value
Commercial Paper
U.S. Treasuries
U.S. Agencies
Asset-backed Securities
Corporate Securities

Cash & Money Market Funds

Total Central Treasury- Unrestricted

Asset Retirement Obligation Fund
Investments Measured at Fair Value

U.S. Fixed Income
U.S. TIPS
U.S. Large-Cap Equity
U.S. Mid-Cap Equity
U.S. Small-Cap Equity
International Developed Equity
Emerging Markets Equity
Real Estate

Cash & Money Market Funds
Total Asset Retirement Obligation Fund

11

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other
ldentical Assets Observable Inputs
December 31, 2017 (Level 1) (Level 2)
27,250,254
1,535,603 - 1,635,603
121,706,339 121,706,339 -
13,180,799 - 13,180,799
34,730,718 - 34,730,718
122,048,793 - 122,048,793
293,202,252 121,706,333 171,495,913
37,673,284
37,673,284
330,875,536
99,654 E 99,654
22,840,772 22,840,772 -
21,909,848 - 21,909,848
2,253,879 - 2,253,879
7,920,460 - 7,920,460
55,024,613 22,840,772 32,183,841
32,165,339
32,165,338
87,189,952
8,220,807 % 3,818,364 $ 4,402,443
942,226 942,226 -
1,751,027 1,751,027 -
265,692 265,692 -
261,154 261,154 -
657,596 657,596 -
133,715 133,715 B
510,327 510,327 -
12,742,544 8,340,101 4,402,443
456,333
13,198,877



December 31, 2016

Investment Type:

Central Treasury- Unrestricted

Investments Measured at Fair Value

Repurchase Agreements
Commercial Paper

U.S. Treasuries

U.S. Agencies

Municipal Bonds
Asset-backed Securities
Corporate Securities

Cash & Money Market Funds
Certificates of Deposits

Total Central Treasury- Unrestricied

Central Treasury- Restricted

Investments Measured at Fair Value

Repurchase Agreements
Commercial Paper

U.S. Treasuries

U.8. Agencies

Municipal Bonds
Asset-backed Securities
Corporate Securities

Cash & Money Market Funds
Certificates of Deposits

Total Central Treasury- Restricted

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND

MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Active  Significant Other
Markets for identical ~ Observable Inputs
December 31, 2016 Assets (Level 1) (Level 2)

$ 34,032,002 $ - 8 34,032,002
3,615,419 - 3,515,419
123,312,501 123,312,501 =
66,705,430 - 66,705,430
231,288 - 231,288
46,245,507 - 46,245,507
137,193,556 - 137.193.556
411,235,703 123,312,501 287,923,202

6,556,270

2,824,520

8,380,790

$ 420,616,483
$ 2,902,556 $ - 2,802,556
299,827 - 299,827
13,307,427 13,307,427 -
39,384,533 - 39,384,533
18,726 - 19,726
3,944,233 = 3,844,233
16,708,812 - 16,708,812
76,567,114 13,307,427 63,259,687

47,692,839

240,900

47,933,739

$ 124,500,853
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A summary of capital assets at December 31, 2017 follows:

Electric plant in service
Less accumulated depreciation
Net electric plant in service
Natural gas production and gathering plant
Less accumulated depletion
Net gas plant in service

Net electric and gas plant in service

Intangible plant, less accumulated
amortization of $12,661,781 in 2017
and $12,556,509 in 2016

Construction work in progress

Total capital assets

$

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017 and 2016

Included in the Construction Work in progress are retirement assets as follows:

$

January 1, December 31,
2017 Additions Deductions 2017
948,075,842 28,786,514 (1,784,363) 975,077,993
232,593,710 30,819,404 (1,729,505) 261,683,609
715,482,132 (2,032,890) (54,858) 713,394,384
345,231,780 345,231,780
182,975,820 11,418,229 (6,689) 194,387,360
162,255,960 (11,418,229) 6,689 150,844,420
877,738,092 (13,451,119) (48,169) 864,238,804
2,715,719 (105,272) 2,610,447
15,783,204 30,071,559 (22,897,323) 22,957,440
896,237,015 16,620,440 (23,050,764) 889,806,691
185,544 648,612 (65,164) 768,992

In accordance with the requirements of FERC, disposals of retirement assets are not placed in service, rather they

are reported as deductions from accumulated depreciation.
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A summary of capital assets at December 31, 2016 follows:

January 1, December 31,
2016 Additions Deductions 2016
Electric plant in service ) 665,382,025 319,854,999 (37,161,182) 948,075,842
Less accumulated depreciation 237,510,748 23,481,805 (28,398,843) 232,593,710
Net electric plant in service 427,871,277 296,373,194 (8,762,339) 715,482,132
Natural gas production and gathering plant 234,240,102 111,014,149 (22,471) 345,231,780
Less accumulated depletion 164,257,080 18,718,740 - 182,975,820
Net gas plant in service 69,983,022 92,295,409 (22,471) 162,255,960
Net electric and gas plant in service 497,854,299 388,668,603 (8,784,810) 877,738,092
Intangible plant, less accumulated
amortization of $12,556,509 in 2016
and $12,253,323 in 2015 3,018,904 . (303,185) 2,715,719
Construction work in progress 258,306,152 194,619,035 (437,141,983) 15,783,204
Total capital assets S 759,179,355 583,287,638 (446,229,978) 896,237,015

Included in the Construction Work in progress are retirement assets as follows:

S 39,473 487,022 (340,951) 185,544

In accordance with the requirements of FERC, disposals of retirement assets are not placed in service, rather they

are reported as deductions from accumulated depreciation.
The Utility’s construction budget for 2017 is $42,764,000.

Short-Term Debt

In February 2012, the Assembly authorized the issuance of commercial paper in one or more series
in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed three hundred million dollars ($300,000,000).

In April 2015, the Utility redeemed all outstanding commercial paper and entered into a short-term
borrowing agreement with Wells Fargo Municipal Capital Strategies, LLC, herein referred to as the
Direct Drawdown Purchase Program (DDPP). This borrowing program continued to fulfill the purpose
of the Commercial Paper program, but at a lower aggregate fee and interest cost to the Utility over
the life of the program. The DDPP was used by the Utility to complete construction of Generation
Plant 2A. At December 31, 2016 the outstanding balance of DDPP notes payable was $181,000,000.
During 2017, $10,900,000 was drawn down for completion of Generation Plant 2A. On November 30,
2017 the loan term was extended to November 29, 2019. At December 31, 2017 the balance was
$191,900,000 and the notes were reclassified as long-term notes payable on the Utility’s Statement
of Net Position, as the principal is not expected to be paid within one year.
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A summary of long-term liabilities consist of the following at December 31:

Revenue bonds:

2005 Series A, effective interest rate at 4.993858% due 2026
2009 Series A, effective interest rate at 5.009% due 2039

2009 Series B, effective interest rate at 5.009% due 2039 taxable

2014 Series A, effective interest rate at 3.81% due 2044

Less:

Current installments
Unamortized discount
Unamortized premium

$

2017 2016
17,565,000 22,705,000
15,240,000 15,240,000

114,760,000 114,760,000
175,805,000 178,185,000

323,370,000 330,890,000

{7,865,000) (7,520,000)
(476,692) (507,779)
18,721,619 20,104,669
333,749,927 342,966,890

Debt service requirements to maturity at December 31, 2017 are as fotlows:
Senior Lien Electric Revenue Bonds

Principal Interest Total
2018 S 7,865,000 17,313,097 25,178,097
2019 7,730,000 16,950,747 24,680,747
2020 8,075,000 16,603,147 24,678,147
2021 8,410,000 16,268,347 24,678,347
2022 8,760,000 15,917,897 24,677,897
2023-2027 50,570,000 72,518,785 123,088,785
2028-2032 63,490,000 56,987,657 120,477,657
2033-2037 79,780,000 36,583,462 116,363,462
2038-2042 66,840,000 13,095,887 79,935,887
2043-2044 21,850,000 1,319,600 23,169,600
Senior revenue bonds payable $ 323,370,000 263,558,626 586,928,626

The Utility’s revenue bonds bear interest at effective rates of 3.75% to 6.5% and require the
establishment of reserves over a five-year period at least equal to the maximum annual debt service
on all outstanding senior lien bonds. The senior lien revenue bond covenants further stipulate that
net revenue before depreciation and amortization for each year will be equal to at least 1.35 times
the debt service requirements for that year. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Utility had satisfied
the reserve requirements and debt service covenants.

Notes payable were reclassified from short-term to long-term in 2017. See Note 4 for further

information regarding notes payable.
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The following is a summary of long-term liability activity as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31, Due within
2017 Additions Reductions 2017 one year

Revenue bonds payable:
Series 2005A S 22,705,000 5,140,000 17,565,000 5,415,000
Series 2009A 15,240,000 15,240,000
Series 20098 114,760,000 114,760,000
Series 2014A 178,185,000 2,380,000 175,805,000 2,450,000

Senior electric revenue bonds 330,890,000 7,520,000 323,370,000 7,865,000
Unamortized premiums/discounts 19,596,890 1,351,963 18,244,927

Total revenue bonds payable 350,486,890 8,871,963 341,614,927 7,865,000
Notes payable * - 191,900,000 - 191,900,000 -
Compensated absences payable 2,974,329 2,178,541 2,340,730 2,812,140 2,812,140
Net pension tiability 15,093,423 2,822,530 12,270,893 -
Asset retirement obligation 15,135,086 688,646 15,823,732

Totalbng term tiabilities $ 383,689,728 194,767,187 14,035,223 564,421,692 10,677,140
* Notes payable reclassified to long termin 2017

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31, Due within
2016 Additions Reductions 2016 one year

Revenue bonds payable:
Series 2005A S 27,780,000 5,075,000 22,705,000 5,140,000
Series 2009A 15,240,000 15,240,000
Series 20098 114,760,000 114,760,000
Series 2014A 180,575,000 2,390,000 178,185,000 2,380,000

Senior electric revenue bonds 338,355,000 7,465,000 330,890,000 7,520,000
Unamortized premiums/discounts 21,034,311 1,437,421 19,596,890

Totalrevenue bonds payable 359,389,311 - 8,902,421 350,486,890 7,520,000
Compensated absences payable 2,647,510 2,586,196 2,259,377 2,974,329 2,974,329
Net pension liability 10,494,008 4,599,415 15,093,423
Asset retirement obligation 8,535,928 6,599,158 15,135,086

Totallong term tiabitities $ 381,066,757 13,784,769 11,161,798 383,689,728 10,494,329
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(6) Net Position

Net position is composed of the following at December 31:

2017 2016
Total Plant S 889,806,691 896,237,015
Less: Total revenue bonds payable (341,614,927) (350,486,890)
Contributions in aid of construction (180,608,877) (177,321,176)
Notes payable (191,900,000) (181,000,000)
Unspent revenue bond proceeds/note proceeds - 2,525,855
Bond proceeds used for bond reserve fund 23,673,741 23,358,059
Bond proceeds used for bond sale costs 1,449,969 1,572,299
Deferred loss on refunding 248,700 516,907
Net investment in capital assets 201,055,297 215,402,069
Debt service account 2,098,515 2,098,291
Revenue bond reserve investments 23,335,230 23,143,622
Less: Bond proceeds used for bond reserve fund (23,673,741) (23,358,059)
Accrued bond interest payable (1,688,922) (1,614,313)
Restricted for debt service 71,082 269,541
Operating reserve -
Restricted for operations 14,235,000 13,200,000
Unrestricted 54,095,867 25,694,823
Total net position S 269,457,246 254,566,433

(7) Retirement Plans

Substantially all regular employees of the Utility are covered by one of the following plans:
(a) IBEW Plans

Defined Benefit Plan

The Utility’s IBEW members participate in a cost-sharing defined benefit plan, the Alaska
Electrical Pension Plan of the Alaska Electrical Pension Fund (the Plan). The Alaska Electrical
Trust Funds (AETF) Board of Trustees administers the Plan and has the authority to establish and
amend benefit terms and approve changes in employer required contributions. Each year, AETF
issues annual financial reports that can be obtained by writing the plan administrator, Alaska
Electrical Pension Trust, 2600 Denali Street, Suite 200, Anchorage, Alaska, 99503. The Utility
had 181 and 172 employees covered by the Plan as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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The Plan provides several levels of retirement benefits, including early retirement, normal
retirement, late retirement, and disability retirement and includes several options for spouse
participation and death benefits. The Utility contributes to the Plan for its covered employees
according to the terms of its Agreement Covering Terms and Conditions of Employment
(Agreement) with the IBEW Local 1547. The Agreement in effect during 2015 and 2016 expired
on December 31, 2016. A new agreement was approved subsequent to year end and is effective
from February 28, 2017 to December 31, 2019. The Agreement automatically renews for a period
of one year from its expiration date and for successive periods of one year each thereafter for
so long as there is no proper notification of an intent to negotiate a successor Agreement.

Employer contributions are determined from hours of work reported by participating employers
and the contractual employer contribution rate in effect. The Utility’s required contribution to
the plan for each hour for which compensation is paid to the employee for February 28, 2017 to
December 31, 2017 was $7.85, and from January 1, 2016 to February 27, 2017 was $7.75. The
Utility’s total employer contributions to the Plan for 2017 and 2016 were $3,272,545 and
$3,396,484, respectively. The Utility had $251,784 and $123,849 in required contributions to the
Plan payable to AETF at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. These amounts are paid
during the normal course of business.in the month following each year end. The Utility is not
subject to withdrawal penalties, nor are there any future minimum payments to the Plan
required other than the contribution per hour compensated as required by the Agreement.

Money Purchase Plan

The Agreement requires employer contributions to be made in an amount of 1.9% (1.8% in 2016)
of each employee’s gross wages to the Alaska Electrical Workers Money Purchase Plan (Money
Purchase Plan). The Utility’s employer and employee contributions to the Money Purchase Plan
during 2017 were $499,127 and $98,610, respectively. The Utility’s employer and employee
contributions to the Money Purchase Plan during 2016 were $412,473 and $85,362, respectively.

One hundred percent (100%) of the Utility’s required contributions to the IBEW plans have been
made through these contributions to the AETF.

(b) State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan (PERS I-Ili)

General Information About the Plan

The Municipality participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS I-1ll or
the Plan). PERS I-11l is a cost-sharing multiple employer plan which covers eligible State and local
government employees, other than teachers. The Plan was established and is administered by
the State of Alaska Department of Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are
established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

The Plan provides for retirement, death and disability, and post-employment health care
benefits. There are three tiers of employees, based on entry date. For all tiers within the
Defined Benefit (DB) plan, full retirement benefits are generally calculated using a formula
comprised of a multiplier times the average monthly salary (AMS) times the number of years of
service. The multiplier is increased at longevity milestone markers for most employees. The
tiers within the Plan establish differing criteria regarding normal retirement age, early
retirement age, and the criteria for calculation of AMS, COLA adjustments, and Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) benefits.
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A complete benefit comparison chart is available at the website noted below.

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and other required supplemental information. That report is available via the
internet at http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/pers. Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial
statements, and other detailed plan information are also available on this website. They may
be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of
Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811-0203 or by phoning (907)
465-4460.

The PERS I-1Il DB Plan was closed to new entrants effective June 30, 2006. New employees hired
after that date participate in the PERS IV Defined Contribution (DC) Plan described later in the
note.

Historical Context and Special Funding Situation

In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed legislation converting the previously existing PERS
plan from an agent-multiple employer plan to a cost-sharing plan with an effective date of July
1, 2008. In connection with this conversion, the State of Alaska passed additional legislation
which statutorily capped the employer contribution rate, established a state funded “on-behalf”
contribution (subject to funding availability), and required that employer contributions be
calculated against all PERS eligible wages, including wages paid to participants of the PERS Tier
IV defined contribution plan described later in this note.

Alaska Statute requires the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan an amount such that, when
combined with the employer contribution, is sufficient to pay the Plan’s past service liability
contribution rate as adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board. Although current
statutes call for the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan, the Alaska Department of Law
determined that the statute does not create a legal obligation to assume the liabilities of the
Plan; rather it establishes a contribution mechanism to provide employer relief against the rising
contribution rates. This relief payment is subject to funding availability, and therefore not
legally mandated. As a result, the State initially determined that the Plan is not in a special
funding situation. Following much discussion with various stakeholders, participant
communities, attorneys, auditors, and the GASB itself, the State has subsequently reversed its
position on this matter, and as of June 30, 2015, the State did record the liability presuming
that the current statute does constitute a special funding situation as the legislation is currently
written. It is important to note that the Alaska Legislature has the power and authority to change
the aforementioned statute through the legislative process, and it is likely that the State will
pursue efforts to do so in a future legislative session. For the current year financial statements,
management has treated AS 39.35.255 as constituting a special funding situation under GASB
Statement No. 68 rules and has recorded all pension related liabilities, deferred inflows and
outflows of resources, and disclosures on this basis.

Employee Contribution Rates
Regular employees are required to contribute 6.75 percent of their annual covered salary.
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Employer and Other Contribution Rates
There are several contribution rates associated with the pension and healthcare contributions
and related liabilities. These amounts are calculated on an annual basis.

Employer Effective Rate

This is the contractual employer pay-in rate. Under current legislation, this rate is statutorily
capped at 22 percent of eligible wages, subject to a wage floor, and other termination events.
This 22 percent rate is calculated on all PERS participating wages, including those wages
attributable to employees in the defined contribution plan. Contributions derived from the
defined contribution employees are referred to as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability (DBUL)
contribution.

Alaska Retirement Management Board (ARM) Adopted Rate

This is the rate formally adopted by the ARM Board. This rate is actuarially determined and used
to calculate annual Plan funding requirements, without regard to the statutory rate cap or the
GASB accounting rate. Prior to July 1, 2015, there were no constraints or restrictions on the
actuarial cost method or other assumptions used in the ARM Board valuation. Effective July 1,
2015, the Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution rates for past
service liabilities using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25 year term which ends in
2039. This will result in lower ARM Board Rates in future years (as demonstrated in the
contribution rate tables below).

On-behalf Contribution Rate

This is the rate paid in by the State as an on-behalf payment under the current statute. The
statute requires the State to contribute, based on funding availability, an on-behalf amount
equal to the difference between the ARM Board Rate and the Employer Effective Rate. However,
in state fiscal year 2015, the State Legislature appropriated a one-time contribution to the Plan
in the amount of $1 billion. As a result, the On-behalf Contribution Rate for State Fiscal Year
2015 (July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015) significantly exceeds the statutory amount. In the
2017 and 2016 Utility financial statements, the on-behalf amounts reflect revenue and expense
only during the measurement period July 1, 2016 to June 20, 2017 and July 1 2015 to June 30,
2016, respectively. During the measurement period the Plan recognizes the payments, resulting
in a significant timing difference between the cash transfers and revenue and expense
recognition. Total on-behalf amounts recognized as of the measurement period are actuarially
calculated.

GASB Rate

This is the rate used to determine the long-term pension and healthcare liability for plan
accounting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as established
by GASB. Certain actuarial methods and assumptions for this rate calculation are mandated by
GASB. Additionally, the GASB Rate disregards all future Medicare Part D payments. For Fiscal
Year 2017 and 2016, the GASB rate uses an 8 percent pension discount rate and a 4.55 and 4.3
percent healthcare discount rate, respectively.

The GASB Rate and the ARM Board Adopted Rate differ significantly as a direct result of variances
in the actuarial methods and assumptions used.
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Contribution rates for the plan years ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017 were determined

in the June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2015 actuarial valuations, respectively. Municipality
contribution rates for the 2017 and 2016 calendar years were as follows:

Employer Effective ARM Board State
January 1, 2016 to June 30, 2016 Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 13.25% 19.04% 3.63% 37.79%
Postemployment healthcare 8.75% 8.15% 1.56% 58.73%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 27.19% 5.19% 96.52%
Employer Effective ARM Board State
July 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 14.96% 20.34% 4.14% 24.49%
Postemployment healthcare 7.04% 5.80% 0.00% 56.64%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 26.14% 4.14% 81.13%
Employer Effective ARM Board State
January 1, 2017 to June 30, 2017 Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 14.96% 20.34% 4.14% 24.49%
Postemployment healthcare 7.04% 5.80% 0.00% 56.64%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 26.14% 4.14% 81.13%
Employer Effective ARM Board State
July 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 Rate Adopted Rate  Contribution Rate GASB Rate
Pension 17.12% 21.90% 3.01% 29.07%
Postemployment healthcare 4.88% 3.11% 0.00% 66.85%
Total Contribution Rates 22.00% 25.01% 3.01% 95.92%

In 2017 and 2016, the Municipality was credited with the following contributions into the pension
plan.

Municipality's Fiscal

Measurement Period Year
July1,2015 to January 1, 2016 to
June 30,2016 December 31, 2016

Municipalitys Fiscal

Measurement Period Year
Juiy 11,2016 to January 1, 2017 lo
June 30, 2017 December 31, 2017

Employer contributions (including DBUL) $ 22,688,610 $ 24,562,145 § 26,149,321 $ 28,704,730
Nonemployer contributions (on-behalf) 8,178,842 8,890,548 9,460,308 8,343,294
Total Contributions 5 30,867 252 ] 33452691 & 35,602 628 3 37,048,024

The Utility’s share of employer contributions to the plan for fiscal year 2017 and 2016 were
$940,338 and $854,217, respectively. In addition, municipal employee contributions to the Plan
totaled $8,849,904 and $9,135,197 during 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

The Utility’s portion of the Municipality’s liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflows and
inflows of resources related to pensions are based on its share of the Municipality’s
contributions to the plan in the current year. Those proportions are 3.53% and 3.48% at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Municipality reported a liability for its proportionate share
of the net pension liability (NPL) that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided
to the Municipality. The amount recognized by the Municipality and the Utility for their
proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total were as follows:

December 31, 2017 2016
Municipality Utility Municipality Utitity
Proportionate Share of NPL S 347,836,470 $ 12,270,893 S 433,996,281 S 15,093,423
State's proportionate share of NPL associated with the Municipality 129,589,885 4,571,641 54,685,280 1,901,832
Total Pension Liabitity S 477,426,355 16,842,534 S 488,681,561 S 16,995,255

The Utility recorded a net pension liability of $12,270,893 and $15,093,423 at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

The total pension liabitity for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2017 to calculate the net
pension liability as of that date. The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement
date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30,
2016 to calculate the net pension liability as of that date. The Municipality’s proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the Municipality’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
entities, including the State, actuarially determined. At the June 30, 2017 measurement date,
the Utility’s proportionate share was 0.23737 percent, a decrease of 0.03266 percent from the
prior year. At the June 30, 2016 measurement date, the Utility’s proportionate share was
0.27003 percent, an increase of 0.05366 percent from the prior year.

The Utility recognized pension expense of $573,752 and $2,858,253 for the year ended
December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, respectively, of which $336,953 and $317,044 were
recorded as on-behalf revenue and expense for additional contributions paid by the State.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Utility reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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Measurement Period June 30, Measurement Period June 30,

2017 2016
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience S - S (206,881) S 1,388 S (168,242)
Changes in assumptions . 69,615 =
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investr 356,477 - 1,483,621
Changes in proportion and differences between Utillity contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 130,754 (796,532) 1,338,972
Utility contributions subsequent to the measurement date 636,903 - 454,696
Total Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions S 1,124,134 (1,003,413) S 3,348,292 §  (168,242)

The Utility recorded $1,124,134 and $1,003,413 at December 31, 2017 and $3,348,292 and
$168,242 at December 31, 2016 as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related

to pensions, respectively.

The $636,903 reported by the Utility in 2017 as deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized
as a reduction in the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2018. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Net Amortization of
Deferred Outlows and
Deferred Inflows of

Year ending December 31, Resources

2018 $ (771,032)
2019 285,277
2020 128,065
2021 (158,492)
Total Amortization S (516,182)

The total pension liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2017. The total pension liability for the measurement period ended June 30, 2016 was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015, using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2016. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016
actuarial valuation (latest available) were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period from July 1, 2009 to June 30, 2013, resulting in changes in actuarial assumptions
adopted by the ARM Board to better reflect expected future experience. There were no changes
in actuarial assumptions from 2016 to 2017.
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Inflation 3.12%
Graded by service, from 9.66% to 4.92% for Peace Officers fFirefighters. Graded
Salary Increases by age and senvice, from 8.55% to 4,34% for all others

8.00% net of pension plan investment expenses. This is based on an average
Investment Return / Discount Rate  inflation rate of 3.12% and real rate of return of over 4.88%.

Based upon 2010-2013 actual mortality experience, 60% of male and 65% of

female of post-termination mortality rates. Deaths are assumed to be

occupational 70% of the time for Peace Officers/Firefighters, 50% of the time

Mortality (Pre-termination) for Others
96% of all rates of the RP-2000 table, 2000 Base Year projected to 2018 with
Mortality (Post-termination) Projection Scale BB.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table (note that the rates shown below exclude
the inflation component. Those estimates for years ending December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:

December 31, 2017

Long-term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity 8.83%
Global ex-U.S. equity 7.79%
Intermediate treasuries 1.29%
Opportunistic 4.76%
Real assets 4.94%
Absolute return 4.76%
Private equity 12.02%
Cash equivalents 0.63%

December 31, 2016
Long-term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity 5.35%
Global equity (non-US) 5.55%
Private equity 6.25%
Fixed income composite 0.80%
Real estate 3.65%
Alternative equity 4.70%

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8 percent in 2017 and 2016.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Employer and
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State contributions will continue to follow the current funding policy which meets State
statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the Utility’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the Utility’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (7 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9 percent) than the current rate:

December 31, 2017

Current
Proportional 1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
Share (7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)
Utility's proportionate share of the
net pension liability 0.23737% S 16,118,950 § 12,270,893 $ 9,021,357
December 31, 2016
Current

Proportion 1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
alShare (7.00%) (8.00%) (9.00%)

Utility's proportionate share of
the net pension liability 0.27003% $ 19,439,564 $15,093,423 § 11,427,653

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERS financial report.

State of Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System Defined Contribution Plan (PERS IV)

Plan Information

The Municipality participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS IV or
Plan). PERS IV is a Defined Contribution (DC) plan which covers eligible State and local
government employees, other than teachers. The Plan was established and is administered by
the State of Alaska Department of Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are
established by State law and may be amended only by the State Legislature.

The Plan is included in a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial
statements and other required supplemental information. That report is available via the
internet at http://doa.alaska.gov/drb/pers. Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial
statements, and other detailed plan information are also available on this website. They may
be obtained by writing to the State of Alaska, Department of Administration, Division of
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Retirement and Benefits, P.O. Box 110203, Juneau, Alaska, 99811 0203 or by phoning (907) 465
4460.

Plan Participation and Benefit Terms

The Plan is governed by Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. A portion of employee
wages and a matching employer contributions are made to the Plan before tax. These
contributions plus any change in value (interest, gains and losses), and minus any Plan
administrative fees or other charges, are payable to the employee or the employee’s beneficiary
at a future date. The Plan is a participant-directed plan with investment options offered by
providers that are selected by the Alaska Retirement Management (ARM) Board.

Employees first enrolling into PERS after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS IV. PERS IV is a defined
contribution retirement plan that includes a component of defined benefit post-employment
health care. ‘

Plan Contribution Requirements

The plan requires both employer and employee contributions. Employees may make additional
contributions into the plan, subject to limitations. Contribution rates are as follows:

Tier IV

11-6/30 7/ -12/31

Employee Contribution 8.00% 8.00%
Employer Contribution

Retirement 5.00% 5.00%

Health Reimbursement Arrangement 3.00% 3.00%

Retiree Medical Plan 1.18% 1.03%

Death & Disability Benefit 0.17% 0.16%

Total Employer Contribution 9.35% 9.19%

Health Reimbursement Arrangement

Alaska Statute 39.30.370 requires that the employer contribute “an amount equal to three
percent of the employer’s average annual employee compensation.” For actual remittance, this
amount is calculated as a flat rate per full time employee and a flat rate per hour for part time
employees. Prior to July 1, 2017 a flat rate of approximately $2,049 per year for full time
employees and $1.31 per part time hour worked was paid. For pay periods ending after July 1,
2017, a flat rate of approximately $2,084 per year for full time employees and $1.34 per part
time hour worked were paid.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Municipality contributed $4,467,018 to PERS IV for
retirement and retiree medical, and $2,288,200 to PERS IV for Health Reimbursement
Arrangement on-behalf of its employees. Employee contributions to the plan totaled
$7,160,037.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Municipality contributed $3,882,883 to PERS IV for
retirement and retiree medical, and $2,021,451 to PERS IV for Health Reimbursement
Arrangement on-behalf of its employees. Employee contributions to the plan totaled
$6,212,200.
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(8) Commitments and Contingencies

The Utility, in the normal course of its activities, is involved in various claims and pending litigation.
In the opinion of management and the Municipality’s legal department, the disposition of these
matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Utility’s financial statements.

(a) Environmental

Fuel/Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) Contaminated Sites at Hank Nikkels Power Plant 1 and
Operations/Dispatch Center

During the 1964 earthquake, approximately 250,000-400,000 gallons of diesel fuel spilled on
the ground. Based on numerous environmental investigations, the spill impacted soil and
groundwater at the Hank Nikkels Power Plant 1 and properties west/northwest of the plant.
During the 2006-2007 subsurface investigation, in addition to diesel contamination known from
the 1964 spill, PCBs were detected in the soil.All soil disturbing activities at the site are
governed by the Risk-Based Disposal Plan (RBDP) administered by the Alaska Department of
Environmental Conservation (ADEC) and the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

In May 2017 The Utility conducted PCB cleanup activities at the plant and paved the surface of
the cleanup area in accordance with the 2008 RBDP approved by EPA and ADEC. The Utility
recorded a liability for estimated cleanup costs of $760,000 at December 31, 2016. At December
31, 2017 the liability remained at $511,787. All cleanup activities were considered to be
performed and the liability was discharged during 2018.

In 2009 PCB contaminated soil was discovered near the Operations/Dispatch building during
excavation to install water lines for a fire suppression system. In 2010 and 2015 additional site
investigations were conducted to determine a horizontal and vertical extent of PCB
contamination.  Following the soil investigations the Utility performed monitoring of
groundwater at the site and in the vicinity during 2015 and 2016. Analytical results indicated
no off-site migration of PCBs. The Utility is waiting on EPA’s review of the site data and further
decisions. The cost associated with any further actions cannot be determined at this time.

Contaminated Sites Subject to Cleanup Complete or Cleanup Complete with Institutional
Controls status

In 2017, ADEC conducted a review of three contaminated sites that have a long history of
monitoring and identified two sites that qualified for cleanup complete status and one site
(Transformer Shop) that can qualify for the Cleanup Complete with Institutional Controls status
if the Utility conducts additional sampling The Utility intends to prepare a work plan and include
additional testing into the 2018 biannual groundwater monitoring. Upon receipt of analytical
results, the Utility will make a determination how to proceed with obtaining the Cleanup
Complete with Institutional Controls Status.

Compliance with Air Quality Permits

The Utility owns three turbines that are subject to hourly and annual emissions limits emission
controls for criteria pollutants, NOx and CO. In addition to maintaining continuous emission
monitoring systems (CEMS) on each turbine, the two newly installed turbines requires operation
with post-combustion emission controls.
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EPA regulations require annual third party emissions testing to assure accuracy of the CEMS.
Newly installed turbines have significant emissions reductions compared to the existing
turbines, however maintaining emissions control equipment and performing all testing required
by EPA will add to the overall environmental compliance cost. The Utility will oversee
environmental compliance and contract qualified third-party experts to perform necessary
services. Environmental permitting and compliance will continue to require a consultant’s
expertise. The cost of compliance cannot be determined at this time.

(b) Petroleum Production Tax (PPT)

For tax year 2016, the Utility estimated that its PPT liability under AS 43.55.011(e) for non-
royalty gas is zero and its liability under AS 43.44.011(i) for private royalty gas is $5,557.
Monthly installment payments from February 2016 through January 2017 totaled $5,555, an
underpayment of $2.

For tax year 2017, the Utility estimates that its PPT liability under AS 43.55.011(e) for non-
royalty gas is $604,171 and its liability under AS 43.44.011(i) for private royalty gas is $5,209.
Monthly installment payments from February 2017 through January 2018 totaled $609,380.

(c) Petroleum Production Credits

Pursuant to AS 43.55.023, the Utility applies for Alaska oil and gas tax credits from the State
of Alaska Department of Revenue (DOR). The Utility records the receipt of cash from tax credits
as a restricted investment and as a deferred inflow of resources for the benefit of customers.
During 2017, the Utility did not apply for tax credits and received cash payments of $20,294
for calendar year 2015 credits. During 2016, the Utility applied for tax credits in the amount of
$7,776,277 for calendar year 2014 and $2,473,790 for 2015. The Utility received cash payments
of $3,357,563. The amounts received by the Utility for tax credits are subject to final resolution
of DOR audits, and are not recorded until cash is received.

(d) Contractual Commitments
The Utility has purchase commitments to contractors and suppliers at December 31, 2017 of
approximately $7 million. Those commitments are for contracts, materials and services related
to construction of the Utility’s generation and distribution system assets, regulatory filings and
contracted billing services. Construction of plant assets is financed with contributions in aid of
construction and Utility equity, and operating commitments are financed with Utility revenues.

(9) Regulatory Matters

(a) Beluga River Unit Underlift Settlements

Until April 2016 the Utility owned a one-third interest in annual production of the BRU. Its
field partners at that time - CPAI and Hilcorp Alaska, LLC - each also owned a one-third interest
in BRU production. Every BRU owner has a right to take a portion of annually produced gas
proportionate to its interest.

In 2005 the Utility underlifted (i.e. took less than its interest in BRU’s annual output) and

accepted a monetary settlement from its field partners. These funds were deposited in a

Future Natural Gas Purchases Account (FGP), and the Utility recorded a deferred inflow of
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resources for future natural gas purchases. The balances of the Future Natural Gas Purchases
Account, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 were $17,230,809 and $16,477,276, respectively.

In 2015 the Utility petitioned the RCA for authorization to apply 2014 underlift settlement
proceeds to reduce its GTP in effect from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. The RCA
approved the Utility’s unopposed proposal in Order U-15-116(2), dated March 10, 2016.

In April 2016 the Utility purchased 70% of CPAI’s one-third interest in the BRU. The RCA
approved the Utility’s request in Order U-16-012(14), dated April 21, 2016, to utilize a closing
underlift settlement from CPAI of $13,177,726 towards financing this acquisition. See Note
9(f).

Regulatory Debits/Credits

The Utility files a COPA rate quarterly with the RCA to recover cost of power expenses not
recovered in base rates. The COPA calculation is based on the projected cost of fuel and
purchased power for the applicable quarter, the projected kilowatt hour sales for the
applicable quarter, and the over- or under- recovered balance in the cost of power clearing
account. The Utility records in the cost of power clearing account an asset with an offsetting
credit to a contra revenue account for under recovered costs or a liability and an offsetting
debit to a contra revenue account for over recovered costs. The Utility over-recovered as of
December 31, 2017 in the amount of $4,589,934 and under-recovered as of December 31, 2016
in the amount of $1,358,355.

Prior to October 24, 2017, the Utility annually set the GTP with its third quarter COPA filings.
(See Note 8 (g) for the new schedule in filing the GTP.) Through the GTP, the Utility recovers
the Gas Fund’s annual revenue requirement associated with the Utility’s ownership interest in
the BRU and any over or under recovery from the prior year. The Utility records in the cost of
Gas Transfer Price Clearing Account an asset and a credit to an expense account for under-
recovered costs or a liability and debit to an expense account for over-recovered costs. The
Utility over-recovered as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 in the amounts of
$7,394,724 and $11,423,366, respectively.

Deferred Regulatory Liability for Gas Sales

Revenue from third party sales of natural gas produced at the BRU is excluded from the GTP
calculation. These funds, net of royalties and the ARO surcharge, are recorded in the Utility’s
Future BRU Construction or Natural Gas Purchases account, referred to for regulatory purposes
as the Deferred Regulatory Liability from Gas Sales (DRLGS) Account. These funds are to be
used for future BRU construction or natural gas purchases. The balances of the DRLGS account,
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, were $25,002,529 and $20,236,871, respectively.

Asset Retirement Obligation Sinking Fund

ARO expenses associated with future abandonment of the BRU are funded through a surcharge
to the Utility’s GTP. This surcharge is deposited into a sinking fund. As of December 31, 2017
and 2016, the sinking fund account balances were $13,198,877 and $11,797,445, respectively.
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Revenue Requirement Studies

On December 30, 2016 the Utility filed a petition with the RCA, based on a 2015 test year
revenue requirement study, for interim and permanent across-the-board rate increases in
energy and demand charges in order to recover costs associated with its construction of Plant
2A. The Utility requested a 29.49% interim and refundable rate increase, based on RCA
approval of the Utility’s proposed rate stabilization plan (RSP). On February 13, 2017 the RCA
granted the Utility an interim and refundable rate increase of 37.30%, denied approval of the
Utility’s proposed RSP, and suspended the Utility’s request into Docket U-17-008 for further
investigation.

A public hearing was held on this matter that began on November 16, 2017, and continued
through December 21, 2017. The RCA issued a final order on March 23, 2018 [U-17-008(13)]
approving a 37.32% increase in the revenue requirement.

Acquisition of CPAI’s Interest in the BRU

In Order U-16-012(14), dated April 21, 2016, the RCA granted a joint petition filed by the Utility
and CEA requesting approval of a purchase and sale agreement for the acquisition of CPAI’s
one-third interest in the BRU. The total purchase price was $152 million, with the Utility
acquiring 70% of that interest for $106.4 million and CEA the remaining 30% for $45.6 million.
The Utility funded its share of the acquisition with DRLGS and Future Natural Gas Purchases
Account funds, cumulative and underlift proceeds owed to it by CPAI. This purchase gives the
Utility a total 56.67% interest in the BRU.

BRU Ratemaking and Accounting Treatment - Aggregate BRU Interest

On June 20, 2016, the Utility filed for approval from the RCA for some changes in the
ratemaking and accounting treatment applicable to the Aggregate BRU Interest. Ruling under
Docket U-16-060(12), the RCA granted in part the request on October 24, 2017. The use of rate
base/rate of return (RB/ROR) methodology to calculate the gas fund revenue requirement
beginning in 2019 was approved. The use of a system-wide weighted average cost of capital
(WACC) for calculating the gas fund revenue requirement was approved. The RCA also approved
the inclusion of depletion expense using the units of production methodology for calculating
the gas fund revenue requirement.

Because the GTP is one component of the COPA and Small Facility Power Purchase Rate (SFPPR),
several 2017 tariff advice filings were suspended and were filed under Docket U-16-073. On
October 24, 2017, these were approved and made permanent.

Bradley Lake Transmission

Homer Electric Association, Inc. (HEA) filed a rate case on November 15, 2013 requesting RCA’s
approval of postage stamp rates for Bradley Lake energy wheeled over HEA’s system. The
Utility intervened, arguing in part that the Bradley Lake Agreements govern the obligations of
Bradley Lake participants and that the RCA was statutorily precluded, under AS 42.05.431(c),
from reviewing these wheeling rates. On June 30, 2014, the RCA issued an order establishing
interim rates for wheeling Bradley Lake energy from the Soldotna to Quartz Creek
Substations. The parties appealed to the state superior court, which ruled May 27, 2015 that
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the RCA lacks jurisdiction over Bradley Lake wheeling rates. All parties appealed this decision
to the Alaska Supreme Court. The parties engaged in lengthy mediation, and filed reply briefs
with the Alaska Supreme Court. Oral arguments before the Alaska Supreme Court were heard
May 31, 2018. If the Utility is unsuccessful in court, the Utility’s wheeling rates could be
affected.

(10) Other Matters

(a)

(b)

Eklutna Hydroelectric Project

On October 2, 1997, the ownership of the Eklutna Hydroelectric Project was formally
transferred from the Alaska Power Administration, a unit of the United States Department of
Energy, to the three participating utilities: the Utility, CEA and Matanuska Electric Association
(MEA). The project is jointly owned and operated by the participating utilities and each
contributes their proportionate share for operation, maintenance, and capital improvement
costs, as well as maintenance of the transmission line between Anchorage and the hydroelectric
plant. The Utility has a 53.33% ownership interest in the project and recorded costs of
$2,300,574 and $674,165 in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project

The Utility agreed to acquire a portion of the output of the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project
(Project) pursuant to a Power Sales Agreement (Agreement). The Agreement specifies the
Utility acquire 25.9% of the output of the Project.

The Project went on line September 1, 1991. The Utility made payments to the Alaska Energy
Authority (AEA) of $4,669,706 in 2017 for its portion of costs, and received 95,933 megawatt
hours of power from the Project. In 2016 the Utility paid $5,101,368 and received 90,390
megawatt hours. The Utility received a budget surplus refund in the amount of $614,108 for
2017. The Utility’s estimated cost of power from the Project for 2018 is $4,961,943.

AEA issued the Power Revenue Bonds, First and Second Series in September 1989 and August
1990, respectively, for the long term financing of the construction costs of the Project. On
July 1, 2010, AEA issued $28,800,000 principal amount of Power Revenue Bonds, Sixth
Series. The Sixth Series Bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding the Power Revenue
Bonds, Fifth Series Bonds to take advantage of lower interest rates. The total amount of debt
outstanding as of December 31, 2017 is $44,359,771. The pro rata share of the debt service
costs of the Project for which the Utility is responsible, given its 25.9% share of the Project, is
$11,489,181. In the event of payment defaults by other power purchasers, the Utility’s share
could be increased by up to 25%, which would then cause the Utility’s pro rata share of Project
debt service to be a total of $14,361,476. The Utility does not now know of or anticipate any
such defaults.
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(c) Southcentral Power Project

The Utility entered into a participation agreement with CEA on August 28, 2008, to proceed
with the joint development, construction and operation of SPP. SPP went into service on
January 31, 2013. It has a capacity of 200.3 MW, of which the Utility’s proportionate share is
60.1 MW, or 30%. The Utility has recorded costs of $5,481,350 and $14,302,236 in 2017 and
2016, respectively.

(11) Subsequent Events

(12)

Sale of the Utility

On April 3, 2018, Anchorage voters approved an amendment to the Anchorage Municipal Charter
authorizing the Municipality to sell Municipal Light & Power to Chugach Electric Association, Inc. by
Municipal ordinance, to be approved no later than December 31, 2018. The Anchorage Assembly
approved the sale on December 4, 2018. Proceeds of the sale are to be used to retire Utility and
Municipal debt, replace MUSA payments and fund the MOA Trust Fund.

The Municipality and CEA are currently negotiating terms of the proposed sale and due diligence
activities are ongoing. The Utility continues to operate as usual and the proposed sale has no material
effect on ongoing operations of the Utility.

Earthquake

On November 30, 2018, Anchorage and surrounding areas experienced an earthquake of magnitude
7.0. The Utility continues to assess and repair any damages sustained by its system due to the
earthquake. When the costs associated with damage and repairs have been fully assessed, the Utility
does not expect uninsured losses to be material.

New Accounting Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has passed several new accounting standards with
upcoming implementation dates. The new accounting standards were considered and determined to
be not applicable to the financial statements of the Utility for 2017 reporting.

The following standards are required to be implemented in future financial reporting periods:

e GASB 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than
Pensions. The provisions of this Statement are required to be implemented for the
2018 financial reporting period.

e GASB 84 - Fiduciary Activities. The provisions of this Statement are required to be
implemented for the 2019 financial reporting period.

e GASB 85 - Omnibus 2017. The provisions of this Statement are required to be
implemented for the 2018 financial reporting period.

e GASB 86 - Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The provisions of this Statement are
required to be implemented for the 2018 financial reporting period.
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GASB 87 - Leases. The provisions of this Statement are required to be implemented for
the 2020 financial reporting period.

GASB 88 - Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements. The provisions of this statement are required to be implemented in the
2019 reporting period.

GASB 89 - Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period. The provisions of this statement are required to be implemented in the 2020
reporting period.

GASB 90 - Majority Equity Interests. An Amendment to GASB Statements No. 14 and

No. 61. The provisions of this statement are required to be implemented for the 2019
financial reporting period.
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Public Employees Retirement System- Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of the Utility's Information on the Net Pension Liability

Utility's
Proportionate  Plan Fiduciary
Utility's State of Alaska’s Share of the Net Position as
Proportionate Proportionate Net Pension a Percentage
Measurement Share of the Share of the Total Utility Utility's Liability as a of the Total
Year Ended Period Ended Net Pension Net Pension Net Pension Covered percentage of Pension
December 31, June 30, Liability Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability
2017 2017 12,270,893 $§ 4,571,641 ¢ 16,842,534 9 6,874,310 178.50% 63.37%
2016 2016 15,093,423 1,901,832 16,995,255 7,069,090 213.51% 59.55%
2015 2015 10,494,008 2,810,753 13,304,761 6,832,003 153.60% 63.96%

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Required Supplementary Information
Public Employees Retirement System - Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Schedule of Utility Contributions

Contributions

Utility's Proportion Relative to the Contributions
Measurement of the Contractually Contractually Contribution Utility's as a
Year Ended Period Ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Percentage of
December 31, June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll
2017 2017 S 940,338 S 940,338 S - S 7,051,257 13.336%
2016 2016 854,217 854,217 . 7,204,870 11.856%
2015 2015 767,929 767,929 - 6,991,594 10.984%

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information

December 31, 2017

Pension Disclosures

Public Employees Retirement System - Defined Benefit Plan

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 82, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which

contributions to the pension plan are based. Because a portion of the Municipality’s contributions to
the Plan (the DBUL) are based on Defined Contribution Wages, covered payroll reported here includes
all PERS participating wages (both Defined Benefit and Defined Contribution).

Both pension tables are intended to present 10 years of information. Additional years’ information will
be added to the schedules as it becomes available.

Schedule of Utility’s Information on the Net Pension Liability

e o @& @

This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date. For December 31, 2017, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2017.

There were no changes in benefit terms from the prior measurement period.

There were no changes in assumptions from the prior measurement period.

There were no changes in valuation method from the prior measurement period.

There were no changes in the allocation methodology from the prior measurement period. The
measurement period ended June 30, 2017 allocated the net pension liability based on the present
value of contributions for fiscal year 2019 through 2039, as determined by projections based on the
June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation.

Schedule of Utility Contributions

This table is based on the Utility’s contributions for each year presented. A portion of these
contributions are included in the plan measurement results, while a portion of the contributions
are reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the December 31, 2017 statement of net
position.

International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW) Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Schedule of Utility Contributions

This table presents the Utility contributions for each of the last ten years based on calendar year
contributions.

In accordance with GASB Statement 78, “Covered Payroll” is defined as payroll on which
contributions to the pension plan are based.
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
Anchorage School District

State of Alaska

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

Anchorage School District

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Customer

Elmendorf Air Force Base
Municipality of Anchorage
Providence Alaska Medical
State of Alaska

Anchorage School District

Fort Richardson

University of Alaska, Anchorage
University of Alaska

Providence Health System
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

76

Revenue (§)

Sales (kWh)

13,810,920 121,123,845
6,244,068 21,997,754
4,527,732 29,313,454
4,144,490 21,900,552
4,055,188 24,489,039
3,641,951 23,844,604
3,075,322 18,469,251
2,762,581 16,788,893
2,742,328 16,584,283
2,625,088 16,570,118

2016

Revenue (5) Sales (kWh)

12,249,880 121,923,613
5,010,301 25,943,896
4,047,395 30,672,310
3,601,515 25,281,432
3,567,374 22,742,140
3,187,464 25,516,920
2,583,129 18,519,071
2,409,761 17,348,160
2,384,436 17,182,319
2,212,302 16,300,831

2015

Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)

11,714,725 123,925,931
4,906,357 26,544,546
3,765,947 29,916,508
3,559,141 26,353,330
3,520,203 23,392,075
2,810,763 22,892,004
2,461,696 18,359,501
2,304,264 17,427,455
2,197,364 16,644,299
2,172,315 16,242,233



MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014
Customer Revenue ($§) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base S 11,017,465 125,613,900
Municipality of Anchorage 4,415,594 24,172,965
Providence Alaska Medical 3,530,551 29,596,430
State of Alaska 3,255,191 25,479,576
Anchorage School District 3,106,621 21,463,838
Fort Richardson 2,404,701 19,441,172
University of Alaska, Anchorage 2,177,227 17,079,887
Providence Health System 1,945,608 15,541,320
University of Alaska 1,913,342 15,008,522
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,832,379 15,140,657

2013
Customer Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base 9,226,223 131,043,824
Anchorage School District 2,897,648 24,777,425
Municipality of Anchorage 3,824,941 26,282,712
State of Alaska 2,803,076 27,544,890
Providence Alaska Medical 2,629,984 28,699,997
Fort Richardson 2,588,055 29,910,389
University of Alaska 2,072,531 20,064,980
Providence Health System 1,783,576 17,591,484
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,589,389 16,216,071
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,571,321 16,211,245

2012
Customer Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base 8,097,877 135,878,731
Fort Richardson 3,729,428 58,671,211
Municipality of Anchorage 3,422,563 26,655,434
Anchorage School District 2,655,271 26,608,898
State of Alaska 2,492,450 28,556,399
Providence Alaska Medical 2,234,908 29,596,617
University of Alaska 1,793,961 20,506,774
Providence Health System 1,514,000 17,642,498
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,386,848 16,893,051
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,313,019 15,929,544
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2011
Customer Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base 9,921,072 135,333,281
Fort Richardson 5,460,835 74,181,992
Municipality of Anchorage 3,809,602 27,353,371
Providence Alaska Medical 3,116,712 29,971,840
Anchorage School District 3,015,951 26,844,664
State of Alaska 2,752,681 26,966,050
University of Alaska 2,066,234 20,226,113
Providence Health System 1,727,491 17,114,796
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,629,192 16,791,861
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,518,934 15,702,915

2010
Customer Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)
Etmendorf Air Force Base 9,991,880 134,772,525
Fort Richardson 5,695,316 76,074,926
Municipality of Anchorage 3,744,757 26,775,275
Anchorage School District 3,066,378 27,288,755
Providence Alaska Medical 2,871,643 29,775,325
State of Alaska 2,764,053 26,965,173
University of Alaska 2,042,255 19,973,125
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,655,862 16,844,949
Providence Health System 1,529,925 15,062,395
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,428,740 14,679,960

2009
Customer Revenue ($) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base 9,053,368 132,512,540
Fort Richardson 4,873,781 70,504,975
Municipality of Anchorage 3,565,407 27,479,484
Anchorage School District 3,003,112 28,837,796
Providence Alaska Medical 2,661,493 29,740,551
State of Alaska 2,638,850 27,613,800
University of Alaska 1,942,120 20,475,951
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,573,382 17,169,527
Providence Health System 1,346,611 14,259,674
Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 1,296,731 14,458,413
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Top Ten Customers By Revenue

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2008
Customer Revenue (S) Sales (kWh)
Elmendorf Air Force Base S 6,749,206 135,427,252
Fort Richardson 3,858,211 76,257,376
Municipality of Anchorage 3,230,021 28,669,424
Anchorage School District 2,460,927 28,897,407
State of Alaska 2,084,279 27,150,535
Providence Alaska Medical 2,080,667 29,088,684
University of Alaska 1,582,133 20,471,933
United States Government 1,318,939 17,100,335
Galen Hospital Alaska, Inc 1,191,099 16,127,466
Providence Health System 1,023,623 13,434,937
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)

Rate Summary

Permanent Interim Permanent Interim Interim
Effective date 04/20/18 02/15/17 07/16/15 10/24/13 03/01/13
Base cost of power (S/kWh) - - o .
Residential:
Schedule 11
Customer charge (S/month) 13.62 6.56 6.56 6.56 6.56
Demand charge (5/kW) * - c - .
Energy charge (S/kWh) 0.15274 0.14738 0.10734 0.10734 0.08634
Commercial:
Schedule 21 - small commercial
Customer charge ($/month) 30.46 12.88 12.88 12.88 12.88
Demand charge (S/kW) E - - - -
Energy charge (S/kWh} 0.11878 0.14161 0.10314 0.10314 0.08296
Schedule 22 - large commercial at secondary voltage
Customer charge (S/month) 92.61 44,15 44,15 44,15 44,15
Demand charge (5/kW) 44.53 23.29 16.96 16.96 13.64
Energy charge (S/kWh) 0.00498 0.06630 0.04329 0.04829 0.03884
Schedule 23 - large commercial at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge ($/kW) 43.10 26.18 19.07 19.07 15.34
Energy charge (5/kWh) 0.00488 0.06244 0.04548 0.04543 0.03658
Schedule 25 - replacement energy, AWWU
Customer charge {$/month) . = = - .
Demand charge (S/kW) . - - - E
Energy charge (5/kWh) 0.02561 0.03497 0.02547 0.02547 0.02049
Schedule 27 - interruptible power at secondary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) 92.61 44.15 44,15 44.15 44.15
Demand charge ($/kW) g < . - -
Energy charge (S/kWh) 0.37673 0.06630 0.04829 0.04329 0.03884
Schedules 31, 32, 33 - general service seasonal at secondary voltage
Customer charge (S/month) - winter 92,61 44,15 44,15 44,15 44,15
Demand charge (5/KW) - winter - - - - -
Energy charge (S/kWh) - winter 0.11878 0.14161 0.10314 0.10314 0.08296
Customer charge (S$/month) - summer 92.61 44,15 44,15 44,15 44,15
Demand charge (S/KW) - summer 44.53 23.29 16.96 16.96 13.64
Energy charge (S/kWh) - summer 0.00498 0.06630 0.04829 0.04329 0.03384
Schedules 34, 35, 36 - general service seasonal at primary voltage
Customer charge (S/month) - winter 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge (S/kW) - winter - & - - -
Energy charge ($5/kWh) - winter 0.09355 0.13502 0.09834 0.09834 0.07910
Customer charge (S/month) - summer 619.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge ($/kW) - summer 43.10 26.18 19.07 19.07 15.34
Energy charge ($/kWh) - summer 0.00488 0.06244 0.04548 0.04548 0.03658
Area lighting/street lighting:
Schedules 41/60 (S/month) (150 watt luminaire) 37.78 35.15 25.60 25.60 20.59
Schedules 42/61 (5/month) (175 watt luminaire) 39.74 36.97 26.93 26.93 21.66
Schedules 43/62 (S/month) (250 Watt luminaire) 44,81 41.70 30.37 30.37 24,43
Schedules 44/63 (S/month) (400 watt luminaire) 55.69 51.82 37.74 37.74 30.36
Schedules 45/64 (5/month) (1,000 watt luminaire) 101.61 94.55 68.86 68.86 55.39
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Rate Summary

Permanent Interim Permanent Interim Interim
Effective date 04/20/18 02/15/17 07/16/15 10/24/13 03/01/13

Military:

Schedule 700 - interruptible service - Ft. Richardson - at primary voltage

Customer charge (S/month) - - - 2 z
Demand charge ($/kW) - . . . .
Energy charge (S/kWh) 0.07245 0.05368 0.03910 0.03910 0.03145

Schedule 750 - interruptibte service - Elmendorf AFB - at primary voltage
Customer charge ($/month) - - - . .
Demand charge (5/kW) - e . . .

Energy charge (S/kWh) 0.08428 0.06244 0.04548 0.04548 0.03658
Schedule 760 - limited ail requirements service at primary voltage

Customer charge ($/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Demand charge (5/kW) 45.43 17.36 12.64 12.64 10.17
Energy charge (5/kWh) 0.00488 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829
Schedule 770 - partial requirements service at primary voltage

Customer charge ($/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Baseload demand charge ($/kW) 39.66 9.44 6.87 6.87 5.53
Peaking demand charge (5/kW) 39.66 21.42 15.60 15.60 12.55
Energy charge (S/kwh) 0.00488 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829
Schedule 780 - seasonal replacement service at primary voltage

Customer charge ($/month) 668.42 159.55 159.55 159.55 159.55
Replacement capacity charge{$/kW) 39.66 9.44 6.87 6.87 5.53
Excess demand charge (5/kW) 39.66 21.42 15.60 15.60 12.55
Energy charge ($/kWh) 0.00488 0.04829 0.03517 0.03517 0.02829

(1) Base cost of power (S/kWh) is not included in the energy rates for 10/01/2011 and is now
included in the cost ot power adjustment (COPA).
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MUNICIPALITY OF ANCHORAGE, ALASKA
ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
As of December 31, 2017

Base Ratings by Generation Units

Type Unit no.
Combustion turbine 3
Combustion turbine 4
Combustion turbine 7
Combustion turbine 8
Combustion turbine 9
Combustion turbine 10
Steam turbine 11

Sub-total
Hydro-turbine (Eklutna) 1
Hydro-turbine (Eklutna) 2

Sub-total
Steam Turbine (SPP) 10
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 11
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 12
Cumbustion Turbine (SPP) 13

Total

ML&P units

Eklutna (53.3%)

SPP (30%)

Plant 1
Plant 2
Eklutna
SPP

Base rating Nameplate

30F (MW) ISO (MW) capacity (KVA)
32.9 29.3 48,941
33.6 31.1 31,765
81.8 74.4 110,556
85.0 77.3 102,941
48.9 48.5 71,000
48.9 48.5 71,000
28.9 28.9 36,000
360.0 338.0 472,203
22.2 22.2 22,222
22.2 22.2 22,222
404.4 382.4 516,647
57.5 38.1 67,647
47.6 40.2 57,352
47.6 40.2 57,352
47.6 40.2 57,352
604.7 541.1 756,350
360.0 338.0 472,203.0
23.7 23.7 23,688.7
60.1 47.6 71,910.9
443.8 409.3 567,802.6
66.5 60.4 80,706
293.5 277.6 391,497
23.7 23.7 23,689
60.1 47.6 71,911

International Standards Organization (ISO)
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Tel: 907-278-8878 3601 C Street, Suite 600
Fax: 907-278-5779 Anchorage, AK 99503

www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Assembly
Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the Electric Utility Fund, an enterprise fund of the Municipality of Anchorage,
Alaska, which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2017, and the
related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Electric
Utility Fund’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determinate the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Electric Utility Fund’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2017-
001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Electric Utility Fund’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective

BDO USA, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of BDO Intemational Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
intemational BDO network of independent member firms

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

The Electric Utility Fund’s Response to Findings

The Electric Utility Fund’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The Electric Utility Fund’s response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ADO USA, LLF

Anchorage, Alaska
December 18, 2018
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Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska
Electric Utility Fund

Schedule of Findings and Responses
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? X yes no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X (none reported)
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards

Finding 2017-001

Criteria:

Condition:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

SAP Software Conversion - Internal Control over Financial Reporting -
Material Weakness

A properly functioning ERP accounting system is an integral component in
providing accurate accounting data and information. Without a functioning
ERP accounting system, it is difficult for management to have access to
financial information that is reliable and properly reported, which is
necessary for management to prevent or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis.

The Electric Utility Fund did not have in place a properly functioning ERP
accounting system. The Electric Utility Fund placed the SAP system into
service on September 11, 2017 (payroll only) and October 1, 2017 (remainder
of the system). Immediately, Management became aware of significant
errors in transaction processing and financial reporting due to defects in the
system. A significant number of the defects were not corrected as of year-
end.

The implementation of the SAP system was managed at the Municipality
level, where management did not fully assess the functionality of the SAP
system prior to bringing the system online in 2017. Management neglected
to conduct proper testing prior to implementation.

Management was unable to properly reconcile and close the 2017 financial
records in a timely manner. A significant number of account balances and
financial statement areas were not fully adjusted, reconciled and closed
until months after year-end.

We encourage management work with representatives at the Municipality
who are responsible for the project management of SAP to continue
addressing the remaining defects and make the necessary modifications to
ensure the system is operating correctly.

Views of responsibl